Utah State University
DigitalCommons@USU

All Graduate Theses and Dissertations

Graduate Studies

5-1999

Molecular Characterization of Soil Ammonia-Oxidizing Bacteria Based on the Genes Encoding Ammonia Monooxygenase

Jose Javier Alzerreca Utah State University

Follow this and additional works at: https://digitalcommons.usu.edu/etd

Part of the Soil Science Commons

Recommended Citation

Alzerreca, Jose Javier, "Molecular Characterization of Soil Ammonia-Oxidizing Bacteria Based on the Genes Encoding Ammonia Monooxygenase" (1999). *All Graduate Theses and Dissertations*. 3644. https://digitalcommons.usu.edu/etd/3644

This Thesis is brought to you for free and open access by the Graduate Studies at DigitalCommons@USU. It has been accepted for inclusion in All Graduate Theses and Dissertations by an authorized administrator of DigitalCommons@USU. For more information, please contact digitalcommons@usu.edu.



MOLECULAR CHARACTERIZATION OF SOIL AMMONIA-OXIDIZING BACTERIA

BASED ON THE GENES ENCODING AMMONIA MONOOXYGENASE

by

Jose Javier Alzerreca

A thesis submitted in partial fulfillment of the requirements for the degree

of

MASTER OF SCIENCE

in

Soil Science (Molecular Biology)

UTAH STATE UNIVERSITY Logan, Utah

Copyright © J. Javier Alzerreca

All Rights Reserved

ABSTRACT

Molecular Characterization of Ammonia-Oxidizing Bacteria Based on the Genes Encoding Ammonia Monooxygenase

by

J. Javier Alzerreca, Master of Science

Utah State University, 1999

Major Professor: Dr. Jeanette M. Norton Department: Plants, Soils, and Biometeorology

Ammonia-oxidizing bacteria (AOB) are chemolithotrophs that oxidize ammonia/ammonium to nitrite in a two-step process to obtain energy for survival. AOB are difficult to isolate from the environment and isolated strains may not represent the diversity in soil. A genetic database and molecular tools were developed based on the ammonia monooxygenase (AMO) encoding genes that can be used to assess the diversity of AOB that exist in soil and aquatic environments without the isolation of pure cultures. The amo genes have excellent potential as molecular markers; since AMO is only found in the AOB and is essential for their metabolism, AOB must carry at least one functional copy of the amo operon. The operon is composed of at least three genes, amoC, amoA, and amoB (encoding for the subunits AmoC, AmoA, and AmoB). The amoC gene was first discovered and its sequence was obtained from Nitrosospira sp. NpAV. The *amo* operon is found in several copies within AOB genomes in the β -subdivision but as a single copy in y-subdivision genomes. In Southern analysis, cross-hybridization was only observed between amo genes within a subdivision. The y-subdivision amo sequences have higher identity values to the genes encoding the related particulate methane monooxygenase than to the B-subdivision amo sequences. Since amoA encodes the subunit containing the active site, it was sequenced entirely for all the strains studied (16 amoA sequences total). The amoC and amoB genes were also sequenced for several strains. The amo genes allow for better discrimination between closely related strains than the 16S rRNA genes. In all cases, the amo operon consists of amoC, followed by a variable length intergenic region, and then by amoAB. The

variability in length of the intergenic region is strain specific, and is therefore potentially useful for profiling AOB communities. The *amo*-gene database was the basis for the design of conserved oligonucleotide primers for the polymerase chain reaction (PCR). These primers were used to amplify *amo* sequences from a mixed template of DNA extracted directly from soil. Results indicate that the *amo* genes are excellent molecular markers for the assessment of AOB communities in the environment.

(151 pages)

DEDICATION

This work is dedicated to Jeanette Norton, my major advisor. Her support has been far more than academic. Her patience, counseling, and teaching abilities are the characteristics that separate the exceptional professor from the common one. The quality of this work has been greatly enriched by her comments and input.

This work is also dedicated to my family and friends, who believed in me and who supported me during the entire process. I could not have completed this work without the very significant aid I received from all the above mentioned, and I thank them for their respective contributions.

ACKNOWLEDGMENTS

This work was supported by grants from the National Science Foundation (IBN-9527919 to JMN and IBN-9628556 to MGK), the USDA NRI-CGP (#9600839 to JMN and #9604332 to MGK), the Vice President for Research at Utah State University, the Utah Agricultural Experiment Station, and the University of Colorado. Javier Alzerreca was generously supported by a John Seymour Memorial Scholarship during his graduate studies. The assistance of Dr. James Thomas in arranging for this scholarship was greatly appreciated. We thank Edwin Schmidt, Mary Anne Bruns and Fredrica Valois for supplying ammonia oxidizer strains. Daniel Arp and associates (Oregon State University), and Michael Wagner (Technische Universität, Munich) provided stimulating discussions and insightful comments. Rita Nelson, Tracy Shiosawa, Darron Kelly, and Eric D. Cambronne provided excellent technical assistance.

Jose Javier Alzerreca.

CONTENTS

L DOTD L CO	Page
ABSTRAC	I Ш
DEDICATIO	ON v
ACKNOWL	.EDGMENTSvi
LIST OF TA	ABLES ix
LIST OF FI	GURESx
CHAPTER	
1.	INTRODUCTION TO AUTOTROPHIC AMMONA OXIDIZING BACTERIA
	The Process of Nitrification 1 Biochemistry and Genetics of Ammonia Oxidation 2
	Biochemistry of Ammonia Oxidation 2
	Biochemistry and Molecular Biology of the AMO Enzyme.
	Relationship of AMO with pMMO
	Taxonomy of the Autotrophic Ammona-Oxidizing Bacteria
	Analysis of the Diversity of Ammonia-Oxidizing Bacteria in the Environment
	Rationale and Project Objectives
	Development of an amo Gene Database
	Development of a Method to Assess Ammonia-Oxidizing Bacteria
	References
2.	A GENE ENCODING A MEMBRANE PROTEIN EXISTS UPSTREAM OF
	THE amoA/amoB GENES IN AMMONIA-OXIDIZING BACTERIA; A THIRD
	MEMBER OF THE amo OPERON?
	Abstract 22
	Introduction
	Materials and Methods
	Bacterial Strains Plasmids and Culture Conditions
	DNA Isolation, Hybridization Analysis, Amplification and Sequencing
	Results And Discussion
	References
3.	THE amo OPERON IN Nitrosococcus, MARINE, AMMONIA-OXIDIZING
	γ-PROTEOBACTERIA
	Abstract
	Introduction

Materials and Methods	35
Bacterial Strains and DNA Isolation	25
Hybridization Analysis for the amo Operon	35
Primers and PCP Amplification	20
NOC Operon Cloping PCR Purification and Sequencing	30
C-113 Operon and 16S rDNA Sequencing	40
Sequence Comparison and Analysis	40
Results and Discussion	41
Marine Strain C-113	45
Comparison of amo Genes and Their Putative Expression Products	45
References	48
A DIVERSITY OF AMMONIA MONOAVVOTMASE OPPONING AUTOTRODUC	
4. DIVERSITI OF AMIMONIA MONOUXI GENASE OPERON IN AUTOTROPHIC	50
AMMONIA-OAIDIZING BACTERIA.	52
Abstract	52
Introduction	53
Materials and Methods	55
Bacterial Strains, Plasmids, and Culture Conditions,	55
DNA Isolation, Hybridization Analysis, Amplification, and Sequencing	55
Sequence, Phylogenetic, and Topology Analyses.	58
Environmental Samples	59
Results and Discussion	61
Conv. Number and Gane Arrangement of the area Oneron	c1
Diversity of Primary Sequences of and Cones and the Encoded Particles	61
Secondary Structures and Topologies of Deduced Amo Proteins	69
Application of <i>amo</i> Primers for Environmental Samples	68
References	71
5. CONCLUSIONS	76
References	80
APPENDIXES	35 36 37 37 37 37 37 37 37 37 37 37
Appendix A Electronic Mail Permission Letters for Chapter 2 and Chapter 3	83
Appendix B Authorship Letters for Chapter 2 and Chapter 5	86
Appendix C Protein Expression Studies for amoC.	89
Appendix D amoC and amoAB Transcription Studies with RT-PCR in	
Nitrosospira sp. NpAV	93
Appendix E List of Genbank Entries.	99
Appendix F GenBank Entries	02
Appendix G Amino Acid Alignments and Pair Table for the amo Genes and	-
their Deduced Peptides	36

viii

LIST OF TABLES

	Page
Strains cultured in the Norton laboratory for this study	7
Bacterial strains and plasmids used in this study	24
Size of the <i>amo</i> genes and the intergenic spacer between <i>amoC</i> and <i>amoA</i> (C-A I.S.) in autotrophic ammonia-oxidizing bacteria and comparison to the <i>pmo</i> genes of <i>Methylococcus</i> capsulatus (Bath).	45
Identity and similarity values for amo and pmo genes and their deduced peptides	46
Bacterial strains used in this study	. 56
Primer sequences for amplification of amo genes from environmental samples	60
The length of the <i>amoC</i> to <i>amoA</i> intergenic variable region and the length of the amplified region spanning from the end of <i>amoC</i> into <i>amoA</i> (from primer 305F to 304 reverse)	70
	Strains cultured in the Norton laboratory for this study

ix

LIST OF FIGURES

Figure		Page
1-1	Pathway of NH ₃ oxidation to NO ₂ ⁺ via the enzymes ammonia monooxygenase (AMO) and hydroxylamine oxidoreductase (HAO) in <i>Nitrosomonas europaea</i> .	3
2-1	Physical map of the 4.4 kb-, 5.7 kb-, and 16.8 kb-sized <i>Eco</i> RI restriction fragments from the genome of <i>Nitrosospira</i> sp. NpAV.	. 26
2-2	Nucleotide sequence for the copy of <i>amoC3</i> gene and flanking regions from <i>Nitrosospira</i> sp. NpAV contained on the 4.4 kb <i>Eco</i> RI restriction fragment	28
2-3	PCR amplification of ammonia oxidizer genomic DNA using the <i>amoC</i> and <i>amoA</i> specific primers.	. 30
3-1	Southern blots with gDNA from three AOB strains	. 37
3-2	Physical map of the NOC amo operon	. 38
3-3	DNA sequence of the NOC amo operon	43
3-4	Amino acid sequence alignment for the deduced peptides from the amoA and pmoA genes	47
4-1	Southern blot of ammonia oxidizer genomic DNA with <i>amoA</i> probe from <i>N. europaea</i> showing the multiple copies of <i>amoA</i>	
4-2	Physical map of the amo operon in Nitrosospira sp. NpAV and Nitrosococcus oceanus Showing the four ORFs: amoC, amoA, amoB, and ORF4	60
4-3	Low stringency Southern blot of ammonia oxidizer genomic DNA	61
4-4	Southern blot of ammonia oxidizer genomic DNA with amoA probe from N. europaea	64
4-5	Secondary structure predictions for AmoC, AmoA, and AmoB peptides from <i>Nitrosospira</i> sp. NpAV (NAV), <i>Nitrosomonas europaea</i> (NEU) and <i>Nitrosococcus oceanus</i> (NOC)	
4-6	Neighbor joining unrooted tree for the deduced AmoA peptide sequences based on the Clustal W alignment	67
4-7	PCR products of the <i>amoA</i> internal region and the <i>amoC</i> to <i>amoA</i> intergenic region for pure culture representatives and for extracted soil DNA	69

х

CHAPTER 1

INTRODUCTION TO AUTOTROPHIC AMMONIA OXIDIZING BACTERIA

The Process of Nitrification

The nitrogen (N) cycle is a complex series of reactions in which N is continually recycled between the atmosphere, land, oceans, rivers, and lakes. Nitrification is defined as the conversion of reduced N in the form of ammonia (NH_3) or ammonium (NH_4^+) to oxidized N in the form of nitrite (NO_2^-) or nitrate (NO_3^-). The bacteria that mediate the nitrification process are known as nitrifiers.

Nitrification is an important process in the nitrogen cycle [1] for understanding and possibly controlling the form of N in soil. When N is in the reduced form of NH₄⁺, it will tend to remain in the soil, while if oxidized to NO₂⁻and NO₃⁻ it can readily leach out of the soil or be lost as a gas through denitrification. Therefore, nitrification may lead to N loss from soil systems. Nitrification rates are dependent upon the availability of the substrate, NH₃/NH₄⁺, and by the nitrifier population. In many soils, the amount of NH₃/NH₄⁺ is limited and nitrifier activity depends on the decomposition of organic nitrogen compounds [2] releasing NH₃/NH₄⁺ through mineralization. In most soils, the predominant nitrifying bacteria are chemolithoautotrophs gaining metabolic energy from the oxidation of inorganic N and using CO₂ as a carbon source [3]. The heterotrophic nitrifiers are of limited importance in most environments and will not be discussed further in this thesis.

The process of nitrification occurs in two steps and each step is mediated by two different groups of nitrifying bacteria. The first step is the autotrophic oxidation of NH₃ to NO₂⁻ by the ammonia-oxidizing bacteria (AOB) such as those found in the *Nitrosomonas* and *Nitrosospira* genera:

$$NH_3 + O_2 + 2H^+ + 2e^- \rightarrow NH_2OH + H_2O \rightarrow NO_2^- + 5H^+ + 4e^-$$

The second step in the process is the further oxidation of NO_2^- to NO_3^- by the nitrite-oxidizing bacteria such as those found in the *Nitrobacter* genus:

$$NO_2^{*} + H_2O \rightarrow NO_3^{*} + 2H^+ + 2e^-$$
.

This thesis focuses on the AOB that are responsible for the first, typically rate-limiting step of nitrification. Most known AOB are found in the β -subdivision of the proteobacteria, with a few representatives in the γ -subdivision. Their habitats can be terrestrial as well as marine [4-6].

Overall, the energy obtained by the AOB from ammonia oxidation is relatively small [7]. Furthermore, because these bacteria are autotrophic, the reductant obtained during ammonia oxidation is used for the fixation of CO₂, their sole carbon source, via ribulose bisphosphate carboxylase/oxygenase [8]. Therefore, these bacteria often produce close to the minimum energy required to cover all their maintenance requirements, and typically have slow grow rates and long generation times [1]. The enzyme ammonia monooxygenase (AMO) catalyzes the first step in the ammonia oxidation and is therefore indispensable for the cells' survival; without it, no energy can be obtained.

Biochemistry and Genetics of Ammonia Oxidation

Biochemistry of Ammonia Oxidation

The AOB have an extensive cytoplasmic membrane system, in which many of the enzymes responsible for ammonia oxidation and electron transport exist. In the first step in ammonia oxidation, the membrane-bound AMO oxidizes ammonia to hydroxylamine according to the following reaction (Fig. 1-1) [9]:

 $NH_3 + O_2 + 2H^+ + 2e^- \rightarrow NH_2OH + H_2O$

The next oxidation step is mediated by the periplasmic enzyme hydroxylamine oxidoreductase (HAO), this chemical reaction yields the electrons used for energy production:

$$NH_2OH + H_2O \rightarrow NO_2 + 5H^+ + 4e^-$$

In *Nitrosomonas europaea*, to generate the proton motive force, two of these four electrons are transferred initially to cytochrome 554 and flow down through an electrochemical gradient made of cytochromes such as P460, c-cytochromes, and end in the terminal aa₃ oxidase, where they combine with O₂ to form H₂O [10]. Under low O₂ availability, *N. europaea* can denitrify using nitrite as the terminal electron acceptor.

With each cycle of ammonia oxidation, two electrons are returned via an unknown pathway to AMO, to regenerate more hydroxylamine. Therefore, the net gain is only two electrons [10].



Fig. 1-1. Pathway of NH₃ oxidation to NO₂^{*} via the enzymes ammonia monooxygenase (AMO) and hydroxylamine oxidoreductase (HAO) in *Nitrosomonas europaea*. Figure adapted from reference [9].

Biochemistry and Molecular Biology of the AMO Enzyme

AMO is a membrane-bound copper-containing enzyme [9,11]. AMO is yet to be purified in an active form, its subunit composition and tertiary structure have not been fully elucidated [12]. The principal substrate for AMO is thought to be NH₃ rather than NH₄⁺ [13]. If a particular ammonia oxidizer has the ability to produce urease, then an alternative substrate can be urea [14]. AMO catalyzes the oxidation of a wide variety of non-polar compounds [10], but these co-oxidations are incapable of supporting growth. AMO can also oxidize methane [8] and plays a role in the metabolism of halogenated hydrocarbons [15,16] and N₂O production [17]. Acetylene is a suicide substrate for AMO; it binds strongly to the active site and inactivates the enzyme [9,18]. C-14 labeled acetylene was used to purify the subunit containing the active site, the AmoA subunit. AMO is photosensitive and irreversibly inactivated by light [19].

In *N. europaea*, AmoA is a membrane bound 26-27 kDa peptide [19]. In addition to AmoA, at least two other subunits, AmoB and AmoC, are believed to be structural subunits of AMO [Chapter 2][19]. AmoB is an approximately 43-kDa polypeptide that co-purifies with AmoA [18]. The function of this iron-copper containing polypeptide is not known. An additional subunit, AmoC, has been proposed to be a structural component of AMO [Chapter 2][20]. In *N. europaea*, the deduced AmoC has 271 amino acid residues and is approximately 31.4 kDa in weight [20].

The AMO operon consists of at least three genes, *amoC*, *amoA*, and *amoB*, which encode for the three known subunits of the AMO enzyme [20,21]. The *amoA* and a partial *amoB* were first sequenced

from *N. europaea* using two overlapping clones [22]. This *amoA* gene consists of 831 bases followed directly by the start of *amoB*. The full-length *amoB* gene, also sequenced from two overlapping clones, is 1148 bp in *N. europaea* [23]. The *amoB* gene is found immediately downstream from *amoA* in all β -subdivision ammonia-oxidizing strains examined [Chapter 4].

N. europaea has two copies of the AMO operon in its genome [22]. It should be noted that the *N. europaea amoA* and *amoB* sequences presented above were obtained from genomic DNA and could be from either of the two *N. europaea* copies or a combination of both (chimeric sequence). *Nitrosospira sp.* NpAV has three copies of the AMO operon which are nearly identical [24]. Most ammonia oxidizer strains examined to date have several copies of the AMO operon [Chapter 4]. Only *Nitrosococcus oceanus* and marine strain C-113, both γ-subdivision strains, have a single copy [Chapter 3].

The functions of the multiple copies of the AMO operon have not been determined. One possible explanation is that several copies of the same gene are necessary to have enough enzyme product to satisfy the cells' needs. However, multiple copies of genes encoding functional proteins are unusual in prokaryotes, in contrast to the common occurrence of multiple copies of ribosomal genes. The genes encoding HAO are also present in multiple copies [25]. One copy of the gene encoding the 63-kDa subunit of HAO from *N. europaea* has been fully sequenced [26].

AMO is a member of a novel class of copper-containing monooxygenases, and its principal enzymatic function makes it unique as well as indispensable for the AOB. These properties make AMO an ideal functional marker. Only AOB possess this enzyme and the genes that encode it. Functional markers may be used to identify specific genera from an unknown conglomerate of bacteria in environmental samples. However, one other enzyme from the methane-oxidizing bacteria has been found to share many characteristics with AMO, the particulate methane monooxygenase (pMMO) [8]. To develop molecular tools for the *amo* genes, we need to take into account and compare similarities with the *pmo* genes.

Relationship of AMO with pMMO

AMO and pMMO are related functionally and structurally [8,11,27]. The predicted amino acid sequences have a high level of identity. These enzymes may be considered analogous because both have a similarly crucial role for the cells' metabolism. AMO and pMMO share similar substrates and inhibitors, and both may contain a tri-nuclear copper center at the active site [11,28,29]. pMMO has been purified from *Methylococcus capsulatus* (Bath) and found to also contain iron [30], and there is evidence that AMO may also contain an iron center [31].

The analogous biochemical reactions of interest mediated by these enzymes are:

$$\begin{split} \mathrm{NH}_3 + \mathrm{O}_2 + 2\mathrm{H}^* + 2 \ \mathrm{e}^* & \rightarrow \mathrm{NH}_2\mathrm{OH} + \mathrm{H}_2\mathrm{O} & \text{by AMO} \\ \\ \mathrm{CH}_4 + \mathrm{O}_2 + \ \mathrm{H}^* + \mathrm{NADH} \rightarrow \mathrm{CH}_3\mathrm{OH} + \mathrm{H}_2\mathrm{O} + \mathrm{NAD}^* & \text{by pMMO} \end{split}$$

While NH₃ and CH₄ are the primary substrates for AMO and pMMO, respectively, both enzymes can process a variety of substrates, including ammonia, methane, chlorinated hydrocarbons, short-chain alkanes and alkenes, de-halogenating short-chain halogenated hydrocarbons, and the hydroxylation of aromatic compounds [32-34].

Like AMO, pMMO consists of at least three membrane bound subunits: pMmoC [30,35], pMmoA (27 kDa) [27,30], and pMmoB (45-47 kDa) [27,30]. These subunits are encoded by the *pmo CAB* operon [27,30,35]. Amino acid sequences deduced from *amoA* and *pmoA* show an approximately 60% similarity and 40% identity [Chapter 4]. Based on sequence comparisons, the level of conservation between *amoA* and *pmoA* shows a stronger correlation with the phylogenetic relatedness of the organisms than with the function of the gene products; three identity groups for the α , β and γ subdivisions are observed instead of two identity groups representing AOB and methanotrophs [Chapter 3][8]. Our ability to use *amo* genes as functional markers for AOB is dependent upon our knowledge of the diversity of both *amo* and *pmo* genes in β - and γ -subdivision bacteria, since we are interested in applying these tools in soil environments where both AOB and methanotrophs may co-exist.

Taxonomy of the Autotrophic Ammonia-Oxidizing Bacteria

The ammonia-oxidizing bacteria are part of the proteobacteria (purple bacteria) found in both the β-subdivision [36-39] and the γ-subdivision [38-41]. The proteobacteria are presumed to have photosynthetic ancestry [42,43]. These β and γ-subdivision AOB groups were formerly included in the family *Nitrobacteriaceae* [44,45], defined by their ability to grow as chemolithotrophs by the oxidation of ammonia to nitrite or the oxidation of nitrite to nitrate. However, this previous classification does not coincide with our current understanding of the phylogeny of these bacteria. The genus names of the ammonia oxidizers begin with *Nitroso*, the nitrite oxidizers begin with *Nitro*. No organism has been found to oxidize ammonia directly to nitrate. Initially, classification to the genus level for the AOB was done based on cell shape and the arrangement of the intracytoplasmic membranes. The recognized genera included: *Nitrosospira*. *Nitrosolobus*, *Nitrosovibrio*, *Nitrosomonas*, and *Nitrosococcus*.

The current standard for bacterial classification and phylogeny is the use of ribosomal sequences primarily the 16S rRNA. Based on 16S rRNA sequencing studies, it has been shown that the family *Nitrobacteriaceae* has several phylogenies with members belonging to four different subdivisions of the proteobacteria [36,37]. The known AOB are limited to the β - and γ -subdivisions. It has recently been proposed that the AOB in the β -subdivision of the proteobacteria be reclassified into two genera, *Nitrosomonas* and *Nitrosospira*, the latter consisting of the original genera *Nitrosospira*, *Nitrosolobus* and *Nitrosovibrio* [6,36]. However, Teske et al. [37] recommend further analysis before including *Nitrosolobus* into the genera *Nitrosospira*, noting that internal compartmentalization or membrane structure is distinct from the other two (both lack the extensive system observed in *Nitrosolobus* [45]). In this thesis the original genus names are retained to avoid confusion. The taxonomy of the AOB is changing rapidly and is likely to be revised frequently as new isolates are characterized.

For the determination of the AOB taxonomy, the *amo* genes are an important complement to 16S rRNA sequences [Chapter 4]. Classification using 16S rRNA sequences is generally adequate but may be insufficient for discrimination at the strain level since the 16S rRNA sequence identity between strains within AOB species is generally greater than 97%. For example, the 16S rRNA identity is 98.5% between *Nitrosospira* strain AHB1 and *Nitrosolobus multiformis* C-71[46]. For increased definition between closely related AOB strains, the intergenic spacer region between the 16S and 23S genes in the ribosomal operon may be useful [47]. Aakra et al. [47] presented a study for phylogenetic analysis utilizing the 16S-23S rDNA intergenic spacer region for AOB. They concluded that this spacer region provides phylogenetic trees that confirm previous 16S rDNA reports. However, the spacer region provides insight on recent evolutionary events, and is useful at the lower taxonomic levels. Their ribotyping experiments revealed that the AOB may all contain only one copy per genome of the *rrn* operon, and that this operon is arranged just

like the typical bacterial operons: 16S rRNA gene, spacer, 23S rRNA gene. Alternatively, for finer resolution phylogenetic analysis, the functional *amo* genes are another potential molecular tool [Chapter 4].

All reported soil AOB belong to the β -subdivision of the proteobacteria [6,36,37]. Currently, the isolated γ -subdivision AOB are all marine organisms. However, there is some limited evidence that freshwater γ -subdivision AOB may exist [48]. Eight representatives from the β -subdivision and two marine strains from the γ -subdivision (*N. oceanus* [37,43], and strain C-113) are currently maintained in the Norton laboratory and were used for the research reported in this thesis (Table 1-1).

Most previous biochemical and molecular biology studies have focused on *N. europaea*, originally isolated from sewage, and which can be grown conveniently under laboratory conditions [1]. However, it appears that *Nitrosospira spp*. may be more common in soils, based on cultured-based evidence [49-51] and PCR evidence [52]. *Nitrosospira* species as well as *Nitrosomonas* species can be seen in never-tilled soils, however, on cultivated soils *Nitrosospira* species are dominant [53]. While it is clear that a great variety of AOB exist in different environments, in soil systems, closely related strains may co-exist. The ability to differentiate between these closely related strains is necessary for a more accurate assessment of their diversity and function in the soil. Molecular markers and tools are required for this fine level of differentiation.

Table 1-1

Strains cultured in the Norton laboratory for this study

Nitrifier strain	Subdivision
Nitrosospira sp. NpAV	β
Nitrosospira briensis C-128	β
Nitrosolobus multiformis* ATCC 25196	ß
Nitrosolobus multiformis* 24C	ß
Nitrosovibrio tenuis* NV-12	ß
Nitrosomonas europaea ATCC 19178	ß
Nitrosomonas eutropha C-91	ß
Nitrosococcus oceanus C-107	Y
Marine strain C-113	Ŷ

* May be reclassified in Nitrosospira genus.

Analysis of the Diversity of Ammonia-Oxidizing Bacteria in the Environment

The AOB are a key functional group in the terrestrial and aquatic N cycle. The diversity of these bacteria in the environments has been of interest since the beginnings of soil microbiology as a discipline [54]. Early work on nitrification in the soil generally focused at the process level, not on the diversity of the bacteria involved because of the technical difficulties involved in the isolation and maintenance of the AOB. The AOB do not form visible colonies on selective solid media and therefore must be isolated from liquid cultures. Pure cultures of AOB have extremely slow growth rates [6,7], the fastest doubling time reported being 8 hours, but more frequently within the range of 11 to 50 hours [1], compared to 30 minutes for Escherichia coli. In our laboratory conditions, growth of a batch culture for genomic DNA isolation takes approximately one month to achieve maximum biomass. These and other reasons such as nonstandard growth media, non-standard growth conditions, and ease of heterotrophic contamination have made AOB difficult to study [55]. Some initial attempts to analyze the diversity of AOB utilized flourescent antibody-detection techniques in combination with direct microscopy to count specific strains of AOB. However, this approach has limitations since antibody production is dependent on having pure strains and the antibodies are highly specific for each strain [55]. Furthermore, any approach based on laboratory isolation cultures may not reflect the true frequencies of the different strains in soil, since isolation biases affect the outcome. A particular strain can be selected out based on the media, temperature, and other factors and this strain may not be particularly predominant in its native soil [56]. A more appropriate approach, especially for the AOB, is the use of molecular markers such as 16S rRNA and amo to analyze soil DNA since results are not directly impacted by the above mentioned problems.

Molecular techniques have recently been used to study the diversity of AOB and give us a better understanding of the microbial ecology of these bacteria [4-6,37,48,57,58]. The first step in order to use molecular techniques for the study of bacteria in soil is the extraction of DNA. DNA may be obtained in several ways such as cell centrifugation and lysis or by direct cell lysis from soil samples [55]. Ideally, the extracted DNA must represent as close as possible the true frequencies of the different bacterial populations in soil. After extraction, purification of DNA is generally required since soil DNA samples usually contain impurities like humic acid, which inhibits subsequent biochemical reactions such as the polymerase chain reaction (PCR) [55]. Several DNA purification methods exist such as gel electrophoresis, glass-milk resin, and various chemical treatments [55].

Since the AOB are a small fraction of the total soil bacteria (generally less than 0.1%), we need to increase our detection sensitivity by amplifying the target DNA using PCR. PCR uses *Taq* polymerase, two specific primers (small DNA oligonucleotides that match the sequence of the target DNA at each end of the desired product) and the target template DNA. PCR amplifies exponentially the DNA between the two primers, so that a few hundred starting DNA molecules become millions. Essentially, PCR provides the way to obtain enough specific DNA for detection and analysis. PCR is amazingly fast compared to other techniques, and is practical. The greatest technical problem with PCR is the ease of cross-contamination of the initial reaction under laboratory conditions. PCR can be performed using primers specific for the AOB and purified soil DNA as a template. The specificity of the primers determines the composition of the PCR products which may be mixed. After PCR is accomplished, the products are first examined on standard agarose gels. The amplified products can later be used to generate a library of clones; alternatively, PCR products can be analyzed directly, with agarose gels or by denaturant gradient gel electrophoresis (DGGE). The goal of these analyzes is to investigate the community composition of the AOB.

A clone library is made when PCR products of relatively small sizes (<6 kb) are ligated into cloning vectors. The plasmid vector, with this new inserted DNA, is then transformed into and perpetuated within a cloning cell host, such as *E. coli*. The transformed *E. coli* strains are grown and the plasmid DNA is harvested and screened for the desired inserts. These inserts are then sequenced and their relationship to each other and known strains is analyzed.

Agarose gels can be used for direct analysis if PCR products vary in size. Alternatively, PCR products can be restriction digested and the resulting patterns observed; however, in complex communities, it may be problematic to relate the patterns to individual strains. DGGE is a powerful tool designed to separate the DNA products not only by size, but also by base composition. Because double-stranded DNA denatures according to its base sequence, higher GC-content DNA will denature at higher temperatures or higher denaturant concentration than DNA with high AT content. A polyacrylamide gel is prepared with a

gradient of denaturing agent either parallel or perpendicular to the direction of the electrical field. The mixture of double stranded DNA (i.e. PCR products from mixed templates) is separated according to its stability resulting in bands representing the different strains' DNA sequences. Individual bands are presumed to be associated with specific DNA sequences, representing the diversity of the original template. The technical problems with DGGE are that setup is complicated and time consuming, and bands from DNA of different base composition may co-migrate and overlap.

Some examples of these techniques applied for the study of AOB diversity follow. They are fundamentally similar, and differ only in the PCR target. For these preliminary environmental studies of AOB, molecular markers such as rRNA and the *amo* functional genes have been used successfully. Stephen et al. [6] used rRNA as target, Sakano and Kerkhof [48] used rRNA as well as the functional *amoA* gene, and Rotthauwe et al. [52] used exclusively the *amoA* gene.

Stephen et al. [6] performed PCR using 16S rRNA targeted primers on extracted DNA from various environments to analyze the composition of the different soil and marine samples for the β -subdivision AOB. Based on this study, the genus *Nitrosospira* separates into four general clusters: one marine-type cluster, and three soil-type clusters. It appears that marine *Nitrosospira spp.* are distinct from soil type species. The *Nitrosomonas* genus appears to also separate into three clusters, an entirely marine-type cluster, and two soil-marine type clusters. Overall, some of these clusters are preliminary, and they must be confirmed by selective experiments designed to isolate representative pure cultures. Stephen et al. [6] add that the presently available cultured species may not be representative of the diverse marine and soil AOB and suggest that more research needs to be done to obtain a more accurate representation of AOB in pure cultures. Their data also suggests that polluted environments may select for a particular AOB population, since *Nitrosomonas* type sequences were obtained only from polluted samples, compared to *Nitrosospira* type found in polluted and non-polluted samples. In general, *Nitrosospira spp.* can be found in a variety of environments including soil, freshwater, and marine [6,58].

A second study by Stephen et al. [59] utilized a combination of PCR and DGGE to analyze natural AOB composition in environmental samples that varied in pH. They used the 16S rDNA as target for the PCR experiments, and obtained products that where initially analyzed by DGGE. Although they obtained

some separation for these PCR products, they encountered the problem of not being able to relate the visualized bands with specific AOB strains. Furthermore, overlapping of bands was also observed, making recognition more difficult. To actually determine which strains were being observed, the bands had to be excised, cloned, and sequenced. To relate the PCR bands with known strains using DGGE, they further designed probes based on the limited 16S rRNA sequences available for the AOB. Using these probes they were able to distinguish the different AOB clusters, *Nitrosomonas* and *Nitrosospira*, at the various degrees they existed in the samples.

Sakano and Kerkhof [48] used molecular tools to evaluate the changes in the populations of AOB within an ammonia biofilter. Using rRNA-targeted PCR, they concluded that the diversity of heterotrophic bacteria decreased as the biofilter experiment progressed. Using *amoA* as an AOB marker, they observed a decrease in AOB diversity as well, with *Nitrosospira*-like strains being the dominating populations within the biofilter at the end of the biofilter experiment.

Rotthauwe et al. [52] investigated AOB populations from several environments including rice roots, activated sludge, freshwater and enrichment cultures. Using a conserved internal region from *amoA/B*, they obtained PCR products that only originated from AOB, without obtaining background signal from the related *pmo* gene. They found that representatives from the *Nitrosospira* and *Nitrosomonas* genera were most common. They concluded that using *amoA* as a functional marker allows for very high specificity, and high resolution between closely related populations.

While these reports show the potential of the *amo* genes for environmental study, achieving a true representation of the diverse AOB using these genes requires an iterative process of primer design and application. The more comprehensive our knowledge of the diversity of the *amo* genes, the more successfully our molecular tools will represent the environmental AOB.

Rationale and Project Objectives

The development of molecular tools based on the *amo* genes, is a first step towards determining the community composition of AOB. We believe that the *amo* genes will be excellent functional markers with several advantages over the use of 16S rRNA genes. Using 16S rRNA genes may result in the

detection of AOB strains related to known AOB (since the primers and probes are designed from them). Furthermore, they may also detect closely related strains, which are not AOB. Using the *amo* genes guarantees that only AMO-containing populations will be detected, because AMO is indispensable for their survival and only found in AOB. In the future, AMO-based tools may be used to examine environmental control of gene expression. Studies with the *amo* genes also bring us insight in the evolution of functional genes.

To use the *amo* genes in environmental analysis, two observations need to be taken in account. First, PCR primer design is critical for the success of this analysis. Depending on the goal, primers can be designed within conserved regions of the *amo* genes to amplify these segments from samples. They can be designed to detect a broad range of AOB, or they could be made to discriminate and amplify particular AOB genera. Second, in order to design any primer so it performs as we expect, we need to have a fair idea of the diversity of the AMO-genes sequences within the environment. For this reason, we need to develop an *amo* gene database from diverse representatives from the different environments, soil and aquatic.

This research consists of two main phases: 1) the creation of a genetic database of the *amo* genes from pure cultures representing members from the β - and γ -subdivisions and 2) the development of molecular tools for the evaluation of these *amo*-containing populations in environmental samples.

Development of an amo Gene Database

The genes for AMO (*amoC*, *amoA* and *amoB*) are functional [20], indispensable for survival, and only found in the AOB. Therefore, they are ideal molecular markers for environmental analysis of AOB. By understanding the diversity of the *amo*-gene sequences from representatives from a variety of environments, our ability to obtain the desired amplicons is increased. Developing an *amo* gene database becomes significant, because it allows the design of a variety of specific primers for PCR that can generalize, group, discriminate or individualize as desired between the various AOB strains, based on the similarities and differences of the database sequences coding (conserved) and non-coding (non-conserved) regions.

Furthermore, the PCR products from soil DNA can then be sequenced and analyzed against the amo-gene database for relationship to known strains. Novel strains may be detected as well. We have used the *amo* genes, particularly *amoA*, to develop this initial database. The first objective of this research was to sequence additional representatives of the AOB such as *Nitrosospira spp*. and *Nitrosolobus spp*. Apart from the work of this research group, most full-length sequences encoding functional products were available only from *N. europaea*. We are committed to sequence *amoA* for as many nitrifier strains as possible, since AmoA is the most studied subunit of the AMO enzyme. The current database also contains *amoB* and *amoC* sequences that we and others have obtained. As time allows, additional sequences for *amoB* and *amoC* from several AOB strains will be obtained. Most strains have multiple copies of the three-gene *amo* operon, and sequencing of these individual copies has been done for several strains in our laboratory [Chapter 4][24].

Development of a Method to Assess Ammonia Oxidizing Bacteria

For diversity analysis, PCR can be used directly on DNA extracted from environmental samples, utilizing AOB conserved primers. To obtain a true representation of the AOB diversity within environmental samples, the key element is the design of these conserved primers [Chapter 4]. Primers should be specific enough to amplify only the *amo* genes but broad enough to include *amo* sequences from unknown but related AOB strains. Based on the *amo*-gene database from pure cultured AOB, molecular primers and probes will be designed to evaluate the community composition in selected soil samples [Chapter 4]. In general, labeled oligonucleotide-probes can be used to identify AOB [4,58,60-63], to differentiate between active and inactive components and expose spatial relationships between species [63,64].

If the conserved primers are located inside an individual *amo* gene, PCR products will be obtained that are practically the same length. Cloning the PCR products into a vector to generate a cloning library is the most common approach to analyze these products. The clones are then sequenced and the results are examined. However, the *amo* genes have been demonstrated to be difficult to clone, presumably because *amo*-coding sequences may be transcribed from the vector and translated in the host cell. These products may be detrimental and toxic to the cloning-host cell [23]. The availability of full-length sequences [Chapter 4] provides more choices for potential primer targets to generate desirable PCR products. PCR products can also be examined directly for diversity and sequence fingerprinting using DGGE. Analysis of the different PCR products from environmental samples, by sequencing of clone libraries or DGGE analysis would require some additional time; the work on these analysis methods is ongoing in the Norton laboratory but outside the scope of this thesis.

During the development of the *amo*-gene database, we observed that it was possible to obtain PCR products of different sizes spanning the *amoC* to *amoA* intergenic region, the size being specific for each strain [Chaper 4]. The intergenic region between *amoC* and *amoA* is found in all strains studied, and *amoA* always follows *amoC* after this non-coding region [Chapter 4][21]. The size of this region is unique for each species, therefore making it an ideal location to use for PCR analysis. Using primers targeting conserved *amoC* and *amoA* regions, the PCR product-size differences can be accounted by the strains' particular intergenic region sizes. High-resolution agarose gels can be utilized to obtain better PCR band separation. This method is simple and less time consuming since it only requires PCR and gel electrophoresis. Aakra et al. [47], using rRNA intergenic regions, were able to separate closely related AOB strains, which further validates this approach.

In future applications using the *amo* genes to assess the diversity of AOB it will be desirable to evaluate the different populations' sizes. For this purpose, PCR should be quantitative. Quantitative PCR is accomplished by running a series of reactions with the sample templates spiked with known amounts of an internal standard template in a competitive PCR reaction. The frequencies of the different AOB sequences will be in direct relationship to the abundance of these sequences in the sample, thus giving us better insight of the nature of the AOB populations. The first step in devising a quantitative PCR system is the production of an appropriate internal standard. The *amo*-genes sequence information in this thesis can be used to accomplish this goal.

This thesis contains results of three investigations relating to the *amo* genes in AOB. In Chapter 2, we present the discovery and sequencing of the third gene of the *amo* operon, *amoC*, and demonstrate its presence in all the three copies of the *amo* operon in *Nitrosospira*. *sp.* NpAV. We further investigate if the *amoC* gene is present in other AOB. Chapter 3 contains the first sequences of the *amo* operon for two γ-subdivision strains, *N. oceanus* and strain C-113. We examined the relationship of these genes with the

representative *amo* genes from the β -subdivison AOB and the *pmo* genes from *M. capsulatus* (Bath). The diversity of the *amo* operon in a variety of AOB strains and the development and application of molecular tools to environmental samples are described in Chapter 4. The conclusions of these studies are summarized and discussed in Chapter 5.

References

- [1] Prosser, J.I. (1989) Autotrophic nitrification in bacteria. Adv. Microbiol. Physiol. 30, 125-181.
- [2] Wickramasinghe, K.N., Rodgers, G.A. and Jenkinson, D.S. (1985) Transformations of nitrogen fertilizers in soil. Soil. Biol. Biochem. 17, 625-630.
- [3] Bock, E., Koops. H.-P., Harms, H. and Ahlers, B. (1991) The biochemistry of nitrifying organisms. In: Variations in Autotrophic Life (Shively, J.M. and Barton, L.L., Eds.), pp. 171-200. Academic Press, London.
- [4] Voytek, M.A. and Ward, B.B. (1995) Detection of ammonium-oxidizing bacteria of beta-subclass of the class Proteobacteria in aquatic samples with the PCR. Appl. Environ. Microbiol. 61, 1444-1450.
- [5] McCaig, A.E., Embley, T.M. and Prosser, J.I. (1994) Molecular analysis of enrichment cultures of marine ammonia-oxidizers. FEMS Microbiol. Lett. 120, 363-368.
- [6] Stephen J. R., McCaig, A., Smith, Z, Prosser, J.I. and Embley, T.M. (1996) Molecular diversity of soil and marine 16S rRNA gene sequences related to β-subgroup ammonia-oxidizing bacteria. Appl. Environ. Microbiol. 62, 4147-4154.
- [7] Wood, P.M. (1986) Nitrification as a bacterial energy source. In: Nitrification. (Prosser, J.I., Ed.), pp. 39-62. IRL Press, Oxford, UK, Washington, DC.
- [8] Holmes, A.J., Costello, A., Lidstrom, M.E. and Murrell, J.C. (1995) Evidence that particulate methane monooxygenase and ammonia monooxygenase may be evolutionarily related. FEMS Microbiol. Lett. 132, 203-208.
- [9] Arp D.J., Hommes, N.G., Hyman, M.R., Juliette, L.Y., Keener, W.K., Russel, S.A. and Sayavedra-Soto, L.A. (1996) Ammonia monooxygenase from *Nitrosomonas europaea* In: Microbial Growth on

C1 Compounds. (Lidstrom, M.E. and Tabita, F.R., Eds.), pp. 159-166. Kluwer Academic Publisher, Dordrecht.

- [10] Hooper, A.B., Vannelli, T., Bergmann, D.J. and Arciero D.M. (1997) Enzymology of the oxidation of ammonia to nitrite by bacteria. Antonie van Leeuwenhoek 71, 59-67.
- [11] Ensign, S.A., Hyman, M.R. and Arp, D. J. (1993) In vitro activation of ammonia monooxygenase from *Nitrosomonas europaea* by copper. J. Bacteriol. 175, 1971-1980.
- [12] Juliette, L.Y., Hyman, M.R. and Arp, D.J. (1995) Roles of bovine serum albumin and copper in the assay and stability of ammonia monooxygenase activity in vitro. Appl. Environ. Microbiol. 177, 4908-4913.
- [13] Suzuki, I., Dular U. and Kwok, S.C. (1974) Ammonia or ammonium ions as substrates for oxidation by *Nitrosomonas europaea* cells and extracts. J. Bacteriol. 120, 556-558.
- [14] Holt, J.G., Krieg, N.R., Sneath, P.H., Staley, J.T. and Williams, S.T. (1994) Bergey's Manual of Determinative Bacteriology, 9th edn. Williams and Wilkins, Baltimore, MD.
- [15] Vannelli, T., Logan, M., Arciero, D.M. and Hooper, A.B. (1990) Degradation of halogenated aliphatic compounds by the ammonia-oxidizing bacterium *Nitrosomonas europaea*. Appl. Environ. Microbiol. 56, 1169-1171.
- [16] Hyman, M.R., Russell, S.A., Ely, R.L., Williamson, K.J. and Arp, D.J. (1995) Inhibition, inactivation, and recovery of ammonia-oxidizing activity in cometabolism of trichloroethylene by *Nitrosomonas europaea*. Appl. Environ. Microbiol. 61, 1480-1487.
- [17] Hynes, R.K. and Knowles, R. (1984) Production of nitrous oxide by *Nitrosomonas europaea*: Effects of acetylene, pH and oxygen. Can. J. Microbiol. 30, 1397-1404.
- [18] Hyman, M. R. and Wood, P.M. (1985) Suicidal inactivation and labeling of ammonia monooxygenase by acetylene. Biochem. J. 212, 31-37.
- [19] Hyman, M.R. and Arp, D.J. (1992) 14C2H2- and 14CO2-labeling studies of the de novo synthesis of polypeptides by *Nitrosomonas europaea* during recovery from acetylene and light inactivation of ammonia monooxygenase. J. Biol. Chem. 267, 1534-1545.

- [20] Sayavedra-Soto, L.A., Hommes, N.G., Alzerreca, J.J., Arp, D.J., Norton, J.M. and Klotz, M.G. (1998) Transcription of the *amoC*, *amoA* and *amoB* genes in *Nitrosomonas europaea* and *Nitrosospira* sp. NpAV. FEMS Microbiol. Lett. 167, 81-88.
- [21]Klotz, M.G., Alzerreca, J. and Norton, J.M. (1997) A gene encoding a membrane protein exists upstream of the *amoA/amoB* genes in ammonia-oxidizing bacteria; a third member of the amo operon? FEMS Microbiol. Lett. 150, 65-73.
- [22] McTavish, H., Fuchs, J.A. and Hooper, A.B. (1993) Sequence of the gene coding for ammonia monooxygenase in *Nitrosomonas europaea*. J. Bacteriol. 175, 2436-2444.
- [23] Bergmann, D.J. and Hooper, A.B. (1994) Sequence of the gene, *amoB*, for the 43-kDa polypeptide of ammonia monooxygenase of *Nitrosomonas europaea*. Biochem. Biophys. Res. Commun. 204, 759-762.
- [24] Norton, J.M., Low, J.M. and Klotz, M.G. (1996) The gene encoding ammonia monooxygenase subunit A exists in three nearly identical copies in *Nitrosospira* NpAV. FEMS Microbiol. Lett. 139, 181-188.
- [25] McTavish, H., LaQuier, F., Aciero, D., Logan, M., Mundfrom, G., Fuchs, J.A. and Hooper, A.B. (1993) Multiple copies of genes coding for electron transport proteins in the bacterium *Nitrosomonas europaea*. J. Bacteriol. 175, 2445-2447.
- [26] Sayavedra-Soto, L.A. Hommes, N.G. and Arp, D.J.(1994) Characterization of the gene encoding hydroxylamine oxido reductase in *Nitrosomonas europaea*. J. Bacteriol. 176, 504-510.
- [27] Semrau , J.D., Chistoserdov, A., Lebron, J., Costello, A., Davagnino, J., Kenna, E., Holmes, A.J., Finch, R., Murrell, J.C. and Lidstrom, M.E. (1995) Particulate methane monooxygenase genes in methanotrophs. J. Bacteriol. 177, 3071-3079.
- [28] Nguyen, H-H. A.T., Zhu, M., Elliot, S.J., Nakagawa, K.H., Hedman, B., Costello, A.M., Peeples, T.L., Wilkinson, B., Morimoto, H., Williams, P.G., Floss, H.G., Lidstrom, M.E., Hodgson, K.O. and Chan, S.I. (1996) The biochemistry of the particulate methane monooxygenase. Microbial growth on C1 Compounds. (Lidstrom, M.E. and Tabita, F.R., Eds.), pp. 150-158. Kluwer Academic, Dordrecht.

- [29] Nguyen, H.-H., Shiemke, A.K., Jacobs, S.J., Hales, B.J., Lidstrom, M.E. and Chan, S.I. (1994) The nature of the copper ions in the membranes containing the particulate methane monooxygenase from *Methylococcus capsulatus* (Bath). J. Biol. Chem. 269, 14995-15005.
- [30]Zahn, J.A. and DiSpirito, A.A. (1996) Membrane associated methane monooxygenase from Methylococcus capsulatus (Bath). J. Bacteriol. 178, 1018-1029.
- [31]Zahn, JA., Arciero, D.M., Hooper, A.B. and DiSpirito, A.A. (1996) Evidence for an iron center in the ammonia monooxygenase from *Nitrosomonas europaea*. FEBS Lett. Nov 11; 397(1), 35-8.
- [32] Burrows, K.J., Cornish, A., Scott, D. and Higgins, I.J. (1984) Substrate specificities of the soluble and particulate methane monooxygenases of *Methylosinus trichosporium* OB3b. J. Gen. Microbiol. 130, 3327, 3333.
- [33] Hyman, N.R. and Wood, P.M. (1984) Ethylene oxidation by Nitrosomonas europaea. Arch. Microbiol. 137, 155-158.
- [34] Keener, W.K. and Arp, D.J. (1994) Transformation of aromatic compounds of *Nitrosomonas europaea*. Appl. Environ. Microbiol. 60, 1914-1920.
- [35] Nguyen, H-H.T., Elliott, S.J., Yip, J.H.K. and Chan, S.I. (1998) The particulate methane monooxygenase from *Methylococcus capsulatus* (Bath) is a novel copper-containing three-subunit enzyme. Isolation and characterization. J. Biol. Chem. 273, 7957-7966.
- [36] Head, I.M., Hiorns, W.D., Martin, T., McCarthy, A.J. and Saunders, J.R. (1993) The phylogeny of autotrophic ammonia-oxidizing bacteria as determined by analysis of 16S ribosomal RNA gene sequences. J. Gen. Microbiol. 139, 1147-1153.
- [37] Teske, A., Alm, E., Regan, J.M., Toze, S., Rittmann, B.E. and Stahl, D.A. (1994) Evolutionary relationships among ammonia and nitrite-oxidizing bacteria. J. Bacteriol. 176, 6623-6630.
- [38] Woese, C.R., Weisburg, W.G., Paster, B.J., Hahn, C.M., Tanner, R.S., Krieg, N.R., Koops, H.-P., Harms, H. and Stackebrandt, E. (1984) The phylogeny of purple bacteria, the beta subdivision. Syst. Appl. Microbiol. 5, 327-336.

- [39] Woese, C.R., Weisburg, W.G., Hahn, C.M., Paster, B.J., Zablen, L.B., Lewis, B.J., Macke, T.J., Ludwig, W. and Stackebrandt, E. (1985) The phylogeny of purple bacteria, the gamma subdivision. Syst. Appl. Microbiol. 6, 25-33.
- [40] Bock, E., Koops. H.-P., Ahlers, B. and Harms, H. (1991) Oxidation of inorganic nitrogen compounds as energy source. In: The Procaryotes, 2nd edn. (Balows, A. Truper, H.G., Dworkin, M., Harder, W. and Scheleifer, K.-H., Eds.), pp. 414-430. Springer-Verlag, New York.
- [41] Koops, H.P. Bottcher, B., Moller, U.C., Pommerening-Roser, A. and Stehr, G. (1990) Description of a new species of *Nitrosococcus*. Arch. Microbiol. 154, 244-248.
- [42] Woese, C.R., Stackebrandt, E., Weisburg, W.G., Paster, B.J., Madigan, M.T., Fowler, V.J., Hahn, C.M., Blanz, P., Gupta, R., Nealson, K.H. and Fox, G.E. (1984) The phylogeny of purple bacteria, the alpha subdivision. Syst. Appl. Microbiol. 5, 315-326.
- [43] Woese, C.R. (1987) Bacterial evolution. Microbiol. Rev. 51, 221-271.
- [44] Watson, S.W., Valois, F.W. and Waterbury, J.B. (1981) The family Nitrobacteriaceae. In: The Prokaryotes, a Handbook of Habitats, Isolation and Identification of Bacteria, Vol. 1. (Star, M.P., Ed.), pp. 1005-1022. Springer-Verlag, Berlin, Heidelberg, New York.
- [45] Watson, S.W., Bock, E., Harms, H., Koops, H.-P., Hooper, A.B. (1989) Nitrifying bacteria. In: Bergey's Manual of Systematic Bateriology (Murray, R.G.E., Brenner, D.J., Bryant, M.P., Holt, J.G., Krieg, N.R., Moulder, J.W., Pfennig, N., Sneath, P.H.A., Staley, J.T. and Williams, S., Eds.), pp. 1808-1834. Williams & Wilkins Co., Baltimore, MD.
- [46] Rotthauwe, J.-H., de Boer, W. and Liesack, W. (1995) Comparative analysis of gene sequences encoding ammonia monooxygenase of *Nitrosospira* sp AHB1 and *Nitrosolobus multiformis* C-71. FEMS Microbiol. Lett. 133, 131-135.
- [47] Aakra, A., Utaker, J.B. and Nes, I.F. (1999) RFLP of rRNA genes and sequencing of the 16S-23S rDNA intergenic spacer region of ammonia-oxidizing bacteria: a phylogenetic approach. Int. J. Sys. Bact. 49, 123-130.
- [48] Sakano, Y. and Kerkhof, L. (1998) Assessment of changes in microbial community structure during operation of an ammonia biofilter with molecular tools. Appl. Env. Microbiol. 64, 4877-4882.

[49] Belser, L.W. (1979) Population ecology of nitrifying bacteria. Ann. Rev. Microbiol. 33, 309-333.

- [50] MacDonald, R.M. (1979) Population dynamics of the nitrifying bacterium *Nitrosolobus* in soil. J. Appl. Ecol. 16, 529-535.
- [51] MacDonald, R.M. (1986) Nitrification in soil: an introductory history. In: Nitrification. (Prosser, J.I., Ed.), pp.1-16. IRL Press, Oxford, UK.
- [52] Rotthauwe, J.-H., Witzel, K.-P. and Liesack, W. (1997) The ammonia monooxygenase structural amoA as a functional marker: molecular fine scale analysis of natural ammonia-oxidizing populations. Appl. Environ. Microbiol. 63, 4704-4712.
- [53] Zhou, J., Bruns, M.-A. and Tiedje, J.M. (1996) DNA recovery from soils of diverse composition. Appl. Eviron. Microbiol. 62, 316-22.
- [54] Winogradsky, S. (1890) Recherches sur les organisms de la nitrification. Ann. Inst. Pasteur. 4, 213-231, 257-275, 760-771.
- [55] Schmidt, E. L. and L.W. Belser. 1994. Nitrifying bacteria. In: Methods of Soil Analysis Microbiological and Biochemical Properties, 3rd edn. (R.W. Weaver, S. Angle, P. Bottomley, D. Bezdicek, S. Smith, A. Tabatabai, and A. Wollum, Eds.), pp. 159-177. Soil Science Society of America, Madison, WI.
- [56] McDonald, I.R. and Murrell, J.C. (1997) The particulate methane monooxygenase gene pmoA and its use as a functional gene probe for methanotrophs. FEMS Microbiol Lett. 156, 205-210.
- [57] Hastings, R.C., Ceccherini, M.T., Miclaus, N., Saunders, J.R., Bazzicalupo, M. and McCarthy A.J. (1997) Direct molecular biological analysis of ammonia oxidizing bacteria populations in cultivated soil plots treated with swine manure. FEMS Microbiol. Ecol. 23, 45-54.
- [58] Hiorns, W.D., Hastings, R.C., Head, I.M., McCarthy, A.J., Saunders, J.R., Pickup, R.W. and Hall, G.H. (1995) Amplification of 16S ribosomal RNA genes from autotrophic ammonia-oxidizing bacteria demonstrates the ubiquity of nitrosospiras in the environment. Microbiol. 141, 2793-2800.
- [59] Stephen, J.R., Kowalchuk, G.A., Bruns, M.-A.V., McCaig, A.E., Phillips, C.J., Embley, T.M. and Prosser, J.I. (1998) Analysis of β-subgroup proteobacterial ammonia oxidizer populations in soil by

denaturing gradient gel electrophoresis analysis and hierarchical phylogenetic probing. Appl. Environ. Microbiol. 64, 2958-2965.

- [60] Wagner, L., Rath, G., Amann, R., Koops, H.-P. and Schleifer, K.-H. (1995) In situ identification of ammonia-oxidizing bacteria. Syst. Appl. Microbiol. 18, 251-264.
- [61] Yokoyama, K., Kimura, H., Shinozaki, H, Mizukawa, N. and Tajima, S. (1998) Species-specific probing for the polymerase chain reaction product of ammonia monooxygenase gene amplified from DNA mixtures of *Nitrosomonas europaea* and *Nitrosolobus multiformis*. Soil. Sci. Plant. Nutr. 44, 135-139.
- [62] Stehr, G., Bottcher, B., Dittberner, P., Rath, G. and Koops, H.-P. (1995) The ammonia-oxidizing nitrifying populations of the River Elbe estuary. FEMS Microbiol. Ecol. 17, 177-186.
- [63] Mobarry, B.K., Wagner, M., Urbain, V., Rittman, B.E. and Stahl, D.A. (1996) Phylogenetic probes for analyzing abundance and spatial organization of nitrifying bacteria. Appl. Environ. Microbiol. 61, 2156-2162.
- [64] Amann, R.I., Ludwig, W. and Schleifer, K.-H. (1995) Phylogenetic identification and in situ detection of individual microbial cells without cultivation. Microbiol. Rev. 59, 143-169.

CHAPTER 2

A GENE ENCODING A MEMBRANE PROTEIN EXISTS UPSTREAM OF THE amoA/amoB GENES IN AMMONIA-OXIDIZING BACTERIA; A THIRD MEMBER OF THE amo OPERON?¹

Abstract

The gene cluster encoding ammonia monooxygenase (AMO) in the chemolithotrophic soil bacterium *Nitrosospira sp.* NpAV was found to contain a third open reading frame, termed *amoC*, upstream of the genes, *amoA* and *amoB*, that encode two subunits of AMO. The *amoC* gene and its flanking regions were isolated and sequenced from a 4.4 kb *Eco*RI fragment that contains one of three copies of the ammonia monooxygenase gene cluster. The presence of this gene upstream of the other two *amoA* gene copies in *Nitrosospira* NpAV as well as upstream of *amoA* genes in the genomes of other ammonia oxidizing nitrifiers (strains in the genera *Nitrosomonas, Nitrosospira, Nitrosolobus,* and *Nitrosovibrio*) was confirmed by using genomic DNA, oligodeoxyribonucleotide primers, and PCR. The *amoC* gene in *Nitrosospira* Sp. NpAV encodes a 270-amino-acid polypeptide of approximately 31 kDa.

Introduction

Nitrosospira sp. NpAV (NAV) is a chemolithotrophic soil bacterium that derives its metabolic energy solely from the aerobic oxidation of ammonia to nitrite. This process involves the enzymes ammonia monooxygenase (AMO) and hydroxylamine oxidoreductase (HAO), both of which have had their physiological and biochemical characteristics extensively studied [1-9]. AMO is a membrane-bound multisubunit enzyme responsible for the conversion of NH₃ to hydroxylamine [3]. A 27 to 30 kDasized membrane-associated protein which contains the active binding site of AMO [3] and a second ironcopper protein of 38 to 43 kDa have been isolated as probable AMO subunits, AmoA and AmoB,

¹ Reprinted from FEMS Microbiology Letters, Volume 150, Klotz, M.G., Alzerreca, J., and Norton, J.M. A gene encoding a membrane protein exists upstream of the *amoA/amoB* genes in ammonia-oxidizing bacteria; a third member of the amo operon? Pages 65-73. Copyright 1997, with permission of Elsevier Science (Appendix A). See also letter on authorship (Appendix B).

respectively, from *Nitrosomonas europaea*. The sequences of the genes *amoA* and *amoB*, coding for these subunit proteins, have been determined from overlapping clones [8,10,11]. Because the *amoB* gene extends immediately downstream from the *amoA* gene in all ammonia oxidizer strains yet examined [10-17], it has been concluded that the *amoA* and *amoB* open reading frames (ORF) constitute the structural portion of the *amo* operon [10,11,18]. We have recently confirmed the presence of these two ORFs in the genome of NAV (three copies: [14]), *Nitrosomonas eutropha* (two copies: [15]), *Nitrosovibrio tenuis* (two copies: [16]), *Nitrosospira briensis* (three copies: [17]) and *Nitrosolobus multiformis* (three copies: [19]) by the isolation and sequencing of complete *amoA* ORFs and flanking sequences. The AMO enzyme is related to the particulate methane monooxygenase (pMMO) which is found in the methane oxidizers such as *Methylococcus capsulatus* (Bath) [20]. AMO and pMMO are the first representatives of a new class of copper-containing monooxygenases [20].

In our recent report on the near identity of *amoA* genes in the three copies of the *amo* operon in the genome of NAV [14] we observed that the upstream flanking regions of the three *amoA* gene copies were also remarkably similar. In search of an explanation for this result and as suggested by the finding of a putative pMmoC protein as a third subunit of the particulate methane monooxygenase [21,22], we initiated the search for a third gene in the *amo* gene clusters. In this chapter, we present the sequence for the ORF and the flanking regions of the *amoC* gene that resides upstream of the *amoA3* gene on the 4.4 kb *Eco*RI DNA fragment from the genome of NAV [14].

Materials and Methods

Bacterial Strains, Plasmids, and Culture Conditions

The bacterial strains and plasmids used in this study are summarized in Table 2-1. Ammonia oxidizers were cultivated in 500 ml static batch cultures of ATCC media 929 at 30°C with periodic pH adjustment and harvested by centrifugation after approximately 3 weeks of growth as described recently [14].

Strains	Relevant phenotype or genotype	Source or reference	
Nitrosospira sp. NpAV	Wild type ammonia oxidizer from soil	E. Schmidt (Univ. of Minnesota) via M.A. Bruns	
		(Univ. of CA, Davis)	
Nitrosomonas europaea	Isolated from soil	ATCC	
ATCC 19178			
Nitrosolobus multiformis	Type strain isolated from soil	ATCC	
ATCC 25196			
Nitrosospira briensis	Isolated from soil	S. Watson and F. Valois (Woods Hole Collection)	
C-128			
Nitrosospira sp.	Isolated from agricultural soil in Minnesota	E. Schmidt (Univ. of Minnesota) via M.A. Bruns	
39-19		(Univ. of CA, Davis)	
Nitrosovibrio tenuis	Isolated from soil	S. Watson and F. Valois (Woods Hole Collection)	
NV-12			
E. coli InvaF'	One Shot [™] competent cells <i>\$\\$lacZ\$</i>	Invitrogen®, San Diego, CA	
E. coli DH5α	$F^- \Phi 80 \Delta lacZ M15 recA1 Sm^R$	BRL, Bethesda, MD	
Plasmids			
pCR™II and pCR™2.1	Amp^{R} , Kan^{R} , $placZ\alpha$, $colE1$	Invitrogen®, San Diego CA	
pNA10-9	PCR [™] II with insert of amo10 -amo9 amplicon from	this study	
	the 4.4 kb EcoRI fragment		
PNA101-9	PCR [™] II with insert of amo101-amo9 amplicon	this study	
	containing amoC3 from the 4.4 kb EcoRI fragment		
PNA-5	PCR™II with insert of amoA3 amo10-amo5	[14] Genbank U38251	
	amplicon from the 4.4 kb EcoRI fragment		

Table 2-1 Bacterial strains and plasmids used in this study

DNA Isolation, Hybridization Analysis, Amplification, and Sequencing

Genomic DNA (gDNA) was isolated from the ammonia oxidizer cells following the procedure of McTavish et al. [10,11]. The gDNA was restriction digested and electrophoresed on a 0.6% agarose gel in 1x TAE. Previous analysis of NAV gDNA by Southern analysis identified three easily separable EcoRI fragments of approximately 4.4, 5.7 and 16.8 kb which hybridized to the amoA (Fig. 1 in [14]) and amoB gene probes. The migration distances of these sizes were determined using two molecular weight markers and then the corresponding regions were cut from the gel. The DNA was purified from these gel slices using a Geneclean® III kit (Bio 101, San Diego). In order to obtain sequences flanking the known regions, a chromosome crawl approach [23] was applied to the 4.4 kb fragment-containing fraction. Briefly, the 4.4kb EcoRI fraction was self ligated and then cut with Nsi I to linearize. The linear size-fractionated DNAs were used as templates for the polymerase chain reaction (PCR) employing DNA polymerase and oligonucleotide primers designed using our library of amo gene sequences. The following conditions were used for all PCR experiments: 25 cycles (1 min at 94°C, 1 min at 55°C and 4 min at 72°C) with a 7 min extension at 72°C; optimum concentrations were 2.5 mM MgCl2 and 0.5 µM for primer. For nucleotide sequencing, the PCR products were gel purified, reamplified and the products were purified using the WizardTM PCR DNA Purification System (Promega, Madison WI). These purified PCR products were directly sequenced using synthetic primers based upon the existing sequence and DNA polymerase for dideoxy dye-primer cyclo sequencing (ABI 373A, USU Biotechnology Center) following the instructions of the manufacturer. Obtained sequences were aligned (SequencherTM 3.0, Gene Codes Corporation, Madison, WI) and sequence similarities were investigated using the NCBI Blast program [24]. The DNA sequence upstream of the amoA3 gene up to the EcoRI restriction site and the targets for the primer sequences are depicted in Figure 2-1. The sequence for the amoC3 gene was deposited in GenBank under accession number U72203. Similarly, the 5.7 kb and 16.8 kb DNA fractions from NAV were used as PCR templates to test for the existence of the amoC2 and amoC1 genes upstream of amoA2 and amoA1, respectively. Appropriate primers, genomic DNA as the template and the PCR, were used to verify the presence of an amoC sequence upstream of amoA in the additional ammonia oxidizer strains (Table 2-1).


Fig. 2-1. Physical map of the 4.4 kb-, 5.7 kb-, and 16.8 kb-sized *Eco*RI restriction fragments from the genome of *Nitrosospira* sp. NpAV. The open reading frames of the *amoC*, *amoA* and *amoB* genes as well as putative ribosome binding sites are indicated. The location of oligoribonucleotide primers used for the PCR-cloning of the *amoC3* and *amoA3* genes are indicated by arrows. The restriction sites in the first 2547 bp of the enlarged caption of copy NAV#3 has been confirmed by nucleotide sequecing.

Results and Discussion

Analysis of the nucleotide sequence upstream of the *amoA* coding regions in the *amo* operon from the ammonia oxidizer strains investigated revealed the C-terminus of an ORF of surprising sequence similarity. The entire ORF and its flanking regions were sequenced from one of the three copies of the *amo* operon in NAV (Fig. 2-2). The gene was named *amoC3* in analogy to the third subunit of the pMMO enzyme in methanotrophs [22]. A BLAST search [24] of sequences accessible through NCBIs' web-server revealed similarity only to the C-terminus portion of the protein encoded in the *N. europaea* sequence (GenBank accession # L08050).

Nucleotide sequencing of the region upstream of the amoA3 gene, restriction enzyme mapping as well as PCR product analysis allowed us to construct a physical map of the three amo operons in the genome of NAV (Fig. 2-2). This map will be complemented and confirmed in future experiments by continued subcloning and nucleotide sequencing. A 1,387-bp nucleotide sequence including the amoC3 gene and flanking sequences extending from the EcoRI site of the 4.4 kb clone upstream into the amoA3 gene downstream is shown in Figure 2-2. The identified translational start codon (ATG) was preceded by a purine-rich region suited for ribosome binding (S/D), an in-frame translational stop codon (TAG), and a putative E. coli G⁷⁰-type promoter with transcriptional start point (Fig. 2-2). While this putative promoter is part of the expression clone pNA101-9 and expression of the amoC3 gene was obtained despite its orientation against the plasmid-borne placZ promoter, the exact transcriptional start point needs to be determined in upcoming primer extension experiments. The translational stop codon defines an 813-bp amoC3 ORF which encodes a 270-amino acid peptide with a deduced molecular mass of 31.1 kDa. The intergenic region between the amoC3 gene and amoA3 gene promoter contains a putative stemloop (extending from nucleotide 1064 to 1140) with a calculated free energy value of -31.4 kcal/moles. However, the DNA immediately downstream from the putative loop has a high (G+C) content, which should diminish the probability of transcriptional termination significantly [25].

Southern analysis of the linear size-fractionated DNAs used to PCR-clone the *amo* genes revealed that an *amoC* gene was present in each of the three *amo* operons in the genome of NAV (data not shown). Similarly, PCR using an upstream primer that hybridizes in *amoC* (AmoCloop) and a downstream primer

	+1
100	$\texttt{ATAGTC} \underline{\texttt{TTACC}} \texttt{GGGGTTGTGGGTATGTAATGG} \underline{\texttt{TTAGT}} \underline{\texttt{ATTTA}} \underline{\texttt{GTATTATGGCGGCGACGCATTCTTTCTGCGAGGAAGCCGGGGAGAGGCCGCC} \underline{\texttt{AGCTG}} \underline{\texttt{CTG}} \texttt$
	-35 -10> AmoC *
199	${\tt CGGGCAAGCAAGCAGCAGGAGGGGGAACTCGAATTAACGTAAGAGGGGGGAAAAGAACACCAGGGAACATCAGGCAGTCACGCGGGGTCCGAGCAGCAGCAGCAGCAGCAGCAGCAGCAGCAGCAGCA$
1	S/D MATTLGTSGSHAGSS
298	${\tt GGGCGCGACTACGACATGTCGCTGTGGTACGACTCCAGGTGGTACAAATTTGGACTGATCACCATGCTTGGGGTAGCGATATTCTGGATCTGGTTTCAA}$
16	G R D Y D M S L W Y D S R W Y K F G L I T M L G V A I F W I W F Q
397	${\tt CGGACCTTTGCCTACTCGCATGGACTCGATGGAGCCCGGAA} {\tt TTGAGAAGGTATGGATGGGGG} {\tt TTGTGGCGTGTGCACATGATCGTCATGCCGATGCCCGATGGACCCGATGGACCCGATGGACCCGATGGACCCGATGGACCCGATGGACCCGATGGACCCGATGGACCCGGAATGGACGCATGGACCCGATGGACCCGGAATGGACGCATGGACCCGGAATGGACGGATGGACCCGGAATGGACGGATGGACGGATGGACGGATGGACCCGATGGACCCGGAATGGACGGATGGACGGATGGACGGGATGGACCGGAATGGACGGATGGACGGATGGACCCGGAATGGACGGATGGACGGATGGACGGATGGACCGGAATGGACGGATGGACGGATGGACGGATGGACGGATGGACGGATGGACGGATGGACGGATGGACGGATGGACGGATGGACGGATGGACGGATGGACGGATGGACCGGAATGGACGGAC$
49	R T F A Y S H G M D S M E P E F E K V W M G L W R V H M I V M P I
496	TTTGCGCTGGTCACCTGGGGCTGGATCTGGAAGACACGGGACACCAACCTGGACAACCTGGACCCGAAACTGGAAATCAAGCGTTACTTTACTGGATG
82	F A L V T W G W I W K T R D T N L D N L D P K L E I K R Y F Y W M
595	$\label{eq:atgreed} \texttt{Atgreed} \texttt{Ctgreed} \texttt$
115	M W L G V Y L F G V Y W G G S F F T E Q D A S W H Q V I I R D T S
694	TTCACCCCGAGCCATGTGGTGGTATTTTATGGCTCCTTCCCGATGTACATTGTCTGCGGCGTGGCCAGCTACCTGTACGCCATGACGCCCTGCCGCCTGCCGCCTGCCGCCTGCCGCCTGCCGCGCGTGGCCAGCTACCTGTACGCCATGACGCCCTGCCGCCTGCCGCGTGGCCAGCTACCTGTACGCCAGCGCGCGC
148	F T P S H V V V F Y G S F P M Y I V C G V A S Y L Y A M T R L P L
793	TATGCCCGGGGCACCTCGTTCCCGCTGGTGATGGCGATTGCCGGCCCGCTCATGATCTGCCGAACGTAGGCTTGAACGAATGGGGCCATGCCTTCTGG
181	Y A R G T S F P L V M A I A G P L M I L P N V G L N E W G H A F W
892	TTCATGGAAGAACTGTTTAGCGCACCGCTGCACTGGGGCTTTGTGATACTGGGCTGGTCGGGCCTGTTTGCTGGCGGCATTGCGGCACAGATCATCACC
214	F M E E L F S A P L H W G F V I L G W S G L F A G G I A A Q I I T
991	CGCTACTCCAACCTGACCGACGTGGTCTGGAACGGACAAAGCAAAGTCATCCTCAACAACCGGATCGTCCCG <u>TAA</u> GGG <u>GGATCC</u> GTAGACCCGGCCGCC
247	RYSNLTDVVWNGQSKVILNNRIVP*
1090	CGTTGACTCCCGCCAGAGTGGGGGAATCAGCCGGGCGGACCGGCCCACCTTCGACCTGCGGCGAAAAAGGCACCGGCAGGGGAAGGCGGCA
	> <
1189	AGACAGCGGC <u>GTGACA</u> CGATATCGGCGTGACACGC <u>AAAAAT</u> GAAC <u>A</u> ACGGCAGCATTTATCAGTTTTAAGATCGTACGACATATT <u>TGA</u> GGG <u>GAGG</u> GCAC
	> AmoA -35 -10 +1 * S/D
1288	GATGAGCAGAACAGACGAAATATTAAAGGCGGCCAAGATGCCGCCGGAATCGGTAAAGATGTCCAGGATGATAGACGCGATCTATTTTCCGATTTTATG
1	M S R T D E I L K A A K M P P E S V K M S R M I D A I Y F P I L C

Fig. 2-2. Nucleotide sequence for the copy of amoC3 gene and flanking regions from *Nitrosospira* sp. NpAV contained on the 4.4 kb *Eco*RI restriction fragment (amoC3, Genbank Accession number U72203). Putative transcriptional ("-35" and "-10" promoter regions and start point "+1") and translational (S/D and start codon) control sequences are underlined; in-frame translational stop codons are marked by an asterisk. The start of the AmoC3 and AmoA3 ORFs are indicated with an arrow above the ATG start codons.

28

that hybridizes in *amoC* (Amo102) or *amoA* (Amo104 or Amo9) confirmed that one copy of *amoC* is upstream of each of the three copies of the *amoA/amoB* gene tandem arrangement in NAV (Figs. 2-1, 2-3). Because the C-terminus of the AmoC ORF was highly conserved in the DNA of various ammonia-oxidizer strains, PCR with primers based on the NAV *amoC3* and *amoA3* sequences were used to confirm the presence of *amoC* genes in *N. europaea*, *N. multiformis*, *N. tenuis*, *N. briensis* and *N. sp.* 39-19 (Fig. 2-3). The PCR with primers internal to *amoC* (AmoCloop and Amo102) gave products of approximately the



Fig. 2-3. PCR amplification of ammonia oxidizer genomic DNA using the *amoC* and *amoA* specific primers (target sites see Fig 1.) with templates as indicated. Lane 1, MW standard; lane 2, *Nitrosospira sp.* NpAV 4.4 kb *EcoRI* fragments; lane 3, *Nitrosospira sp.* NpAV 5.8 kb *EcoRI* fragments; lane 4, *Nitrosospira sp.* NpAV 16.8 kb *EcoRI* fragments; lane 5, *Nitrosovibrio tenuis* genomic DNA; lane 6, *Nitrosolobus multiformis* genomic DNA; lane 7, *Nitrosovibrio tenuis* genomic DNA; lane 8, *Nitrosospira sp.* 39-19 genomic DNA, lane 10 empty, lane 11 MW standard. Lanes repeated in top and bottom panels with primers AmoCloop to Amo102 (top) and AmoCloop to Amo104 (bottom). Southern analysis was performed by using the *amoC3* digoxigenin labeled probe.

same size as in NAV (612 bp). Although template concentrations were approximately equal, *N. briensis* DNA amplified weakly possibly due to primer mismatch. In the Southern blot, however, the *amoC* amplicon from *N. europaea* gave the weakest hybridization, indicating lower similarity to the DNA probe prepared from NAV *amoC3* gene. In the PCR with one primer internal to *amoC* (AmoCloop) and one primer in *amoA* (Amo104), the products from NAV were of the expected 1.1 kb size. Products in PCR assays which used genomic DNA templates from other ammonia-oxidizing bacteria yielded products of different sizes. This is attributed to the different lengths of the *amoC/amoA* intergenic regions in these organisms based upon our sequences of the *amoA* gene upstream regions in the respective nitrifier strains [15-17].

Protein expression studies for the putative *amoC3* gene for NAV were carried out by our collaborator, Dr. Martin Klotz. For completeness, this material is included in appendix C. To further demonstrate that the *amoC* is part of the *amo* operon, I performed reverse transcriptase PCR (RT-PCR) on total RNA from *Nitrosospira sp.* NpAV looking for evidence that the *amoC* was co-transcribed with *amoAB*, which was found. These results are reported in appendix D. Sayavedra-Soto et al. [26] further expanded this study with northern blots for NEU and RT-PCR for NEU.

References

- Wood, P.M. (1986) Nitrification as a bacterial energy source. In: Nitrification, pp. 39-62. Society for General Microbiology, IRL Press, Oxford, UK.
- [2] Hyman, M.R. and Wood, P.M. (1985) Suicidal inactivation and labelling of ammonia monooxygenase by acetylene. Biochem. J. 227, 719-725.
- [3] Hyman, M.R. and Arp, D.J. (1992) ¹⁴C₂H₂ and ¹⁴CO₂-labeling studies of the de novo synthesis of polypeptides by *Nitrosomonas europaea* during recovery from acetylene and light inactivation of ammonia monooxygenase. J. Biol Chem. 267, 1534-1545.
- [4] Hyman, M.R. and Arp, D.J. (1993) An electrophoretic study of the thermal-dependent and reductantdependent aggregation of the 27 kDa component of ammonia monooxygenase from *Nitrosomonas europaea*. Electrophoresis 14, 619-627.

- [5] Hyman, M.R. and Arp, D.J. (1995) Effects on ammonia on the *de novo* synthesis of polypeptides in cell of *Nitrosomonas europaea* denied ammonia as an energy source. J. Bacteriol. 177, 4974-4979.
- [6] Bedard, C. and Knowles, R. (1989) Physiology, biochemistry, and specific inhibitors of CH4, NH4⁺ and CO oxidation by methanotrophs and nitrifiers. Microbiol. Rev. 53, 68-84.
- [7] Arciero, D.M., Balny, C. and Hooper, A.B. (1993) Hydroxylamine reductase from *Nitrosomonas europaea* is a multimer of an octa-heme subunit. J. Biol. Chem. 268, 14645-14654.
- [8] Bergmann, D.J. and Hooper, A.B. (1994) Sequence of the gene, *amoB*, for the 43-kDa polypeptide of ammonia monooxygenase of *Nitrosomonas europaea*. Biochem. Biophys. Res. Commun. 204, 759-762.
- [9] Sayavedra-Soto, L. A., Hommes, N.G. and Arp, D.J. (1994) Characterization of the gene encoding hydroxylamine oxidoreductase in *Nitrosomonas europaea*. J. of Bacteriology. 176, 504-510.
- [10] McTavish, H., Fuchs, J.A. and Hooper, A.B. (1993) Sequence of the gene coding for ammonia monooxygenase in *Nitrosomonas europaea*. J. Bacteriol. 175, 2436-2444.
- [11] McTavish, H., LaQuier, F., Aciero, D., Logan, M., Mundfrom, G., Fuchs, J.A. and Hooper, A.B. (1993) Multiple copies of genes coding for electron transport proteins in the bacterium *Nitrosomonas europaea*. J. Bacteriol. 175, 2445-2447.
- [12] Klotz, M.G. and Norton, J.M. (1995) Sequence of an ammonia monooxygenase subunit A-encoding gene from *Nitrosospira sp.* NpAV. Gene 163, 159-160.
- [13] Norton, J.M. and Klotz, M.G. (1995) Homology among ammonia monooxygenase genes from ammonia-oxidizing bacteria. Abstracts of the 95th General Meeting of the American Society for Microbiology. American Society of Microbiology, Washington, DC.
- [14] Norton, J.M., Low, J.M. and Klotz, M.G. (1996) The gene encoding ammonia monooxygenase subunit A exists in three nearly identical copies in *Nitrosospira sp.* NpAV. FEMS Microbiol. Lett. 139, 181-188.
- [15] Norton, J.M. and Klotz, M.G. GenBank U51630. Nitrosomonas eutropha ammonia monooxygenase 1 subunit A (amoA) gene, complete cds and ammonia monooxygenase 1 subunit B (amoBI) gene, partial

cds; and GenBank U72670. *Nitrosomonas eutropha* ammonia monooxygenase 2 subunit A (*amoA2*) gene, complete cds and ammonia monooxygenase 2 subunit B (*amoB2*) gene, partial cds.

- [16] Norton, J.M. and Klotz, M.G. GenBank U76552. Nitrosovibrio tenuis ammonia monooxygenase subunit A (amo.A) gene, complete cds.
- [17] Norton, J.M. and Klotz, M.G. GenBank U76553. Nitrosospira briensis ammonia monooxygenase subunit A (amoA) gene, complete cds.
- [18] Vanelli, T., Bergmann, D., Arciero, D.M. and Hooper, A.B. (1996) Mechanism of N-oxidation and electron transfer in the ammonia oxidizing autotrophs. In: Microbial Growth on C1 Compounds. (Lidstrom, M.E. and Tabita, F.R., Eds.), pp. 80-87. Kluwer Academic Publishers, Dordrecht, Netherlands.
- [19]Klotz, M.G. and Norton, J.M. GenBank U15733. Nitrosolobus multiformis ammonia monooxygenase operon copy 2: ammonia monooxygenase subunit AmoC2 (amoC2) gene, partial cds, ammonia monooxygenase subunit AmoA2 (amoA2) gene, complete cds and ammonia monooxygenase subunit AmoB2 (amoB2) gene, partial cds.
- [20] Holmes, A.J., Costello, A., Lidstrom, M.E. and Murrell, J.C. (1995) Evidence that particulate methane monooxygenase and ammonia monooxygenase may be evolutionarily related. FEMS Microbiol. Lett. 132, 203-208.
- [21] Nguyen H.A.T., Zhu, M., Elliott, S., Nakagawa, K., Hedman, B. Costello, A.M., Peeples, T.L., Wilkinson, B., Morimoto, H., Williams P.G., Floss, H.G. Lidstrom M.E., Hodgson K.O., and Chan, S.I. (1996) The biochemistry of the particulate methane monooxygenase. In: Microbial Growth on C1 Compounds (Lidstrom, M.E. and Tabita, F.R., Eds.), pp 150-158. Kluwer Academic Press, Dordrecht, Netherlands.
- [22]Zahn, J.A. and DiSpirito, A.A. (1996). Membrane-associated methane monooxygenase from *Methylococcus capsulatus* (Bath). J. Bacteriol. 178, 1018-1029.
- [23] Sambrook, J., Fritsch, E.F. and Maniatis, T. (1989) Molecular Cloning. A Laboratory Manual, 2nd edn. Cold String Harbor Press, Cold Spring Harbor, NY.

- [24] Altschul, S.F., Gish, W., Miller, W., Myers, E.W. and Lipman, D.J. (1990) Basic local alignment search tool. J. Mol. Biol. 215, 403-410.
- [25] Platt, T. (1986) Transcription termination and the regulation of gene expression. Annu. Rev. Biochem. 55, 339-372.
- [26] Sayavedra-Soto, L.A., Hommes, N.G., Alzerreca, J.J., Arp, D.J., Norton, J.M and Klotz, M.G. (1998) Transcription of the *amoC*, *amoA* and *amoB* genes in *Nitrosomonas europaea* and *Nitrosospira* sp. NpAV. FEMS Microbiol. Lett. 167, 81-88.

CHAPTER 3

THE amo OPERON IN Nitrosococcus: MARINE, AMMONIA-OXIDIZING γ-PROTEOBACTERIA¹

Abstract

While there is an extensive database of genes encoding ammonia monooxygenase (amo) found in the ammonia-oxidizing B-proteobacteria, few amo sequences are available representing the vproteobacteria. We sequenced the complete amo operon (amoCAB) for Nitrosococcus oceanus (ATCC 19707), a marine, autotrophic, ammonia-oxidizing bacterium belonging to the y-subdivision of the proteobacteria. An additional autotrophic, ammonia-oxidizing bacterium isolated from a marine environment (strain C-113) was identified as belonging to the Nitrosococcus genus by 16S rDNA analysis and its amo operon was sequenced. This is the first report of a full-length sequence for the amo operon from a y-subdivision autotrophic ammonia-oxidizing bacterium. The N. oceanus and C-113 amo genes were 88-90% identical to each other, 49-53% identical to the pmo genes encoding the related particulate methane monooxygenase of Methylococcus capsulatus (Bath), and 39-42% identical to the amo genes of the β-subdivision autotrophic ammonia-oxidizing bacteria. In both Nitrosococcus strains the amo operon was found as a single copy and contained three genes, amoC, amoA, amoB, with intergenic spacer regions between amoC and amoA (286 bp) and between amoA and amoB (65 bp). Sequence similarity values and secondary structure predictions suggested a slightly closer relationship to the pmo operon of M. capsulatus (Bath) than to the β -subdivision amo operons. We conclude that the amo genes will be useful as functional markers in community analysis and for fine-scale phylogenetic differentiation within the y-subdivision AOB.

¹ Coauthored by J.J. Alzerreca, J.M. Norton, and M.G. Klotz. Reprinted from FEMS Microbiology Letters, Volume 180. The amo operon in marine, ammonia-oxidizing γ-proteobacteria. Pages 21-29. Copyright 1999, with permission of Elsevier Science (Appendix A).

Introduction

Ammonia-oxidizing bacteria (AOB) obtain metabolic energy by the preliminary oxidation of ammonia/ammonium to hydroxylamine. This vital enzymatic step is carried out by ammonia monooxygenase (AMO). This enzyme has at least three subunits, encoded by the genes *amoC*, *amoA* and *amoB* that are believed to comprise the functional *amo* operon [1]. The sequences of the *amo* genes have been studied primarily in representatives of the β -subdivision, where many of the terrestial AOB are found [2,3,4,5]. AOB have also been identified in the γ -subdivision. Currently all γ -subdivision AOB which have been isolated are from marine environments.

In the present study, fully sequenced *amo* operons from two representatives of the γ subdivision AOB are presented. The *Nitrosococcus amo* sequences were compared to those from the β subdivision AOB and to the *pmoC*, *pmoA* and *pmoB* genes encoding the evolutionarily related particulate methane monooxygenase (pMMO) enzyme [6,7] from *Methylococcus capsulatus* (Bath) (MCA), a proteobacterium in the γ -subdivision.

Materials and Methods

Bacterial Strains and DNA Isolation

Nitrosococcus oceanus strain C-107 (=ATCC19707; here abbreviated NOC) and a previously unidentified marine autotrophic ammonia-oxidizing bacterium isolated from the Red Sea (strain C-113) were obtained from F. Valois (Woods Hole Oceangraphic Institute,Woods Hole, MA, USA). NOC strain identity was confirmed by using 16S rDNA amplification and RFLP of the amplified products (M. Voytek and B. Ward, personal comunication). Both marine strains were grown for 4 to 5 weeks with no shaking, in the dark on marine media (12.5 mM (NH₄)₂SO₄, 3 μM Chelated iron, 0.4 μM Na₂MoO₄, 1.0 μM MnCl₂, 0.008 μM CoCl₂, 0.35 μM ZnSO₄, 187.5 mM NaCl, 23.3 mM MgSO₄, 15 mM MgCl₂, 7.6 mM CaCl₂, 7.5 mM KCl, 0.15 mM Na₂CO₃, 2.25 mM NaHCO₃, 0.5675 mM K₂HPO₄, and phenol red 0.25%, adjusted to pH 6.5-6.8 and autoclaved). In addition, *Nitrosospira sp.* NpAV (NAV) and *Nitrosomonas europaea* ATCC25978 (NEU) were grown as previously described [5]. Genomic DNA (gDNA) was isolated from all strains following the procedure described by McTavish et al. [4].

Hybridization Analysis for the amo Operon

The initial identification of *amoA*-hybridizing fragments was determined by Southern analysis. NOC gDNA was digested with *Eco*RI and *Kpn*I, electrophoresed on a 0.6% agarose gel in 1X TAE, and blotted onto a nylon membrane [8]. We designed an *amoA* targeted primer, No1R, based on the sequence alignments from Holmes et al. [6]. A non-radioactive internal NOC-*amoA* probe (479 bp) was prepared from a NOC gDNA template using the primers A189 [6] and No1R in a PCR reaction with digoxigenin (dig)-labeled dUTP (dig-dUTP: dUTP, 1:5) according to the manufacturer's recommendations (Boehringer Mannheim Corporation, Indianapolis, IN). The digoxigenin-labeled probe was hybridized with the transferred NOC gDNA and hybridizing fragments were detected as suggested by the manufacturer (GeniusTM System, Boehringer Mannheim). Molecular weights of hybridizing fragments were determined using the RFLPscan program (Scanalytics/CSPI, Billerica, MA). We identified a 3-kb *Eco*RI fragment and a 2.9-kb *Kpn*I fragment, both of which hybridized to the *amoA* probe. The identified NOC *amoA*-hybridizing fragments were isolated from the agarose [5] and used as size-fractionated templates for PCR-cloning and sequencing.

The potential for cross-hybridization between the *amo* genes from the β - and γ -subdivision proteobacteria, and the copy number of the *amo* operons in individual strains were also assessed using Southern blots (Fig. 3-1). Four probes were made: one internal *amoA* and one internal *amoC* probe each from NAV and NOC (see Fig.3-2 for NOC probes). On the NAV *amo* operon sequence (GenBank U92432), the NAV-*amoC* probe (611bp) starts at base 442 and ends on base 1052, while the NAV-*amoA* probe (675bp) begins at base 1436 and ends on base 2110. On the NOC sequence (GenBank AF047705), the NOC probes were designed from base 251 to base 858 (NOC-*amoC*, 608bp) and from base 1301 to base 1779 (NOC-*amoA*, 479bp). (a)













Fig. 3-2. Physical map of the NOC *amo* operon. The three gene operon is presented with selected primers and the *Eco*RI and *Kpn*I fragments used for sequencing. The *Eco*RI fragment was fully sequenced. The arrows on the fragments show the direction of sequencing.

The dig-labeled probes were made by performing PCR with specific primers on the appropriate gDNA template in the presence of dig- labeled dUTP as described above.

The gDNA from three strains (NOC, NAV, and NEU) was restriction digested, with *Hin*dIII, *Eco*RI, and *Eco*RI, respectively, electrophoresed and blotted onto nylon membranes. Duplicate membranes were prepared. Both membranes were analyzed by hybridization with the dig-labeled probes described above. Initially, one membrane was probed with NAV-*amoC*, and the other with NOC-*amoC*, and the hybridized fragments were detected. These membranes were stripped and reprobed, one with NAV-*amoA* and the other with NOC-*amoA*, respectively. Hybridization (65°C, overnight), detection of the hybridized fragments, and membrane stripping for reproving were done following the manufacturer's recommendations (Genius System, Boehringer Mannheim).

Primers and PCR Amplification

The following primers were used for this study (lower case bases represent mismatches in respect to the NOC sequence): AmoNo1R; CAgCGTACCTTTTTCAACCA, AmoNo3F; GACGGCGGTAGTGGGTGGATTA, AmoNo2R; CAACCGATACAATGGGAACTAC and AmoNo16R; TCTATTCAACCCTTCGCTAACT (Fig. 3-2). Amplify (version 2.53ß for the

Macintosh) [9] was used to aid in primer design and evaluation. Primers were prepared commercially (Genemed Synthesis Inc., San Francisco, CA) and PCR was performed in 0.2mL thin-wall PCR tubes using the Ericomp Delta-Cycler I system (San Diego, CA). The 50µL PCR reactions contained 0.5µM of each primer, 2.5mM MgCl₂, 0.25mM dNTP mix, 1X Taq polymerase buffer B [20mM Tris-HCl (pH 8.0 at 25°C), 100mM KCl, 0.1mM EDTA, 1mM DTT, 50% glycerol, 0.5% Tween 20 and 0.5% Nonidet P40], approximately 100ng template DNA, and 2.5U Taq polymerase (Promega, Madison, WI). The PCR conditions to obtain the desired products were an initial 4 min denaturation step at 94°C, followed by 25 cycles of a one min denaturing step at 94°C, a one min annealing step at 55°C and a four min extension step at 72°C. A final extension step of 1 hour at 72°C completed the PCR, which is recommended for more efficient cloning [10].

NOC Operon Cloning, PCR Purification and Sequencing

The 479bp amplicon obtained from NOC gDNA with primers A189 and AmoNo1R was cloned into the vector pCR2.1 using the TA Cloning® kit (Invitrogen, Carlsbad, CA), following the manufacturer's instructions. The clones were screened by *Eco*RI restriction digest analysis and a single clone was found to contain the desired insert (clone NOC15B). The plasmid was purified and sequenced using the vector primers, by dideoxy dye-primer cyclo sequencing (ABI 373A, USU Biotechnology Center) following the instructions of the manufacturer. To extend the sequence from this first partial *amoA*, we used inverse PCR as described by Triglia et al. [11], on size-fractionated NOC gDNA previously identified as containing the *amo* operon. We excised the *Eco*RI (3kb) and *Kpn*I (2.9kb) fragments from an agarose gel and purified them with the GeneClean® III kit (BIO 101, La Jolla, CA).

The size-fractionated templates were self-ligated (assay volume 80µL), using 4U of T4 DNA Ligase (Boehringer Mannheim) following manufacturer's recommendations. PCR was performed with 5 µL of these ligation reactions as templates, using the same conditions described above. Two primers, AmoNo2R and AmoNo3F, were designed from the NOC15B sequence, facing against each other, for amplification with the 3kb *Eco*RI template PCR. Amplification resulted in a 2.9kb product, which was column purified (PCR SELECT II columns, 5 Prime \rightarrow 3 Prime, Boulder, CO) following the manufacturer's instructions. The purified PCR product was sequenced as described above. Obtained sequences were edited and aligned using Sequencher, version 3.1 for the Macintosh (GeneCodes, Madison, WI).

Sequencing of the PCR product revealed that the *Eco*RI fragment contained only the *amoA* and *amoB* genes. The *Eco*RI site was located immediately upstream of the *amoA* gene. To obtain the missing *amoC* gene sequence, inverse PCR was performed again on a gel-purified and self-ligated 2.9kb *Kpn*I fragment, using primers AmoNo16R and AmoNo3F. The PCR product was purified and sequenced.

Most of the NOC sequences were obtained by walking upstream and downstream directly on the purified PCR product, since attempts to clone it failed. It appears that cloned fragments of NOC *amo* genes were toxic to the *E. coli* host [12]. After completion of the sequence, a clone containing the complete *amoA* and *amoB* genes was obtained by PCR cloning as described previously for NAV [13] and NEU [1].

C-113 Operon and16S rDNA Sequencing

PCR products were initially obtained from C-113 gDNA using NOC based primers. Subsequently, we designed C-113 specific PCR primers and the obtained amplicons were column purified for direct sequencing as described above. In order to obtain the partial 16S rDNA sequence, PCR was performed on C-113 gDNA with primers pBf and pFr, which are conserved for the 16S rDNA of eubacteria [14] using PCR conditions as described above. A 1028-bp amplified product was cloned into pCR2.1. The clone, NMA28C, was found to contain the desired partial 16S rDNA sequence, and was fully sequenced as described above.

Sequence Comparison and Analysis

Completed sequences were analyzed for identity values with existing *amo* and *pmo* genes from the GenBank database using the LaserGene package (DNASTAR, Madison, WI) [15]. The predicted secondary structures of the deduced peptides were analyzed using LaserGene, NCBI's BLAST server (http://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/) and the ClustalW alignment program (http://www.ddbj.nig.ac.jp/htmls/E-mail/clustalw-e.html). Analysis of the C-113 16SrDNA was performed using the Ribosomal Database Project [16].

Results and Discussion

It is well documented that AOB in the β-subdivision proteobacteria have multiple copies of the *amo* operon [4,5]. Consequently, we examined the genome of NOC, an autotrophic AOB from the γ-subdivision of the proteobacteria, for the number of *amo* operon copies and their potential cross-hybridization with *amo* genes from two representatives from the β-subdivision proteobacteria using Southern analysis and *amoC* as well as *amoA* probes designed from NOC and NAV *amo* operon sequences (Fig. 3-1). NOC gDNA digested with *Hin*dIII contained a single band of 6.7 kb that hybridized to the NOC-*amoC* and *amoA* probes (Fig. 3-1A and C). Digests with other restriction enzymes (data not shown) confirmed that NOC has only one copy of the operon. The NAV-*amoC* probe revealed four distinct bands of 3.8, 4.4, 5.7 and 16.8 kb in the NAV lane (Fig. 3-1B), corresponding to the four copies of *amoC* within the NAV genome [1]. The probe hybridized strongly with the two *amoC* copies of the NEU genome (Fig. 3-1B, lane 3). The NAV-*amoC* probe did not hybridize with the NOC gDNA, and no bands were seen (Fig. 3-1B, lane 4).

While the NOC-*amoA* probe hybridized only to NOC gDNA, the NOC-*amoC* probe revealed a weak band (5.8 kb) in the Southern blot of NAV gDNA (Fig. 3-1A). This may have been due to hybridization of the NOC-*amoC* probe to a remnant copy of an *amoC* gene that is more similar to the NOC *amoC*. Further analysis of this putative fifth *amoC* gene copy in NAV is in progress.

The membrane probed with the internal NAV-*amoA* probe presented bands only in the NAV and NEU lanes (Fig. 3-1D). Previous reports that a partial *amoA* gene amplified from *N. oceanus* (ATCC 19707) gDNA hybridized with an internal *amoA* probe from *N. europaea*, and that the NOC sequence was essentially identical to this probe sequence [17], were not substantiated by our study. We were unable to match the reported probe with our NOC operon sequence; furthermore, submitting the probe for a BLAST alignment returned none of our NOC sequences. In additional experiments, a NEU-*amoA* probe was used in

a Southern analysis with gNOC DNA. No cross-hybridization was observed between the NEU probe and DNA from gNOC (Norton, unpublished data) confirming our results with the NAV-*amoA* probe. Our observations indicate that NOC has only one copy of the *amo* operon and no non-operon *amoC* genes in its genome. This is in contrast to the AOB from the β -subdivision, which have multiple copies of the *amo* operon [5] and additional non-operon copies of the *amoC* gene [1].

The first complete sequence of the *amo* operon from NOC is presented in Figure 3-3. The *amo* operon consists of three genes: *amoC* encoding a 262-amino-acid peptide, *amoA* encoding a 248-amino-acid peptide, and *amoB* encoding a 417-amino-acid peptide. Putative promoters and transcriptional start sites and ribosomal binding sites have been identified upstream of *amoC* and *amoA* (Fig. 3-3). A strong transcriptional terminator is found downstream of *amoB* (-118.8 KJ/mol). During the sequencing of the *Eco*RI fragment, a fourth open reading frame was found following the *amo* transcriptional terminator, which has similarity to ORF 4 in NAV. Our results indicate that NOC has a three-gene operon that matches the corresponding *amo* operon for the β-subgroup AOB.

The AOB from both the β and γ subdivision have an intergenic region between *amoC* and *amoA* which has a size specific to each AOB (Table 3-1). The 286-bp intergenic region between the NOC *amoC* and *amoA* genes is within the range (163-445 bp) of the known β -group intergenic distances; the different intergenic-region sizes, as well as gene sizes for all strains studied, are summarized in Table 3-1. Preliminary experiments have demonstrated that these variances in spacer length may provide a practical approach for screening gDNA samples with PCR, with the primer pair enclosing the variable intergenic region [18]. In contrast to β -subdivision AOB, which have contiguous *amoA* and *amoB* genes, the NOC *amoA* and *amoB* genes are separated by a 65-bp intergenic region. Interestingly, the *pmoA* and the *pmoB* genes in MCA are also separated by spacers in both *pmo* operons [7].

Marine Strain C-113

We sequenced a partial 16S rDNA clone from strain C-113 and this 16S rDNA sequence was deposited into GenBank (Accession number AF153343). Sequence analysis identified this strain as belonging to the γ-subdivision of the proteobacteria [16]. Furthermore, the C-113 16S rDNA sequence was #1 CCGGTGTTTA ATGGCTGGTC AAGTGTCATC AACTATAACA ATGGTTTCAG TCAAATAGGA GGGTATCAAT -10 +1 S/D ATGGCTGCAA CTAGTAGAGC TGTAGCGCAA GGAGTAGCCG AGAAAGAAAC TGCTGATTTT TTTGCCTGGC #71 MAAT SRA VAQ GVAE KET ADF FAWR GTGGCATGTG GTTAGCGGTC GCGGCCTTTT TCGCGTTATA CATCTGTGTG CGTTGGTATG AAGGTGTTTA #141 G M W L A V A A F F A L Y I C V R W Y E G V Y TGGATGGAAG TATGGTTTAG ATGCCTTTTT GCCGGAATTC CAAACATACT GGATGAATCT GCTGTACATT #211 GWKYGLDAFLPEFOTYWMNLLYI #281 GAGCTCGTTG TTGAGGCACT GGCAACAGCA GCCCTGGTTT CTTACCTAAT TAAGACCCGG GATCGCAATA ELVV EAL ATA ALVS YLI KTR DRNM #351 TGGAAGCCAT GACTCCCCGC GAGGAGGTGC GCCGTTACTG CACCCTTTAT ATGTGGTGGG TTGTTTATGG EAM TPREEVRRYCTLY MWWVVYG #421 CGTTGGGTTA TTTTGGGGCG CGAGCTTCTT TACCGAGCAG GATGGTGCTT GGCATCAGAC CGTAGTTCGG VGL FWGA SFF TEO DGAW HOT VVR #491 GATACAGACT TCACCCCAAG CCATATTATT GAGTTCTACA TGAGCTACCC GATCTACGTA ATGGTAGGTT D T D F T P S H I I E F Y M S Y P I Y V M V G L #561 TAGGTTCGTT CATGTATGCT AAGACCCGTA TTCCTTATTT TGCAAAGGGC TGGTTTGTAC CCTACCTCAT GSF MYA KTRI PYF AKG WFV PYL M GTTGGTGTTT GGACCCTTTA TGATTTTCCC GAATGTGGGT TTGAATGAAT GGGGTCACAC CTTCTGGTTT #631 LVF GPFM IFP NVG LNEW GHT FWF ATGGAGGAGC TGTTTGTGGC ACCTCTGCAC TGGGGTTTTG TATTCTTTGC TTGGTTTATC CTTGCAGTAT #701 MEELFVA PLH WGFV FFA WFI LAVF #771 TCGGGGTGTT TCTGCAGGTT CAGCCCCGTA TGAAGGAATT GATCGGCAGA GAGCTGCAGC AGAGCGAGGA GVFLOVOPRMKELIGRELOQSED #841 CTATGCCCGT AGCTGATATT TTAGATTATC ATATTTGATT TCAGTTAGCG AAGGGTTGAA TAGAAGGGCG YARS* #911 GTCGCAATCT CCGGAATAGT TAATGAGATC GTGGCCGCCT TTTTGTATAA AGTGCTGTAC AGAAATTTTA <-----#981 TTAGGGATAC GCTTATTTAT ATCGGGTTGA AAGAAATGGA AGTAAGCAAC CTAATGAGAA AGTAGCTGTT -40 -35 -10 +1 #1051 AAAATAGGTG GCAGGAAGCA TACCTTTAGA ATTCATGGAT TTCTGGATCC GATGAATGAA TAATCATAAA ECORI AmoA #1121 TTAGTTTAAA TAGAACCCTT AATATTTTTA GGAGGGCAGG TTTAATGAGT GCACTTACGT CTGCGGTTCG S/D MSALTSAVR #1191 TACACCGGAG GAAGCTGCTA AAGTCTTTAG AACGTTGGAT TTTATAGCGT TAGGGGCTTT TTTTATGATT TPE EAAK VFR TLD FIAL GAF FMI #1261 TTGCTGGCTT CCCACCACGT TCACGTCATG CTTTTAATGG GGGACTGGGA CTTCTGGGTT GACTGGAAAG LLASHHV HVM LLMG DWD FWV DWKD ACCGGCGTTT TTGGGTCACC GTAGTTCCCA TTGTATCGGT TGCTTACCCC GCTGCTGCAC AGGCGTTTTT #1331 R R F W V T V V P I V S V A Y P A A A O A F F #1401 TTGGGAGAAG TTCCGCCTTC CCTTTGGTGC TACCCTTGTA ACGCTAGGGG TGTTAGCAGG TGAGTGGGCT WEKFRLPFGATLVTLGVLAGEWA AACCGCTACT TTAATTTCGT AGGGTTTACC TATTTTCCGA TTAATTTCGT ATGGCCGACC ATTCTGCTGC #1471 NRYF NFV GFT YFPI NFV WPT I L L P CCATGGCGCT GTTCTTGGAT GCCATGCTTG CGATTTCCAA GAGCTACGGC TTGACGGCGG TAGTGGGTGG #1541 MALFLDAMLA ISK SYG LTAV VGG ATTAATGTAC GGTTTGTTGA TGTATCCCGC TAACTGGCCG CTGCTTTCGG CATTCCATGT GCCTGCTGAG #1611 LMY GLLM YPA NWP LLSA FHV PAE TACAATGGAG TAGTAATGTC TTTGGCCGAT ATTATGGGCT ACCAATACGT CCGGACCGGT ACTCCTGAGT #1681 YNGVVMS LAD IMGY OYV RTG TPEY #1751 ATATCCGGAT GGTTGAAAAA GGTACGTTGA AAACGTTTGG TAAGGACGTG GTCCCGGTTT CAGCTTTCTT IRM VEKGTLK TFG KDV VPVS AFF CTCGGGTTTT GTTGCCATGG TAATGTACTT TGTGTGGCAC TTTGTTGGCC GCTGGTTCTC CAAGGACTAC #1821 SGF VAMV MYF VWH FVGR WFS KDY CATATCAACC AATTGTAAAA TCGTTTGTGA TAATGAGGAT AATAATTCTA AAATTCTAAA ATACAAAAAG #1891 H I N Q L * AmoB #1961 AGAGACGGAG AACATGAAAG GTACCCATAT AACAAATCGA GCCAGAAAGT GGCTAGCCAT TGGGTTTACT S/D MKGTHITNR ARKW LAIGFT

Fig. 3-3. DNA sequence of the NOC amo operon. The sequence also includes a fourth ORF, of unknown function.

#2031 GCGGTGATAG CCTCAAGCGT TTTCTATATT CCGACAGTAG CTGCCCATGG CGAGAAGGCG CAGGCAGCTT AVIA SSV FYI PTVA AHGEKA OAAF TCCTGCGCAT GCGGACAATC CATTGGTATG ACATGGTATG GTCCAAGGAT ACCATTGCGG TTAATGAGAC #2101 LRM RTI HWYD MVW SKD TIAV NET CTATACCATA AGCGGGAAGT TCCGGGTTTT TGAGGATTGG CCGGAAGCAG TCGAAAAACC CCATGTATCC #2171 YTISGKFRVFEDWPEAVEKPHVS #2241 TTTTTAAATG CGGGTCAACC TGGTCCAGTC ACGGCTCGGC TTACTTCCTA CGTCAATGGT ATGTTCGTCC FLNA GOP GPV TARL TSY VNG MFVP #2311 CTCGTTCGAT AGGTCTTGAA TTGGGCGGCG ATTACGATTT TGAGATGACG ATGCAAGGGC GCCGTCCTGG RSIGLE LGGD YDF EMT MQGR RPG GACGTGGCAT GTTCATACCT TGCTAAATGT CCAAGGAGGG GGGCCGCTCA TCGGTCCAGG TAAATACATC #2381 TWHVHTLLNVQGGGPLIGPGKYI ACCATTACCS GAGATATGGC TGATTTTGAA AACAAAATCA CGGATCTGAC CGGTAATACG GTCAACCTGG #2451 TITG DMA DFE NKIT DLT GNT VNLE #2521 AAACCATGGC CACGGGCACG GTTATTGGTT GGCATCTGTC CTGGTACGTT CTTGGTATCG CCTGGATTGG T M A T G T V I G W H L S W Y V L G I A W I G #2591 GTGGTGGGCC CGCCGTCCCA TGTTCTTGCC CCGCTACATG AAAATAAAGG CGGGCAAGGC TAATGATCTA WWARRPMFLPRYMKIKAGKANDL TTAACTGCCC AGGACAAAAA ATTGACTATA GGCGTCCTTG TGGGCGTCCT GCTCATTATT TTGTTCGGCT #2661 LTAO DKK LTI GVLV GVL LII LFGS #2731 CCAAGAATGC TGAGGATAAA TTCCCAGTCA CCATTCCGTT GCAGGCTGGG CTGCTGGGCA CTATTGACTC KNAEDK FPVT IPL OAG LLGT IDS CTTGCCGGTG GATTATAATT CGATGGTAAG CGCTAACGTG CTTAAGGCTA ACTATCGGGT GCCGGGGCGG #2801 L P V D Y N S M V S A N V L K A N Y R V P G R ACTATCAGCA TGACGGTTGA AATCACTAAC CATACTGACC AGGTGATTTC TATTGGCGAG TTCAATACTG #2871 TISM TVE ITN HTDQ VIS IGE FNTG GGGGCATTCG ATTCATGAAT GCAAATGTGC GGGTTGATGA GACGGATTAT CCTGAGGAGT TGTTGGCACC #2941 GIR FMN ANVR VDE TDY PEEL LAP #3011 GGAAGGGTTG GAAGTGAGTC AACAGGATAT CGCTCCAGGT GAAACCGTAG TTGTTGACAT CTCCGCCACC EGLEVSQ QDI APG ETVV VDI SAT #3081 GATGCCGCCT GGGAAGTTCA GCGTATGGCC GACGTCATTT ATGATCCAGA CAGCCGCTTT GCGGGCTTGA DAAW EVQ RMA DVIY DPD SRF AGLI TCTTCTTCGT TGATCCAGAG GGGAATGAGA TTCCGATACC TATCGGCGGT CCATTAGTTC CCACGTTTGT #3151 FFV DPE GNEI PIPIGG PLVP TFV #3221 TTAGAAAGAA GTATCTTTAA CTATTTATGT TGCATGTGGT GTACGACAGC AATATGGTAG ATTAAACTGT #3291 TCCCATTGAA TTAAACACCG GCCCCTTGTC CCATGGGTGG ACGAAGGGCC GGTTGTTTGC TGTCCTTTCC ----- (------ATTTTTTTT TTATCTTGTG GCTCGGTCTT TTCAGGCTCT GAAGCTGCGT TTTAGTTAAT CCCTCAGAGC #3361 ORF4 -35 -10 +1 AAAAAGGTAT TAGCTTATGA AAAAAGTACT ACTTAGCTGC CTTGTATCGT TTGGATTATT GTTGCTAAAT #3431 S/D M K K V L L S C L V S F G L L L L N #3501 ACTTCCGCCA TGGCCCATGG GGGAGGAGGA ATTGAAACAG ATCAGTGCGT TGTCAATATC GGTAATTACC TSAM AHG GGG IETD QCVVNI GNYR GAATGCATTT TTTTGCTTAC CAACCGGAAA CTTCTGGTGG TGAAGAGCTG TGCTGGGACT TGCCGATGAC #3571 MHFFAY OPET SGGEEL CWDL PMT #3641 G S T I L V F D L V D R I L R D R P V E V R I #3711 GTTGAAGAGC AGAAAACGGC CGCTGGCCCG TCAAATTATA ATCCCATAGT AGAGCGTCCG GTTCAAAAAT VEEOKTAAGPSNYN PIVERPVOKY #3781 ATCCAAAGGG AACTATTGAG CTTGATACCG ATTTTACCAA AGCAGGAGAA TACACTGCGG TAGTTATTCT PKGTIE LDTD FTKAGEYTAV VIL TGGTGGTGAT CAACCGATGG TCTTCAAAGC ACTCTTCGAG TGGGTCTCCA GGGAGAGCAG ACCGTTCAGT #3851 G G D Q P M V F K A L F E W V S R E S R P F S #3921 GGATCGCCTC GATCGCTGGC GGTGCTTCTT ATTTTGGGGC TTATTTTTG GTATAGTCGC CGTGGCGGAA G S P R S L A V L L I L G L I F W Y S R R G G K AAGAGGCCAA GGCATCCTAG TTTCAATCCA ATTGGAATTG GATACTTTAA ATAGTATTCA CAGCGTTTAG #3991 EAKAS* #4061 AACATAATAG AAGGAAGTTT CCCCGGCATT CCATTATCCA AATAATGGAA TGCCGGGGAA TTC ECORI

Fig. 3-3. Continued.

44

nearly identical to 16S rDNAs from *Nitrosococcus oceanus* type strain C-27 and NOC strain C-107 (used in this study), differing only by 1 and 2 bases, respectively, out of 976 aligned bases. The ability of strain C-113 to grow autotrophically on ammonium marine media and the 16S rDNA sequence data identified the C-113 strain as belonging to the *Nitrosococcus* genus. We have sequenced 98% of *amoC* and the complete *amoA* and *amoB* genes for strain C-113 (GenBank AF153344). All three *amo* genes are 88-90% identical to the corresponding NOC genes (Table 3-2). The intergenic region between *amoC* and *amoA* from these strains is 77% identical. The observed 88-90% identity for the *amo* genes allows improved strain discrimination compared to the 99% identity values obtained for 16S rDNA for these γ-subdivision AOB. The *amo* genes also provide better discrimination for the β-subdivision strains.

Comparison of *amo* Genes and Their Putative Expression Products

The comparison of identities and similarities for the *amo* and *pmo* genes and their deduced peptide sequences is shown in Table 3-2. MCA's *pmo* genes have been proposed to be homologous to the *amo* genes [6,7,19] and thus have been included in the analysis. An alignment of the deduced amino acid sequences is presented in Figure 3-4. The highest identity value at the DNA level is between NOC and C-113 at 90% for *amoB* and *amoC*. This level of identity (84-90%) in *amo* genes is also typical between representatives from the same genus found in the β -proteobacteria. For example, NEU and *Nitrosomonas*

Table 3-1

Size of *amo* genes and the intergenic spacer between *amoC* and *amoA* (C-A I.S.) in autotrophic ammonia-oxidizing bacteria and comparison to the *pmo* genes of *Methylococcus capsulatus* (Bath)

	amoC	amoA	AmoB	C-A I.S.
Nitrosococcus oceanus	786	744	1251	286
Nitrosospira sp. NpAV	813	825	1248	223
Nitrosomonas europaea	825	831	1304	163
C-113 (Nitrosococcus sp.)	-	741	1260	286
Methylococcus capsulatus (Bath)*	783	744	1245	154

* = Sizes correspond to the pmo enzyme subunits.

eutropha (NET) have 88% identity in *amoA*. The lowest identity/similarity values were between NOC and NAV/NEU, with 38% identity at the DNA level (*amoC*) and between NOC and NEU with 37% similarity at the protein level (*amoC*). Both NOC and strain C-113 have higher identity values (49-55%) with MCA than with the β-subdivision AOB. Identity/similarity values are lowest between β and γ-subdivision AOB.

To analyze the secondary structure for the deduced peptides, the Kyte-Doolittle hydrophilicity [20], and the Chou-Fasman [21] Alpha, Beta, and Turn regions plots were obtained for all NOC Amo peptides (data not shown). When two functional proteins are compared as enzymatic analogs, a hydrophilicity analysis of the peptide sequences can be useful. The Kyte-Doolittle hydrophilicity plots for the NAV *amoA* and the NOC *amoA* are similar. The same domain motifs (transmembrane-hydrophobic regions) that appear in the NAV plots have similar corresponding motifs within the NOC *amoA* plots. NOC *amoC* and *amoA* have six transmembrane spanning domains, whereas NOC *amoB* has two transmembrane domains of high certainty. We observed that NOC and NAV Amo peptides share most of the general features that make them very likely to acquire the same tridimensional folding when active and associated with the membrane.

Our results show that the two ammonia-oxidizing strains, NOC and strain C-113, belong to the γ subdivision and have a single copy of the *amo* operon. All members of the β -subdivision that have been examined contain at least two operon copies. The analysis of *amo*-genes from β - and γ -subdivision AOB

	A. amoA			B. amoB				C. amoC							
	NOC	C113	MCA	NAV	NEU	NOC	C113	MCA	NAV	NEU	NOC	C113	MCA	NAV	NEU
NOC		88	55	44	44		90	49	39	40		90	53	38	38
C113	93		54	41	42	93		49	39	39	94		54	42	42
MCA	61	59		53	49	50	52		46	41	56	56		48	43
NAV	42	41	47		72	38	39	40		64	38	46	43		75
NEU	43	42	48	84		38	39	40	73		37	46	40	85	

Table 3-2 Identity and similarity values for *amo* and *pmo* genes and their deduced peptides.

DNA Percent Identity in upper triangle, Amino Acid Percent Similarity in lower triangle.

and the *pmo* genes from γ -subdivision methane-oxidizing bacteria leads us to propose that these lineages may have trifurcated early in evolution and have evolved independently since then [22]. We suggest that the *amo* operon sequences from γ -subdivision AOB (NOC strain C-107 and strain C-113) will be useful for the identification of target sequences for γ -subdivision AOB community analysis in the same manner as *amo* operon sequences from NAV and other AOB [23-25] have been used for the analysis of β -subdivision

NOCamoA.seq MSAL.TS...AVRTPEEAAKVFRTLDFIALGAFFMILLASHHVHVMLLMGDWDFWVDWK C-113amoA.seq MSAL.TS...AVRTPEEAAKVSRTLDFLALGAFFGILLASHHVHVMLLMGDWDFWVDWK MCApmoA1.seq MSAA.QS...AVRSHAEAVQVSRTIDWMALFVVFFVIVGSYHIHAMLTMGDWDFWSDWK NAVamoA1.seq MS.RTDEILKAAKMPPESVKMSRMIDAIYFFILCILLVGTYHMHFMLLAGDWDFWDWK NEUamoA1.seq VSIFRTEEILKAAKMPPEAVHMSRLIDAVYFFILIILLVGTYHMHFMLLAGDWDFWMDWK

61 120
DRRFWVTVVPIVSVAYPAAAQAFFWEKFRLPFGATLVTLGVLAGEWANRYFNFVGFTYFP
DRRFWVTVVPIVSVAYPAAAQAFFWEKFRLPFGATLVTLGLLAGEWANRYFNFVGFTYFP
DRRLWVTVTPIVLVTFPAAVQSYLWERYRLPWGATVCVLGLLLGEWINRYFNFWGWTYFP
DRQWWPVVTPIVGITYCATIMYYLWVNYRLPFGATLCIVCLLVGEWLTRFWGFYWWSHYP
DRQWWPVVTPIVGITYCSAIMYYLWVNYRQPFGATLCVVCLLIGEWLTRYWGFYWWSHYP

	121 180	
NOCamoA.seq	INFVWPTILLPMALFLDAMLAISKSYGLTAVVGGLMYGLLMYPANWPLLSAFHVPAEYNG	
C-113amoA.seq	INFVWPTILLPMALFLDAMLAISKSYGLTAVVGGLMYGLLMYPANWPLLSAFHVPAEYNG	
MCApmoA1.seq	INFVFPASLVPGAIILDTVLMLSGSYLFTAIVGAMGWGLIFYPGNWPIIAPLHVPVENNG	
NAVamoAl.seq	INFVLPSTMIPGALIMDTVMLLTRNWMITALVGGGAFGLLFYPGNWPIFGPTHLPLVAEG	
NEUamoAl.seq	INFVTPGIMLPGALMLDFTLYLTRNWLVTALVGGGFFGLLFYPGNWPIFGPTHLPIVVEG	

	240
NOCamoA.seq	VVMSLADIMGYQYVRTGTPEYIRMVEKGTLKTFGKDVVPVSAFFSGFVAMVMYFVWHFVG
C-113amoA.seq	VVMSLADVAGYQYVRTGTPEYIRMVEKGTLRTFGKDVVPVSAFFAGFVAMVMYFVWHFVG
MCApmoAl.seq	MLMSIADIQGYNYVRTGTPEYIRMVEKGTLRTFGKDVAPVSAFFSAFMSILIYFMWHFIG
NAVamoA1.seq	VLLSLADYTGFLYVRTGTPEYVRLIEQGSLRTFGGHTTVIAAFFSAFVSMLMFCVWWYFG
NEUamoAl.seq	TLLSMADYMGHLYVRTGTPEYVRHIEQGSLRTFGGHTTVIAAFFSAFVSMLMFTVWWYLG

	241 277
NOCamoA.seq	RWFSKDYHINQL
C-113amoA.seq	RWFSKDYSVDQC
MCApmoAl.seq	RWFSNERFLQST
NAVamoAl.seq	KLYCTAFYYVKGPRGRVTMKNDVTAYGEEGFPEGIK.
NEUamoAl.seq	KVYCTAFFYVKGKRGRIVHRNDVTAFGEEGFPEGIK.

Fig. 3-4. Amino acid sequence alignment for the deduced peptides from the amoA and pmoA genes.

AOB [2]. Primers that amplify both the β and γ -subdivision AOB *amo* genes have been designed where these different sequences are most conserved [6]. However, this region is also conserved in *pmoA* and therefore these primers could amplify genes from methane-oxidizing bacteria, such as MCA. On the other hand, based on our complete sequences from two γ -AOB, it appears that the C terminal region of AmoA peptides is not conserved because it is truncated in the γ -subdivision representatives, making it a likely target for primers and probes specific for discrimination between β - and γ -subdivision AOB. Furthermore, this region would allow for discrimination between the *amoA* of NOC and the *pmoA* of MCA. While additional complete *amo* sequences from γ -subdivision AOB will substantiate the usefulness of this region for environmental analysis, our results indicate that the *amo* genes will be useful for fine-scale phylogenetic differentiation within the γ -subdivision AOB.

References

- Sayavedra-Soto, L.A., Hommes, N.G., Alzerreca, J.J., Arp, D.J., Norton, J.M. and Klotz, M.G. (1998) Transcription of the *amoC*, *amoA* and *amoB* genes in *Nitrosomonas europaea* and *Nitrosospira* sp NpAV. FEMS Microbiol Lett 167, 81-88.
- [2] Rotthauwe, J.H., Witzel, K.P. and Liesack, W. (1997) The ammonia monooxygenase structural gene *amoA* as a functional marker: molecular fine-scale analysis of natural ammonia-oxidizing populations. Appl Environ Microbiol 63, 4704-4712.
- [3] Klotz, M.G. and Norton, J.M. (1995) Sequence of an ammonia monooxygenase subunit Aencoding gene from *Nitrosospira sp* NpAV. Gene 163, 159-160.
- [4] McTavish, H., Fuchs, J.A. and Hooper, A.B. (1993) Sequence of the gene coding for ammonia monooxygenase in *Nitrosomonas europaea*. J. Bacteriol. 175, 2436-2444.
- [5] Norton, J.M., Low, J.M. and Klotz, M.G. (1996) The gene encoding ammonia monooxygenase subunit A exists in three nearly identical copies in *Nitrosospira NpAV*. FEMS Microbiol. Lett. 139, 181-188.

- [6] Holmes, A.J., Costello, A., Lidstrom, M.E. and Murrell, J.C. (1995) Evidence that particulate methane monooxygenase and ammonia monooxygenase may be evolutionarily related. FEMS Microbiol. Lett. 132, 203-208.
- [7] Semrau , J.D., Chistoserdov, A., Lebron, J., Costello, A., Davagnino, J., Kenna, E., Holmes, A.J., Finch, R., Murrell, J.C. and Lidstrom, M.E. (1995) Particulate methane monooxygenase genes in methanotrophs. J. Bacteriol. 177, 3071-3079.
- [8] Sambrook, J., Fritsch, E.F. and Maniatis, T. (1989) Molecular Cloning. A Laboratory Manual, 2nd Edn. Cold Spring Harbor Laboratory Press, Cold Spring Harbor, NY.
- [9] Engels, W. R. (1993) Contributing software to the internet: the amplify program. Trends in Biochemical Sciences 18, 448-450.
- [10] Li. Q.-B. and Guy, C.L. (1996) Prolonged final extension time increases cloning efficiency of PCR products. Biotechniques 21, 192-196.
- [11] Triglia, T., Peterson, M.G. and Kemp, D.J. (1998) A procedure for *in vitro* amplification of DNA segments that lie outside the boundaries of known sequences. Nucleic Acids Res. 16, 8186.
- [12] Bergmann, D.J. and Hooper, A.B. (1994) Sequence of the gene, *amoB*, for the 43-kDa polypeptide of ammonia monooxygenase of *Nitrosomonas europaea*. Biochem. Biophys. Res. Commun. 204, 759-762.
- [13] Klotz, M.G., Alzerreca, J. and Norton, J.M. (1997) A gene encoding a membrane protein exists upstream of the *amoA/amoB* genes in ammonia-oxidizing bacteria; a third member of the *amo* operon? FEMS Microbiol. Lett. 150, 65-73.
- [14] Hastings, R.C., Ceccherini, M.T., Miclaus, N., Saunders, J.R., Bazzicalupo, M. and McCarthy, A.J. (1997) Direct molecular biological analysis of ammonia-oxidizing bacteria populations in cultivated soil plots treated with swine manure. FEMS Microbiol. Ecol. 23, 45-54.
- [15] Lipman, D.J. and Pearson, W.R. (1985) Rapid and sensitive protein similarity searches. Science 227,1435-1441.

- [16] Maidak, B.L., Olsen, G.J., Larsen, N., Overbeek, R., McCaughey, M.J. and Woese, C.R. (1997) The RDP (Ribosomal Database Project). Nucleic Acids Res. 25,109-111.
- [17] Sinigalliano, C.D., Kuhn, D.N. and Jones, R.D. (1995) Amplification of the *amoA* gene from diverse species of the ammonium-oxidizing bacteria and from indigenous bacterial population from seawater. Appl. Environ. Microbiol. 61, No 7, 2702-2706.
- [18] Norton, J.M., Alzerreca, J.J. and Klotz, M.G. (1998) Diversity of the genes encoding ammonia monooxygenase in autotrophic ammonia oxidizing bacteria. American Society of Microbiology Abstracts.
- [19] Ensign, S.A., Hyman, M.R. and Arp, D. J. (1993) In vitro activation of ammonia monooxygenase from *Nitrosomonas europaea* by copper. J. Bacteriol. 175, 1971-1980.
- [20] Kyte, J. and Doolittle, R.F. (1982) A sample method for displaying the hydrophatic character of a protein. J. Mol. Biol. 157, 105-132.
- [21] Chou, P.Y. (1989) Prediction of protein structural classes from amino acid composition. In: Prediction of Protein Structure and the Principles of Protein Conformation. (Fasman G.D., Ed.), pp. 549-586. Plenum Press, New York, NY.
- [22]Klotz, M.G. and Norton, J.M. (1998) Multiple copies of ammonia monooxygenase (amo) operons have evolved under biased AT/GC mutational pressure in ammonia-oxidizing autotrophic bacteria. FEMS Microbiol. Lett. 168, 301-311.
- [23] Norton, J.M., Alzerreca, J.J. and Klotz, M.G. GenBank U92432. *Nitrosospira sp.* NpAV ammonia monooxygenase operon copy 3: ammonia monooxygenase 3 subunits C (*amoC3*), A (*amoA3*) and B (*amoB3*) genes, complete cds.
- [24] Norton, J.M., Alzerreca, J.J. and Klotz, M.G. GenBank U89833. Nitrosolobus multiformis ammonia monooxygenase operon copy 3: ammonia monooxygenase subunit AmoC3 (amoC3) gene, partial cds, ammonia monooxygenase subunit AmoA3 (amoA3) gene, complete cds and ammonia monooxygenase subunit AmoB3 (amoB3) gene, partial cds.

[25] Norton, J.M. and Klotz, M.G. GenBank U72670. Nitrosomonas eutropha ammonia monooxygenase 2 subunit A (amoA2) gene, complete cds and ammonia monooxygenase 2 subunit B (amoB2) gene, partial cds.

CHAPTER 4

DIVERSITY OF AMMONIA MONOOXYGENASE OPERON IN AUTOTROPHIC AMMONIA-OXIDIZING BACTERIA¹

Abstract

The autotrophic ammonia oxidizing bacteria use the essential enzyme ammonia monooxygenase (AMO) to transform ammonia to hydroxylamine. The amo operon consists of at least three genes: amoC. amoA, and amoB; amoA encodes the sub-unit containing the putative enzyme active site. The use of the amo genes as functional markers for ammonia-oxidizing bacteria in environmental applications requires knowledge of the diversity of the amo operon on several levels: 1) the copy number of the operon in the genome, 2) the arrangement of the three genes in an individual operon, and 3) the primary sequence of the individual genes. We present a database of amo gene sequences for pure cultures of ammonia-oxidizing bacteria representing both the β - and the γ -subdivision of the proteobacteria in the following genera: Nitrosospira (7 strains), Nitrosomonas (4 strains), and Nitrosococcus (2). We observed that the amo operon was found in multiple (2-3), nearly identical copies in the B-subdivision representatives but in single copies in the y-subdivision ammonia oxidizers. The analysis of the deduced amino acid sequence revealed strong conservation for all three AMO peptides for both primary and secondary structure. The molecular systematic analysis of the amoA sequence database revealed clear patterns of relatedness in which the clustering was congruent to recent analysis based on the 16S rRNA sequences. For the amoA gene within the β-subdivision, nucleotide identity values are approximately 85% within the Nitrosomonas or the Nitrosospira groups but approximately 75% when comparing between these groups. We identified conserved regions in amoA and amoC which are targets sites for the construction of primers for PCR amplification of amo DNA isolated from pure cultures, enrichments, and the soil environment. The intergenic region between amoC and amoA is variable in length and is used to profile the community of ammonia-oxidizing bacteria in environmental samples.

¹Co-authored by J.J. Alzerreca, J.M. Norton, and M.G. Klotz. See Appendix B.

Introduction

Nitrification is a key process in the global nitrogen (N) cycle resulting in N loss from ecosystems, eutrophication of surface and groundwater, and the production of atmospherically active trace gases. Nitrification determines the form and mobility of inorganic N in soils and therefore influences N availability to plants and N loss by leaching out of the root zone. Ammonia oxidation to nitrite is the first step in the process of nitrification and is mediated primarily by the chemolithotrophic ammonia-oxidizing bacteria (AOB). Taxonomically, the cultured AOB are found in both the β - and the γ -subdivisions of the proteobacteria. The difficulty of isolating pure cultures and the low growth rates of the autotrophic ammonia oxidizers have slowed progress in characterizing their natural populations.

Recently, molecular tools have been developed based on 16S rRNA sequences to examine the diversity of uncultured AOB from the β-proteobacteria in both terrestrial and marine habitats [1-4]. While 16S rRNA sequences are the standard for taxonomic and phylogenetic investigations, insight into phenotypic characteristics of the ammonia oxidizers requires further characterization on the physiological and molecular level. Importantly, the high overall similarity of the partial ammonia oxidizer 16S rDNA sequences obtained from environmental DNA samples means that there are relatively few informative sites and discrimination on the strain or ecotype level may be difficult using this target [1]. For example, the overall 16S rDNA identity is at least 98.5% between *Nitrosospira* strain AHB1 and *Nitrosolobus multiformis* C-71 [5] and among seven new isolates from the *Nitrosospira* genus identity ranged from 97.4% to 100% [6]. These high identity values mean that designing discriminatory oligonucleotide probes and primers for environmental ammonia oxidizer strains may be difficult based on 16S rDNA sequences.

Ammonia monooxygenase (AMO) is a membrane-bound multiple subunit protein which is responsible for the conversion of ammonia to hydroxylamine [7]. AMO encoding genes are excellent molecular markers for ammonia oxidizers because of the enzyme's essential role in the metabolism of the autotrophic AOB from both the β - and the γ -subdivisions of the proteobacteria. Previously, few full-length sequences for genes encoding functional products have been characterized in AOB, all of these being from one organism *Nitrosomonas europaea* (NEU) [8-10]. In this study, we present a database of full-length gene sequences encoding ammonia monooxygenase (AMO) from pure cultures of terrestrial and marine ammonia oxidizers. Based on the *amo* sequences available in GenBank (this study, [11]), internal portions of amoA have been amplified and cloned from environmental samples, thereby substantiating the suitability of *amoA* as a functional marker for AOB [4,11].

The AMO enzyme has not yet been isolated in a purified, active form, although *in vitro* activity of cell lysates can be maintained [12]. A 27 to 30 kDa-sized membrane-associated protein which contains the active binding site of AMO [7] and a second iron-copper protein of 38 to 43 kDa have been isolated as probable AMO subunits, AmoA and AmoB, respectively, from NEU. The sequences of two genes, *amoA* and *amoB*, coding for these subunit proteins have been determined from NEU [8,9]. The sequences of the *amoA* and *amoB* genes from additional ammonia oxidizer strains are presented in this paper. An ORF upstream of the *amoA* gene in all AOB examined to date has been designated as the *amoC* gene [13]. In *Nitrosospira sp.* NpAV (NAV), the *amoC* gene encodes an approximately 31 kDa membrane protein [13]. The *amoA*, *amoB* and *amoC* genes comprise the functional AMO operon [14]. The *amo* operon exists as multiple (two or three), nearly identical copies in all the ammonia oxidizer strains that have been examined to date (this paper, [15]) except for *Nitrosococcus* strains, which contain a single operon copy (this paper). The AMO enzyme in AOB is similar to the particulate methane monooxygenase (pMMO) which is found in the methane-oxidizing bacteria [16]. Both enzymes are members of a new class of integral membrane, iron/copper-containing monoxygenases [16]. The pMMO is also believed to be comprised of three subunits encoded in the genes *pmoA*, *pmoB*, and *pmoC* [17-19].

Structural genes encoding enzymatic functions have been used previously in environmental investigations of methane and methanol oxidation [20-23], hydrogen metabolism in *Desulfovibrio* [24,25], and in pollutant degradation [26,27]. Several of these studies illustrate the potential diversity found in functional genes [22,26]. Therefore, successful use and interpretation of results from experimental systems using functional genes as targets requires knowledge of the range of diversity of the target gene and a database of gene sequences. Furthermore, the sequence database from pure culture representatives is the first step towards developing the molecular tools for quantifying gene expression in the environment [24]. This paper presents a database for the *amo* genes of AOB which may be used as the basis for construction

54

of DNA and oligonucleotide probes and primers with specificity at the subdivision, clade, genus, and species levels. The identified highly conserved regions of the *amo* genes are suited as probes or PCR primers for the ammonia oxidizer functional group. The designed primers were successfully used to amplify portions of the *amo* operon from DNA extracted from environmental samples.

Materials and Methods

Bacterial Strains, Plasmids, and Culture Conditions

The bacterial strains and plasmids used in this study are summarized in Table 4-1. Ammonia oxidizers were cultivated and harvested as described previously [15]. Marine strains were grown in an artificial seawater media (12.5 mM (NH₄)₂SO₄, 187.5 mM NaCl, 7.5 mM KCl, 23.3 mM MgSO₄, 15 mM MgCl₂, 7.6 mM CaCl₂, 0.15 mM Na₂CO₃, 2.25 mM NaHCO₃, 0.5675 mM K₂HPO₄, 3 µM chelated iron, 1.0 µM MnCl₂, 0.4 µM Na₂MoO₄, 0.35 µM ZnSO₄, 0.008 µM CoCl₂, and 0.25% Phenol red, adjusted to pH 6.5-6.8).

DNA Isolation, Hybridization Analysis, Amplification, and Sequencing

Genomic DNA (gDNA) was isolated from the ammonia oxidizer cells following the procedure of McTavish et al. [8]. The gDNA was restriction digested, electrophoresed on a 0.8% agarose gel in 1x TAE, and blotted to a nylon membrane. The *amoA* DNA probes purified from plasmids were prepared by random labeling with digoxigenin or, alternatively, prepared using PCR with digoxigenin-UTP (Boehringer Mannheim). Initially, a NEU *amoA* probe of 792 bp was used for the hybridizations to identify *amo* similar genes. The probes were hybridized to the membrane and the hybridizing fragments detected following the manufacturer recommendations (Genius[™] System, Boehringer Mannheim). Molecular weights of hybridizing fragments were determined using the RFLPscan program (Scanalytics/CSPI, Billerica, MA).

The gDNA was used as template for PCR. The Ericomp Delta-Cycler I system (San Diego, CA) was used with 0.2-mL thin-wall PCR tubes from Robbins Scientific Corporation (Sunnyvale, CA) for the PCR. The 50-µL PCR reactions contained 0.5 µM of each primer, 2.5 mM MgCl₂, 0.25mM dNTP mix, 1X

Taq polymerase buffer B [20 mM Tris-HCl (pH 8.0 at 25°C), 100 mM KCl, 0.1 mM EDTA, 1 mM DTT, 50% glycerol, 0.5% Tween 20 and 0.5% Nonidet P40], 100 ng template DNA, and 2.5 U Taq Polymerase.

Table 4-1

Bacterial strains used in this study

Strains (abbreviation)	Relevant phenotype or genotype	Genbank Accessions for amo	Source or reference
Nitrosospira sp. NpAV (NAV)	isolated from agricultural soil in Minnesota, USA	U92432, U72981, U38250, U38251, AF016003, U20644	E. Schmidt (Univ. of Minnesota) via Bruns
Nitrosospira briensis C-128 (NBR)	isolated from soil same as ATCC 25971	U76553	S. Watson and F. Valois (Woods Hole)
Nitrosospira sp. 39-19 (N39)	isolated from agricultural soil in Minnesota, USA	AF006692, AF016002	E. Schmidt (Univ. of Minnesota) via Bruns,
Nitrosovibrio tenuis NV-12 (NVT)	isolated from soil	U76552	S. Watson and F. Valois (Woods Hole)
Nitrosolobus multiformis ATCC 25196 (NMU)	type strain isolated from soil in Surinam, South America	U15733, U89833, U91603	ATCC
Nitrosolobus multiformis 24-C (N24)	isolated from agricultural soil in Minnesota, USA		E. Schmidt (Univ. of Minnesota) via Bruns
Nitrosomonas europaea ATCC 19178 (NEU)	isolated from soil, reported to be same strain as ATCC 25978	L08050, U96187	ATCC
Nitrosomonas eutropha C-91 (NET)	type strain sewage	U72670, U51630	S. Watson and F. Valois (Woods Hole)
Nitrosomonas sp. JL21	ammonia sensitive from activated sludge		Suwa et al. 1997 [43]
Nitrosomonas sp. AL212	ammonia sensitive from activated sludge		Suwa et al. 1997 [43]
Nitrosomonas sp. GH22	ammonia insensitive from activated sludge		Suwa et al. 1997 [43]
Nitrosococcus sp. C-113 (N113)	marine strain isolated from Red Sea		S. Watson and F. Valois (Woods Hole)
Nitrosococcus oceanus C-107 (NOC)	marine strain, same strain as ATCC 19707	U96611	S. Watson and F. Valois (Woods Hole)

PCR reagents were obtained from Promega (Madison, WI). The PCR conditions to obtain the desired products were an initial 4-min denaturation step at 94°C, followed by 25 cycles of a 1-min denaturing step at 94°C, a 1-min annealing step at 55°C, and a 4-min extension step at 72°C. A final extension step of 1 hour at 72°C completed the PCR, which is recommended for more efficient cloning [28].

The oligonucleotide primers for PCR were designed using published NEU [8,29] and our library of *amo* sequences. These primers were evaluated with the Amplify© program [30]. The PCR product was ligated into pCR™II plasmid and transformed into One Shot™ competent *Escherichia coli* cells according to the manufacturer's directions (TA Cloning® System, Invitrogen, San Diego, CA). The DNA sequences were obtained from purified plasmids (Wizard™, Promega Inc.; Madison, WI) containing the doublestranded insert templates, using M13F and M13R and synthetic primers based on the existing sequence and DNA polymerase for dideoxy dye-primer cyclo sequencing (ABI 373A, USU Biotechnology Center) following the manufacturer's instructions.

To obtain specific copies of the *amo* genes from the genome, gDNA was restriction digested and then size fractionated to obtain DNA specific to an individual copy (Fig. 4-1) [15]. This size-fractionated DNA was then used as a PCR template. For NAV, *Nitrosolobus multiformis* (NMU), and *Nitrosococcus oceanus* (NOC), we obtained sequences flanking the known regions using a chromosome crawl approach [31] on the size-fractionated DNA. The self-ligated size-fractionated DNAs were used as templates for the polymerase chain reaction (PCR) employing DNA polymerase and oligonucleotide primers designed to bind to the known regions of the gene based on our library of *amo* gene sequences. The PCR then proceeded from the known regions into the unknown flanking sequences (inverse PCR). When possible, PCR products were cloned, and plasmids were purified and sequenced as described above. However, many PCR products (especially those containing full ORF and promoter regions) were difficult to clone and maintain in *E. coli*; therefore, these products were sequenced directly. For direct sequencing, the PCR products were gel purified, reamplified and the products were purified using commercial kits.



Fig. 4-1. Southern blot of ammonia oxidizer genomic DNA with amoA probe from N. europaea showing the multiple copies of amoA. Lane 1. Nitrosomonas europaea, EcoRI; 2. Nitrosomonas eutropha, EcoRI; 3. Nitrosospira sp. NpAV, EcoRI; 4. Nitrosospira briensis, EcoRI; 6. Nitrosospira sp. 39-19, KpnI; 6. Nitrosovibrio tenuis KpnI; 7. Nitrosolobus multiformis ATCC 25196, Sac I.

Sequence, Phylogenetic, and Topology Analyses

Obtained DNA sequences were contig aligned (Sequencher 3.0, Gene Codes Corporation, Ann Arbor, MI) and sequence similarities were investigated using the NCBI Blast program [32]. The sequences are deposited in GenBank under the accession numbers given in Table 4-1. Deduced amino acid sequences were aligned manually or using the Clustal W Program (clustalw@nig.ac.jp; or Lasergene[™],

DNASTAR™, Madison, WI). Amino acid similarity scores are based on the PAM 250 scoring matrix [33].

Although the use of the deduced protein rather than DNA sequences results in some loss of information,

this approach avoids the problems associated with unequal rates of change for the third base position (silent

substitutions) as compared to replacement substitutions in the first and second positions [34]. Furthermore

the protein encoding regions are the most biologically relevant aspect of the gene sequences available and

can also be used to compare similar proteins that may not be unambiguously aligned at the nucleotide level [34]. The aligned amino acid sequences were processed by heuristic parsimonial analyses using PAUP version 3 [35]. In order to minimize the possibility that the algorithm would detect a local parsimony (potential monophyly of clusterings comprised of more than one species), 200 bootstrap replicates were generated. A 50% majority-rule consensus tree was constructed from parsimony replicates by using nearest-neighbor interchange branch-swapping during stepwise addition of the closest sequence. The deduced peptide sequences were also analyzed for membrane topology [36,37] and secondary structures [38] using Protean™ software (Lasergene™, DNASTAR™ Inc., Madison, WI).

Environmental Samples

Soil (0-30 cm) was sampled pre-planting from an replicated agricultural field plot (Cache Co. UT) that had been planted to silage corn and received various treatments of dairy wastes the previous year in a related project (Shi and Norton, unpublished). The soil treatments are replicated 4 times, 2 replicates of 4 selected treatments are shown as examples. The waste treatments shown include: 1) control plots with no nitrogen added, 2) soils treated with 200 kg N ha⁻¹ as ammonium sulfate, 3) composted dairy waste at 100 Mg ha⁻¹, and 4) liquid dairy waste at 200 m³ ha⁻¹. The waste treatment levels were chosen to apply approximately 200 kg ha⁻¹ available N over the season. DNA was extracted from soil using a repriprocating disruptor (Fast PrepTM Instrument, Bio 101, Vista, CA) and the manufacturer's lysing matrix and isolation procedures for soil (FastDNA® Spin® Kit for Soil, Bio 101, Vista, CA). The isolated DNA was further purified before amplification using gel electrophoresis and collection of the high molecular weight DNA (>15kB). The following PCR conditions were used for environmental samples: Ericomp DeltaCycler I thermal cycler (Ericomp, Inc., San Diego, CA) 42 cycles (1 min at 94°C, 1 min at 52°C, and 4 min at 72°C) with a 7-min extension at 72°C; optimum concentrations were 2.5 mM MgCl₂ and 0.5 µM for primer. The primers used are shown in Table 4-2 and Figure 4-2. For nested PCR, the PCR reactions were purified before reamplification using columns (PCR Select®II, 5 Prime > 3 Prime, Inc., Boulder, CO).

59

Table 4-2

Primer number	Target site and gene in <i>Nitrosospira sp.</i> NpAV GenBank accession U92432	Primer length (bp)	Sequence
301F*	1436-1461 amoA	26	GACTGGGACTTCTGGCTGGACTGGAA
302R	2084-2110 amoA	27	TTTGATCCCCTCTGGAAAGCCTTCTTC
304R	1316-1342 amoA	27	TAYCGCTTCCGGCGGCATTTTCGCCGC
305F	1012-1035 amoC	24	GTGGTTTGGAACRGICARAGCAAA
306R	2239-2236 amoB	25	CGTTCCACTGGATGGTAAGCATVCG

Primer sequences for amplification of amo genes from environmental samples.



Fig. 4-2. Physical map of the amo operon in Nitrosospira sp. NpAV and Nitrosococcus oceanus showing the four ORFs: amoC, amoA, amoB, and ORF4. The target sites for various primers and the putative transcriptional terminator (*) for the amo operon are shown.

Results and Discussion

Copy Number and Gene Arrangement of the amo Operon

All representatives of the β -subdivision AOB have multiple copies of the *amo* operon (examples are shown in Fig. 4-1). The restriction enzymes used for each strain do not cut within the ORF of *amoA*; in most cases the hybridizing fragment contains the whole operon. *Nitrosomonas* generally have two copies of the complete *amo* operon in the genome while *Nitrosospira* generally have three copies with the exception of *Nitrosospira tenuis* (NVT) (two copies). In NEU and NAV, additional copies of *amoC* have been found which are not associated with *amoA/B* [14]. In the γ -subdivision, for the strains examined, there is only one identified copy of the *amo* operon (Fig. 4-3). The observed variability in copy number needs to be



Fig. 4-3. Low stringency Southern blot of ammonia oxidizer genomic DNA. A) amoA probe from Nitrosomonas europaea and B) amoA probe from Nitrosococcus oceanus. All lanes contain equivalent amounts (~2 μg) of genomic DNA. Lane 1 MW marker, 2. N. oceanus, Eco RI; 3. N. oceanus, Hind III; 4. Nitrosolobus multiformis, Eco RI; 5. N. multiformis, Hind III; 6. N. europaea, Eco RI; 7. N. europaea, Hind III; 8. Nitrosospira sp. NpAV, Eco RI; 9. Nitrosospira sp. NpAV, Hind III; 10. MW marker.
accounted for if the *amo* target is to be used to quantify AOB. At present, the signal strength should be reported as *amo* copies, although if the community composition is known it would be possible to calculate an approximate bacterial cell number. The variation in copy number of the *amo* operon which we have observed is less than the variation in the copy number of 16S rDNA sequences in bacterial genomes [39]. The authors are unaware of any published information on the variability of *rrn* copy number in the AOB.

The physical maps of the *amo* operon are compared for NAV and NOC in Figure 4-2. In all cases observed the *amo* operons consists of *amoC* followed by a variable length intergenic region, then *amoA*, then *amoB*. Putative promoters have been identified upstream of both *amoC* and *amoA* and the full-length *amoCAB*, *amoAB*, and *amoC* transcripts confirmed in NAV and NEU [14]. In the β -subdivision AOB, *amoA* is followed immediately by *amoB*, in several cases with a 1-bp overlap and a shift in the reading frame. In the γ -subdivision bacteria, NOC, and *Methylococcus capsulatus* (Bath) (GenBank Accession U94337 [40]), there is an intergenic region between *amoA/pmoA* and *amoB/pmoB* of 65 bp and 106 bp, respectively. There is a strong transcriptional terminator following *amoB* (for example the stem loop found at position 3375-3416 in U92432 from NAV with Gibbs free energy value of -118.8 kJ/mol). An additional ORF4 encoding a membrane protein of unknown function has been identified following the *amoB* terminator in both β - and γ -subdivision AOB.

Within individual AOB strains observed to date, the multiple copies of the complete *amo* operon are nearly identical (this study, [15]), including the non-coding intergenic regions. It has been proposed that the near identity of *amo* operon copies is the result of rectification and that paralogy has most likely occurred in the common ancestor before the onset of orthologous evolution [41]. The near identity has been found to extend to regions beyond the terminator into, and possibly beyond, the ORF4, and we are currently investigating the extent of this replicated sequence in NAV. We reported recently that AOB genomes also contain copies of *amoC* genes that are not members of the *amoCAB* operons [14]. While the *amoC-4* copy in NAV is nearly identical to the other three operon copies, the identified *amoC-3* copy in NEU shared only 68% identity with the other two operon copies [14]. NAV also contains another locus which hybridized to an intragenic *amoC* probe from NOC. In contrast, all copies of *amoA* so far identified in AOB are members of the complete *amoCAB* operon structure described above. These observations suggest that primer sets designed for environmental samples should include at least one target in *amoA* or *amoB* so as to focus on the complete *amo* operons in the genome.

Diversity of Primary Sequences of *amo* Genes and the Encoded Peptides

The sequence data available from this project have been submitted to GenBank database under the accession numbers listed in Table 4-1. A quick reference list of these and other sequences is included in Appendix D, and sequences are also available full length in appendix E. The largest differences in amo genes exist between the amo genes found in the γ - and the β -subdivision AOB. For example, the amoC, amoA, and amoB genes of NOC have identity values of 42-45% with the amoC, amoA, and amoB genes of the β-subdivision representatives (see Appendix G). The amoC to amoA and amoA to amoB intergenic regions were excluded from this analysis because of ambiguous alignment. The observed level of sequence identity is reflected in our observation that even under low stringency conditions there is no visible hybridization signal from genomic NOC DNA when probed with a NEU amoA probe (Fig. 4-3). Previous reports that the amoA gene from N. oceanus ATCC 19707 (=Watson strain C-107) was 100% identical to the NEU amoA in the internal region sequenced [42] were not supported by our observations. Sinigalliano et al. [42] also contended that PCR primers and hybridization probes targeting the amoA gene based on the amoA sequence of NEU should be both sensitive and general enough to detect a broad range of AMOcontaining bacteria including those in the y-subdivision such as NOC. Under our experimental conditions we were unable to amplify any amo genes from NOC using the primers suggested by Sinigalliano et al. [42] and observed no visible cross-hybridization between the NEU probe and NOC gDNA (Fig. 4-3). Nevertheless, there are conserved regions of amoA between the y- and the B-subdivision representatives (see below), some of which have been previously used to amplify both the amoA and pmoA genes [16]. The partial sequence for amoA available for N. oceanus strain NCIMB 11848 (=Watson strain C-107, GenBank accession # U31652) now appears to be a contaminating pmoA sequence (C. Murrell, personal communication 1998). An additional marine AOB strain (C-113) was characterized by partial 16S rDNA sequencing (GenBank accession # AF153343) and was determined to be a y proteobacterium closely related to N. oceanus strain C-107 (partial 16S rDNA identity 973/975 (>99%)). The identity level for the

complete *amoA* genes of these two strains of *Nitrosococcus* was 88% (see electronic supplement). The fact that *Nitrosococcus* strains with >99% identity in their 16S rDNA sequences have only 88% identity in their *amoA* genes substantiates the strength of using *amo* as a functional gene marker for strain differentiation in the γ -subdivision AOB.

Southern blots using the *amoA* gene probe from NEU showed that the *amoA* genes from all investigated strains within the β -subdivision AOB cross-hybridized (Fig. 4-1). Hybridization signals were stronger with probes corresponding to the same genus (Fig. 4-1), i.e., within *Nitrosomonas* or within the *Nitrosospira* group (including the former *Nitrosolobus, Nitrosovibrio* genera). Comparison of sequences and blots from within one species such as NMU (Fig. 4-4) showed equivalent hybridization strengths for the two representative strains but still exhibited restriction fragment length polymorphism and significant sequence divergence (88% identity). From our observations for both the γ - and the β -subdivision AOB, we conclude that the comparison of *amo* genes offers a finer level resolution (to the strain level) than 16S rDNA sequences.



Fig. 4-4. Southern blot of ammonia oxidizer genomic DNA with *amoA* probe from *N. europaea*. Lane 1. MW marker Lanes 2-6 *Nitrosolobus multiformis* ATCC 25196: *EcoR* I, *EcoR* I+*Sac* I, *Sac* I, *EcoR* I+*Sma* I, *Sma* I; Lane 7. Empty; Lanes 8-14 *N. multiformis* 24C: *BamH* I, *BamH* I+ *EcoR* I, *EcoR* I, *EcoR* I +*Sac* I, *Sac* I, *EcoR* I +*Sma* I; *Sac* I +*Sac*

The amino acid alignments for the deduced Amo peptides as well as an amino acid/DNA pair table are available as appendix G. The unusual start codon GTG is used in the Nitrosomonas amoA sequences so far examined. This is somewhat puzzling in that the genomes of Nitrosomonas strains tend to contain less (G+C) than their relatives in the Nitrosospira cluster [41]. Analysis of the peptide sequences revealed several interesting differences and similarities between amo operons of Nitrosospira and Nitrosomonas. First, the third and fourth amino acids in AmoA from Nitrosomonas are deleted in all Nitrosospira AmoA peptides examined to date. Interestingly, the environmental strains AL212 and JL212, which are classified as Nitrosomonas based on 16S rDNA [43] and have a GTG start codon in the AmoA ORF, also have this two amino acid deletion. Secondly, the amino acids from position 51 to 62 (GDWDFWXDWKDR, X=L. M, V, S) and from position 196-206 (YVRTGTPEYVR) in the alignment are strongly conserved in all AmoA and pMmoA sequences examined. These regions are predicted to form portions of periplasmic loops (Fig. 4-5 and text below, [44]) and we chose the first region as the target site for the conserved internal amoA forward primer, 301. Thirdly, amino acid residues 96 and 97 of the NEU AmoC peptide are deleted in AmoC peptides from NAV. While it had a Nitrosospira-typical deletion in AmoA, the environmental Nitrosomonas strain AL212 lacks this deletion in its AmoC peptide although overall its AmoC is more similar to those found in Nitrosospira.

Following the alignment of amino acid sequences of complete AmoA and pMmoA proteins, unrooted phylogenetic trees were constructed by parsimony methods based on the amino acid sequences of 20 peptides (Fig. 4-6). Trees were also constructed for the available AmoC and AmoB peptides (data not shown), which had a similar topology to the AmoA tree. The tree reveals a trifurcation between the AmoA from β -subdivision AOB, the AmoA from γ -subdivision AOB and the PmoA from the γ -subdivision methane oxidizer, *M. capsulatus* (Bath). Recent suggestions that the β -subdivision proteobacteria may actually be a subgroup of the γ -subdivision proteobacteria (Schleifer ASM 1998) and our (G+C) analysis [41] coincide with our observations (Fig. 4-6). We have also observed that the *Nitrosospira* AmoA peptides cluster closer together with shorter branch lengths, suggesting that *Nitrosospira* Amo sequences may have evolved at the slowest pace [41].



Fig. 4-5. Secondary structure predictions for AmoC, AmoA, and AmoB peptides from *Nitrosospira sp.* NpAV (NAV), *Nitrosomonas europaea* (NEU) and *Nitrosococcus oceanus* (NOC). The predictions for alpha (A), beta (B) and turn (T) regions as predicted by Chou [38] and the Kyte-Doolittle hydrophobicity plot [36] indicating membrane topology are shown.

The general topology of the branch representing the AOB in the β -subdivision is similar to trees based on 16S rDNA [6,43,45]. However, the AmoA sequences from the two ammonia-sensitive strains, AL212 and JL21, form a branch intermediate between the type culture *Nitrosomonas* and the *Nitrosospira* branches primarily due to the deletion of the amino acids in positions 3 and 4 in the alignment as discussed above.



Fig. 4-6. Neighbor joining unrooted tree for the deduced AmoA peptide sequences based on the Clustal W alignment. The 50% majority-rule consensus tree was constructed from parsimony replicates by using nearest-neighbor interchange branch-swapping during stepwise addition of the closest sequence. For strain abbreviations see Table 4-1, MCA= Methylococcus capsulatus (Bath) (copy 2, [40]; copy 1, [17]). Secondary Structures and Topologies of Deduced Amo Proteins

The secondary structures for the deduced AmoC, AmoA, and AmoB subunit proteins from NAV, NEU and NOC are shown in Figure 4-5. The best predictions indicate that both AmoC and AmoA are integral membrane proteins consisting of six transmembrane alpha-helices. Because these helices may be bundled in the membrane, only the side chains exposed to the exterior of the bundle need to be hydrophobic, interior-facing chains may form a hydrophilic pore through the membrane. The transmembrane helices are connected with generally short hydrophilic loops exposed to the aqueous environment: however, the periplasmic loops between the first and second and the fifth and sixth transmembrane domains in AmoA (from approximately residue 51-62 and 165-218 in the alignment, respectively) are predicted to be longer and consists of the highly conserved amino acids described above. In general, amino acids which interact with each other or the periplasmic environment are more conserved than the hydrophobic positions interacting with the membrane. The AmoB peptide is predicted to consist of two membrane spanning domains and long periplasmic or cytoplasmic regions. Detailed amino acid analysis revealed that each of the three Amo/pMmo subunit proteins contain three conserved histidine residues accessible to the periplasm which could form peripheral copper binding sites as suggested for pMmo by Nguyen et al. [19].

Application of amo Primers for Environmental Samples

The availability of the sequence database and alignments allowed us to construct primer sets targeting the *amo* operon of the AOB in the β proteobacteria (Table 4-2, Fig. 4-2). While primers may be developed that amplify *amoA* from both the β and the γ AOB, these will generally be so broad as to amplify *pmoA* as well. We suggest that primers be constructed specifically to differentiate between the *amo* and the *pmo* genes in the γ -subdivision after a more extensive database is available. The primer pair of 301-302 amplifies a core region of 675 bp from *amoA* from both pure cultures and soil DNA templates without a nested PCR (Fig. 4-7A,C). Because the length of this amplicon is identical in all β AOB examined, differentiation must be based on further analysis by restriction length polymorphism, denaturing gradient



Fig. 4-7. PCR products of the *amoA* internal region (A and B) and the *amoC* to *amoA* intergenic region (C and D) for pure culture representatives and for extracted soil DNA. A) Lane 1 MW, lanes 2-12 products using primers 301-302; lanes 2-10. template genomic DNA from *Nitrosospira sp.* NpAV, *Nitrosolobus multiformis 24C, Nitrosospira sp.* 39-19, *Nitrosospira tersis, Nitrosomonas eutropha, Nitrosomonas europaea, Nitrosolobus multiformis, Nitrosovibrio tenuis, Nitrosococcus oceanus, 11. positive control, 12. no DNA control, 13. MW standard. B) Lane 1 MW, lanes 2-11 products using primers 301-302, lanes 2-9. template extracted soil DNA. Soil treatments are 2 & 3: control no N added; 4 & 5 ammonium sulfate fertilized; 6 & 7 high rate compost added, 8& 9, high rate liquid waste; 10. positive control, 11. no DNA control, 12. MW standard. C) Lane 1 MW, lanes 2-11 products from primers 305-304, templates 2-9 same as panel A, 10. positive control, 11. negative control. D) Lane 1, MW, Lanes 2-13 products from primers 305-304 in a nested PCR, 2-9. templates as in panel B, 10. negative nested control, 11. positive control N. <i>europaea*, 12. negative control, 13. genomic DNA from N. *tenuis, N. multiformis*, and Nitrosospira sp. NpAV, 14. MW standard.

gel electrophoresis (DGGE), or sequencing of clone libraries. Hastings et al. [46,47] have previously used nested PCR to amplify an internal portion of *amoA* from DNA extracted from soil but their primers were specific for NEU and did not amplify even the closely related NET. We have designed primers that will minimize template bias within the β AOB based on our database. The primer pair 305-306 is useful for obtaining the full-length *amoA* gene and flanking regions for sequence analysis. The primer pair 305-304 amplifies from the end of *amoC* across the intergenic region and into *amoA* from both pure cultures and soil DNA templates (Fig. 4-7B and D). The length of the *amoC-A* intergenic region and the predicted length of the 305-304 amplicon for pure cultures are shown in Table 4-3. The shortest intergenic lengths were found for representatives of the *Nitrosomonas* genera. This intergenic primer set will be useful for profiling the AOB in environmental samples and for screening libraries of longer clones before sequencing in order to select representatives from different groups (i.e. *Nitrosomonas* versus *Nitrosospira*).

Table 4-3

Length of amoC to amoA intergenic region (bp)	Length of 305F-304R amplicon (bp)
223	331
263	371
445	553
427	535
323	431
261	369
163	277
173	287
174	282
173	281
173	287
308	NA
286	NA
	Length of amoC to amoA intergenic region (bp) 223 263 445 427 323 261 163 173 174 173 174 173 308 286

The length of the *amoC* to *amoA* intergenic variable region and the length of the amplified region spanning from the end of *amoC* into *amoA* (from primer 305F to 304 reverse).

NA=no amplification since these are y subdivision ammonia oxidizing bacteria not found in soil.

We applied this intergenic primer set in a nested PCR (305-302 initially followed by 305-304) and detected changes in the community composition of the AOB related to soil treatments without cloning or sequencing (Fig. 4-7D). The *amo* intergenic length profiles created using this combination of primers were consistent for the two field-replicated soil samples and are different based on the N fertilization regime. All samples, including the untreated soil, had two bands (355 and 339 bp) close to the amplicon size in NAV (331 bp). The soils treated with animal wastes or ammonium sulfate fertilizer showed additional bands, some which are closer in size to *Nitrosomonas*. The soils treated with large amounts of available NH4^{*} at one time (Fig. 4-7D lanes 3, 4 and 7, 8) have a strong band closer to the NMU length (431 bp). Overall, the profiles of the intergenic length allow us to conclude that 1) several types of AOB coexist in these soils, 2) the dominant types represent different types of *Nitrosospira*, 3) representatives from *Nitrosomonas* appear in the waste treated and the fertilized soils, and 4) changes in ammonium availability results in different AOB community structure. The observation that nitrosomonads were detected in the waste treated or

heavily fertilized plots is similar to observations using 16S rDNA targeted probes in soils which had received swine manure [46]. Additional work is ongoing to include competitive internal standards to develop a quantitative PCR system. Further characterization of the diversity of the *amo* operon in environmental samples will extend our ability to link the structure of the ammonia oxidizer community to the functional controls of nitrification.

References

- Stephen, J.R., McCaig, A.E., Smith, Z., Prosser, J.I. and Embley, T.M. (1996) Molecular diversity of soil and marine 16S rRNA gene sequences related to β-subgroup ammonia-oxidizing bacteria. Appl. Environ. Microbiol. 62, 4147 – 4154.
- [2] Stephen, J.R., Kowalchuk, G.A., Bruns, M.V., McCaig, A.E., Phillips, C.J., Embley, T.M. and Prosser, J.I. (1998) Analysis of β-subgroup proteobacterial ammonia oxidizer populations in soil by denaturing gradient gel electrophoresis analysis and hierarchical phylogenetic probing. Appl. Environ. Microbiol. 64, 2958-2965.
- [3] Voytek, M.A. and Ward, B.B. (1995) Detection of ammonium-oxidizing bacteria of beta-subclass of the class Proteobacteria in aquatic samples with the PCR. Appl. Environ. Microbiol. 61, 1444-1450.
- [4] Juretschko, S, Timmerman, G, Scmid, M, Schleifer, K.H., Pommerening-Roser, A, Koops, H.P. and Wagner, M. (1998) Combined molecular and conventional analyses of nitrifying bacterium diversity in activated sludge: *Nitrosococcus mobilis* and *Nitrospira*-like bacteria as dominant populations. Appl. Environ. Microbiol. 64, 3042-3051.
- [5] Rotthauwe, J.-H., de Boer, W. and Liesack, W. (1995) Coparative analysis of gene sequences encoding ammonia monooxygenase of *Nitrosospira sp* AHB1 and *Nitrosolobus multiformis* C-71. FEMS Microbiol. Lett. 133, 131-135.
- [6] Utåker, J.B., Baken, L, Jiang, Q.Q. and Nes, I. (1995) Phylogenetic analysis of seven new isolates of ammonia-oxidizing bacteria based on 16S rRNA sequences. System Appl. Microbiol. 18, 549-559.

- [7] Hyman, M.R. and Arp, D.J. (1992) ¹⁴C₂H₂ and ¹⁴CO₂-labeling studies of the de novo synthesis of polypeptides by *Nitrosomonas europaea* during recovery from acetylene and light inactivation of ammonia monooxygenase. J. Biol. Chem. 267, 1534-1545.
- [8] McTavish, H., Fuchs, J.A. and Hooper, A.B. (1993) Sequence of the gene coding for ammonia monooxygenase in *Nitrosomonas europaea*. J. Bacteriol. 175, 2436-2444.
- [9] Bergmann, D.J. and Hooper, A.B. (1994) Sequence of the gene, *amoB*, for the 43-kDa polypeptide of ammonia monooxygenase of *Nitrosomonas europaea*. Biochem. Biophys. Res. Commun. 204, 759-762.
- [10] Sayavedra-Soto, L.A., Hommes, N.G. and Arp, D.J. (1994) Characterization of the gene encoding hydroxylamine oxidoreductase in *Nitrosomonas europaea*. J. Bacteriol. 176, 504-510.
- [11] Rotthauwe, J.H., Witzel, K.P. and Liesack, W. (1997) The ammonia monooxygenase structural gene amoA as a functional marker: molecular fine-scale analysis of natural ammonia-oxidizing populations. Appl. Environ. Microbiol. 63, 4704-4712.
- [12] Ensign, S.A., Hyman, M.R. and Arp, D.J. (1993) In vitro activation of ammonia monooxygenase from *Nitrosomonas europaea* by copper. J. Bact. 175, 1971-1980.
- [13] Klotz, M.G., Alzerreca, J.J. and Norton, J.M. (1997) A gene encoding a membrane protein exists upstream of the *amoA/amoB* genes in ammonia-oxidizing bacteria; a third member of the *amo* operon? FEMS Microbiol. Lett. 150, 65-73.
- [14] Sayavedra-Soto, L.A., Hommes, N.G., Alzerreca, J.J., Arp, D.J., Norton, J.M. and Klotz, M.G. (1998) Transcription of the *amoC*, *amoA* and *amoB* genes in *Nitrosomonas europaea* and *Nitrosospira* sp NpAV. FEMS Microbiol. Lett. 167, 81-88.
- [15] Norton, J.M., Low, J.M. and Klotz, M.G. (1996) The gene encoding ammonia monooxygenase subunit A exists in three nearly identical copies in *Nitrosospira sp* NpAV. FEMS Microbiol. Lett. 139, 181-188.
- [16] Holmes, A.J., Costello, A., Lidstrom, M.E. and Murrell, J.C. (1995) Evidence that particulate methane monooxygenase and ammonia monooxygenase may be evolutionarily related. FEMS Microbiol. Lett. 132, 203-208.

- [17] Semrau, J.D., Chistoserdov, A., Lebron, J., Costello, A., Davagnino, J., Kenna, E., Holmes, A.J., Finch, R., Murrell, J.C. and Lidstrom, M.E. (1995) Particulate methane monooxygenase genes in methanotrophs. J. Bacteriol. 177, 3071-3079.
- [18]Zahn, J.A. and DiSpirito, A.A. (1996) Membrane-associated methane monooxygenase from *Methylococcus capsulatus* (Bath). J. Bacteriol. 178, 1018-1029.
- [19] Nguyen, H.T., Elliott, S.J., Yip, J.H.K. and Chan, S.I. (1998) The particulate methane monooxygenase from *Methylococcus capsulatus* (Bath) is a novel copper-containing three-subunit enzyme. Isolation and characterization. J. Biol. Chem. 273, 7957-7966.
- [20] Murrell, J.C., McDonald, I.R. and Bourne, D.G. (1998) Molecular methods for the study of methanotroph ecology. FEMS Microbiol. Ecol. 27, 103-114.
- [21] McDonald, I.R. and Murrell, J.C. (1997) The methanol dehydrogenase structural gene mxaF and its use as a functional gene probe for methanotrophs and methylotrophs. Appl. Environ. Microbiol. 63, 3218-3224.
- [22] McDonald, I.R. and Murrell, J.C. (1997) The particulate methane monooxygenase gene pmoA and its use as a functional gene probe for methanotrophs. FEMS Microbiol. Lett. 156, 205-210.
- [23] McDonald, I.R., Kenna, E.M. and Murrell, J.C. (1995) Detection of methantrophic bacteria in environmental samples with the PCR. Appl. Environ. Microbiol. 61, 116-121.
- [24] Wawer, C, Jetten, M.S.M. and Muyzer, G. (1997) Genetic diversity and expression of the [NiFe] hydrogenase large-subunit gene of *Desulfovibrio* spp in environmental samples. Appl. Environ. Microbiol. 63, 4360-4369.
- [25] Wawer, C. and Muyzer, G. (1995) Genetic diversity of *Desulfovibrio* spp in environmental samples analyzed by denaturing gradient gel electrophoresis of [NiFe] Hydrogenase gene fragments. Appl. Environ. Microbiol. 61, 2203-2210.
- [26] Fulthorpe, R.R., McGowan, C., Maltseva, O.V., Holben, W.E. and Tiedje, J.M. (1995) 2,4 dichlorophenoxyacetic acid degrading bacteria contain mosaics of catabolic genes. Appl. Environ. Microbiol. 61, 3274-3281.

- [27] Herrick, J.B., Madsen, Batt, C.A. and Ghiorse, WmC. (1993) Polymerase chain reaction amplification of naphthalene-catabolic and 16S rRNA gene sequences from indigenous sediment bacteria. Appl. Environ. Microbiol. 59, 687-694.
- [28] Li. Q.-B. and Guy, C.L. (1996) Prolonged final extension time increases cloning efficiency of PCR products. Biotechniques 21, 192-196.
- [29] Bergmann, D.J., Arciero, D.A., and Hooper, A.B. (1994) Organization of the *hao* gene cluster of *Nitrosomonas europaea*: genes for two tetraheme c cytochromes. J. Bacteriol. 176, 3148-3153.
- [30] Engels, W. R. (1993) Contributing software to the Internet: the Amplify program. Trends in Biochem. Sci. 18, 448-450.
- [31] Sambrook, J, Fritsch, E.F. and Maniatis, T. (1989) Molecular Cloning. A Laboratory Manual, 2nd edn. Cold Spring Harbor Press, Cold Spring Harbor, NY.
- [32] Altschul, S.F., Madden, T.L., Schaffer, A.A., Zhang, J., Zhang, Z., Miller, W. and Lipman D.J. (1997) Gapped BLAST and PSI-BLAST: a new generation of protein database search programs. Nucleic Acids Res. 25, 3389-3402.
- [33] Lipman, D.J. and Pearson, W.R. (1985) Rapid and sensitive protein similarity searches. Science 227, 1435-1441.
- [34] Swofford, D.L., Olsen, G.J., Waddell, P.J. and Hillis, D.M. (1996) Phylogenetic inference. In: Molecular Systematics, 2nd edn. (Hillis, D.M., Moritz, C., and Mable, B.K., Eds.), pp. 407-514. Sinauer Associates, Inc. Sunderland, MA.
- [35] Swofford, D.L. (1993) PAUP: Phylogenetic Analysis Using Parsimony. Version 3.1.1 for the Macintosh. Smithsonian Institute, Washington, D.C.
- [36] Kyte, J. and Doolittle, R.F. (1982) A sample method for displaying the hydrophatic character of a protein. J. Mol. Biol. 157, 105-132.
- [37] Von Heijne, G. (1992) Membrane protein structure prediction, hydrophobicity analysis and the positive-inside rule. Gunnar. J. Mol. Biol. 225, 487-494.

- [38] Chou, P.Y. (1989) Prediction of protein structural classes from amino acid composition. In: Prediction of Protein Structure and the Principles of Protein Conformation. (Fasman G.D., Ed.), pp. 549-586. Plenum Press, New York, NY.
- [39] Farrelly, V., Rainey, F.A. and Stackebrandt, E. (1995) Effect of genome size and *rrn* gene copy number on PCR amplification of 16S rRNA genes from a mixture of bacterial species. Appl. Environ. Microbiol. 61, 2798-2801.
- [40] Stolyar, S., Peeples, T.L., Costello, A.M. and Lidstrom, M.E. GenBank U94337. *Methylococcus capsulatus* particulate methane monooxygenase operon copy 2: particulate methane monooxygenase subunit PmoC2 (pmoC2), particulate methane monooxygenase subunit PmoA2 (pmoA2) and particulate methane monooxygenase subunit PmoB2 (pmoB2) genes, complete cds.
- [41] Klotz, M.G. and Norton, J.M. (1998) Multiple copies of ammonia monooxygenase (amo) operons have evolved under biased AT/GC mutational pressure in ammonia-oxidizing autotrophic bacteria. FEMS Microbiol. Lett. 168, 303-311.
- [42] Sinigalliano, C.D., Kuhn, D.N. and Jones, R.D. (1995) Amplification of the *amoA* gene from diverse species of ammonium-oxidizing bacteria and from an indigenous bacterial population from seawater. Appl. Environ. Microbiol. 61, 2702-2706.
- [43] Suwa, Y., Sumino, T. and Noto, K. (1997) Phylogenetic relationships of activated sludge isolates of ammonia oxidizers with different sensitivities to ammonia sulfate. J. Gen. Appl. Microbiol. 43, 373-379.
- [44] Hooper, A.B., Vanelli, T., Bergmann, D. and Arciero, D.M. (1997) Enzymology of the oxidation of ammonia to nitrite by bacteria. Antonie van Leeuwenhoek 71, 59-67.
- [45] Head, I.M., Hiorns, W.D., Embley, T.M., McCarthy, A.J. and Saunders, J.R. (1993) The phylogeny of autotrophic ammonia-oxidizing bacteria as determined by analysis of 16S ribosomal RNA gene sequences. J. Gen. Microbiol. 139, 1147-1153.
- [46] Hastings, R.C., Ceccherini, M.T., Miclaus, N.; Saunders, J.R., Bazzicalupo, M. and McCarthy, A.J. (1997) Direct molecular biological analysis of ammonia oxidising bacteria populations in cultivated soil plots treated with swine manure. FEMS Microbiol. Ecol. 23, 45-54.

CHAPTER 5

CONCLUSIONS

Ammonia-oxidizing bacteria (AOB) are chemolithotrophs that oxidize ammonia/ammonium (NH₃/NH₄⁺) to nitrite (NO₂⁻) in a two-step enzymatic process to obtain the energy they require for survival. The membrane-bound ammonia monooxygenase (AMO) enzyme carries out the first rate-limiting step in this reaction. For this reason, the AOB must carry at least one functional copy of the *amo* operon within their genome. The overall hypothesis of this research was that *amo* genes would be useful markers for the analysis of the diversity of AOB. At the initiation of this project, only one *amoA* and a partial *amoB* sequence from *Nitrosomonas europaea* were available [1]. In this project, a collection of *amo* sequences from diverse AOB strains was obtained. These sequences were essential for the rational design of tools to analyze the diversity of AOB present in the environment.

The *amo* operon was initially thought to be made of two genes, *amoA* and *amoB*. The *amoA* gene is presumed to contain the sequence for the active site. In Chapter 2 we identified a third gene, *amoC*, upstream of *amoA* and *amoB* in *Nitrosospira sp*. NpAV. We found *amoC* to be present in all AOB examined and later observed *amoC* to be contained on a single transcript with *amoAB* [2]. Therefore, *amoC* is the third member of the AMO operon. However, the *amoC* gene function remains unknown. AmoC may act as a component that holds the other subunits in place, since the AmoA subunit is susceptible to frequent inactivation and probably needs frequent replacement. We started our *amoC* study in *Nitrosospira sp*. NpAV and after Southern analysis and PCR, we identified four copies, three of them within the three *amo*-operon copies that this strain carries. The additional fourth copy is identical to the others but independently located within the genome [2]. *N. europaea* has two, nearly identical, *amo*-operon copies, and we found *amoC* to be within each one of them. Furthermore, we also found an additional independent *amoC* copy within the genome; however, it is not identical to the other two operon-*amoC* copies [2].

We have also identified a fourth open reading frame (ORF4) following *amoB* in all strains examined. However, we believe that it is not part of the *amo* operon since there is a strong transcription terminator following *amoB*. The presence of ORF4 in all examined strains and secondary structure analysis suggests that it may encode a membrane protein with a possible role in the ammonia oxidation. While the identified soil AOB are found in the β-subdivision, at least one AOB genus,

Nitrosococcus, belongs to the γ -subdivision. In Chapter 3 we presented the first *amo* operon sequences for two Nitrosococcus strains, N. oceanus and strain C-113. Our work on these two marine strains revealed that they do share many similarities with the β -subdivision AOB but also have interesting differences. In Southern analysis experiments, we observed the *amo* genes cross-hybridize only within a subdivision (β or γ), but not across the β - and γ -subdivisions. Cross-hybridization is observed at various levels between Nitrosomonas and Nitrosospira (Nitrosovibrio, Nitrosolobus) strains and between Nitrosococcus strains.

We have consistently observed that all AOB strains examined in the β -subdivision have at least two copies of the AMO operon. In contrast, the marine AOB studied belonging to the γ -subdivision have a single copy. The significance of the number of copies of the *amo* operon in the physiology of AOB remains to be investigated.

Analysis of the *N. oceanus amo* sequences revealed thay they shared a higher sequence identity with the genes for the particulate methane monooxygenase (pMMO) from *Methylococcus capsulatus* (Bath) than with the *amo* genes from the β -subdivision representatives. We also observed that the strains examined in the γ -subdivision have an intergenic region between *amoA* and *amoB* similar to the intergenic separation between *pmoA* and *pmoB*. Within the β -subdivision strains, *amoB* follows immediately to *amoA*, and sometimes with a one base overlap. Phylogenetic analysis of AMO from the β - and γ -subdivisions and pMMO results in an unrooted tree with a trifurcation, indicating an early divergent event in evolution of these proteins.

Although the *amo* operon consists of at least three genes (*amoC*, *amoA*, and *amoB* for both the β and γ -subdivision AOB), we have focused on the sequencing of *amoA* for all strains examined. Whenever possible, we have also obtained the sequence of the *amoB* and *amoC* genes. For most strains we have also sequenced *amoA* from one or more specific copies of the genome.

Our results on Chapter 4 indicate that the *amo* genes offer an important complement to the analysis of 16S rRNA sequences for the assessment of the diversity of the AOB. The *amo* genes were revealed to have the ability to differentiate between closely related strains which may be difficult to 77

separate based on 16S rRNA sequence analysis. Our *amo* gene database is presented and we demonstrate how the use of the aligned sequences allows us to identify conserved regions of the *amo* genes useful as targets for PCR primers. These primers are used in the amplification of *amo* sequences from DNA isolated from the soil environment. Several recent studies on the diversity of AOB in the environment have used our *amo* sequences from GenBank as the basis for the development of primers and for comparison to their environmental *amo* sequences [3-5]. This substantiates the importance of our contributions of *amo* sequences to the international database.

Our amo database allowed for the design of molecular tools for the analysis of the diversity of amo genes in soil DNA. Primers 301-302 were designed within the amoA gene, and are useful for the initial detection of amo-containing populations. To further obtain complete amoA sequences and flanking regions for these populations, primers 305-306 were designed. Primers 305-304 amplify the intergenic region after amoC and before amoA. These primers were designed to quickly characterize environmental samples since these PCR products are of different sizes and provide a useful profile on agarose gels. Since the size of this intergenic region is species dependent, several bands are often observed representing different AOB present in the environment. It then becomes a matter of matching these PCR products with PCR products made with known pure cultures by size. We have accomplished sufficient resolution to separate these PCR bands with high concentration agarose gels. Using these molecular tools, we have observed profile changes based on the N treatments given to the soil. We conclude that molecular tools based on the amo genes provide an efficient method to screen and evaluate the AOB community in environmental samples. However, this iterative screening process is not only useful for profile analysis. It also provides a way to detect new strains (new amoA variations) to further expand the database, and hence provide more information to refine the current primers. It remains to fine-tune the primers in order to get more useful data from the PCR products, and to broaden their reach. On the other hand, new primers can also be designed to exclude nondesired sequences. This and other possibilities are attainable, as the amo gene database grows.

We further analyzed the deduced amino acid sequences from the subunits for AMO for all strains and also compared them to the pMMO amino acid sequences. For AmoA and pMmoA, the amino acids from position 51 to 62 and from position 196 to 206 (numbering as in the Clustal alignment, see appendix

78

G) are strongly conserved in all sequences examined. These regions are predicted to form portions of periplasmic loops. Within the β -subdivision AOB, we observed some consistent differences when the amino acid sequences were compared between *Nitrosospira* and *Nitrosomonas*. For example, when *Nitrosospira sp.* NpAV and *N. europaea* species were compared, we observed amino acid deletions for *Nitrosospira sp* NpAV in the AmoA (number 3 and 4) and the AmoC (number 96 and 97) peptide sequences. However, two environmental *Nitrosomonas* strains, AL212 and JL212, also have the *Nitrosospira*-like AmoA deletions.

The predictions from secondary structure analysis indicate that AmoC and AmoA are integral membrane proteins consisting of six transmembrane alpha-helices. Because these helices may be bundled in the membrane, only the side chains exposed to the exterior of the bundle need to be hydrophobic. Interior-facing chains may form a hydrophilic pore through the membrane. The transmembrane helices are connected with generally short hydrophilic loops exposed to the aqueous environment: however, the periplasmic loops between the first and second (~ residues 51-62) and the fifth and sixth (~ residues 165-218) transmembrane domains in AmoA are predicted to be longer and consist of highly conserved amino acids. In general, amino acids which interact with each other or the periplasmic environment are more conserved than the hydrophobic positions interacting with the membrane. The AmoB peptide is predicted to consist of two membrane spanning domains and long periplasmic or cytoplasmic regions.

AMO and pMMO are members of a novel class of monooxygenases that share many similar features. When the *pmoC* gene was discovered and sequenced for the methanotrophs, this implied that a third gene could also exist for AMO. When the *pmoC* gene information was released, it further encouraged the search for the probable *amoC* gene, which was quickly found and sequenced. Both AMO and pMMO have at least three subunits, exhibit high amino acid sequence similarity (61-59% between *amoA* vs. *pmoA* both from γ -representatives and ~48% between *amoA* from β -representatives vs. *pmoA* from γ -representatives) and contain iron [6,7]. We observed that both AMO and pMMO have three conserved periplasmic histidines, and since these enzymes are also known to be associated with copper, these histidines may have a role in copper binding.

Ideally, the molecular tools based on the *amo* genes developed in this project will allow us to obtain a better picture of the environmental AOB community than previously possible. We have demonstrated that DNA can be directly extracted from soil, further purified, and then *amo* genes from unknown soil AOB can be amplified using our primers. This direct approach eliminates the need for selective isolation procedures and their inherent biases.

We have found the genes encoding AMO to be excellent functional markers for the AOB for two reasons: 1) *amo* genes are always and only found in AOB and 2) *amo* sequences offer better resolution of closely related AOB strains than 16S rDNA markers. We have studied the AMO operon genes extensively for representative AOB strains, and our library of these *amo*-gene sequences has allowed us to develop a method that when used on environmental samples, results in the retrival of *amo* sequences from a fairly broad range of AMO-containing bacteria. Finally, we have significantly increased the number of *amo* sequences from pure culture strains available in the GenBank database.

References

- McTavish, H., Fuchs, J.A. and Hooper, A.B. (1993) Sequence of the gene coding for ammonia monooxygenase in *Nitrosomonas europaea*. J. Bacteriol. 175,2436-2444.
- [2] Sayavedra-Soto, L.A., Hommes, N.G., Alzerreca, J.J., Arp, D.J., Norton, J.M. and Klotz, M.G. (1998) Trascription of the *amoC*, *amoA* and *amoB* genes in *Nitrosomonas europaea* and *Nitrosospira* sp. NpAV. FEMS Microbiol. Lett. 167, 81-88.
- [3] Sakano, Y. and Kerkhof, L. (1998) Assessment of changes in microbial community structure during operation of an ammonia biofilter with molecular tools. Appl. Environ. Microbiol. 64, 4877-4882.
- [4] Stephen, J.R., Chang, Y.J., Macnaughton, S.J., Kowalchuk, G.A., Leung, K.T., Flemming, C.A. and White, D.C. (1999) Effect of toxic metals on indigenous soil p-subgroup proteobacterium ammonia oxidizer community structure and protection against toxicity by inoculated metal-resistant bacteria. Appl. Environ. Microbiol. 65, 95-101.

- [5] Kowalchuk, G.A., Naoumenko, Z.S., Derikx, P.J.L., Felske, A., Stephen, J.R. and Arkhipchenko, I.A. (1999) Molecular analysis of ammonia-oxidizing bacteria of the beta subdivision of the class Proteobacteria in compost and composted materials. Appl. Environ. Microbiol. 65, 396-403.
- [6] Zahn, J.A. and DiSpirito, A.A. (1996) Membrane associated methane monooxygenase from *Methylococcus capsulatus* (Bath). J. Bacteriol. 178, 1018-1029.
- [7] Zahn, JA., Arciero, D.M., Hooper, A.B. and DiSpirito, A.A. (1996) Evidence for an iron center in the ammonia monooxygenase from *Nitrosomonas europaea*. FEBS Lett. Nov 11; 397(1), 35-38.

APPENDIXES

Appendix A. Electronic Mail Permission Letter

for Chapter 2 and Chapter 3

FCR/hw/mar99.255 25 March 1999

Javier Alzerreca Utah State University

Dear Mr Alzerreca

FEMS MICROBIOLOGY LETTERS, Vol 150, 1997, pp 65-73

As per your letter dated 17 March 1999, we hereby grant you permission to reprint the aforementioned material in your thesis at no charge subject to the following conditions:

1.If any part of the material to be used (for example, figures) has appeared in our publication with credit or acknowledgement to another source, permission must also be sought from that source. If such permission is not obtained then that material may not be included in your publication/copies.

2. Suitable acknowledgment to the source must be made as follows:

FOR JOURNALS: "Reprinted from Journal title, Volume number, Author(s), Title of article, Pages No., Copyright (Year), with permission from Elsevier Science".

3.Reproduction of this material is confined to the purpose for which permission is hereby given.

4. This permission is granted for non-exclusive world English rights only. For other languages please reapply separately for each one required. Permission excludes use in an electronic form. Should you have a specific electronic project in mind please reapply for permission.

NB: This includes permission for UMI to supply single copies, on demand, of the complete thesis. Should your thesis be published commercially, please reapply for permission.

Yours sincerely

Frances Rothwell (Mrs) Subsidiary Rights Manager FCR/mw/dec99.016 14 December 1999

Mr Jose Javier Alzerreca c/o Jeanette Norton Department PSB Utah State University Logan, UT 84322-4820 USA

Dear Mr Alzerreca

FEMS Microbiology Letters, Vol 180, 1999, pp 21-29. Alzerreca et al. "The amo operon in marine, ammonia-oxidizing"

As per your e-mail dated 14 December 1999, we hereby grant you permission to reprint the aforementioned material at no charge in your thesis subject to the following conditions:

- If any part of the material to be used (for example, figures) has appeared in our publication with credit or acknowledgement to another source, permission must also be sought from that source. If such permission is not obtained then that material may not be included in your publication/copies.
- 2. Suitable acknowledgment to the source must be made as follows:

"Reprinted from Journal title, Volume number, Author(s), Title of article, Pages No., Copyright (Year), with permission from Elsevier Science".

- 3. Reproduction of this material is confined to the purpose for which permission is hereby given.
- 4. This permission is granted for non-exclusive world <u>English</u> rights only. For other languages please reapply separately for each one required. Permission excludes use in an electronic form. Should you have a specific electronic project in mind please reapply for permission.
- This includes permission for UMI to supply single copies, on demand, of the complete thesis. Should your thesis be published commercially, please reapply for permission.

Yours sincerely

Frances Rothwell (Mrs)

Subsidiary Rights Manager

The processing of permission requests for all Elsevier Science (including Pergamon imprint) journals has been centralised in Oxford, UK. Your future requests will be handled more quickly if you write directly to: Subsidiary Rights Department, Elsevier Science, PO Box 800, Oxford OX5 1DX, UK.

Fax: 44-1865 853333; e-mail: permissions@elsevier.co.uk

Appendix B. Authorship Letters for

Chapter 2 and Chapter 4

UofL[®] University of Louisville, Kentucky

Department of Biology and Center for Genetics and Molecular Medicine

Life Sciences Building Louisville, KY 40292 October 12, 1999

Dr. Noelle E. Cockett Interim Dean of Graduate Studies Utah State University Logan, Utah 84322

Dear Dr. Cockett,

This letter is to attest that Mr. Javier J. Alzerreca is a major author of the published article:

Klotz, M.G., J. Alzerreca, and J.M. Norton. 1997. A gene encoding a membrane protein exists upstream of the *amoA/amoB* genes in ammonia-oxidizing bacteria; a third member of the *amo* operon? <u>FEMS Microbiol. Letters</u> 150:65-73.

as he has performed the majority of the experiments that were reported in this paper.

Please do not hesitate to contact me if you have further questions.

Sincerely,

Martin G. Klotz, Ph.D. (Assistant Professor of Bacteriology and Molecular Genetics)

Phone: 502-852-7779

Fax: 502-852-0725

E-mail: Martin.Klotz@louisville.edu



Department of Plants, Soils, and Biometeorology 4820 Old Main Hill Logan UT 84322-4820 Telephone: (435) 797-2233 FAX: (435) 797-3376

October 20, 1999

Dr. Noelle Cockett Interim Dean of Graduate Studies Utah State University Logan UT 84322

Dear Dr. Cockett,

This letter is to attest that Mr. Jose Javier Alzerreca is the major author of his thesis chapter IV that is an unpublished article. The article will be submitted for publication in a revised form sometime in the next year. Javier performed the majority of the experimentation described in this chapter.

Sincerely,

Janette Anto

Jeanette Norton Associate Professor of Soil Microbiology

Appendix C. Protein Expression Studies for amoC

As deduced from the obtained nucleotide sequence, the *amoC3* gene in NAV encodes a neutral (pI=6.7) 270-amino-acid polypeptide of approximately 31.1 kDa (Fig. B1). Topological analysis of the predicted primary structure revealed 6 membrane-spanning domains (Fig. B2). Analysis of the AmoA and AmoB proteins from *N. europaea* [1] and NAV [2] also revealed multiple membrane-spanning domains; 6 predicted domains for AmoA and two domains for AmoB. As in the case of AmoA, the AmoC3 peptide did not contain an N- terminal signal sequence [3] suggesting that membrane incorporation occurs without the chaperoning aid of the SecA protein. Instead, the AmoC protein could serve itself as a chaperoning locator helping the AmoA and AmoB protein subunits to integrate into the membrane properly. AmoC can be expressed independently from other AMO subunits [4, 5].

Furthermore, Sayavedra-Soto et al. [6] suggested that the AmoA subunit, which carries the catalytic site of ammonia oxidation [7], is frequently inactivated and needs to be replaced by *de novo* synthesized protein. In such a scenario, AmoC could serve as a director which supervises AmoA - AmoB interactions in order to maintain AMO functionality



Fig. B1. Polyacrylimide showing the size and presence of the putative amoC gene product.



Fig. B2. Proposed membrane topology of the *amoC3* gene product of *Nitrosospira* NpAV. The membrane spanning domains were obtained by using the algorithm of Sipos and von Heijne (1993). The calculation was based on a full window of 21, a core window of 11 and a critical length of 60 from the complete sequence of 270 amino acids.

To study the expressibility of the cloned *amoC3* gene, the SDS-PAGE profiles of fluids from *E. coli* strain DH5 α carrying recombinant plasmids pNA101-9 (Fig. B1; Lanes 2 and 3), (pNA-5) (Fig. B1; Lanes 4 and 5) and pNA10-9 (Fig B1; Lanes 6 and 7) were compared and analyzed. The gel reveals the presence of a unique, approximately 30 kDa single protein band (putative AmoC3) in both the total lysate and protoplasmic fluids from the strain containing pNA101-9, a double band at approximately 30 kDa (putative AmoA3, [5]) in the fluids from the strain containing pNA-5 and no unique bands in the fluids from the control strain containing pNA10-9. Both polypeptides, AmoA3 and AmoC3, have an approximately 6 kDa smaller molecular mass based upon the standards used in SDS-PAGE than their masses calulated from the deduced primary structures. The unique additional band of approximately 14.5 kDa in the total lysate from clone DH5 α (pNA-5) (Fig. B1, lane 4), may represent an expression product unique to the complementary strand of the DNA insert in pNA10-5.

References

- Vanelli, T., Bergmann, D., Arciero, D.M. and Hooper, A.B. (1996) Mechanism of N-oxidation and electron transfer in the ammonia oxidizing autotrophs. In: Microbial growth on C1 compounds, (Lidstrom, M.E. and Tabita, F.R., Eds.), pp. 80-87. Kluwer Academic Publishers, Netherlands.
- [2] Klotz, M.G. and Norton, J.M. (1995) Sequence of an ammonia monooxygenase subunit A-encoding gene from *Nitrosospira sp.* NpAV. Gene 163,159-160.
- [3] Pugsley, A.P. (1993) The complete secretory pathway in Gram-negative bacteria. Microbiol. Rev. 57,50-108.
- [4] Hyman, M.R. and Wood, P.M. (1985) Suicidal inactivation and labelling of ammonia monooxygenase by acetylene. Biochem. J. 227,719-725.
- [5] Norton, J.M., Low, J.M. and Klotz, M.G. (1996) The Gene Encoding Ammonia Monooxygenase Subunit A Exists in Three Nearly Identical Copies in *Nitrosospira sp.* NpAV. FEMS Microbiol. Lett. 139,181-188.
- [6] Sayavedra-Soto, L. A., Hommes, N.G., Russell, S.A. and Arp, D.J. (1996) Induction of ammonia monooxygenase and hydroxylamine oxidoreductase mRNAs by ammonium in Nitrosomonas europaea. Molec. Microbiol. 20,541-548.
- [7] Hyman, M.R. and Arp, D.J. (1992) ¹⁴C₂H₂ and ¹⁴CO₂-labeling studies of the de novo synthesis of polypeptides by *Nitrosomonas europaea* during recovery from acetylene and light inactivation of ammonia monooxygenase. J. Biol Chem. 267,1534-1545.

Appendix D. amoC and amoAB Transcription Studies

with RT-PCR in Nitrosospira sp. NpAV

1. Materials and methods

1.1 Strains and cell cultures.

Nitrosospira sp. NpAV were grown in batch cultures as described [1, 2]. Cell cultures (1.0 to 1.5 l) in late logarithmic phase were harvested for nucleic acid extraction.

1.2 DNA manipulations.

Genomic and plasmid DNA preparations, DNA restriction digests, Southern and Northern hybridizations, and other standard DNA manipulations were performed as described [3].

The transcript for *amoC* was evaluated by the reverse transcriptase-polymerase chain reaction (RT-PCR). Total RNA was isolated as described [3, 4]. For RT-PCR the RNA was treated 15 min. at 37°C with RQ1 RNAse-free DNAse (1u/µg of template DNA), phenol-chloroform and ethanol precipitated. The RT-PCR reaction was carried out with a kit from PE Applied Biosystems. The absence of genomic DNA in the RNA samples was determined in a control reaction with no reverse transcriptase.

DNA sequencing was performed using dideoxy-nucleotides-dye primer chemistry in a BioDynamics sequencing instrument at the Center for Gene Research Central Laboratory, Oregon State University and at the Utah State University Biotechnology Center, using a Perkin-Elmer ABI373A automated sequencer.

2. Results

2.1 Isolation and characterization of amoC genes that precede amoAB genes.

In Nitrosospira sp. NpAV, four copies of *amoC* were detected, but only three of these were found on the same fragments with *amoAB* [5]. In both bacteria, all identified *amoA* copies were preceded by an *amoC* gene (this work and [5]).

2.2 amoC is a member of an amoCAB operon.

The available nucleotide sequence of *amoC* in *N. europaea* and in *Nitrosospira* sp. NpAV provided a means to determine if *amoC* is part of the *amoAB* operon. Northern blots with probes for *amoA* and *amoB* using total RNA isolated from *N. europaea* have shown that both genes are part of the same operon [6]. In *M. capsulatus* the *pmo* genes are in a similar arrangement to *N. europaea* and are co-transcribed in a polycistronic mRNA of 3.3 kb [7]. Because of the contiguous location of *amoC* to *amoAB*, seemed likely that *amoC* was also present on the transcript which contained *amoAB* [5, 6]. To examine whether *amoC* was part of the *amoAB* operon in *Nitrosospira* sp. NpAV we performed reverse transcriptase-PCR (RT-PCR).

The RT-PCR was done using primers complementary to *amoC* and either *amoA* or *amoB* and *Nitrosospira* sp. NpAV total RNA. The amplified fragments were obtained using forward primer CL2 and antisense primers located in *amoA* or *amoB*. RT-PCR products were produced from *Nitrosospira* sp. NpAV total RNA corresponding to the predicted sizes (Fig. C1). These amplified cDNAs confirmed that *amoC* was co-transcribed with *amoA*. Because we had not determined in *Nitrosospira* sp. NpAV if *amoB* was part of the same operon, we performed an additional reaction using primer CL2 and a primer within the *amoB* gene near the start codon. While the product yield was relatively low compared to the reactions producing shorter fragments, we were able to show that *amoC* was part of an *amoCAB* operon in *Nitrosospira* sp. NpAV as well. This result was confirmed using primers in *amoA* and *amoB* which also gave strong products. Thus, with RT-PCR we demonstrated that the transcripts from the *amo* operon in *Nitrosospira* sp. NpAV contained *amoC*, *amoA*, and *amoB*.



Fig. C1. Agarose gels showing the amplified DNA fragments produced by the reverse transcriptasepolymerase chain reaction from total RNA. Primers chosen to produce amplicons containing *amoC*, *amoCA* or *amoCAB* were used. Lane 1: DNA marker in kb. The following lanes show the DNA amplified from *N. europaea* (lanes 2-4) and from *Nitrosospira sp.* NpAV (lanes 5-7). Lane 8: + kit control, lane 9-11: no RT control, lane 12: + gDNA control. The reactions used primer CL2 and the following primers: lane 2: primer 102 for internal *amoC* amplicon; lane 3: primer Ne, *amoC* to N terminus *amoA* amplicon; lane 4: primer CT *amoC* to C terminus *amoA*; lane 5 primer 102 internal *amoC* amplicon; lane 6 primer 104, *amoC* to middle *amoA* amplicon; lane 7: primer 5 *amoC* to N terminal region *amoB*.

3. Discussion

After performing RT-PCR experiments we conclude that in *Nitrosospira* sp. NpAV, *amoC* is also part of the *amo* operon as proposed recently [5]. The *amoC* gene mRNA was detected by RT-PCR and specific *amoC-3* primers, demonstrating its transcription. The genes coding for the three AMO subunit polypeptides are co-transcribed from each of the multiple *amoCAB* operons in *Nitrosospira* sp. NpAV and *N. europaea* [8]; therefore, the similarities among ammonia-oxidizing bacteria (including methanotrophs) can be extended from the level of gene product similarity to the transcriptional level. In Nitrosospira sp. NpAV there is evidence for the assumption that the *amoAB* genes can be expressed independently of the *amoCAB* promoter, because the *amoA* and *amoC* genes were expressed in *E. coli* from indigenous promoters located in the *amoC* to *amoA* intergenic region and directly upstream of the *amoC* gene, respectively [5]. The nature of the *amoC* copies, including the *amoC* copies not followed by *amoAB* in nitrifiers need still to be characterized. Mutagenesis of *amoC* genes in ammonia oxidizers may help to elucidate the role of these polypeptides.

Acknowledgments

This work was supported by NSF and USDA grants to J.M. Norton (NSF 9527919, USDA 9600839) and M.G. Klotz (NSF 9628556 and USDA 9604332). We appreciate the technical assistance of Rita Nelson.

References

- Norton, J.M., J.M. Low, and M.G. Klotz (1996) The gene encoding ammonia monooxygenase subunit A exists in three nearly identical copies in *Nitrosospira* sp. NpAV. FEMS Microbiol. Letters 139, 181-188.
- [2] Ensign, S.A., M.R. Hyman, and D.J. Arp (1993) In vitro activation of ammonia monooxygenase from Nitrosomonas europaea by copper. J. Bacteriol. 175, 1971-1980.
- [3] Hommes, N.G., L.A. Sayavedra-Soto, and D.J. Arp (1998) Mutagenesis and expression of *amo*, which codes for ammonia monooxygenase in *Nitrosomonas europaea*. J. Bacteriol. 180, 3353-3359.
- [4] Sayavedra-Soto, L.A., N.G. Hommes, and D.J. Arp (1994) Characterization of the gene encoding hydroxylamine oxidoreductase in *Nitrosomonas europaea*. J. Bacteriol. 176, 504-510.
- [5] Klotz, M.G., J. Alzerreca, and J.M. Norton (1997) A gene encoding a membrane protein exists upstream of the *amoA/amoB* genes in ammonia-oxidizing bacteria; a third member of the *amo* operon? FEMS Microbiological Letters 150, 65-73.
- [6] Sayavedra-Soto, L.A., N.G. Hommes, S.A. Russell, and D.J. Arp (1996) Induction of ammonia monooxygenase and hydroxylamine oxidoreductase mRNAs by ammonium in *Nitrosomonas europaea*. Mol. Microbiol. 20, 541-548.
- [7] Nielsen, A.K., K. Gerdes, and J.C. Murrell (1997) Copper-dependent reciprocal transcriptional regulation of methane monooxygenase genes in *Methylococcus capsulatus* and *Methylosinus* trchosporium. Mol. Microbiol. 25, 399-409.
- [8] Sayavedra-Soto, L.A., Hommes, N.G., Alzerreca, J.J., Arp, D.J., Norton, J.M., Klotz, M.G. (1998) Transcription of the *amoC*, *amoA* and *amoB* genes in *Nitrosomonas europaea* and *Nitrosospira* sp. NpAV. FEMS Microbiol. Lett. 167, 81-88.

Appendix E. List of GenBank Entries

List of GenBank Entries to date (with Javier Alzerreca as author):

- AF016003: Nitrosospira sp. NpAV ammonia monooxygenase operon copy 2; ammonia monooxygenase 2 subunits C (amoC2), A (amoA2), and B (amoB2) genes, complete cds.
- U92432: Nitrosospira sp. NpAV ammonia monooxygenase operon copy 3: ammonia monooxygenase 3 subunits C (amoC3), A (amoA3) and B (amoB3) genes, complete cds.
- AF071774: Nitrosospira sp. NpAV ammonia monooxygenase subunit C-4 (amoC-4) gene, complete cds.
- AF032438: Nitrosospira sp. NpAV ammonia monooxygenase operon copy 1: ammonia monooxygenase 1 subunit C (amoC1) gene, partial cds, and ammonia monooxygenase subunits A (amoA1) and B (amoB1) genes, complete cds.
- AF016002: Nitrosospira sp. Np39-19 ammonia monooxygenase subunit A2 (amoA2) gene, complete cds. AF006692: Nitrosospira sp. Np39-19 ammonia monooxygenase subunit A3 (amoA3) gene, complete cds.
- AF042170: *Nitrosospira sp. Np39-19* ammonia monooxygenase subunit C1 (amoC1) gene, partial cds; ammonia monooxygenase subunit A1 (amoA1) gene, complete cds; and ammonia monooxygenase subunit B1 (amoB1) gene, partial cds.
- U96611: Nitrosococcus oceanus ammonia monooxygenase subunit A (amoA) gene, complete cds.
- AF047705: *Nitrosococcus oceanus* ammonia monooxygenase subunit A (amoA) and ammonia monooxygenase subunit B (amoB) genes, complete cds; and unknown gene.

U96187: Nitrosomonas europaea ammonia monooxygenase C1 (amoC1) gene, partial cds.

AF073793: Nitrosomonas europaea ammonia monooxygenase 3 subunit C (amoC3) gene, complete cds.

- U91603: Nitrosolobus multiformis ammonia monooxygenase subunit AmoC1 (amoC1) gene, partial cds, ammonia monooxygenase subunit AmoA1 (amoA1) gene, complete cds, and ammonia monooxygenase subunit AmoB1 (amoB1) gene, partial cds.
- AF042171: Nitrosolobus multiformis ammonia monooxygenase subunit AmoA (amoA) gene, complete cds.

U89833: Nitrosolobus multiformis ammonia monooxygenase operon copy 3: ammonia monooxygenase subunit AmoC3 (amoC3) gene, partial cds, ammonia monooxygenase subunit AmoA3 (amoA3) gene, complete cds and ammonia monooxygenase subunit AmoB3 (amoB3) gene, partial cds.

U76552: Nitrosovibrio tenuis ammonia monooxygenase subunit A (amoA) gene, complete cds.

U76553: Nitrosospira briensis ammonia monooxygenase subunit A (amoA) gene, complete cds.

AF153344: C-113) ammonia monooxygenase subunit A

(amoA) and ammonia monooxygenase subunit B (amoB) genes, complete cds.

AF153343: Unidentified ammonia-oxidizing bacteria (strain C-113) partial 16S rRNA sequence.

Appendix F. GenBank Entries

LOCUS AF016003 3381 bp DNA BCT 02-DFC-1997 DEFINITION Nitrosospira sp. NpAV ammonia monooxygenase operon copy 2: ammonia monooxygenase 2 subunits C (amoC2), A (amoA2), and B (amoB2) genes. complete cds ACCESSION AF016003 U20644 g2654877 VERSION AF016003.1 GI:2654877 KEYWORDS SOURCE Nitrosospira sp. NpAV. ORGANISM Nitrosospira sp. NpAV Eubacteria: Proteobacteria: beta subdivision: Ammonia-oxidizing bacteria: Nitrosospira. REFERENCE 1 (bases 1037 to 1861) AUTHORS Klotz, M.G. and Norton, J.M. TITLE Sequence of an ammonia monooxygenase subunit A-encoding gene from Nitrosospira sp. NDAV JOURNAL Gene 163 (1). 159-160 (1995) MEDL INE 96001263 REFERENCE 2 (bases 1037 to 1861) AUTHORS Norton, J.M., Low, J.M. and Klotz, M.G. TITLE The gene encoding ammonia monooxygenase subunit A exists in three nearly identical copies in Nitrosospira sp. NpAV JOURNAL FEMS Microbiol. Lett. 139 (2-3), 181-188 (1996) MEDLINE 96275898 REFERENCE 3 (bases 1 to 813) AUTHORS Klotz.M.G., Alzerreca.J. and Norton.J.M. TITLE A gene encoding a membrane protein exists upstream of the amoA/amoB genes in ammonia oxidizing bacteria: a third member of the amo operon? JOURNAL FEMS Microbiol. Lett. 150 (1). 65-73 (1997) MEDLINE 97306641 REFERENCE 4 (bases 1 to 3381) AUTHORS Norton.J.M., Alzerreca.J.J. and Klotz.M.G. TITLE Diversity of the genes encoding ammonia monooxygenase in autotrophic ammonia oxidizing bacteria JOURNAL Unpublished REFERENCE 5 (bases 1 to 3381) AUTHORS Klotz.M.G. and Norton.J.M. TITLE Direct Submission JOURNAL Submitted (24-JUL-1997) Department of Biology, University of Colorado, 1200 Larimer Street, CB171, Denver, CO 80217-3364, USA COMMENT On Dec 2. 1997 this sequence version replaced gi:1163892 gi:2454577. FEATURES Location/Qualifiers source 1. 3381 /organism="Nitrosospira sp. NpAV" /strain="NpAV" /db xref="taxon:58133" /note="ammonia monooxygenase operon copy 2" gene 1...813 /gene="amoC2" 1..813 /gene="amoC2" /codon start=1 /transl table=11 /product="ammonia monooxygenase 2 subunit C" /protein_id="AAB87791.1"

IFW NLD GSF EEL
AHF LVG LFY TVI
•
ed.
RM
RV IPV D
in
in
in
in

/db_xref="PID:g2654878"

			/db_xre1= i	P10:9245458.	1			
			/db_xref="(GI:2454581"				
		700	/translatio	on="MVRUMKU/	AGAAVLILVGAL	YAGAVAAHGK	SLEEDSCVRR	
SASE	COUNT	/26 8	a 9/8 C	995 g	682 T			
JRIG.	1	*******	cactoggaaac	atcanncant	cacacagaat	ca3acaaaca	coactacoac	
	61	atgycaacaa	cattoggyaac	allayylayt	cacycygygu	tastascat	cyactacyac	
	101	auguegetgt	ygracyacti	cayyuyyuat	addillyydc	iyallacial	ycilyyyyta	
	121	gegatattet	ggatciggti	ccaacygacc	LLIGCCLACL	cycalyycal	ggacicgalg	
	181	gageeggaat	ttgagaaggt	atggatgggg	ligiggegig	igcacalgal	cylcalyccy	
	241	atcitigege	iggicaccig	gggciggaic	lggaagacac	gggacaccaa	CCLYYdCadC	
	301	ctggacccga	aactggaaat	caagegilae	ttttactgga	igaigiggei	gggcglaidc	
	361	ctgtttggcg	tgtactgggg	tggcagcttc	ttcacggggc	aagacgcctc	ctggcatcaa	
	421	gigatiatee	gcgacaccag	cttcaccccg	agccatgtgg	lgglattila	lygeleette	
	481	ccgatgtaca	ttgtctgcgg	cgtggccagc	tacctgtacg	ccatgacgcg	cctgccgctg	
	541	tatgcccggg	gcacctcgtt	cccgctgctg	atggcgattg	ccggcccgct	catgattetg	
	601	ccgaacgtag	gcttgaacga	atggggccat	gccttctggt	tcatggaaga	actgtttagc	
	661	gcaccgctgc	actgggggtt	tgtgatactg	ggctggtcgg	gcctgtttgc	cggcggcatt	
	721	gcggcacaga	tcatcacccg	ctactccagc	ctgaccgacg	tggtctggaa	cggacaaagc	
	781	aaagtcatcc	tcaacaaccg	gatcgtcccg	taagggggat	ccgtagaccc	ggccgcccgt	
	841	tgactcccgc	cagagtgggg	gaatcagccg	ggcggaccgg	cccaccttcg	acctgcggcg	
	901	aagaccggaa	aaggcaccgg	cagggggaag	gcggcaagac	agcggcgtga	cacgatatcg	
	961	gcgtgacacg	caaaaatgaa	caacggcagc	atttatcagt	tttaagatcg	tacgacatat	
	1021	ttgaggggag	ggcacgatga	gcagaacaga	cgaaatatta	aaggcggcca	agatgccgcc	
	1081	ggaatcggta	aagatgtcca	ggatgataga	cgcgatctat	tttccgattt	tatgcatcct	
	1141	gctggtaggc	acctaccaca	tgcacttcat	gctgctggca	ggcgactggg	acttctggct	
	1201	tgactggaaa	gaccgccaat	ggtggccggt	tgtcaccccc	attgtaggca	tcacctactg	
	1261	tgccaccatc	atgtactacc	tgtgggtgaa	ctaccgcttg	ccgtttggcg	cgacgctatg	
	1321	tatcgtctgc	ctgctggtag	gcgaatggct	gacccgcttc	tggggtttct	actggtggtc	
	1381	gcactacccg	atcaacttcg	tcctgccctc	caccatgatt	ccgggcgcgc	tcatcatgga	
	1441	caccgtcatg	ctgctcacgc	gcaactggat	gatcacggcc	ctggtaggcg	gtggcgcatt	
	1501	tggcctgctg	ttttatccgg	gcaactggcc	gatattcgga	ccgacgcacc	tgccgctggt	
	1561	ggccgaaggc	gttctgctgt	cgctggctga	ctacaccggc	ttcctgtatg	tccgcacggg	
	1621	caccccggaa	tacgtacggc	tgatcgaaca	aggeteeetg	cgcacctttg	gtggtcacac	
	1081	cacggtgatt	gcggccttct	tctccgcctt	cgtctccatg	ctcatgttct	gcgtctggtg	
	1/41	gtactttggc	aaactctact	gcaccgcgtt	ctactacgtc	aaaggcccgc	gtggccgggt	
	1801	taccatgaag	aacgacgtca	ccgcctatgg	cgaagaaggg	tttccggagg	ggatcaaata	
	1001	atgaacgcaa	agaaccigit	caaactgggg	gtcattggcc	tctatggcat	ggccaccttg	
	1921	gccctgagca	cccttgacat	ctcgccggcg	gcagcgcatg	gcgaacgctc	gcaagaaccg	
	1981	ttcctgcgca	tgcgcaccat	ccaatggtac	gacatgaaat	ggggccccga	caccaccaag	
	2041	glcaacyact	ligecaceat	gaccygcada	ticcaccigg	ccyadyacty	geegegegeg	
	2101	gtgggcaaac	cyggacyggc	gilcilcade	glaggcagcc	ccagcccggi	allegiacyy	
	2101	CLELCEdeced	dactydacyy	Cyddlegdle	lacalcicgy	ycccyccyya	aattyyccyc	
	2221	gactacgcct	togaagicaa	actgaaagcc	cgcatcccgg	gacgccacca	catgcacgcc	
	2281	atggtcaaca	tcaaggacgc	aggeeegatt	geoggeoolg	ccgcctggat	gaacatcacc	
	2341	ggcagctggg	atgacticac	caaccoggug	daactgctga	caggcgagac	Calcyacacc	
	2401	gagacettea	acticadead	cggcatcitc	tggcactigi	igiggiiggg	actgggctgt	
	2401	ttctggatag	gctactacgt	tgcccggccc	atgttcctgc	cgcgcagccg	ggtgttgttg	
	2521	gcctatggag	acgacctgct	gctggacccg	atggacaaga	aggitgcgig	gatcgtactg	
	2581	attgcgacct	tiggcattgt	cuggggcggc	Laccgetata	cygaaaccaa	acaccegtae	
	2041	acggtgccca	tccaagcggg	Lyaatcgaag	glacaaccga	raccaardaa	acceaaccee	
	2/01	atcgcgatca	aagtgacgca	cgccaactat	gacgtcccgg	geogogcact	gegegtgace	
	2/61	atgagcgtca	ccaacagtgg	cgacaccgct	tatcgtatag	gcgagttcac	cacggcgggc	
	2821	gtgcgcttca	tcaacaaagt	gggggttcaag	cacctggacc	gcaactatcc	gaaggaactg	
	2881	gtagccacgg	gcctgtcgtt	tgacaatgac	gcgctgatcc	aacctggcga	gacgcgtgaa	
	2941	gtcaagatgg	aagcgaagga	tgcgctgtgg	gaagtacagc	gtctgatggc	gctgctgggc	
	3001	gaccoggaaa	geogetttgg	cggattgctg	acgacctgga	gegattcagg	cyaccgcaac	
	3001	83D83316	100000000	possibute	GLCTTCacca	ODEBIJJJDP	TEODEEDDI	

3121	gacaccggtc	cgccaccgtc	gccagacgga	aaggtggatc	ggtgtttttt	aatgtgccag
3181	tgaaacaacc	cataccttcg	gaatagccgg	ggggacgaag	aaaagtgaac	catcgtcata
3241	tccaaacgga	agaacccgct	cgtggttagg	caaatgaaac	aggcaggcgc	tgcggttctc
3301	attctggttg	gggcgctata	cgccggcgca	gtagcggcgc	atggaaaagt	ctcattggaa
3361	gaggacagtt	gcgtgcgccg	g			

LOCUS	NSU92432 4341 bp DNA BCT 02-MAY-1997						
DEFINITION	Nitrosospira sp. NpAV ammonia monooxygenase operon copy 3: ammonia						
	monooxygenase 3 subunits C (amoC3). A (amoA3) and B (amoB3) genes.						
	complete cds.						
ACCESSION	U92432 U72981 U38251						
NID	g2062745						
VERSION	U92432.1 GI:2062745						
KEYWORDS							
SOURCE	Nitrosospira sp. NpAV.						
ORGANISM	Nitrosospira sp. NpAV						
	Eubacteria: Proteobacteria: beta subdivision: Ammonia-oxidizing						
	bacteria: Nitrosospira.						
REFERENCE	1 (bases 1190 to 2179)						
AUTHORS	Klotz, M.G. and Norton, J.M.						
TITLE	Sequence of an ammonia monooxygenase subunit A-encoding gene from						
101101111	Nitrosospira sp. NpAV						
JOURNAL	Gene 163 (1). 159-160 (1995)						
MEDLINE	96001263						
REFERENCE	2 (bases 1190 to 2179)						
AUTHORS	Norton.J.M., Low.J.M. and Klotz.M.G.						
TITLE	The gene encoding ammonia monooxygenase subunit A exists in three						
TOUDNIAL	FINE Minimitical copies in Nitrosospira sp. NpAV						
JUURINAL MEDI INF	PEMS MICRODIOL. Lett. 139 (2-3), 181-188 (1996)						
DESEDENCE	902/0898						
AUTHODS	Klotz M.G. Alzonoca 1 and Norton 1 M						
TITLE	A gene encoding a membrane protein exists unstream of the amel/amel						
11111	a gene encouring a memoria or the protein exists upstream of the same						
	operon?						
JOURNAL	FEMS Microbiol Lett (1997) In press						
REFERENCE	4 (bases 1 to 4341)						
AUTHORS	Norton.J.M., Alzerreca.J. and Klotz.M.G.						
TITLE	Sequence of the complete ammonia monooxygenase operon copy #3 from						
	Nitrosospira sp. NpAV						
JOURNAL	Unpublished						
REFERENCE	5 (bases 1 to 4341)						
AUTHORS	Klotz.M.G.						
TITLE	Direct Submission						
JOURNAL	Submitted (06-MAR-1997) Department of Biology, University of						
	Colorado, 1200 Larimer Street, CB171, Denver, CO 80217-6433, USA						
COMMENT	On May 2. 1997 this sequence version replaced gi:1698851						
	gi:1151088.						
FEATURES	Location/Qualifiers						
source	14341						
	/organism="Nitrosospira sp. NpAV"						
	/strain="NpAV"						
	/db_xref="taxon:58133"						
gene	2401065						

	/gene="amol3"
RBS	240245
	/gene="amoC3"
CDS	2531065
	/gene="amoC3"
	/note="AmoC3: 36 kDa membrane protein: six membrane
	spanning domains"
	/codon_start=1
	/transl table=11.
	/ undisi _ udbie=11
	/product= ammonta monooxygenase a subunit c
	/protein_id= AAB53436.1
	/db_xret="P1D:g1698852"
	/db_xref="GI:1698852"
	/translation="MATTLGTSGSHAGSSGRDYDMSLWYDSRWYKFGLITMLGVAIFW
	IWFQRTFAYSHGMDSMEPEFEKVWMGLWRVHMIVMPIFALVTWGWIWKTRDTNLDNLD
	PKLEIKRYFYWMMWLGVYLFGVYWGGSFFTEQDASWHQVIIRDTSFTPSHVVVFYGSF
	PMYIVCGVASYLYAMTRLPLYARGTSFPLVMAIAGPLMILPNVGLNEWGHAFWFMEEL
	FSAPLHWGFVILGWSGLFAGGIAAQIITRYSNLTDVVWNGQSKVILNNRIVP"
RBS	12761281
	/gene="amoA3"
gene	1276 2113
54.10	/gene="amoA3"
CDS	1289 2113
000	/gene="amod3"
	/note="AmoA3: similar to Nitrosomonas europaea ammonia
	monocyvenase acetylene-binding protein BIP Accession
	Number 449952, similar to AmoAl encoded by ConPark
	Accession Number 1/28250 and AmoA2 appended by ConPank
	Accession Number 030250, and AlloAz, encoded by delibatik
	Accession Number 020044
	/codon_start=1
	/transi_table=11
	/product="ammonia monooxygenase 3 subunit A"
	/protein_id= AAB5343/.i
	/dD_xret= PID:g2062/46
	/db_xret="G1:2062/46"
	/translation="MSRTDEILKAAKMPPESVKMSRMIDAIYFPILCILLVGTYHMHF
	MLLAGDWDFWLDWKDRQWWPVVTPIVGITYCATIMYYLWVNYRLPFGATLCIVCLLVG
	EWLTRFWGFYWWSHYPINFVLPSTMIPGALIMDTVMLLTRNWMITALVGGGAFGLLFY
	PGNWPIFGPTHLPLVAEGVLLSLADYTGFLYVRTGTPEYVRLIEQGSLRTFGGHTTVI
	AAFFSAFVSMLMFCVWWYFGKLYCTAFYYVKGPRGRVTMKNDVTAYGEEGFPEGIK"
RBS	21002105
	/gene="amoB3"
gene	21133360
	/gene="amoB3"
CDS	21133360
	/gene="amoB3"
	/note="AmoB3: similar to Nitrosomonas europaea ammonia
	monooxygenase AmoB, encoded by GenBank Accession Number
	L08050"
	/codon start=1
	/transl table=11
	/product="ammonia monooxygenase 3 subunit B"
	/protein id="AAB53438 1"
	/db xref="PID:q2062747"
	/db xref="GI:2062747"
	/translation="MNAKNI FKI GVIGI YGMATI AL STI DISPANAHGEDSOEDELDM
	DTIOUVDMKUCDDTTKVNDFATMTCKEHI AENUDDAVCKDCDAEENVCCDCDVEVDIC
	NTIGHTELING FILMER ATTIGATILALIWERAVGALGRAIT NVGSFSFVFVRLS

		GPLIVRVGIU TSETGEDDTH	ANDRAN CAS	TOADDTI DCC"	KAGKAALGAI	RUSTFLIGUFUN
COUN	T 964	a 1218 c	1264 a	895 t		
IN		0 1210 0	1204 9	000 0		
1	gaattcaggg	coottcaogq	aacatgtgcg	gcagcgtaat	caattcqttt	tqctctttcq
61	ttttgcagac	aaactgcttg	acttggcgca	tcttcgggga	tagtctttac	ggggttgtgg
121	gtatgtaatg	gtttagtatt	tagtattatg	gcggcgacgc	attctttctg	cgaggaagcg
181	papapagag	gctagctgcg	ggcaagcaca	agcagcagag	ggtactcgat	taacgtaaga
241	ggagataaag	aaatggcaac	aacactggga	acatcaggca	gtcacgcggg	qtcqaqcqqq
301	cgcgactacg	acatgtcgct	gtggtacgac	tccaggtggt	ataaatttgg	actgatcacc
361	atgettgggg	tagcgatatt	ctggatctgg	tttcaacgga	cctttgccta	ctcgcatggc
421	atggactcga	tggagccgga	atttgagaag	gtatggatgg	ggttgtggcg	tgtgcacatg
481	atcgtcatgc	cgatctttgc	gctggtcacc	tggggctgga	tctggaagac	acgggacacc
541	aacctggaca	acctggaccc	gaaactggaa	atcaagcgtt	acttttactg	gatgatgtgg
601	ctgggcgtat	acctgtttgg	cgtgtactgg	ggtggcagct	tcttcacgga	gcaagacgcc
661	tcctggcatc	aagtgattat	ccgcgacacc	agcttcaccc	cgagccatgt	ggtggtattt
721	tatggctcct	tcccgatgta	cattgtctgc	ggcgtggcca	gctacctgta	cgccatgacg
781	cgcctgccgc	tgtatgcccg	gggcacctcg	ttcccgctgg	tgatggcgat	tgccggcccg
841	ctcatgattc	tgccgaacgt	aggettgaac	gaatggggcc	atgccttctg	gttcatggaa
901	gaactgttta	gcgcaccgct	gcactggggc	tttgtgatac	tgggctggtc	gggcctgttt
961	gctggcggca	ttgcggcaca	gatcatcacc	cgctactcca	acctgaccga	cgtggtctgg
1021	aacggacaaa	gcaaagtcat	cctcaacaac	cggatcgtcc	cgtaaggggg	atccgtagac
1081	ccggccgccc	gttgactccc	gccagagtgg	gggaatcagc	cgggcggacc	ggcccacctt
1141	cgacctgcgg	cgaagaccgg	aaaaggcacc	ggcaggggga	aggcggcaag	acagcggcgt
1201	gacacgatat	cggcgtgaca	cgcaaaaatg	aacaacggca	gcatttatca	gttttaagat
1261	cgtacgacat	atttgagggg	agggcacgat	gagcagaaca	gacgaaatat	taaaggcggc
1321	caagatgccg	ccggaatcgg	taaagatgtc	caggatgata	gacgcgatct	attttccgat
1381	tttatgcatc	ctgctggtag	gcacctacca	catgcacttc	atgctgctgg	caggcgactg
1441	ggacttctgg	cttgactgga	aagaccgcca	atggtggccg	gttgtcaccc	ccattgtagg
1501	catcacctac	tgtgccacca	tcatgtacta	cctgtgggtg	aactaccgcc	tgccgtttgg
1561	cgcgacgcta	tgtatcgtct	gcctgctggt	aggcgaatgg	ctgacccgct	tctggggttt
1621	ctactggtgg	tcgcactacc	cgatcaactt	cgtcctgccc	tccaccatga	ttccgggcgc
1681	gctcatcatg	gacaccgtca	tgctgctcac	gcgcaactgg	atgatcacgg	ccctggtagg
1741	cggtggcgca	tttggcctgc	tgttttatcc	gggcaactgg	ccgatattcg	gaccgacgca
1801	cctgccgctg	gtggccgaag	gcgttctgct	gtcgctggct	gactacaccg	gcttcctgta
1861	tgtccgcacg	ggcaccccgg	aatacgtacg	gctgatcgaa	caaggeteee	tgcgcacctt
1921	tggtggtcac	accacggtga	ttgcggcctt	cttctccgcc	ttcgtctcca	tgctcatgtt

p	н	2	с.	CUUI	41
n	Ŕ	T	GI	N	

DACT

terminator RBS

> /translation="MVRQMKQAGAAVLILVGALYAGAVAAHGKVSLEEDSCVRRIGDS MVHLSAYQPQFEPSAQYCTEIPKGGDTYLVVDLVDLALRDMPIGLRVIKGTNETEDET VTYVRPSIHPDGVIKGETSLDQGLYTVIITAEGQPPLRYQYPLRVQMINYAHIFRTAV I IGDEDNVET

WSDSGDRNINSIAGAVIPVFIKL"
33753416
35023506
35144263
/note="unknown protein"
/codon_start=1
/transl_table=11
/product="ORF4"
/protein id="AAB53439.1"
/db xref="PID:g2062748"
/db xref="GI:2062748"

TKLNGEPTYISGPLEIGRDYAFEVKLKAPIPGSHHMHTMVNIKDAGPIAGPAAWMNIT GSWDDFTNPVKLLTGETIDTETFNFNNGIFWHLLWLGLGCFWIGYYVARPMFLPRSRV LLAYGDDLLLDPMDKKVAWIVLIATLALVWGGYRYTETKHPYTVPIQAGESKVQPMPV KPNPIAIKVTHANYDVPGRALRVTMSVTNSGDTAYRIGEFTTAGVRFINKVGLKHLDR NYPKELVATGLSFDNDAPIQPGETREVKMEAKDALWEVQRLMALLGDPESRFGGLLMT

1981	ctgcgtctgg	tggtactttg	gcaaactcta	ctgcaccgcg	ttctactacg	tcaaaggccc
2041	gcgtggccgg	gttaccatga	agaacgacgt	caccgcctat	ggcgaagaag	ggtttccgga
2101	ggggatcaaa	taatgaacgc	aaagaacctg	ttcaaactgg	gggtcattgg	cctctatggc
2161	atggccacct	tggccctgag	cacccttgac	atctcgccgg	cggcagcgca	tggcgaacgc
2221	tcgcaagaac	cgttcctgcg	catgcgcacc	atccaatggt	acgacatgaa	atggggcccc
2281	gacaccacca	aggtcaacga	ctttgccacc	atgaccggca	aattccacct	ggccgaaaac
2341	tggccgcgcg	cggtgggcaa	accgggacgg	gcgttcttca	acgtaggcag	ccccagcccg
2401	gtattcgtac	ggctctccac	caaactgaac	ggcgaaccga	cctacatctc	gggcccgctg
2461	gaaattggcc	gcgactacgc	cttcgaagtc	aaactgaaag	cccccatccc	gggaagccac
2521	cacatgcaca	ccatggtcaa	catcaaggac	gcaggcccga	ttgccggccc	tgccgcctgg
2581	atgaacatca	ccggcagctg	ggatgacttc	accaacccgg	tgaaactgct	gacaggcgag
2641	accatcgaca	ccgagacctt	caacttcaac	aacggcatct	tctggcactt	gttgtggttg
2701	ggactgggct	gtttctggat	aggctactac	gttgcccggc	ccatgttcct	gccgcgcagc
2761	cgggtgttgc	tggcctatgg	agacgacctg	ctgctggacc	cgatggacaa	gaaggttgcg
2821	tggatcgtac	tgattgcgac	tttggcattg	gtctggggcg	gctaccgcta	tacggaaacc
2881	aaacacccgt	acacggtgcc	catccaagcg	ggtgaatcga	aggtacaacc	gatgccggtg
2941	aaacccaacc	ccatcgcgat	caaagtgacg	cacgccaact	atgacgtccc	gggccgcgca
3001	ctgcgcgtga	ccatgagcgt	caccaacagt	ggcgacaccg	cttatcgtat	aggcgagttc
3061	accacggcgg	gcgtgcgctt	catcaacaaa	gtggggctca	agcacctgga	ccgcaactat
3121	ccgaaggaac	tggtagccac	gggcctgtcg	tttgacaatg	acgcgccgat	ccaacctggc
3181	gagacgcgtg	aagtcaagat	ggaagcgaag	gatgcgctgt	gggaagtaca	gcgtctgatg
3241	gcgctgctgg	gcgacccgga	aagccgcttt	ggcggattgc	tgatgacctg	gagcgattca
3301	ggcgaccgca	acatcaacag	catagccggc	gcagtcatac	cggtcttcac	caagctctaa
3361	gctacaaagc	atgacaccgg	tccgccaccg	tcgccagacg	gaaaggtgga	tcggtgtttt
3421	ttaatgtgcc	agtgaaacaa	cccatacctt	cggaatagcc	ggggggacga	agaaaagtga
3481	accatcgtca	tatccaaacg	gaagaacccg	ctcgtggtta	ggcaaatgaa	acaggcaggc
3541	gctgcggttc	tcattctggt	tggggcgcta	tacgccggcg	cagtagcggc	gcatggaaaa
3601	gtctcattgg	aagaggacag	ttgcgtgcgc	cggattggcg	acagcatggt	gcacttaagc
3661	gcctaccagc	cccaatttga	acccagcgcg	caatattgca	cggaaattcc	caagggcgga
3721	gacacctatc	tggtggtgga	cctggtggac	ctggcgctgc	gcgacatgcc	cattggcctg
3781	cgggtaatca	aaggcaccaa	cgaaacagaa	gatgaaaccg	tgacctacgt	gcgcccgagc
3841	atccatccgg	acggcgtgat	caagggagag	accagcctgg	accagggact	gtacacggtc
3901	atcatcaccg	cggaaggaca	accgccgctc	cgctaccagt	accettigeg	ggtacagatg
3961	atcaactatg	cacacatatt	ccgcaccgcg	gtgggccctc	tgatagtccg	tgttggtact
4021	gaccctgctg	ggatacaaat	tcatgaaatc	caagggcatg	cagcgttgtg	cgtcgacctc
4081	gcgcggttcg	tgaggaaagg	tcgggccaag	tgcggtaaga	tacgcgattc	aacattcctt
4141	ataggtgatt	ttgataatgt	ctttacaact	tctgaaaccg	gctttcgtag	gactcatgct
4201	tacgctcagc	ctgtcgtttt	atgcgcaagt	acaagcgcac	ggcggactct	ccctggcgga
4261	tgacatttgc	aaactcacga	taggcccgtt	taccatgcac	tttaccggta	ccagccggat
4321	tcaacgcagg	agaaagaatt	С			

LOCUS	AF071774 813 bp DNA BCT 30-OCT-1998
DEFINITION	Nitrosospira sp. NpAV ammonia monooxygenase subunit C-4 (amoC-4) gene. complete cds.
ACCESSION	AF071774
NID	q3777538
VERSION	AF071774.1 GI:3777538
SOURCE ORGANISM	Nitrosospira sp. NpAV. Nitrosospira sp. NpAV
	Bacteria: Proteobacteria: beta subdivision: Ammonia-oxidizing bacteria: Nitrosospira.
REFERENCE	1 (bases 1 to 813)
AUTHORS	Savavedra-Soto I A Hommes N.G. Arp. D.J. Alzerreca J.J.

Norton J.M. and Klotz M.G. TITLE Transcription of the amoC, amoA and amoB genes in Nitrosomonas europaea and Nitrosospira sp. NpAV JOURNAL FEMS Microbiol, Lett. 167, 81-88 (1998) REFERENCE 2 (bases 1 to 813) AUTHORS Norton, J.M., Alzerreca, J.J. and Klotz, M.G. TITLE Diversity of the genes encoding ammonia monooxygenase in autotrophic ammonia oxidizing bacteria JOURNAL Unpublished 3 (bases 1 to 813) REFERENCE AUTHORS Alcerreca.J.J., Norton.J.M. and Klotz.M.G. TITLE Direct Submission JOURNAL Submitted (11-JUN-1998) Department of Biology. University of Colorado, 1200 Larimer Street, CB171, Denver, CO 80217-3364, USA FFATURES Location/Qualifiers source 1...813 /organism="Nitrosospira sp. NpAV" /strain="NpAV" /note="chemolithotrophic soil bacterium from Apple Valley" /db xref="taxon:58133" 1..813 gene /gene="amoC-4" /note="amoC-4 is not a member of any of the three identified amo operons in strain NpAV; there is one more amoC gene copy than thare are amo operons in every nitrosofier genome so far investigated" CDS 1..813 /gene="amoC-4" /codon start=1 /transl_table=11 /product="ammonia monooxygenase subunit C-4" /protein_id="AAC69319.1" /db xref="PID:g3777539" /db xref="GI:3777539" /translation="MATTVETSGSHAGSSGRDYDMSLWYDSRWYKFGLITMLGVAIFW IWFORTFAYSHGMDSKEPEFEKVWMGLWRVHMIVMPIFALVTWGWIWKTRDTNLDNLD PKLEIKRYFYWMMWLGVYLFGVYWGGSFFTEQDASWHQVIIRDTSFTPSHVVVFYGSF PMYIVCGVASYLYAMTRLPLYARGTSFPLVMAIAGPLMILPNVGLNEWGHAFWFMEEL FSAPLHWGFVILGWSGLFAGGIAA0IITRYSNLTDVVWNGOSKVILNNRIVP" BASE COUNT 165 a 220 c 242 q 186 t ORIGIN 1 atggcaacaa cagtagaaac atcaggcagc cacgcggggt cgagcggccg cgactacgac 61 atgtcgctgt ggtacgactc caggtggtat aaatttggac tgatcaccat gcttggggta 121 gcgatattct ggatctggtt tcaacggacc tttgcctact cgcatggcat ggactcgaag 181 gagccggaat ttgagaaggt atggatgggg ttgtggcgtg tgcacatgat cgtcatgccg 241 atctttgcgc tggtcacctg gggctggatc tggaagacac gggacaccaa cctggacaac 301 ctggacccga aactggaaat caagcgttac ttctactgga tgatgtggct gggcgtatac 361 ttgtttggcg tgtactgggg tggcagcttc ttcacggagc aagacgcctc ctggcatcaa 421 gtgatcatcc gcgacaccag cttcaccccg agccatgtgg tagtatttta tggctccttc 481 ccgatgtaca tcgtctgcgg cgtggccagc tacctgtacg ccatgacgcg cctgccgctg 541 tatgcccggg gcacctcgtt cccgctggtg atggcgattg ccggcccgct catgattctg 601 ccgaacgtag gcttgaacga atggggccat gccttctggt tcatggaaga actgtttagc 661 gcaccgctgc actggggctt tgtgatactg ggctggtcgg gcctgtttgc cggcggcatt 721 gcggcacaga tcatcacccg ctactccaac ctgaccgacg tggtctggaa cggacaaagc 781 aaagtcatcc tcaacaaccg gatcgtcccg taa

LOCUS	AF032438 2631 bp DNA BCT 23-NOV-1997
DEFINITION	Nitrosospira sp. NpAV ammonia monooxygenase operon copy 1: ammonia
	monooxygenase 1 subunit C (amoC1) gene, partial cds, and ammonia
	monooxygenase subunits A (amoAl) and B (amoBl) genes. complete cds.
ACCESSION	AF032438 U38250
NID	92641609
VERSION	AF032438.1 GI:2641609
KEYWORDS	
SOURCE	Nitrosospira sp. NpAV.
ORGANISM	Nitrosospira sp. NpAV
	Eubacteria: Proteobacteria: beta subdivision: Ammonia-oxidizing
	bacteria: Nitrosospira.
REFERENCE	1 (bases 1 to 2631)
AUTHORS	Klotz.M.G. and Norton.J.M.
TITLE	Sequence of an ammonia monooxygenase subunit A-encoding gene from
101101141	Nitrosospira sp. NPAV
MEDITAL	Gene 103 (1), 159-160 (1995)
DEEEDENCE	90001203 2 (bases 1 to 2621)
AUTUODS	2 (Dases 1 to 2031)
TITLE	The gone encoding ammonia menoavygenera subunit A swists is three
TITLE	nearly identical copies in Nitrosocomina so NoAV
JOURNAL	FEMS Microbiol Lett 139 (2-3) 181-188 (1996)
MEDLINE	96275898
REFERENCE	3 (bases 1 to 2631)
AUTHORS	Klotz M.G. Alzerreca 1 and Norton 1 M
TITLE	A gene encoding a membrane protein exists upstream of the amoA/amoB
	genes in ammonia oxidizing bacteria: a third member of the amo
	operon?
JOURNAL	FEMS Microbiol. Lett. 150 (1), 65-73 (1997)
MEDLINE	97306641
REFERENCE	4 (bases 1 to 2631)
AUTHORS	Norton.J.M., Alzerreca.J.J. and Klotz.M.G.
TITLE	Diversity of the genes encoding ammonia monooxygenase in
	autotrophic ammonia oxidizing bacteria
JOURNAL	Unpublished
REFERENCE	5 (Dases 1 to 2631)
AUTHURS	Noter 1 M
TITIC	Norton, J.M.
10UDNAL	Submitted (21 OCT 1007) Department of Dielery CD 171 University
OUDRIAL	of Colorado 1200 Larimon Street Derver CO 90217 2264 USA
COMMENT	On Nov 23, 1007 this sequence version perlaced di 1151006
FFATURES	Location/Qualifiers
source	1 2631
	/organism="Nitrosospira sp_NpAV"
	/strain="NpAV"
	/db xref="taxon:58133"
	/note="ammonia monooxygenase operon copy 1"
gene	<163
	/gene="amoC1"
CDS	<163
	/gene="amoC1"
	/note="similar to Nitrosospira sp. NpAV ammonia
	monooxygenase 2 subunit C encoded by the sequence in

	Genbank Accession number Aroibuus
	/codon_start=1
	/transl_table=11
	/product="ammonia monooxygenase 1 subunit C"
	/protein id="AAB86880.1"
	/db xref="PID:g2641610"
	/db_xref="GI:2641610"
	/translation="ITDV/WNGOSKVILNNPI/P"
DDC	
KDO	2/42/9
	/gene= amoA1
gene	2/41111
	/gene="amoA1"
CDS	2871111
	/gene="amoA1"
	/note="similar to Nitrosomonas europaea ammonia
	monooxygenase acetylene-binding protein: PIR Accession
	Number A49853: similar to Nitrosospira sp. NpAV ammonia
	monocyuganasa 2 subunit A and to ammonia monocyuganasa 2
	suburit A appoint the sequences in ConPark Assession
	Suburit a encoded by the sequences in Genbark Accession
	Numbers U20644 and U92432 respectively
	/codon_start=1
	/transl_table=11
	/product="ammonia monooxygenase 1 subunit A"
	/protein id="AAB86881.1"
	/db xref="PID:q2641611"
	/db xref="GI:2641611"
	/translation="MSRTDELLKAAKMPPESVKMSRMIDAIYEPILCILLVGTYHMHE
	MILAGOUDEWI DUKODOUUDVVTDIVCITYCATIMYVI UVNIYDI DEGATI CIVCI I VC
	EWEITREWERT WWSHTFTNEFVERSTHIPGALINDI VHELTRIWHITALVGGGAFGELEFT
	PGNWPIFGPIHLPLVAEGVLLSLAUYIGFLYVRIGIPEYVRLIEQGSLRIFGGHIIVI
	AAFFSAFVSMLMFCVWWYFGKLYCTAFYYVKGPRGRVTMKNDVTAYGEEGFPEGIK"
gene	10982414
	/gene="amoB1"
RBS	10981103
	/gene="amoB1"
CDS	11112358
	/gene="amoB1"
	/note="similar to Nitrosospira sp_NpAV ammonia
	monocyvaenase 3 subunit B and to ammonia monocyvaenase 2
	suburit B ancoded by the sequences in ConPark Accession
	Numbers 102422 and \$5016022 percentionals."
	Numbers 092432 and AF016003 respectively
	/codon_start=1
	/transl_table=11
	/product="ammonia monooxygenase 1 subunit B"
	/protein_id="AAB86882.1"
	/db xref="PID:g2641612"
	/db xref="GI:2641612"
	/translation="MNAKNI EKI GVIGI YGMATI ALSTI DISPAAAHGERSOEPELRM
	TKI NCEDTVISCOL EICODVACEVKI KADIDCOULIMUAMUNIKDACDI ACDAALIMNIT
	GSWUDFINFYNLLIGETIDTETENENNGTEWHLLWLGLGCEWIGYYVARPMELPRSRV
	LLAYGDDLLLDPMDKKVAWIVLIATFGIVWGGYRYTETKHPYTVPIQAGESKVQPM
	PVKPNPIAIKVTHANYDVPGRALRVTMSVTNSGDTAYRIGEFTTAGVRFINKVGLKHL
	DRNYPKELVATGLSFDNDAPIQPGETREVKMVAKDALWEVQRLMALLGDPESRFGGL
	LMTWSDSGDRNINSIAGAVIPVFTKL"
terminator	2373 2414
	/dene="amoB1"
	Adult Millort

RBS		25002504					
CDS		2512>263	1				
		/note="ORF4	4: similar 1	to Nitrososp	pira sp. Np/	AV unknown	
		proteins er	ncoded by OF	RF4 in Genba	ank Accessio	on Numbers	
		U92432 and	AF016003"				
		/codon_star	rt=1				
		/trans1_tab	ble=11				
		/product="l	unknown"				
		/protein_ic	d="AAB86883	.1"			
		/db_xref="l	PID:g264161	3			
		/db_xref="(s1:2641613"				
		/translatio	on="MVRUMKU/	AGAAVLILVGAL	YAGAVAAHGKI	ISLEEDSCVRR	
BASE COUN	58/ 8	a /84 C	/61 g	499 t			
UKIGIN							
1	ctgaccgacg	tggtttggaa	cggacaaagc	aaagtcatcc	tcaacaaccg	gatcgtcccg	
61	taagggggat	ccgtagaccc	ggccgcccgt	taactcccgc	cagagtgggg	gaatcageeg	
121	ggcggaccgg	cccaccttcg	accigcggcg	aagaccggaa	aaggcaccgg	Cagggggaag	
181	gcggcaagac	agcggcgtga	cacgatatcg	gcgtgacacg	Caadaalgaa	Caacygcagc	
241	allialcagi	illadyally	lacyacatat	Lugaggggag	gycacyacya	gcayaacaya	
301	cgdddlalla	ddyycyyccd	tatacatect	ggaalcygla	adyatyttca	tocacttoat	
301	cycyalciai	LLLCLYALLL	Latycallel	yclyylagyc	accidenta	rgtacticat	
421	tateseesee	ggcgaccggg	tracetacta	taccaccato	gaccyccaac	tataaataaa	
401	ctaccecta	accycayyca	cascactata	tatestate	atylactact	acceptaget	
541	accordette	tagaatttat	actortotto	acastaccea	atcaacttog	testacete	
661	caccatgatt	coggocacac	tcatcatora	caccotcato	ctactcacac	aceactorat	
721	catcacque	ctaataaaca	ataacacett	taccetacta	ttttatccoo	gcaactogco	
721	gatetteggee	ccgacgageg	taccactact	agectigety	attetactat	cactaactaa	
8/1	stacaccogo	ttoctotato	tocacacaga	caccoccogaa	tacatacaac	toatcoaaca	
901	aggetcecto	cocaccttco	ataatcacac	cacootoatt	acaacettet	tetecacett	
961	catctccata	ctcatottct	acatetaata	otactttooc	aaactctact	acaccacatt	
1021	ctactacotc	aaaggcccgc	ataaccaaat	taccatoaad	aacoacotca	ccacctataa	
1081	coaagaaggg	tttccggagg	ggatcaaata	atgaacgcaa	agaacctott	caaactoogg	
1141	gtcattogcc	tctatggcat	ggccaccttg	accetaagea	cccttgacat	ctcaccaaca	
1201	gcagcgcatg	gcgaacgctc	posesses	ttcctqcqca	tgcgcaccat	ccaatggtac	
1261	gacatgaaat	agggccccga	caccaccaag	gtcaacgact	tcqccaccat	gaccggcaaa	
1321	ttccacctgg	ccqaaqactq	accacacaca	gtggggaaac	cqqqacqqqc	gttcttcaac	
1381	gtaggcagcc	ccagcccggt	attcgtacgg	ctctccacca	aactgaacgg	cgaaccgacc	
1441	tacatctcgg	gcccgctgga	aattggccgc	gactacqcct	tcgaagtcaa	actgaaagcc	
1501	cgcatcccgg	gacgccacca	catgcacgcc	atggtcaaca	tcaaggacgc	aggcccgatt	
1561	gccggccctg	ccgcctggat	gaacatcacc	ggcagctggg	atgacttcac	caaccoggtg	
1621	aaactgctga	caggcgagac	catcgacacc	gagaccttca	acttcaacaa	cggcatcttc	
1681	tggcacttgt	tgtggttggg	actgggctgt	ttctggatag	gctactacgt	tgcccggccc	
1741	atgttcctgc	cgcgcagccg	ggtgttgctg	gcctatggag	acgacctgct	gctggacccg	
1801	atggacaaga	aggttgcgtg	gatcgtactg	attgcgacct	tcggcattgt	ctggggcggc	
1861	taccgctata	cggaaaccaa	acacccgtac	acggtgccca	tccaagcggg	tgaatcgaag	
1921	gtacaaccga	tgccggtgaa	acccaacccc	atcgcgatca	aagtgacgca	cgccaactat	
1981	gacgtcccgg	gccgcgcact	gcgcgtgacc	atgagcgtca	ccaacagtgg	cgacaccgct	
2041	tatcgtatag	gcgagttcac	caccgcgggc	gtgcgcttca	tcaacaaagt	ggggctcaag	
2101	cacctggacc	gcaactatcc	gaaggaactg	gtagccacgg	gcctgtcgtt	tgacaatgac	
2161	gcgccgatcc	aacctggcga	gacgcgtgaa	gtcaagatgg	tagcgaagga	tgcactgtgg	
2221	gaagtacagc	gtctgatggc	gctgctgggc	gacccggaaa	gccgctttgg	cggattgctg	
2281	atgacctgga	gcgattcagg	cgaccgcaac	atcaacagca	tagccggcgc	agtcataccg	
2341	gtcttcacca	agctctaagc	tacaaagcat	gacaccggtc	cgccaccgtc	gccagacgga	
2401	aaggtggatc	ggtgtttttt	aatgtgccag	tgaaacaacc	cataccttcg	gaatagccgg	
2461	ggggacgaag	aaaagtgaac	catcgtcata	tccaaacgga	agaacccgct	cgtggttagg	
2521	caaatgaaac	aggcaggcgc	tgcggttctc	attctggttg	gggcgctata	cgccggcgca	

2581 gtagcggcgc atggaaaagt ctcattggaa gaggacagtt gcgtgcgccg g

11

LOCUS AF016002 825 bp DNA BCT 22-SEP-1997 DEFINITION Nitrosospira sp. Np39-19 ammonia monooxygenase subunit A2 (amoA2) gene, complete cds. ACCESSION AF016002 NID q2425027 VERSION AF016002 1 GI:2425027 KEYWORDS SOURCE Nitrosospira sp. Np39-19. ORGANISM Nitrosospira sp. Np39-19 Eubacteria: Proteobacteria: beta subdivision: Ammonia-oxidizing bacteria: Nitrosospira. REFERENCE 1 (bases 1 to 825) AUTHORS Shiozawa.T.L., Norton.J.M., Alzerreca.J.J. and Klotz.M.G. TITLE Direct submission JOURNAL Unpublished REFERENCE 2 (bases 1 to 825) AUTHORS Norton.J.M., Alzerreca.J.J. and Klotz.M.G. TITLE Diversity of the genes encoding ammonia monooxygenase in autotrophic ammonia oxidizing bacteria JOURNAL Unpublished REFERENCE 3 (bases 1 to 825) AUTHORS Shiozawa, T.L., Norton, J.M., Alzerreca, J.J. and Klotz, M.G. TITLE Direct Submission JOURNAL Submitted (24-JUL-1997) Department of Biology, CB 171. The University of Colorado, 1200 Larimer Street, Denver, CO 80217-3364. USA FEATURES Location/Qualifiers source 1..825 /organism="Nitrosospira sp. Np39-19" /strain="Np 39-19" /note="Strain source: Dr. Ed Schmidt. University of Minnesota" /db xref="taxon:61907" 1..825 gene /gene="amoA2" 1..825 /gene="amoA2" /note="putative membrane protein: AmoA2: similar to Nitrosospira Np39-19 AmoA3 protein, encoded by Genbank Accession Number AF006692 and Nitrosospira NpAV AmoA2 protein. encoded by Genbank Accession Number U20644" /codon start=1 /transl table=11 /product="ammonia monooxygenase subunit A2" /protein id="AAB70814.1" /db xref="PID:g2425028" /db xref="GI:2425028" /translation="MSRTDEILKAAKMPPEAVKMSRMIDAVYFPILCILLVGTYHMHF MLLAGDWDFWLDWKDROWWPVVTPIVGITYCAAIMYYLWVNYRLPFGATLCIVCLLSG EWLTRYWGFYWWSHYPISFVFPSTMIPGALVMDTVMLLTRNWMITALVGGGAFGFLFY PGNWPIFGPTHLPLVVEGVLLSVADYTGFLYVRTGTPEYVRNIEQGSLRTFGGHTTVI AAFFAAFISMLMFCIWWYFGKLYCTAFFYVKGHRGRVTMKDDVTAFGEEGFPEGIK"

BASE	COUNT	160	a 246 c	225 g	194 t		
ORIG	IN						
	1	atgagcagaa	cagacgaaat	actaaaggcg	gccaaaatgc	cgcccgaagc	agtaaagatg
	61	tccaggatga	tagacgcggt	atatttcccg	attctatgca	tcctgctggt	tgggacctac
	121	cacatgcact	tcatgctgct	ggcaggagac	tgggacttct	ggctggactg	gaaagaccgt
	181	caatggtggc	cggtggtaac	cccgatcgtg	ggcatcacct	actgtgccgc	catcatgtac
	241	tacctgtggg	tgaactaccg	gctcccgttt	ggcgcgaccc	tgtgcatcgt	gtgcctgctg
	301	tcgggtgaat	ggctgacccg	ctactggggc	ttctactggt	ggtcgcacta	ccccatcagc
	361	ttcgtatttc	cctccaccat	gataccgggt	gccctggtca	tggacacggt	catgctgctc
	421	acgcgcaact	ggatgatcac	cgcgctggtt	ggcggcggcg	cctttggctt	cttgttctac
	481	cctggcaact	ggcccatctt	tggcccgacc	cacctgccgc	tggtagtgga	aggcgtactg
	541	ctgtcggtag	ctgactacac	cggcttcctg	tatgtacgta	ccggcacgcc	tgagtatgtc
	601	cgcaacatcg	aacaaggctc	gctgcgcacc	tttggcggcc	acaccacggt	cattgccgca
	661	ttctttgccg	ccttcatctc	catgctcatg	ttctgcatct	ggtggtactt	tggcaaactc
	721	tactgcaccg	cgttcttcta	cgtcaaaggc	caccgcggcc	gtgtcaccat	gaaggacgac
	781	gtcactgcat	ttggcgaaga	aggctttcca	gaggggataa	aataa	
10.0							

LOCUS DEFINITION ACCESSION	AF006692 825 bp DNA BCT 05-AUG-1997 Nitrosospira sp. Np39-19 ammonia monooxygenase subunit A3 (amoA3) gene. complete cds. AF006692
NID VERSION KEYWORDS	g2266997 AF006692.1 GI:2266997
SOURCE ORGANISM	Nitrosospina sp. Np39-19. Nitrosospina sp. Np39-19 Eubacteria: Proteobacteria: beta subdivision: Ammonia-oxidizing bacteria: Nitrosospina
AUTHORS	1 (bases 1 to 825) Norton.J., Alzerreca.J.J. and Klotz.M.G.
JOURNAL	Unversity of the genes encoding ammonia monooxygenase in autotrophic ammonia oxidizing bacteria Unpublished
REFERENCE AUTHORS TITLE	2 (bases 1 to 825) Shiozawa.T.L., Norton.J.M., Alzerreca.J.J. and Klotz.M.G. Direct Submission
JOURNAL	Submitted (04-JUN-1997) Plants, Soils & Biometereology. Utah State University, Logan, UT 84322, USA
FEATURES source	Location/Qualifiers 1825
	/organism="Nitrosospira sp. Np39-19" /strain="39-19" /db_xref="taxon:61907"
	/note="Strain source: Dr. Ed Schmidt. University of Minnesota"
gene	1825 /gene="amoA3"
CDS	1825 /gene="amoA3" /note="putative membrane protein: amoA3: similar to Nitrosospira NpAV amoA3 protein. encoded by Genebank Accession number U92432" /codon_start=1

BASE COUNT	<pre>/transl_table=11 /product="ammonia monooxygenase subunit A3" /protein_id="AA865562.1" /db_xref="PID:g2266998" /db_xref="GI:2266998" /translation="MSRIDEILKAAKMPPEAVKMSRMIDAVYFPILCILLIGTYHMHF MLLAGDWDFWLDWKDRQWWPVYTPIVGITYCAAIMYYLWVNYRLPLGAILCIVCLLSG EwLTRYwGFYWWSHNPISFVFPSTMIPGALVMDTVMLLTRWMMITALVGGAFGLLFY PGNWPIFGPTHLPLVVEGVLLSVADVTGFLYVRIGTPEYVRNIEQGSLRTFGGHTT VIAAFFAAFISMLMFCIWWYFGKLYCTAFFYVKGHRGRVTMKNDVTAFGEEGFPEGIK" 163 a 244 c 224 g 194 t </pre>
ORIGIN	100 0 211 0 224 9 194 0
1 a 61 t 121 c 241 t 301 t 421 a 481 c 541 c 601 c 661 t 721 t 781 g	tgagcagaa cagacgaaat actaaaggcg gccaaaatgc cgcccgaagc agtaaagatg ccaggatga tagacgcggt atattcccg attctatgca tcttgctgat tgggactac acatgcact tcatgctgct ggcaggagc tgggactac acctgctgat ggaagacgt aatsgstgg cggtggtaac cccgatcgtg ggcatacct actgtgccg catcatgtac actggatg tgaataccg gctcccgtt ggccgatcc tggcacag tggcctgct gggggdaat ggctgaccg ctatgggg tcttatggt ggacgaca ccccatcag tcggatgat ggcagatac cggctggtt ggcggggcg ccttggcct cttgtctac cggcgaact ggatgatac cggctggtt ggcggggcg ccttggcct cttgtctac cggcaact ggatgatcac cggctggtt ggcgggcg ccttggcct ctgtctac tggcaact ggacgatc ggtcggatc tatgtacgg aggcgatcg tgtcggtag ctgatcac cggctggtt ggcgggcg ccttggcct tggcct tgtcgatag ctgatcac cggctcgtt tatgtacga ccggcgac ttgtcgtag ctgatcac cggctggtt ggcggcgc gcttggcct tggcct ttgccact ggccaact ggtcgcac ttggccc tggtatgg gaacatcg aacaaggct gdtgcgacc ttggcgc acaccacgg castgtgc tcttgccg ccttattc catgctcatg ttctgcatc ggtgtactt tggcaactc actgcaccg ggttcttta cgtcaagg caccggcg gtgtcaccat gaagaacgac tctttgccg cttattt cgtcaagg caccgggc gtgtcaccat gaagaacgac tcactgcat ttggcgaaga aggctttcca gaggggataa aataa
LOCUS DEFINITION ACCESSION NID VERSION KEYWORDS SOURCE ORGANISM	AF042170 1628 bp DNA BCT 02-JUL-1998 Nitrosospira sp. Np39-19 ammonia monooxygenase subunit C1 (amoC1) gene. partial cds: ammonia monooxygenase subunit B1 (amoB1) gene. complete cds: and ammonia monooxygenase subunit B1 (amoB1) gene. partial cds. AF042170 g3282752 AF042170.1 GI:3282752 Nitrosospira sp. Np39-19. Nitrosospira sp. Np39-19 Eubacteria: Nitrosospira.
REFERENCE AUTHORS TITLE	1 (bases 1 to 1628) Norton J.M., Alzereca, J.J. and Klotz, M.G. Diversity of the genes encoding ammonia monooxygenase in autotrophic ammonia-oxidizing bacteria
JOURNAL REFERENCE AUTHORS TITLE JOURNAL	Unpublished 2 (bases 1 to 1628) Shiozawa.T.L., Norton.J.M., Alzerreca.J.J. and Klotz.M.G. Direct Submission Submitted (09-JAN-1998) Department of Plants. Soils and Biometeorology, Utah State University, Logan, UT 84322, USA, and Department of Biology, University of Colorado, 1200 Larimer Street, CB 121 Dever, CO 80217-3364, USA
FEATURES	Location/Qualifiers

<pre>/strain="Np39-19" /db_xref="taxon:61907" /note="strain provided by Dr. Ed Schmidt. University of Minnesota" gene <163 /gene="amoCl" CDS <163 /gene="amoCl" /note="AmoCl: similar to Nitrosospira sp. NpAV AmoC2 protein encoded by GenBank Accession Number AF016003" /codon start=1 /transTable=11 /product="ammonia monooxygenase subunit Cl" /protein_id="AAC25054.1" /db_xref="FID:g3282753" /translation="LTDVVWNGQSKVILNNRIVP" gene 5651332 /gene="amoAl" CDS 5651332 /gene="amoAl" CDS 5651332 /gene="amoAl" /note="AmoAl: putative membrane protein: similar to Nitrosospira sp. Np39-19 AmoA3 and AmoA2 proteins encoded by GenBank Accession Numbers AF006692 and AF016002. respectively: N-terminal truncation by 18 amino acid residues: similar to Nitrosospira sp. NpAV AmoA proteins encoded by GenBank Accession Numbers U38250. U20644. and U38251" /codon_start=1 /transT_table=11 /protein_id="AAC25055.1" /db_xref="GI:3282754" /db_xref="GI:333>1628 /dene="amoBI"</pre>		/organism="Nitrosospira sp. Np39-19"
<pre>/db_xref="taxon:61907" /note="strain provided by Dr. Ed Schmidt. University of Minnesota" gene <163 /gene="amoCl" CDS <163 /gene="amoCl" /note="AmoCl: similar to Nitrosospira sp. NpAV AmoC2 protein encoded by GenBank Accession Number AF016003" /codon_start=1 /transl_table=11 /product="ammonia monoxygenase subunit Cl" /protein_id="AAC25054.1" /db_xref="Gl:3282753" /db_xref="Gl:3282753" /db_xref="Gl:3282753" /translation="LTDVVWNSQSKVILNNRIVP" gene 5651332 /gene="amoA1" CDS 5651332 /gene="amoA1" /note="AmoA1: protein_start=1 /note="AmoA1: /codon_start=1 /transl_to Nitrosospira sp. NpAV AmoA proteins encoded by GenBank Accession Numbers 4F006692 and AF016002. respectively: N-terminal truncation by 18 amino acid residues: similar to Nitrosospira sp. NpAV AmoA proteins encoded by GenBank Accession Numbers U38250. U20644, and U38251" /codon_start=1 /transl_table=11 /protein_id="AAC25055.1" /db_xref="Gl:3282754" /tb_xref="Gl:3382754" /tb_xref="Gl:3382754" /tb_xref="Gl:3382754" /tb_xref="Gl:3382754" /tb_xref="Gl:3382754" /tb_xref="Gl:3382754" /tb_xref="Gl:3382754" /tb_xref="Gl:33827554" /tb_xref="Gl:33827554" /tb_xref="Gl</pre>		/strain="Np39-19"
<pre>/note="strain provided by Dr. Ed Schmidt. University of Minnesota" gene <1.63 /gene="amoCl" CDS <1.63 /gene="amoCl" /note="AmoCl: similar to Nitrosospira sp. NpAV AmoC2 protein encoded by GenBank Accession Number AF016003" /codon_start=1 /transT_table=11 /product="amonia monoxygenase subunit Cl" /protein_id="AAC25054.1" /db_xref="FID:g3282753" /translation="LD0yA282753" /translation="LD0yA282753" /translation="LD0yA282753" /translation="LD0yA282753" /translation="LD0yA282753" /translation="LD0yA282753" /translation="LD0yA282753" /translation="LD0yA282753" /translation="LD0yA282753" /translation="LD0yA383 and AmoA2 proteins encoded by Gene="amoA1" CDS 5651332 /gene="amoA1" CDS 5651332 /gene="amoA1" CDS 5651332 /gene="amoA1" /note="AmoA1: putative membrane protein: similar to Nitrosospira sp. Np39-19 AmoA3 and AmoA2 proteins encoded by GenBank Accession Numbers AF006692 and AF016002. respectively: N-terminal truncation by 18 amino acid residues: similar to Nitrosospira sp. NpAV AmoA proteins encoded by GenBank Accession Numbers U38250. U20644. and U38251" /codon_start=1 /transl_table=11 /protein_id="AAC25055.1" /db_xref="GI:3282754" /translation="MSRMIDAVYFPILCILLVGTYHMHFMLLAGDWDFWLDWKDRQWM PVYTPIVGITYCAAIMYYLWWNKLPFGATLCIVCLISEFULTPVGWNFGFWLSHYPISF VFPSTMIPGALVMDTVMLLTRNMITALVGGGAFGLLFYPGNWPIFGFTHLPLVVEGV LLSVADYGFLVVRGHRGRVTMKNDVTAFGEEGFPEGIK" gene 133331628 /gene="maB1"</pre>		/db xref="taxon:61907"
<pre>Minnesota" gene <163 /gene="amoCl" CDS <163 /gene="amoCl" /note="AmoCl: similar to Nitrosospira sp. NpAV AmoC2 protein encoded by GenBank Accession Number AF016003" /codon_start=1 /transT_table=11 /product="ammonia monooxygenase subunit Cl" /protein_id="AAC25054.1" /db_xref="Gl:3282753" /translation="LTDVVWNGQSKVILNNRIVP" gene 5651332 /gene="amoA1" CDS 5651332 /gene="amoA1" /note="AmoA1: putative membrane protein: similar to Nitrosospira sp. Np39-19 AmoA3 and AmoA2 proteins encoded by GenBank Accession Numbers AF006692 and AF016002. respectively: N-terminal truncation by 18 amino acid residues: similar to Nitrosospira sp. NpAV AmoA proteins encoded by GenBank Accession Numbers U38250. U20644, and U38251" /codon_start=1 /transT_table=11 /product="ammonia monooxygenase subunit A1" /product="in_d="Ac25055.1" /db_xref="Gl:3282754" /db_xr</pre>		/note="strain provided by Dr. Ed Schmidt, University of
<pre>gene <163 /gene="amoCl" CDS <163 /gene="amoCl" /note="AmoCl: similar to Nitrosospira sp. NpAV AmoC2 protein encoded by GenBank Accession Number AF016003" /codon_start=1 /transl_table=11 /product="ammonia monooxygenase subunit Cl" /protein_id="AAC25054.1" /db_xref="PID:g3282753" /db_xref="G1:3282753" /translation="LDVVWWNGQSKVILNNRIVP" gene 5651332 /gene="amoA1" CDS 5651332 /gene="amoA1" CDS 5651332 /gene="amoA1" /note="AmoA1: putative membrane protein: similar to Nitrosospira sp. Np39-19 AmoA3 and AmoA2 proteins encoded by GenBank Accession Numbers AF006692 and AF016002. respectively: N-terminal truncation by 18 amino acid residues: similar to Nitrosospira sp. NpAV AmoA proteins encoded by GenBank Accession Numbers U38250. U20644, and U38251" /codon_start=1 /transl_table=11 /protein_id="AAC25055.1" /db_xref="PID:g3282754" /db_xref="FID:g3282754" /tb_xref="FID:g328275</pre>		Minnesota"
<pre>gene 'gene"amoC1" CDS <1.63 /gene="amoC1" /note="AmoC1: similar to Nitrosospira sp. NpAV AmoC2 protein encoded by GenBank Accession Number AF016003" /codon_start=1 /transT_table=11 /product="ammonia monoxygenase subunit C1" /protein_id="AAC25054.1" /db_xref="FD1:g3282753" /translation="LTDVVWNGQSKVILNNRIVP" gene 5651332 /gene="amoA1" CDS 5651322 /gene="amoA1" CDS 5651322 /gene="amoA1"</pre>	gene	<1.63
CDS 41.63 /gene="amoCl" /note="AmoCl: similar to Nitrosospira sp. NpAV AmoC2 protein encoded by GenBank Accession Number AF016003" /codon_start=1 /trans]_table=11 /product="ammonia monooxygenase subunit Cl" /protein_id="AAC25054.1" /db_xref="Gl:3282753" /translation="LTDVWWNGQSKVILNNRIVP" gene 5651332 /gene="amoAl" /note="AmoAl: putative membrane protein: similar to Nitrosospira sp. Np39-19 AmoA3 and AmoA2 proteins encoded by GenBank Accession Numbers AF006692 and AF016002. respectively: N-terminal truncation by 18 amino acid residues: similar to Nitrosospira sp. NpAV AmoA proteins encoded by GenBank Accession Numbers U38250. U20644. and U38251" /codon_start=1 /trans]_table=11 /protein_id="AaC25055.1" /db_xref="Gl:3282754"	Serie	/gene="amoCl"
<pre>cost '1.00 '(gene" amoCl" //ote="AmoCl: similar to Nitrosospira sp. NpAV AmoC2 protein encoded by GenBank Accession Number AF016003" //codon_start=1 //transl_table=11 //product="ammonia monooxygenase subunit Cl" //protein_id="AAC25054.1" //db_xref="PID:g3282753" //db_xref="PID:g3282753" //translation="LIDVVWNGQSKVILNNRIVP" gene 5651332 //gene="amoA1" /note="AmoA1: putative membrane protein: similar to Nitrosospira sp. Np39-19 AmoA3 and AmoA2 proteins encoded by GenBank Accession Numbers AF006692 and AF016002. respectively: N-terminal truncation by 18 amino acid residues: similar to Nitrosospira sp. NpAV AmoA proteins encoded by GenBank Accession Numbers U38250. U20644, and U38251" /codon_start=1 //transl_table=11 //protein_id="AAC25055.1" //db_xref="PID:g3282754" //db_xref="FID:g3282754" //tb_xref="FID:</pre>	CDS	<1 63
<pre>/gene amol: similar to Nitrosospira sp. NpAV AmoC2 protein encoded by GenBank Accession Number AF016003" /codon_start=1 //trans]_table=11 /product="ammonia monooxygenase subunit C1" /protein_id="AAC25054.1" /db_xref="FD1:g3282753" /db_xref="GI:3282753" /translation="LTDVVWNGQSKVILNNRIVP" gene 5651332 /gene="amoA1" CDS 5651322 /gene="amoA1" CDS 5656 CDS 5657.12 /gene="amoA1" CDS 5657.12 /gene="amoA1" CDS 5657.12 /gene="amoA1" CDS 5657.12 /gene="amoA1" CDS 5657.12 /gene="amoA1" CDS 5657.12 /gene="amoA1" CDS 5657.12 /gene="amoA1" CDS 5657.12 /gene="amoA1" CDS 5657.12 /gene="amoA1" CDS 5677.12 /gene="amoA1" CDS 5677.12 /gene="amoA1" CDS 5677.12 /gene="amoA1" CDS 5677.12 /gene="amoA1" CDS 5677.12 /gene="amoA1" CDS 56777.12 /gene="amoA1" CDS 5777.12 /gene="amoA1" CDS 5777.12 /gene="amoA1" CDS 5777.12 /gene="amoA1" CDS 5777.12 /gene="amoA1" CDS 5777.12 /ge</pre>	000	/gene="amo[1"
<pre>protein encoded by GenBank Accession Number AF016003" /codon start=1 /trans]_table=11 /product="ammonia monooxygenase subunit C1" /protein_id="AAC25054.1" /db_xref="PID:g3282753" /db_xref="G1:3282753" /translation="LTDVVWNGQSKVILNNRIVP" gene 5651332 /gene="amoA1" /toes="amoA1" /toes="amoA1" /toesspira sp. Np39-19 AmoA3 and AmoA2 proteins encoded by GenBank Accession Numbers AF006692 and AF016002. respectively: N-terminal truncation by 18 amino acid residues: similar to Nitrosospira sp. NpAV AmoA proteins encoded by GenBank Accession Numbers U38250. U20644, and U38251" /codon_start=1 /trans]_table=11 /product="ammonia monooxygenase subunit A1" /protein_id="Ac25055.1" /db_xref="PID:g3282754" /db_xref="PID:g32827</pre>		/gene- amoci /note="AmoCl: cimilar to Nitrococpira on NDAV AmoC2
<pre>code are an and a monoxygenase subunit C1" //ransT_table=11 //ransT_table=11 //protein_id="AAC25054.1" //db_xref="PID:g3282753" //db_xref="C1:3282753" //transTation="LTDVVWNGQSKVILNNRIVP" gene 5651332 //gene="amoA1" //ote="amoA1" //ote=="amoA1" //ote=="amoA1"</pre>		moter ander, shirid to withosospira sp. NpAv Andez
<pre>//coon_scart=1 //trans]_table=11 /product="ammonia monooxygenase subunit C1" /protein_id="AAC25054.1" /db_xref="FID:g3282753" //translation="LTDVVWNGQSKVILNNRIVP" gene 5651332 /gene="amoA1" CDS 5651332 /gene="amoA1" /note="AmoA1: putative membrane protein: similar to Nitrosospira sp. Np39-19 AmoA3 and AmoA2 proteins encoded by GenBank Accession Numbers AF006692 and AF016002. respectively: N-terminal truncation by 18 amino acid residues: similar to Nitrosospira sp. NpAV AmoA proteins encoded by GenBank Accession Numbers U38250. U20644. and U38251" /codo_start=1 /trans]_table=11 /protein_id="AAC25055.1" /db_xref="GI:3282754" /tdb_xref="GI:3282754" /tdb_xref="GI:3282754" /translation="MSRMIDAVYFPILCILLVGTYHMHFMLLAGDWDFWLDWKDRQWW PVYTPIVGITYCAAIMYYLWWNYRLPFGATLCIVCLLSEWLTRYNGFWWSHYPISF VFPSTMIPGALVMDTVMLLTRNMITALVGGGAFGLLFYPGNWPIFGFHLPLVVEGV LLSVADYTGFLVVRGHRGRVTMKNDVTAFGEEGFPEGIK" gene 133331628 /gene="amoB1" </pre>		protern encoded by denbank Accession Number Arozooos
<pre>//ransi_table=11 //product="ammonia monooxygenase subunit C1" //protein_id="AAC25054.1" //db_xref="PID:g3282753" //translation="LTDVVWNGQSKVILNNRIVP" gene 5651332 //gene="amoA1" CDS 5651332 //gene="amoA1" /note="AmoA1: putative membrane protein: similar to Nitrosospira sp. Np39-19 AmoA3 and AmoA2 proteins encoded by GenBank Accession Numbers AF006692 and AF016002. respectively: N-terminal truncation by 18 amino acid residues: similar to Nitrosospira sp. NpAV AmoA proteins encoded by GenBank Accession Numbers U38250. U20644. and U38251" //codo_start=1 //transi_table=11 //protein_id="AAC25055.1" //db_xref="PID:g3282754" //db_xref="GI:g3282</pre>		/codon_start=1
<pre>/product= ammonia monoxygenase subunit C1 /protein_id="AAC25054.1" /db_xref="PID:g3282753" /db_xref="GI:3282753" /translation="LTDVVWNGQSKVILNNRIVP" gene 5651332 /gene="amoA1" CDS 5651332 /gene="amoA1" /note="AmoA1: putative membrane protein: similar to Nitrosospira sp. Np39-19 AmoA3 and AmoA2 proteins encoded by GenBank Accession Numbers AF006692 and AF016002, respectively: N-terminal truncation by 18 amino acid residues: similar to Nitrosospira sp. NpAV AmoA proteins encoded by GenBank Accession Numbers U38250. U20644, and U38251" /codon_start=1 /transl_table=11 /protein_id="AAC25055.1" /db_xref="PID:g3282754" /db_xref="PID:g3282754" /translation="MSRMIDAVYFPILCILLVGTYHMHFMLLAGDWDFWLDWKDRQWW PVYTPIVGITYCAAIMYYLWNYRLPFGATLCIVCLLSGEWLTRYNFWLFVSF VFPSTMIPGALVMDTVMLLTRNWMITALVGGGAFGLLFYPGNWJFGFVHLPVSF VFPSTMIPGALVMDTVMLTRNMITALVGGGAFGLLFYPGNWJFGFVHLPVVSF GKLYCTAFFYVKGHRGRVTMKNDVTAFGEEGFPEGIK" gene 1333>1628 /gene=""</pre>		/transi_table=11
<pre>/protein_id="AAC25054.1" /db_xref="GI:3282753" //translation="LTDVVWNGQSKVILNNRIVP" gene 5651332 /gene="amoAl" CDS 5651332 /gene="amoAl" CDS 5651332 /gene="amoAl" /note="AmoAl: putative membrane protein: similar to Nitrosospira sp. Np39-19 AmoA3 and AmoA2 proteins encoded by GenBank Accession Numbers AF006692 and AF016002. respectively: N-terminal truncation by 18 amino acid residues: similar to Nitrosospira sp. NpAV AmoA proteins encoded by GenBank Accession Numbers U38250. U20644. and U38251" /codo_start=1 /transī_table=11 /protein_id="AAC25055.1" /db_xref="GI:3282754" /db_xref="GI:3282754" /translation="MSRMIDAVYFPILCILLVGTYHMHFMLLAGDWDFWLDWKDRQWW PVYTPIVGITYCAALMYYLWWNKLPFGATLCIVCLISGEWLTRVRGYWWSHYPISF VFPSTMIPGALVMDTVMLLTRNMITALVGGGAFGLLEFYEGNWPIGFTHLPLVVEGV LLSVADYTGFLVVRGHRGRVTMKNDVTAFGEEGFPEGIK" gene 133331628 /gene="amoB1"</pre>		/product= ammonia monooxygenase subunit C1
<pre>/db_xref="PID:g3282753" /db_xref="GI:3282753" /translation="LTDVVWNGQSKVILNNRIVP" gene 5651332 /gene="amoA1" CDS 5651332 /gene="amoA1" /note="AmoA1: putative membrane protein: similar to Nitrosospira sp. Np39-19 AmoA3 and AmoA2 proteins encoded by GenBank Accession Numbers AF006692 and AF016002. respectively: N-terminal truncation by 18 amino acid residues: similar to Nitrosospira sp. NpAV AmoA proteins encoded by GenBank Accession Numbers U38250. U20644. and U38251" /codon_start=1 /transl_table=11 /protein_id="AAc25055.1" /db_xref="PID:g3282754" /db_xref="GI:3282754" /translation="MSRMIDAVYFPILCILLVGTYHMHFMLLAGDWDFWLDWKDRQWW PVVTPIVGITYCAAIMYYLWVNYRLPFGATLCIVCLLSGEWLTRYWGFYWWSHYPISF VFPSTMIPGALVMDTVMLLTRNWMITALVGGGAFGLLFYPGNMPIFGFTHLPLVVEGV LLSVADYTGFLVWRTEPFVRNEITOGSLRTFGGHTTVLAFFAFISMLMFCIWWYF GKLYCTAFFYVKGHRGRVTMKNDVTAFGEEGFPEGIK" gene 133331628 /dene="amoB1"</pre>		/protein_id="AAC25054.1"
<pre>/db_xref="GI:3282753" /translation="LTDVVWNGQSKVILNNRIVP" gene 5651332 /gene="amoA1" CDS 5651332 /gene="amoA1" /note="AmoA1: putative membrane protein: similar to Nitrosospira sp. Np39-19 AmoA3 and AmoA2 proteins encoded by GenBank Accession Numbers AF006692 and AF016002, respectively: N-terminal truncation by 18 amino acid residues: similar to Nitrosospira sp. NpAV AmoA proteins encoded by GenBank Accession Numbers U38250. U20644, and U38251" /codon_start=1 /transl_table=11 /protein_id="AAC25055.1" /db_xref="GI:3282754" /db_xref="GI:3282754" /translation="MSRMIDAVYFPILCILLVGTYHMHFMLLAGDWDFWLDWKDRQWW PVVTPIVGITYCAAIMYYLWNYKLPFGATLCIVCLLSGEWLTRYKMFYWASHYPISF VFPSTMIPGALVMDTVMLLTRNWMITALVGGGAFGLLFYPGNWPIFGPTHLPLVVEGV LLSVADTGFLYVRGHRGRVTMKNDVTAFGEEGFPEGIK" gene 1333>1628 /gene="amoA1"</pre>		/db_xref="PID:g3282753"
<pre>//ranslation="LTDVVWNGQSKVILNNRIVP" gene 5651332 //gene="amoAl" CDS 5651332 //gene="amoAl" //note="AmoAl: putative membrane protein: similar to Nitrosospira sp. Np39-19 AmoA3 and AmoA2 proteins encoded by GenBank Accession Numbers AF006692 and AF016002. respectively: N-terminal truncation by 18 amino acid residues: similar to Nitrosospira sp. NpAV AmoA proteins encoded by GenBank Accession Numbers U38250. U20644. and U38251" //codon_start=1 //transl_table=11 //product="ammonia monooxygenase subunit A1" //product="ammonia monooxygenase subunit A1" //protein_id="Acc25055.1" //db_xref="PID:g3282754" //db_xref="GI:3282754" //translation="MSRMIDAVYFPILCILLVGTYHMHFMLLAGDWDFWLDWKDRQWW PVVTPIVGITYCAAIMYYLWWNKLPFGATLCIVCLLSGEWLTRVNGFWWSHYPISF VFPSTMIPGALVMDTVMLLTRNMITALVGGGAFGLLFYPGMVFGFMWSHYPISF VFPSTMIPGALVMDTVMLLTRNMITALVGGGAFGLLFYPGMVFGFMLPUVEGV LLSVADYTGFLVVRGTFPEYVRNIEQGSLRTFGGHTVIDAFFAFISMLMFCIWWF GKLYCTAFFYVKGHRGRVTMKNDVTAFGEEGFPEGIK" gene 1333>1628 //enne="amoB1"</pre>		/db_xref="GI:3282753"
<pre>gene 5651332 /gene="amoAl" CDS 5651332 /gene="amoAl" /note="AmoAl; putative membrane protein; similar to Nitrosospira sp. Np39-19 AmoA3 and AmoA2 proteins encoded by GenBank Accession Numbers AF006692 and AF016002. respectively: N-terminal truncation by 18 amino acid residues: similar to Nitrosospira sp. NpAV AmoA proteins encoded by GenBank Accession Numbers U38250. U20644, and U38251" /codon_start=1 /transl_table=11 /product="ammonia monooxygenase subunit A1" /protein_id="AAC25055.1" /db_xref="FID:g3282754" /db_xref="GI:3282754" /translation="MSRMIDAVYFPILCILLVGTYHMHFMLLAGDWDFWLDWKDRQWW PVYTPIVGITYCAALMYYLWWXYRLPFGATLCIVCLLSGEWLTRYWGFWWSHYPISF VFPSTMIPGALVMDTVMLLTRNWMITALVGGGAFGLLFYPGNWPIFGPTHLPLVVEGV LLSVADTGFLYVRGHRGRVTMKNDVTAFGEEGFPEGIK" 1333>1628 /dene="amoB1"</pre>		/translation="LTDVVWNGQSKVILNNRIVP"
<pre>/gene="amoA1" CDS 5651332 /gene="amoA1" /note="AmoA1: putative membrane protein: similar to Nitrosospira sp. Np39-19 AmoA3 and AmoA2 proteins encoded by GenBank Accession Numbers AF006692 and AF016002. respectively: N-terminal truncation by 18 amino acid residues: similar to Nitrosospira sp. NpAV AmoA proteins encoded by GenBank Accession Numbers U38250. U20644, and U38251" /codon_start=1 /transl_table=11 /protein_id="AAC25055.1" /db_xref="PID:g3282754" /db_xref="GI:3282754" /translation="MSRMIDAVYFPILCILLVGTYHMHFMLLAGDWDFWLDWKDRQWW PVYTPIVGITYCAAIMYYLWVNYRLPFGATLCIVCLLSGEWLTRYKMFWWLAYPISF VFPSTMIPGALVMDTVMLLTRNWMITALVGGGAFGLLFYPGNWPIFGPTHLPLVVEGV LLSVADTGFLYVRGHRGRVTMKNDVTAFGEEGFPEGIK" gene 1333>1628 /gene="amoA1" /coden="amoA1" /coden="amoB1" /coden="amoA1" /coden="amoA1" /coden="amoA1" /coden="amoA1" //ranslation="MSRMIDAVYFPILCILLVGTYHMHFMLLAGDWDFWLDWKDRQWW /vTPIVGITYCAAIMYYLWNYRLPFGATLCIVCLLSGEWLTRYKMFWWLAYPISF VFPSTMIPGALVMDTVMLTRNWMITALVGGAFGLLFYPGNWPIFGPTHLPLVVEGV LLSVADTGFLYVRGHRGRVTMKNDVTAFGEEGFPEGIK" // Tanslation="MSRMIDAVYFMNLTALVGGAFGLLFYPGNWPIFGTHLPLVVEGV //CAFFYVKGHRGRVTMKNDVTAFGEEGFPEGIK" // amoA1" // amoA1" // amoA1" // amoA1" // amoA1" // amoA1"////////////////////////////////////</pre>	gene	5651332
CDS 5651332 /gene="amoAl" /note="AmoAl; putative membrane protein; similar to Nitrosospira sp. Np39-19 AmoA3 and AmoA2 proteins encoded by GenBank Accession Numbers AF006692 and AF016002. respectively: N-terminal truncation by 18 amino acid residues: similar to Nitrosospira sp. NpAV AmoA proteins encoded by GenBank Accession Numbers U38250. U20644. and U38251" /codon_start=1 /transī_table=11 /product="ammonia monooxygenase subunit A1" /protein_id="AAC25055.1" /db_xref="PID:g3282754" /db_xref="GI:3282754" /transīation="MSRMIDAVYFPILCILLVGTYHMHFMLLAGDWDFWLDWKDRQWW PVYTPIVGITYCAAIMYYLWWNYRLPFGATLCIVCLLSGEWLTRYNGFYWBSHYPISF VFPSTMIPGALVMDTVMLLTRNWMITALVGGGAFGLLFYPGNWPIFGTHLPLVVEGV LLSVADYTGFLVVRGTPEYVRNIEQGSLRTFGGHTVIJAFFAAFISMLMFCIWWYF GKLYCTAFFYVKGHRGRVTMKNDVTAFGEEGFPEGIK" 1333>1628 /dene="amoB1"		/gene="amoA1"
<pre>/gene="amoA1" /note="AmoA1: putative membrane protein: similar to Nitrosospira sp. Np39-19 AmoA3 and AmoA2 proteins encoded by GenBank Accession Numbers AF006692 and AF016002. respectively: N-terminal truncation by 18 amino acid residues: similar to Nitrosospira sp. NpAV AmoA proteins encoded by GenBank Accession Numbers U38250. U20644. and U38251" /codon_start=1 /transI_table=11 /product="ammonia monooxygenase subunit A1" /protein_id="AAC25055.1" /db_xref="PID:g3282754" /tab_xref="Gi:3282754" /translation="MSRMIDAVYFPILCILLVGTYHMHFMLLAGDWDFWLDWKDRQWW PVYTPIVGITYCAAHMYYLWWNYRLPFGATLCIVCLLSGEWLTRYWGFWWSHYPISF VFPSTMIPGALVMDTVMLLTRNWMITALVGGGAFGLLFYPGNWPIFGPTHLPLVVEGV LLSVADTGFLVVRGHRGRVTMKNDVTAFGEEGFPEGIK" gene 1333>1628 /amen"a</pre>	CDS	5651332
<pre>/note="AmoA1: putative membrane protein: similar to Nitrosospira sp. Np39-19 AmoA3 and AmoA2 proteins encoded by GenBank Accession Numbers AF006692 and AF016002, respectively: N-terminal truncation by 18 amino acid residues: similar to Nitrosospira sp. NpAV AmoA proteins encoded by GenBank Accession Numbers U38250, U20644, and U38251" /codon_start=1 /transl_table=11 /protein_id="AAC25055.1" /db_xref="PID:g3282754" /db_xref="GI:3282754" /translation="MSRMIDAVYFPILCILLVGTYHMHFMLLAGDWDFWLDWKDRQWW PVVTPIVGITYCAAIMYYLWVNYRLPFGATLCIVCLLSGEWLTRYKGFWWSHYPISF VFPSTMIPGALVMDTVMLLTRNWMITALVGGGAFGLLFYPGNWPIFGPTHLPLVVEGV LLSVADYTGFLYVRGHRGRVTMKNDVTAFGEEGFPEGIK" 1333>1628 /dene="amoB1"</pre>		/gene="amoAl"
Nitrosospira sp. Np39-19 AmoA3 and AmoA2 proteins encoded by GenBank Accession Numbers AF006692 and AF016002. respectively: N-terminal truncation by 18 amino acid residues: similar to Nitrosospira sp. NpAV AmoA proteins encoded by GenBank Accession Numbers U38250. U20644. and U38251" /codon_start=1 /transī_table=11 /product="ammonia monooxygenase subunit A1" /protein_id="Acc25055.1" /db_xref="PID:g3282754" /db_xref="GI:3282754" /db_xref="GI:3282754" /transīation="MSRMIDAVYFPILCILLVGTYHMHFMLLAGDWDFWLDWKDRQWW PVYTPIVGITYCAAIMYYLWWYRLPFGATLCIVCLLSGEWLTRYNGFYWWSHYPISF VFPSTMIPGALVMDTVMLLTRNWMITALVGGGSRCHLPFYGMWPIFGTHLPLVVEGV LLSVADYTGFLVRGTFDFEYVRNIEQGSLRTFGGHTVI/AFFAAFISMLMFCIWWYF GKLYCTAFFYVKGHRGRVTMKNDVTAFGEEGFPEGIK" 1333>1628 /dene="ammoB1"		/note="AmoAl: putative membrane protein: similar to
by GenBank Accession Numbers AF006692 and AF016002. respectively: N-terminal truncation by 18 amino acid residues: similar to Nitrosospira sp. NpAV AmoA proteins encoded by GenBank Accession Numbers U38250. U20644. and U38251" //codon_start=1 //transT_table=11 /product="ammonia monooxygenase subunit A1" /protein_id="AAC25055.1" /db_xref="PID:g3282754" /db_xref="G1:3282754" /translation="MSRMIDAVYFPILCILLVGTYHMHFMLLAGDWDFWLDWKDRQWW PVVTPIVGITYCAAIMYYLWNYRQLFGATLCIVCLLSGEWLTRYWGFWWSHYPISF VFPSTMIPGALVMDTVMLLTRNWMITALVGGGAFGLLFYPGNWPIFGPTHLPLVVEGV LLSVADYTGFLYVRGHRGRVTMKNDVTAFGEEGFPEGIK" 1333>1628 /dene="ambB1"		Nitrosospira sp. Np39-19 AmoA3 and AmoA2 proteins encoded
respectively: N-terminal truncation by 18 amino acid residues: similar to Nitrosospira sp. NpAV AmoA proteins encoded by GenBank Accession Numbers U38250. U20644. and U38251" /codon_start=1 /transl_table=11 /product="ammonia monooxygenase subunit A1" /protein_id="AAC25055.1" /db_xref="PID:g3282754" /db_xref="GI:3282754" /translation="MSRMIDAVYFPILCILLVGTYHMHFMLLAGDWDFWLDWKDRQWW PVVTpIVGITYCAAIMYYLWVNYRLPFGATLCIVCLLSGEWLTRYGFWWSHYPISF VFPSTMIPGALVMDTVMLLTRNWMITALVGGGAFGLLFYPGNWPIFGFTHLPLVVEGV LLSVADVTGFLVVRGHRGRVTMKNDVTAFGEEGFPEGIK" 1333>1628 /dene="amoB1"		by GenBank Accession Numbers AF006692 and AF016002
residues: similar to Nitrosospira sp. NpAV AmoA proteins encoded by GenBank Accession Numbers U38250. U20644. and U38251" /codon_start=1 /transT_table=11 /product="ammonia monooxygenase subunit A1" /protein_id="AcC25055.1" /db_xref="PID:g3282754" /db_xref="GI:3282754" /db_xref=GI:3282754" /transTation="MSRMIDAVYFPILCILLVGTYHMHFMLLAGDwDFWLDWKDRQWW PVVTPIVGITYCAAIMYYLWWNYRLPFGATLCIVCLLSGEWLTRYNGFYWWSHYPISF VFPSTMIPGALVMDTVMLLTRNWMITALVGGGAFGLLFYPGNwPIFGPTHLPLVVEGV LLSVADYTGFLVRRTFPEVYRNIEQGSLRTFGGHTTV1AAFFAAFISMLMFCIWWYF GKLYCTAFFYVKGHRGRVTMKNDVTAFGEEGFPEGIK" 1333>1628 /dene="amoB1"		respectively. N-terminal truncation by 18 amino acid
encoded by GenBank Accession Numbers U38250. U20644. and U38251" /codon_start=1 //transT_table=11 /product="ammonia monooxygenase subunit A1" /protein_id="AAC25055.1" /db_xref="PID:g3282754" /db_xref="G1:3282754" /translation="MSRMIDAVYFPILCILLVGTYHMHFMLLAGDWDFWLDWKDRQWW PVVTPIVGITYCAAIMYYLWNYKQLPFGATLCIVCLLSGEWLTRYWGFWWSHYPISF VFPSTMIPGALVMDTYMLLTRNWMITALVGGGAFGLLFYPGNWPIFGPTHLPLVVEGV LLSVADYTGFLYVRGHRGRVTMKLDVTAFGEEGFPEGIK" 1333>1628 /dene="amoB1"		residues: similar to Nitrosospira sp. NnAV AmoA proteins
<pre>unded by Gendamk Accession Mambers 60200. 626044. and U38251" /codon_start=1 /transī_table=11 /product="ammonia monooxygenase subunit A1" /protein_id="AAC25055.1" /db_xref="PID:g3282754" /db_xref="GI:3282754" /translation="MSRMIDAVYFPILCILLVGTYHMHFMLLAGDWDFWLDWKDRQWW PVVTPIVGITYCAAIMYYLWVNYKLPFGATLCIVCLLSGEWLTRYGWFWWSHYPISF VFPSTMIPGALVMDTVMLLTRNWMITALVGGAFGLLFYPGNWPIFGPTHLPLVVEGV LLSVADYTGFLVVRTGPEYVRNIEQGSLRTFGGHTTVIAAFFAAFISMLMFCIWWYF GKLYCTAFFYVKGHRGRVTMKNDVTAFGEEGFPEGIK" 1333>1628 /dene="ammoB1"</pre>		encoded by GenBank Accession Numbers 138250 120644 and
<pre>codon_start=1 //transl_table=11 //product="ammonia monooxygenase subunit A1" //product="ammonia monooxygenase subunit A1" //protein_id="AcC25055.1" //db_xref="PID:g3282754" //db_xref="GI:3282754" //translation="MSRMIDAVYFPILCILLVGTYHMHFMLLAGDwDFWLDWKDRQWW PVVTPIVGITYCAAIMYYLWVWYRLPFGATLCIVCLLSGEWLTRYWGFYWWSHYPISF VFPSTMIPGALVMDTVMLLTRNWHITALVGGGAFGLLFYPGNMPIFGPTHLPLVVEGV LLSVADVTGFLVPRGTPFEVYRNIEQGSLRFFGGHTTVIAAFFAAFISMLMFCIWWYF GKLYCTAFFYVKGHRGRVTMKNDVTAFGEEGFPEGIK" gene 1333>1628 //gene="ammoB1"</pre>		1120251"
<pre>//cuol_scart=1 //transT_table=1 //product="ammonia monooxygenase subunit A1" //protein_id="AAC25055.1" /db_xref="PID:g3282754" /db_xref="GI:3282754" /translation="MSRMIDAVYFPILCILLVGTYHMHFMLLAGDWDFWLDWKDRQWW PVVTPIVGITYCAAIMYYLWWNYRLPFGATLCIVCLLSGEWLTRYMGFWWSHYPISF VFPSTMIPGALVMDTVMLLTRNWMITALVGGGAFGLLFYPGNNPIFGPTHLPLVVEGV LLSVADYTGFLYVRGHRGRVTMKNDVTAFGEEGFPEGIK" gene 1333>1628 /dene="amB1"</pre>		(coden start-]
<pre>//ransi_cabler1 /product="ammonia monooxygenase subunit A1" /protein_id="AAC25055.1" /db_xref="PID:g3282754" /db_xref="CI:3282754" /translation="MSRMIDAVYFPILCILLVGTYHMHFMLLAGDWDFWLDWKDRQWW PVVTPIVGITYCAAIMYYLWVNYKLPFGATLCIVCLLSGEWLTRYWGFWWSHYPISF VFPSTMIPGALVMDTVMLLTRNWMITALVGGAFGLLFYPGNWPIFGPTHLPLVVEGV LLSVADYTGFLVVRTGPEYVRNIEGSLRTFGGHTTVIAAFFAAFISMLMFCIWWYF GKLYCTAFFYVKGHRGRVTMKNDVTAFGEEGFPEGIK" 1333>1628 /dene="ammoB1"</pre>		/toughtstart=1
<pre>gene 1333>1628</pre>		/ uransi_cable=11
<pre>/protein_id= AAL2505.1 /db_xref="DI:3282754" /db_xref="GI:3282754" /translation="%SRMIDAVYFPILCILLVGTYHMHFMLLAGDWDFWLDWKDRQWW PVVTPIVGITYCAAIMYYLWVNYRLPFGATLCIVCLLSGEWLTRYWGFYWSHYPISF VFPSTMIPGALVMDTVMLLTRNWITIALVGGGAFGLLFYPGNWPIFGPTH_DLVVEGV LLSVADYTGFLYVRGTPEYVRNIEQGSLRTFGGHTTVIAAFFAAFISMLMFCIWWYF GKLYCTAFFYVKGHRGRVTMKNDVTAFGEEGFPEGIK" gene 1333>1628 /dene="ambl"</pre>		/product= ammonia monooxygenase suburit Al
<pre>/db_xret= 'lU:g3282/34" /db_xret='G1:3282754" /dranslation="MSRMIDAVYFPILCILLVGTYHMHFMLLAGDWDFWLDWKDRQWW PVVTPIVGITYCAALMYYLWVNYKLPFGATLCIVCLLSGEWLTRYWGFWWSHYPISF VFPSTMIPGALVMDTVMLLTRNWMITALVGGAFGLLFYPGNWPIFGPTHLPLVVEGV LLSVADVTGFLVVRGTPEYVRNIEGSLRTFGGHTTVIAAFFAAFISMLMFCIWWYF GKLYCTAFFYVKGHRGRVTMKNDVTAFGEEGFPEGIK" gene 1333>1628 /dene="amoB1"</pre>		/protein_id= AAU25055.1
<pre>/dD_Xret= \Gli2282/54 /translation="MSRMIDAVFPILCILLVGTYHMHFMLLAGDWDFWLDWKDRQWW PVVTPIVGITYCAAIMYYLWVNYRLPFGATLCIVCLLSGEWLTRYWGFYWWSHYPISF VFPSTMIPGALVMDTVMLLTRNWMITALVGGGAFGLLFYPGNMPIFGPTHLPLVVEGV LLSVADYTGFLVRRTGFPEVYRNIEQGSLRTFGGHTTVIJAAFFAAFISMLMFCIWWYF GKLYCTAFFYVKGHRGRVTMKNDVTAFGEEGFPEGIK" 1333>1628 /dene="amoBl"</pre>		/dD_xret="PIU:g3282/54"
//transiation="MSRMIDAVYFPILCILLVGTYHMH-MLLAGDUDWLDWKDRQWW PVVTPIVGITYCAAIMYYLWVNYRLPFGATLCIVCLLSGEWLTRYWGFYWSHYPISF VFPSTMIPGALVMDTYMLLTRWMITALVGGGAFGLLFYPGNMPIGPTHLPLVVEGV LLSVADYTGFLYVRTGTPEYVRNIEQGSLRTFGGHTTVIAAFFAAFISMLMFCIWWYF GKLYCTAFFYVKGHRGRVTMKNDVTAFGEEGFPEGIK" 1333>1628 /gene="mmbBl"		/db_xret="G1:3282/54"
PVVIPIVGITYCAAIMYYLWVNYRLPFGATLCIVCLLSGEWLTRYWGFWWSHYPIS VFPSTMIPGALVMDIVMLLTRNWMITALVGGGAFGLLFYPGNWPIFGPTHLPLVVEGV LLSVADVTGFLYVRGTPEVVRNIEGSLRTFGGHTTVIAAFFAAFISMLMFCIWWYF GKLYCTAFFYVKGHRGRVTMKNDVTAFGEEGFPEGIK" 1333>1628 /acme="amoBl"		/translation="MSRMIDAVYFPILCILLVGIYHMHFMLLAGDWDFWLDWKDRQWW
VFPSTMIPGALVMDTVMLLTRNMMITALVGGGAFGLLFYPGNMPIFGPTHLPLVVEGV LLSVADYTGFLYVRTGTPEVVRNIEQGSLRTFGGHTTVIAAFFAAFISMLMFCIWWYF GKLYCTAFFYVKGHRGRVTMKNDVTAFGEEGFPEGIK" 1333>1628 /gene="ambB1"		PVVTPIVGITYCAAIMYYLWVNYRLPFGATLCIVCLLSGEWLTRYWGFYWWSHYPISF
LLSVADYTGFLYVRGTPEYVRNIEQGSLRTFGGHTTVIAAFFAAFISMLMFCIWWYF GKLYCTAFFYVKGHRGRVTMKNDVTAFGEEGFPEGIK" 1333>1628 /gene="mmbBl"		VEPSIMIPGALVMDTVMLLTRNWMITALVGGGAFGLLEYPGNWPIEGPIHLPLVVEGV
GKLYCTAFFYVKGHRGRVTMKNDVTAFGEEGFPEGIK" gene 1333>1628 /gene="amoB1"		LLSVADYTGFLYVRTGTPEYVRNIEQGSLRTFGGHTTVIAAFFAAFISMLMFCIWWYF
gene 1333>1628 /gene="amoB1"		GKLYCTAFFYVKGHRGRVTMKNDVTAFGEEGFPEGIK"
/gene="amoB1"	gene	1333>1628
- Jerre anova		/gene="amoB1"
CDS 1333>1628	CDS	1333>1628
/gene="amoB1"		/gene="amoB1"
/note="AmoB1; similar to Nitrosospira sp. NpAV AmoB1		/note="AmoB1: similar to Nitrosospira sp. NpAV AmoB1
protein encoded by GenBank Accession Number AF032438"		protein encoded by GenBank Accession Number AF032438"
/codon start=1		/codon start=1
/trans] table=11		/trans] table=11
/product="ammonia monooxygenase subunit Bl"		/product="ammonia monooxygenase subunit B1"
/protein id="AAC25056 1"		/protein id="AAC25056 1"
/db xref="PID:g3282755"		/db_xref="PID:03282755"
/db_xref="G1-3282755"		/db_xref="GI-3282755"
/translation="MNAKNI EKI GVVGI YGMATI AMTI AL DISDAAAUCEDSOEDELD		/translation="MNAKNI EKI GVVGI VGMATI AMTI AL DISDAAAUGEDSGEDELD
RASE COUNT 274 2 500 c 464 c 200 t 1 othors	RASE COUNT	274 2 E00 c 464 a 290 t 1 othors
DADE LUURI 3/4 d 300 C 404 9 209 C 1 ULIELS	ODICIN	5/4 a 500 c 404 y 203 c 1 0thers
1 etosecosta tootticoss concessos sasatestes tessesses estestises	1 etc	

	61	taaccogtag	аадсадааас	atcaaacqqc	coogaaatcc	caaccattta	gttaaaggcc	
	121	gaagctgaaa	caaaggctga	agccgaaaca	gactgactga	2222622662	gctcccgcaa	
	181	cccggagagg	agcggctgca	cagcagaccc	aggaagacca	p333292933	actgacccca	
	241	ggcgggggacac	ggggtacgaa	ctacagegea	accogggcac	qacccqqaca	qcaccaqcqt	
	301	aaaaaaggt	cctactgcac	agaccgcacc	gatcgccaga	gattcagcga	acqqaqcaqa	
	361	aagcagcaca	aaaagcgaca	gcgcaggtgc	ggcccggcca	ggcccaagag	qcqqaqaqac	
	421	aacaatgcag	cacgagcgaa	agaccacggc	agcacgaaca	cattattcat	gtatcaagat	
	481	cgtagacata	cttgagggga	gggtgcgatg	agcagaacag	acgaaatact	aaaggcggcc	
	541	aaaatgccgc	ccgaagcagt	atagatgtcc	aggatgatag	acgcggtata	tttcccgatt	
	601	ctatgcatcc	tgctggttgg	gacctaccac	atgcacttca	tgctgctggc	aggagactgg	
	661	gacttctggc	tggactggaa	agaccgtcaa	tggtggccgg	tggtaacccc	gatcgtgggc	
	721	atcacctact	gtgccgccat	catgtactac	ctgtgggtga	actaccggct	cccgtttggc	
	781	gcgaccctgt	gcatcgtgtg	cctgctgtcg	ggtgaatggc	tgacccgcta	ctgggghttc	
	841	tactggtggt	cgcactaccc	catcagette	gtatttcctt	ccaccatgat	accgggtgcc	
	901	ctggtcatgg	acacggtcat	gctgctcacg	cgcaactgga	tgatcaccqc	cctggttggc	
	961	ggcggcgcct	ttggcctctt	gttctaccct	ggcaactggc	ccatctttqq	cccgacccac	
1	1021	ctgccgctgg	tagtggaagg	cgtactgctg	tcggtagctg	actacaccgg	cttcctgtat	
-	1081	gtacgtaccg	gcacgcctga	gtatgtccgc	aacatcgaac	aaggeteget	gcgcaccttt	
1	1141	ggcggccaca	ccacggtcat	tgccgcattc	tttgccgcct	tcatctccat	gctcatgttc	
-	1201	tgcatctggt	ggtactttgg	caaactctac	tgcaccgcgt	tcttctacgt	caaaggccac	
	1261	cgcggccgtg	tcaccatgaa	gaacgacgtc	actgcatttg	gcgaagaagg	ctttccagag	
ļ	1321	gggataaaat	aaatgaacgc	aaagaacctg	ttcaaactgg	gcgtagtcgg	gctctacggc	
	1381	atggccaccc	tggccatgac	cctggcgctg	gacatctcgc	ctgcggcggc	acacggcgag	
1	1441	cgctcgcagg	aacccttcct	gcgcatgcgg	accaaccagt	ggtatgacat	gaaatggggc	
1	1501	cccgagacca	ccaaggtcaa	cgacttggcc	agcatgaccg	gcaagttcca	cctggccgag	
1	1561	gactggccgc	gggcggtggg	caaaccgacc	cgcgccttct	tcaacgtcgg	cagccccagc	
1	1621	cccgtata						

LOCUS	NOU96611 744 bp DNA BCT 18-MAY-1997
DEFINITION	Nitrosococcus oceanus ammonia monooxygenase subunit A (amoA) gene.
ACCESSION	LIGGET
NID	q2104719
VERSION KEYWORDS	U96611.1 GI:2104719
SOURCE ORGANISM	Nitrosococcus oceanus. Nitrosococcus oceanus
DEFERENCE	Eubacteria: Proteobacteria: gamma subdivision: Nitrosococcus.
AUTUODS	1 (Ddses 1 to 744)
TITLE	Alzerreca.J.J., Norton.J.M. dnu Niot2,M.G.
TITLE	bacteria
JOURNAL	Unpublished
REFERENCE	2 (bases 1 to 744)
AUTHORS	Alzerreca, J.J., Norton, J.M. and Klotz, M.G.
TITLE	Direct Submission
JOURNAL	Submitted (05-APR-1997) Dept. of Plants, Soils and Biometeorology, Logan, UT 84322; and Department of Biology, University of Colorado, 1200 Larimer Street CB 171 Denver CO 80217-3364 USA
FEATURES	Location/Qualifiers
source	1744
	/organism="Nitrosococcus oceanus" /strain="C-107"
	/note="isolated from seawater by F Valois and S W Watson

(Woods Hole Collection)" /db xref="taxon:1229" gene 1...744 /gene="amoA" 1..744 /gene="amoA" /note="similar to Methylococcus capsulatus methane monooxygenase subunit PmoA2, encoded by Genbank Accession Number U94337, and to Nitrosomonas europaea acetylene binding protein (ammonia monooxygenase subunit A). PIR Accession Number A49853. N. oceanus has only one ammonia monooxygenase amoA gene." /codon start=1 /transl table=11 /product="ammonia monooxygenase subunit A" /protein id="AAB57809.1" /db xref="PID:q2104720" /db xref="GI:2104720" /translation="MSALTSAVRTPEEAAKVFRTLDFIALGAFFMILLASHHVHVMLL MGDWDFWVDWKDRRFWVTVVPIVSVAYPAAAOAFFWEKFRLPFGATLVTLGVLAGEWA NRYENEVGETYEPINEVWPTILLPMALELDAMLAISKSYGLTAVVGGLMYGLLMYPAN WPLLSAFHVPAEYNGVVMSLADIMGYQYVRTGTPEYIRMVEKGTLKTFGKDVVPVSAF FSGFVAMVMYFVWHFVGRWFSKDYHINQL" BASE COUNT 137 a 161 c 203 g 243 t ORIGIN 1 atgagtgcac ttacgtctgc ggttcgtaca ccggaggaag ctgctaaagt ctttagaacg 61 ttggatttta tagcgttagg ggcttttttt atgattttgc tggcttccca ccacgttcac 121 gtcatgcttt taatggggga ctgggacttc tgggttgact ggaaagaccg gcgtttttgg 181 gtcaccgtag ttcccattgt atcggttgct taccccgctg ctgcacaggc gtttttttgg 241 gagaagttcc gccttccctt tggtgctacc cttgtaacgc taggggtgtt agcaggtgag 301 tgggctaacc gctactttaa tttcgtaggg tttacctatt ttccgattaa tttcgtatgg 361 ccgaccattc tgctgcccat ggcgctgttc ttggatgcca tgcttgcgat ttccaagagc 421 tacggottga cggcggtagt gggtggatta atgtacggtt tgttgatgta tcccgctaac 481 tggccgctgc tttcggcatt ccatgtgcct gctgagtaca atggagtagt aatgtctttg 541 gccgatatta tgggctacca atacgtccgg accggtactc ctgagtatat ccggatggtt 601 gaaaaaggta cgttgaaaac gtttggtaag gacgtggtcc cggtttcagc tttcttctcg 661 ggttttgttg ccatggtaat gtactttgtg tggcactttg ttggccgctg gttctccaag 721 gactaccata tcaaccaatt gtaa

LOCUS	AF047705 3347 bp DNA BCT 02-JUL-1998
DEFINITION	Nitrosococcus oceanus ammonia monooxygenase subunit A (amoA) and ammonia monooxygenase subunit B (amoB) genes, complete cds; and
ACCESSION	unknown gene.
NID	g3282844
VERSION	AF047705.1 GI:3282844
KEYWORDS	
SOURCE	Nitrosococcus oceanus.
ORGANISM	Nitrosococcus oceanus
	Eubacteria: Proteobacteria: gamma subdivision: Nitrosococcus.
REFERENCE	1 (bases 1 to 3347)
AUTHORS	Alzerreca.J.J., Norton.J.M. and Klotz.M.G.
TITLE	Sequence analysis of ammonia monooxygenase operons in nitrifying bacteria

JOURNAL	Unpublished
REFERENCE	2 (bases 1 to 3347)
AUTHORS	Alzerreca.J.J., Norton.J.M. and Klotz.M.G.
TITLE	Direct Submission
JOURNAL	Submitted (11-FEB-1998) Department of Plants, Soils and
	Biometeorology, Utah State University, Logan, UT 84322, USA and
	Department of Biology University of Colorado 1200 Larimer Street
	(B171 Denver CO 80217-3364 USA
FFATURES	Location/Oualifiers
Source	1 2247
Source	1
	/organism= Nitrosococcus oceanus
	/strain="C-10/"
	/db_xref="taxon:1229"
termina	ator 131173
gene	3771132
	/gene="amoA"
RBS	377382
	/gene="amoA"
CDS	3891132
	/gene="amoA"
	/note="similar to Nitrosococcus oceanus ammonia
	monooxygenase subunit A GenBank Accession Number 196611.
	Nitrosococcus oceanus has only one ammonia monooxygenase
	amon gene "
	/codon_stant=1
	/craftsi_table=11
	/product= ammonia monooxygenase subunit A
	/protein_id= AAU25091.1
	/db_xret="P10:g3282845"
	/db_xref="GI:3282845"
	/translation="MSALTSAVRTPEEAAKVFRTLDFIALGAFFMILLASHHVHVMLL
	MGDWDFWVDWKDRRFWVTVVPIVSVAYPAAAQAFFWEKFRLPFGATLVTLGVLAGEWA
	NRYFNFVGFTYFPINFVWPTILLPMALFLDAMLAISKSYGLTAVVGGLMYGLLMYPAN
	WPLLSAFHVPAEYNGVVMSLADIMGYQYVRTGTPEYIRMVEKGTLKTFGKDVVPVSAF
	FSGFVAMVMYFVWHFVGRWFSKDYHINOL"
gene	1183. 2567
1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1	/gene="amoB"
RBS	11831188
	/gene="amoB"
CDS	1198 2448
	/gene="amoB"
	/note="similar to Methylococcus cansulatus methane
	monocyvgenase subunit DmoR2. ConPark Accession Number
	HOHOOXYGEHASE SUDUFFIC FINODZ, GEHDATIK ACCESSION WUMDER
	094337, and to Nitrosospira sp. NpAv annonia nonooxygenase
	SUDURITIES B. GERBARK ACCESSION NUMBERS AF032438. AF016003
	and 092432
	/codon_start=1
	/transl_table=11
	/product="ammonia monooxygenase subunit B"
	/protein_id="AAC25092.1"
	/db_xref="PID:g3282846"
	/db_xref="GI:3282846"
	/translation="MKGTHITNRARKWLAIGFTAVIASSVFYIPTVAAHGEKAOAAFL
	RMRTIHWYDMVWSKDTIAVNETYTISGKFRVFEDWPEAVEKPHVSEI NAGOPGPVTAR
	LTSYVNGMEVPRSIGLELGGDYDEEMTMOGRRPGTWHVHTLLNVOGGGPLIGPGKYTT
	ITGOMADEENKITDI TGNTVNI ETMATGTVIGWHI SWYVI GIAWIGUWARROMEI PRV
	MKTKAGKANDI I TAODKKI TIGVI VGVI I TIL EGSKNAEDKEDVTTDI OAGU GTTOS
	THE ADDREET ADDREET AT A THE ADDREET ADDREED AT A THE ADDREED ADDREET ADDRE

			LPVDYNSMVS	ANVLKANYRVP	GRTISMTVEIT	NHTDQVISIGE	FNTGGIRFMNANVRV
			DETDYPEELL	APEGLEVSQQD.	IAPGETVVVDI:	SATDAAWEVQR	MADVIYDPDSRFAGL
			IFFVDPEGNE	IPIPIGGPLVP'	TFV"		
	term	inator	25312567				
			/gene="amol	В"			
	RBS		26552662				
	CDS		26713234				
			/note="ORF	4: similar 1	to ORF4 in I	Nitrosospira	a sp. NpAV.
			GenBank Ac	cession Num	ber U92432"		
			/codon sta	rt=1			
			/trans] tal	ble=11			
			/product="	unknown"			
			/protein i	d="AAC25093	1"		
			/db yref="	PID-0328284	7"		
			/db_xref="	GI · 3282847"			
			/translati	on="MKKV1151	CLASEGULLIN	TSAMAHGGGGT	TDOCVVNTGNYRMH
			FEAVOPETSC	SEEL CHOL DATE	STIL VEDI VD	DI POPPVEVP	IVEFORTAAGPSNVN
			PIVERPVOKY	PROTIEL DTOF	TKAGEYTAVVI	GGDOPMVEKAL	FEWVSRESRDESGS
			PRSLAVITI	SI TEWYSPRCG	KEAKAS"		LI LAVOREDRI I DUD
RASE	COLIN	809	a 680 c	887 a	971 +		
ORIGI	IN	005 1	000 0	007 9	5/1 0		
United	1	agattttaca	agottcacco	CCGBBGGBGG	aattoatcoc	canagactor	адсададсда
	61	ggactatocc	cotactoat	atttaagatt	atcatattto	attttcagtt	ancoaagoot
	121	tgaatagaag	ogcageogae	atctccggaa	tanttaatna	gatcatagec	acctttttat
	181	ataaagtoct	ggeggeegee	tttattaggg	atacocttat	ttatatcooo	ttgaaagaaa
	241	topaagtaag	caacctaato	anaaantanc	tottaaaata	antoncagga	ancatacett
	301	tagaattcat	agatttctag	atconatoaa	tgaataatca	taaattaatt	tazatanaan
	361	cottaatatt	tttaggagg	candtttaat	gaatacactt	acatetacaa	ttcotacacc
	121	contractat	cctaggaggg	ttagaacatt	gaytycactt	acytetycyg	cttttttt
	421	gyayyaayuu	gettadagici	acatteacat	gyattitata	ycyccagygy	aggaetteta
	541	gattaactaa	aaanacconc	atttttaaat	caccotactt	cccattotat	contractta
	601	ggilgaligg	adagaccygc	ttttttagg	catcytaytt	cttoccttta	atactaccet
	661	totaacocta	gcacaggcgc	canatoaata	gadyttecge	tactttaatt	tcatagatt
	721	tacctatttt	ggggtgttag	toggugagug	ggctadccyc	ctacccataa	cactattett
	781	agataccata	cttacattt	ccaacagota	gaccattoaca	acastastas	atagattaat
	8/1	gyargecarg	ttastatata	ccactaacta	accactactt	togocattoc	atatacctac
	001	toantacaat	coactactaa	tatetttaac	contattato	contaccaat	acgtgcctgc
	961	contacteet	ggugtatatoc	coatcottoa	aaaanntach	ttaaaaacat	ttootaagoa
	1021	cataateeca	atttcaactt	tetteteoga	ttttattacc	atontaatot	actitatata
	1081	acactttatt	geccagect	tctccaagga	ctaccatate	aaccaattot	aaaatcottt
	1141	otoataatoa	ggeegetggt	tctaaaattc	taaaatacaa	aaanananana	ggagaacatg
	1201	aaanotaccc	atataacaaa	tcoaoccaga	aantooctag	ccattogott	tactoconto
	1261	atagenteaa	acattttcta	tattccoaca	ataactacco	atoocgagaa	acacagoggig
	1321	actitectac	gegetteeta	aatccattoo	tatgacatog	tatootccaa	ggegeuggeu
	1201	gcccttaata	gcacgcggac	cataaccoc	aadttooggo	tttttaagaa	ttaaccaaaa
	1441	geggttaatg	agaccitatat	atcottttta	adytteggy	acctgates	antcachact
	1501	gcagtcgaaa	accentera	tootatotto	atcostcatt	addinggict	tapattagac
	1561	cggcttactt	attttaacat	cygtatyttt	giccicitytt	ctagaggttt	coatottoat
	1621	ggcgattactag	atticcaada	yacyacycaa	gggcgccgtc	coggiacyty	catcaccatt
	1601	accurgeraa	togeteattt	taaaaacaaa	atcaccygic	taggiadata	taccatcaac
	1741	accyyayata	tagecacca	cacaattatt	attageste	tatectacta	cattettaat
	1001	atogoatacca	ttagatagt	cacyguidti	ggilggidic	taccoggid	cytterigyt
	1001	alegeelgga	rigggrggtg	ggcccgccgt	cccatgitCt	ryccccgcta	Lalyddddid
	1001	aaggcgggCa	aggeraarga	totttadCt	geccaggaca	addaattgaC	tataggegte
	1921	ctcgtggggg	licigereat	tagestaget	gyctccaaga	algelgagga	LaddLLCCCd
	1981	gicaccatte	cyttgcaggc	lgggctgctg	ggcactattg	actecttgee	gguggattat
	2041	aattcgatgg	taagcgctaa	cgtgcttaag	gctaactatc	gggtgccggg	gcggactatc
	/101	DDJ6DT6JD6	TEGAGATCAC	Taaccatact	Gaccadotoa	DDTTCTATTOO	COADTICAAT

2161	actgggggca	ttcgattcat	gaatgcaaat	gtgcgggttg	atgagacgga	ttatcctgag	
2221	gagttgttgg	caccggaagg	gttggaagtg	agtcaacagg	atatcgctcc	aggtgaaacc	
2281	gtagttgttg	acatctccgc	caccgatgcc	gcctgggaag	ttcagcgtat	ggccgacgtc	
2341	atttatgatc	cagacagccg	ctttgcgggc	ttgatcttct	tcgttgatcc	agaggggaat	
2401	gagattccga	tacctatcgg	cggtccatta	gttcccacgt	ttgtttagaa	agaagtatct	
2461	ttaactattt	atgttgcatg	tggtgtacga	cagcaatatg	gtagattaaa	ctgttcccat	
2521	tgaattaaac	accggcccct	tgtcccatgg	gtggacgaag	ggccggttgt	ttgctgtcct	
2581	ttccattttt	ttttttatct	tgtggctcgg	tcttttcagg	ctctgaagct	gcgttttagt	
2641	taatccctca	gagcaaaaag	gtattagctt	atgaaaaaag	tactacttag	ctgccttgta	
2701	tcgtttggat	tattgttgct	aaatacttcc	gccatggccc	atgggggagg	aggaattgaa	
2761	acagatcagt	gcgttgtcaa	tatcggtaat	taccgaatgc	attttttgc	ttaccaaccg	
2821	gaaacttctg	gtggtgaaga	gctgtgctgg	gacttgccga	tgacgggaag	caccatttta	
2881	gtgtttgatt	tagtggatag	gatattgcgt	gatcggccgg	ttgaggttcg	gatcgttgaa	
2941	gagcagaaaa	cggccgctgg	cccgtcaaat	tataatccca	tagtagagcg	tccggttcaa	
3001	aaatatccaa	agggaactat	tgagcttgat	accgatttta	ccaaagcagg	agaatacact	
3061	gcggtagtta	ttcttggtgg	tgatcaaccg	atggtcttca	aagcactctt	cgagtgggtc	
3121	tccagggaga	gcagaccgtt	cagtggatcg	cctcgatcgc	tggcggtgct	tcttattttg	
3181	gggcttattt	tttggtatag	tcgccgtggc	ggaaaagagg	ccaaggcatc	ctagtttcaa	
3241	tccaattgga	attggatact	ttaaatagta	ttcacagcgt	ttagaacata	atagaaggaa	
3301	gtttccccgg	cattccatta	tccaaataat	ggaatgccgg	ggaattc		

LOCUS DEFINITION	NEU96187 606 bp DNA BCT 03-JUN-1997 Nitrosomonas europaea ammonia monooxygenase C1 (amoCl) gene.
ACCESSION NID VERSION KEYWORDS	partial cds. U96187 g2149937 U96187.1 GI:2149937
SOURCE ORGANISM	Nitrosomonas europaea. Nitrosomonas europaea Eubacteria: Proteobacteria: beta subdivision: Ammonia-oxidizing bacteria: Nitrosomonas
REFERENCE	1 (bases 1 to 606)
AUTHORS	Alzerreca.J.J., Norton.J.M. and Klotz.M.G.
TITLE	AmoC. a third product of the ammonia monooxygenase operon in
10000000	Nitrosomonas europaea
DESEDENCE	Unpublished
AUTHODS	Alzarraca 1 1
TITIF	Direct Submission
JOURNAL	Submitted (02-APR-1997) Plants, Soils & Biometeorology. Utah State University, UMC 4820, Logan, UT 84322, USA
FEATURES	Location/Qualifiers
source	1606
	/organism="Nitrosomonas europaea" /strain="ATCC 25978"
	/db xref="taxon:915"
	/note="PCR product from 6.7Kb EcoRI genomic DNA fragment"
gene	<1606
	/gene="amoC1"
CDS	<1606
	/gene= amol1"
	similar to the Nitrosospira sp. NpAV ammonia monooxygenase:

	Number U72981; membrane protein"
	/codon start=1
	/transī table=11
	/product="ammonia monooxygenase C1"
	/protein id="AAB58694.1"
	/db_xref="PID:g2149938"
	/db_xref="GI:2149938"
	/translation="WRVHMAIMPLFALVTWGWILKTRDTKEQLDNLDPKLEIKRYFYY
	MMWLGVYIFGVYWGGSFFTEQDASWHQVIIRDTSFTPSHVVVFYGSFPMYIVCGVATY
	LYAMTRLPLFSRGISFPLVMAIAGPLMILPNVGLNEWGHAFWFMEELFSAPLHWGFVV
	LGWAGLFQGGVAAQIITRYSNLTDVVWNNQSKEILNNRIVA"
BASE COUNT	131 a 130 c 165 g 180 t
ORIGIN	
1 t	ggcgtgtac atatggcaat catgccgctg tttgcgctgg ttacctgggg ttggatcctg
61 a	aaacgegtg ataegaaaga geaattggat aatetggate eeaaaetgga aateaaaege
121 ti	acticiact acatgaigig goigggigta tacattilig gigittactg gggigglagc
181 t	tottoacgg agcaagatgo ctoctggcac caagtgatta ttogtgatac cagtttoacg
241 0	
301 di	trateginal tracegona attrategit startage tractategy constants
301 g	italyycyd ilycdyycic yllydiydil clyciaday llyyrilydd cydylyyyyr
421 0	tagactoga capatotatt cooggataat attacaacto agatoottac costtattac
401 U 5/1 a	atotoacco atotoottto paacaaccaa ancaaagaaa ttotoaataa coppattota
601 0	cttaa
//	
LOCUS	AF073793 880 bp DNA BCT 24-0CT-1998
DEFINITION	Nitrosomonas europaea ammonia monooxygenase 3 subunit C (amoC3)
	gene. complete cds.
ACCESSION	AF073793
NID	g3284009
VERSION	AF073793.1 GI:3284009
KEYWORDS	
SOURCE	Nitrosomonas europaea.
ORGANISM	Nitrosomonas europaea
	Bacteria: Proteobacteria: beta subdivision: Ammonia-oxidizing
DEFEDENCE	Dacteria: Nitrosomonas.
REFERENCE	I (Dases I to 660)
AUTHURS	Sayaveura-Solo,L.A., Hommes,N.G., Arzerreca.J.J., Arp.D.J.,
TITLE	Transcription of the ame(ame) and ameR cones in Nitrocomonas
TITLE	auropage and Nitrosospine sp. NpAV
101 IPNAL	FEMS Microbiol Lett 167 (1) 81-88 (1998)
REFERENCE	2 (bases 1 to 880)
AUTHORS	Savavedra-Soto L A Hommes N G Alzerreca J Arp D J
1011010	Norton J M and Klotz M G
TITLE	Direct Submission
JOURNAL	Submitted (22-JUN-1998) Botany, Oregon State University, Cordley
	Hall 2082, Corvallis, OR 97331, USA
FEATURES	Location/Qualifiers
source	1880
	/organism="Nitrosomonas europaea"
	/db xref="taxon:915"
gene	17841

	/gene= amous
CDS	17841
	/gene="amoC3"
	/codon start=1
	/trans] table=11
	/product="ammonia_monooxygenase_3_subunit_C"
	/protein id="AAC67303 1"
	(db.vecf="UID.co294010"
	(db xref= P10:93284010
	/db_xret= G1:3284010
	/transiation="MAISILKOKTAQQVIDKPAYDXSEWFDAKYYKYGLLPILGIAVFWWWQRTFAYSHGMDSMEPDFDRI MGLWRVOMVVIALAAFSIWGWLLKTRNTAEQLASLTPKOEIKRYFYHMMLGVYIFAVYWGSSFFTEQDASWHQVIIRDTSF PSHIPLFYGSFPVYIIMGIAMIIYAKTRLPLYNKGWSFPLIMVVAGPLMSLPNVGLNEWGHAFWFMEELFSAPLHWGFVILA
	AALFQGGLAIQLIIRISNLVDVEWNKQDRAILDDVVIIP
BASE COUNT	203 a 210 c 232 g 235 t
ORIGIN	
1 8	agaaggagcg tcatttatgg ctacaagcat attgaaggat aagactgcac agcaagtcac
61 t	toataaacco octtacgaca aatcagaato otttgacgoc aagtactaca aatacggoct
121 0	concrete characteria contractor and activity second and the state
101	
241 4	carggearg gallegargy ageoggarri igaceggare iggargggte igrggegrgt
241 0	cagalggic glialigeet tggcageatt etceatetgg ggatggetgt tgaaaaeeeg
301 9	jaatacggca gaacagottg coagootgao toocaaacag gaaataaago ggtattttta
361 t	itteatgatg tggettggag tetatatatt tgeegtttae tggggateaa gettetttae
421 0	gagcaagac gootcatggo accaggtgat tatcogggat accagtttta caccoagoca
481 t	attected tictatgget cattered atacate atggetatag coatgateat
541 t	tacoccaaa accogottac contotataa caagogotog togttoccog taatcatogt
601 a	ntancence constanta attances attanta stantas stantage accted
661 6	igt george cogergatig tet george a tet george and g
001 0	Lugiteaty gaagaactet teagegegee actgeactgg ggettegita teetggeetg
/21 g	gergeeerg ticeagggig gietigeeat acageteata acaegitati eeaateiggi
781 t	gacgtggaa tggaacaagc aggacagagc cattetggae gatgtegtaa caaeteegta
841 a	accgggcata tttccaaccc tctggtaaat tcaggggtt
11	
LOCUS	NUMO1602 1407 by DNA DOT 14 100 1007
LUCUS	NMU91603 1487 DP DNA BCI 14-APR-1997
DEFINITION	Nitrosolobus multiformis ammonia monooxygenase subunit AmoCl
	(amoCl) gene. partial cds. ammonia monooxygenase subunit AmoAl
	(amoAl) gene. complete cds. and ammonia monooxygenase subunit AmoBl
	(amoB1) gene partial cds
ACCESSION	191603
NID	a1035033
VEDSTON	9195905
VERSION	041003.1 01:1435033
KEYWURUS	
SOURCE	Nitrosolobus multiformis.
ORGANISM	Nitrosolobus multiformis
	Fubacteria: Proteobacteria: beta subdivision: Ammonia-oxidizing
	hactoria, Nitrosolabus
DECEDENCE	
REFERENCE	1 (Dases 1 to 1487)
AUTHORS	Norton,J.M., Alzerreca,J. and Klotz,M.G.
TITLE	The ammonia monooxygenase operon in Nitrosolobus multiformis
JOURNAL	Unpublished
REFERENCE	2 (bases 1 to 1487)
AUTHORS	Klotz M.G
TITIE	Direct Submission
TOUDNAL	Cubrithed (OC EED 1007) Deserves of Distance U.S.
JUUKNAL	Submitted (28-FEB-1997) Department of Biology. University of
	Colorado, 1200 Larimer Street, CB 171, Denver, CO 80217-3363, USA
FEATINES	Location (Qualificant

source	11487
	/organism="Nitrosolobus multiformis"
	/strain="ATCC25196: C-71"
	/db_xref="taxon:1231"
nene	<1 50
gene	/gong="amo(1"
000	
CUS	<150
	/gene= amocl
	/note="putative membrane protein: similar to Nitrosospira
	NpAV AmoC3 protein, encoded by GenBank Accession number
	U72981"
	/codon start=3
	/transl table=11
	/product="ammonia monooxygenase subunit AmoCl"
	/protein id="AAR51758 1"
	/db vrof="PID.a1035034"
	/db_xref="CL-1025024"
	/ub_xre1= u1:1930034
000	/LEADSTATION= KVIPNNKIVPTUKAF
CDS	113337
	/function="putative regulator of amo gene expression"
	/note="ORF2"
	/codon_start=1
	/transl_table=11
	/product="unknown"
	/protein id="AAB51759.1"
	/db xref="PID:q1935035"
	/db_xref="GI:1935035"
	/translation="MRPAVTOPGRI KOCEAAAPGAKGEGSRRIREOOGSDKGELOSCR
	DI I NHEVDENEDODHOCI OCHOAVEOHOND"
0000	274 1100
gene	3/41190 ///////////////////////////////////
CDC	7genes alloat
CDS	3/41198
	/gene="amoAl"
	/note= similar to Nitrosomonas europaea ammonia
	monooxygenase acetylene-binding protein. encoded by
	GenBank Accession Number L08050"
	/codon_start=1
	/transl_table=11
	/product="ammonia monooxygenase subunit AmoA1"
	/protein_id="AAB51760.1"
	/db xref="PID:g1935036"
	/db xref="GI:1935036"
	/translation="MSRTDEILKAAKMPPEAVKMSRMIDVIYEPILCILLVGTYHMHE
	MILAGDWDEWLDWKDROWWPVVTPTVGTTYCAATMYYLWVNYRLPEGATLCTVCLLVG
	FWI TREWGEYWWSHYPMNEVEPSTMIPGALVMDTVLLLTPNWMITALVGGGAEGLLEV
	DONUTIEGDTHI DI VAEQUI I SVADVICEI VVDICIDEVVDI LEOCSI DIECCUTTUI
2000	1100 - 1407
gene	1199>1487
000	/gene= amoB1
CDS	1199>1487
	/gene="amoB1"
	/note="similar to Nitrosomonas europaea ammonia
	monooxygenase protein AmoB. encoded by GenBank Accession
	Number L08050"
	/codon start=1
	/transl table=11
	/product="ammonia monooxygenase subunit AmoB1"
	produce annothe monouvygendse subunite Anout

	/protein_10	1= AAB51/61	.1			
	/db_xref="f	PID:g193503	/"			
	/db_xref="(GI:1935037"				
	/translatio	on="MKNLFKKS	SIAGVCSLAAL	GLALTLDIQPA	AAHGERSQEPFLF	MR
	TIQWYDMKWG	PETTKVNDIAT	MTGKFHLAEDWI	PRAVGKPGRAF	-NVGSPSPV-	
322 8	a 416 c	441 g	308 t			
gtaaagtcat	tcccaataac	cgcatcgtac	cgtacgacaa	ggcgttttaa	ggactgactc	
gctgacacac	gcataagcag	caatagccgc	atcgcctccg	aacaggagag	cgatgcggcc	
agcggtaaca	cagccgggca	gactcaagca	atgcgaagcg	gcggcacctg	gagcaaaagg	
ggaagggagt	cgccggatcc	gggagcaaca	aggaagcgac	aagggattta	tacagtcatg	
tagaccettg	ttgaatcacg	aggttcccgg	gaattcgcgg	caacgtcatc	agggactgca	
aggatggcaa	gcagtagagc	agcacggcaa	cgattgatat	gttttagtcg	cgtaacattt	
gagggagggt	gcgatgagca	gaacagatga	aatactgaag	gcggcgaaga	tgccgcccga	
agcggtaaag	atgtccagga	tgatagacgt	gatttacttc	ccgattctat	gcatcctgct	
ggttggaacc	taccacatgc	acttcatgct	gctggcgggt	gactgggact	tctggcttga	
ctggaaggac	cggcaatggt	ggcctgtggt	aaccccaatt	gtagggatca	cctactgtgc	
cgcgatcatg	tactacctgt	gggtgaacta	ccgcctgccg	tttggagcca	cactgtgcat	
cgtgtgcctt	ctggtgggtg	aatggctgac	ccgtttctgg	ggtttctact	ggtggtcgca	
ctaccccatg	aactttgtat	tcccctccac	catgattccc	ggcgcgctgg	tgatggacac	
cgtcctgctt	ctgacgcgca	actggatgat	cacggcactg	gttggcggcg	gcgcctttgg	
tttgttgttc	tatcctggca	actggaccat	cttcgggccg	acccacctgc	cgctggtggc	
agaaggcgtg	ctgctctcgg	tagccgacta	cacgggcttt	ctgtatgtcc	gtaccggcac	
ccctgagtac	gtgcgactga	tcgaacaagg	gtcactgcgc	acctttggcg	gtcacaccac	
cgttatcgcc	tccttcttct	ccgcgttcgt	ctccatgctc	atgttcaccg	tctggtggta	
ctttggcaag	gtctactgca	ccgccttcta	ctatgtcaag	ggcgcgcgcg	gccgtgtcag	
catgaagaac	gacgtgacag	catttggcga	agaaggcttt	gccgagggga	tcaaataaat	
gaagaacctg	ttcaagaaga	gtatagccgg	ggtatgcagc	cttgccgccc	tgggactggc	
gctgacgctc	gacatccagc	cggcggcggc	ccacggggaa	cgctcgcagg	agccgttcct	
gcgcatgcgt	accatccagt	ggtatgacat	gaaatggggc	cccgagacca	ccaaggtcaa	
cgacatagcc	accatgaccg	gcaaattcca	cctggccgaa	gactggccgc	gcgcggtggg	
caagcctgga	cgcgccttct	tcaacgtagg	cagccccagc	ccggtgt		
	322 a gtaaagtcat gctgacacac agcggtaaca ggagggagt tagaccttg aggatggcaa ggttggaacc ctggaaggac ctggaggacgt cgtgtgcctt ctacccatg cgtctgctt ttgttgttc agaaggcgtg ccttggatac ggtaggacgt ctttggcag cattagacgt gcgcatcgg aagaacctg gcgaactcg gcgacatcgt cgacatagcc cgacatagcc	/protein_r(/db_xref="(/translati TIGWYDMKKG 322 a 416 c gtaaagtcat tcccaataac gctgacacac gcataagcag agcggtaaca cagccgggca gaggagggt gcgctgatgag agcggtaag agtgccagga gatggaag tgcatgaga ggttggaacc tacccatg cctggaaggac ggcatggt cagcatag tactacctgt cgtgtgctt ctggtgggt ctacccatg acttigtat cgtctgctt ctggcgggt agaggggg gcgatggt cttgtgtt tatcctggc agaaggcg cgcctcgg ccttggagag tcctctctct ctttggcag gctactga agaaggcg tcactaca gttggaagac gcgcatggt ctttgtgtt tatcctgg cgtatagt tctacctgt cgttagcct tctgctgg gcctagta gtcgcatgg ccttagagag gtcactgg agagactg tcactaca agaaggcg tccttcttct ctttggcag gctactgca cagacatggt accaccag gcgcatggt accaccag gcgcatggt accaccacg gcgcatggt accaccacg	/protein_id=_AABS1/61 /db_xref="PID:g193503; /db_xref="GI:193503; /db_xref="GI:193503; /db_xref="GI:193503; /db_xref="GI:193503; /lightspace- g12302; g23023;	/protein_ia= Akbi/i6.1 /db_xref="PID:g1935037" /db_xref="PID:g1935037" /translation="MKNLFKKSIAGVCSLAALU TIQWYDWKWGPTTKVNDIATMGKFHLAEDW 322 a 416 c 441 g 308 t gtaaagtcat tcccaataac cgcatcgtac cgtacgacaa gctgacacac gcatagcag catagccg atcgcatccg gaggggatac caccgggac gatcaagca atggcagcag gaagggagt gcgcggatcc gggagcaac aggaaggac tagaccctlg tigaatacag aggtccagg aatactgag gaggggagg gcgatgagac gacaggta atactgaag gaggaggg tgcgatgag gacaggta atactgag gaggaggg tgcgatgag gacaggta atactgag gaggaggag tgcgatgag tgatagacg tatactgc ggtsgacac caccastg attattactc ggttggaac taccacatg attatactc ggtggaagca cggtaggt gagtgag atgtccagga tggatgac cgctgagt ctggaagga tgcgatgg ggctgtgg aatactgag gagaggta cgccatgg tgatcatcgc ccgttcgg gtttgtt tatactga actggatgat cacgcctgcg gaagggcg tcgctcgg tagccat ctgggcgg ttgttgttc tatactga actggatgat cacggcatt gctatagt ctctctcg tagccgat tagaccgt tttggg gaaggggg ttactacga cggcttg tactactgc gttggct tttggagatga gtatcaggg gatcatggc gttggct ttcggagatga gtatcaggg gtactgg gaagggg gtcactga cggcttt tctggcg gaagggg gtcactga cggcttta tatgtcagg gtgatggt ttcagag gtatagcag gatagcag gtagagac gacggacag gtttggag gaagggt gagagagt ttcagag gtatggacg gcgataggt caccagg ggtagga gaagggg gcgatggt tccaccag ggaggacag gatggag gcgatggt accaccag ggaggacag gatggag gcgatggt accaccag ggaggg ggaaggg gcgaatggt accaccag ggaatgaa gaagggg gcgaatggt accaccag ggaatgaa gaagggg gcgaatggt accaccag ggaatgaa gaagggg gcaatagc accagagcg gaattgaac	/protein_la= AABJ/01.1 /db_xref="GI:1935037" /translation="KKNLFKKSIAGVCSLAALGLATLDIOPA/ TIOWYDMKWGPETTKVNDIATMGKFHLAEDWPRAVGKPGRAF/ 322 a 416 c 441 g 308 t gtaaagtat tcccaataac cgcatcgtac cgtacgacaa ggcgtttaa gctgacacac gcataagcag caatagccg atcgctccg aacaggagag agcggtaaca cagccgggca gatcaagca atggaagcg acagggatg gagaggat cgcogatc ggagacaca aggaagcga cagggatg agcggtaaca cagccgggac ggagacaca aggaagcga cagggatg agcggtaaca cagccgggac ggagacaca aggaagcga cagggatg ggaaggat cgcogatc ggagacaca aggaagcga cagggatg agcggtaaca cagccgggac ggagacaca aggaagcga cagggatg agcggtaaca cagccgggac ggagacga cgattgata gtttagcg gaaggaggt gcagtagac agcacggaa cgattgata gtttagcg gaggaggg cgatagac gacagaga atactgaag cggcgaaga agcggtaaga tgtccagga tgatagacg gattacttc ccgattctat ggttggaca taccacatg cattcatgt gctgcgggg gatgggaca cgcgatcatg tactacctg ggggacta cggtgcttcg ggtggcg ggtagggc tgctctcgg tagcggca cagggcgtg gttgggcg ggtcct tcggtgggt ataggcta ccgtttcg gttgggagc gctctgtt ctggcggat ggagacat ctcgggcg ttggggcg ggtaggg tgtctctcgg tagccgact cagggctt gttggggcg gttatgtg tcttctcgg tagccgact acagggctt ctgtaggc gcttatgt tctaccga actggatga cacaggc accactgc agaaggcg gtgtctccg tagccgact acagggctt ctgtagcg gcttatgg tctctctga tagcaga gacaggcag gttagcggc gttaggag ttcaagaag gtatagcag cattggca agggcgg gttatggc tctcttt ccggttgc tccatttgag ggagaactg ttcaaga gattggcag gaagagctt ctgtagg gctatgga tcaagaga gtatagcgg ggaagacct tcgaggga gaagaacctg tccaaga gattagcgg ggaagacct gccgaggg gcaaggctg cacatcag ggcgggg ccacaggga ggcgcggg gcaaggc accataga ggatgaca cattggcga gaaggcttgccga ggaagaactg tccaagaag gtatagcgg gaagagctt gccgcagg gcaagctg ccacacag ggcgggg ccacagggag ccgcggg gcaagctg accatcag ggtagacg cacagggga cccgcgaga gaagacctg tccatcad ggtagacg gaagggc ccagagag ggaagactg accataga ggtagacg cacaggga gaccggcg gcaagcgga cacaggacg gaatgacg cacaggag gacaggga ggaagacctg tccatcad ggtagacga gaagggt cacaggga gagaggc gcaagcgga gacaggacg gacaggag gaatgag gaagggg gcaaggag gacaggagga gacaggag gaatgag gaatggag gaatggag gaagacctg taccatcag ggagggag gaatgag gaagggc ccgcgagca gaa	/protein_ia= AABS1/61.1 /db_xref="FID:g1935037" /translation="MKNLFKKSIAGVCSLAALGLALTLDIOPAAAHGERSOEPFLF TIOWYOMKWGPTTKVNDIATMTGKFHLAEDWPRAVGKPGRAFFNVGSPSPV" 322 a 416 c 441 g 308 t gtaaagtcat tcccaataac cgcatcgtac ggtacgacaa ggcgttttaa ggactgactc gctgacacac gcataagcag caatagccg atcgcctcg aacaggagag cgatgoggcc agcggtaaca cagccggaca gactcaagca atggcaagcg gcggcactg gagcaacag ggaaggagt gcgcggatcc ggagaacac aggaagcga caaggagag cgatgoggc agcggtaaca cagccggaca gactcaagca atgcgaagg gcggcactg gagcaacag ggaaggagt gcgcggatcg ggagcacca ggagagcga caaggatga tacagtcat gagaggagg tgcgatgaga gacaggca aggaagcga caggatgaca aggatgca aggatggcaa gcagtagag agacagda gaatgata gtttagtcg gtaacattt gaggaggg tgcgatgaga gacaggtga atactgag gggcgaaga tgccgcccga agcggtaag atgtccagga tgatagatg aatactgaag gggcgaaga tgccgcccga ggttggaac taccacatg cattagct gctggcggt gactgggat tctggctga ctggatggt gagtaggt ggatgggta cactagtg gtgggggt ctagtgta ctggatggt gacagtgg gcctgtgt aacccatt gtagggatc cactgtgc gcggatctg tactacctgt ggggacat caggccat gtgggggc gcgcttgg ttstyttt tatctggca atggacgat cagggcat gtggggg gccgtggt gaagggcgg ctgctctgg tagccgat cttggcgg acccttggc gtaggt cttttcgga atggdgac tacggcatg gtggggg gccgtggg agaaggcgg ctgctctgg tagccgat cttggcgg accttggg tcacacaca cgtatggt ctcttctc ggatgat cacggcatt gtgtggcg gccgtggg agaaggcgg ctgctctgg tagccgat acagggctt ctgatggcg cctagatag tgcgacga cattggcg gacgtcat gggggg gccgtggg agaaggcgg ctgctctgg tagccgat ctaggcg gccgtggg agaaggcgg tcactgca ccgcttct ctagtcag ggcgggg gccgtggg gtaagaac gacggacag cattggcg gacgtcat agggggg cccgtggtgg gctaagaa gacggacag ctttggg ggatcatcgc ctgcgcc tgggtgg gctaagaa gacggacag gattggcag gacggg gccgtgcg gcgatggt tcacacag ggtatggca gaaggcgg gccgtgcg gcgacgt tccaaccag ggatggacag gatggcg gccgtgga gacgtggc gctgacgt tcaacacag cggcgggg gcacggg gacgggg cccgggacgg gctgacgt tccaaccag ggatggacag gatggcg gccgtgga gacggcg gctgacgt tccaaccag ggacgaca caggggad cacggga gccgccc tggaggac gacagctgg gtcaccgg gatggcac gacggg gacggcc gacggg gcaggagg ggaggacga gacagggg gcaggag gccgcc ggaggacg gaaggcgg ggaggac

LOCUS DEFINITION	AF042171 825 bp DNA BCT 02-JUL-1998 Nitrosolobus multiformis ammonia monooxygenase subunit AmoA (amoA)
ACCESSION NID	gene. complete cds. AF042171 q3282756
VERSION KEYWORDS	ÅF042171.1 GI:3282756
SOURCE ORGANISM	Nitrosolobus multiformis. Nitrosolobus multiformis
	Eubacteria: Proteobacteria: beta subdivision: Ammonia-oxidizing bacteria: Nitrosolobus.
REFERENCE	1 (bases 1 to 825)
AUTHORS	Norton.J.M., Alcerreca.J.J. and Klotz.M.G.
TITLE	Diversity of the genes encoding ammonia monooxygenase in autotrophic ammonia-oxidizing bacteria
JOURNAL	Unpublished
REFERENCE	2 (bases 1 to 825)
AUTHORS	Alzerreca.J.J., Norton.J.M. and Klotz.M.G.
TITLE	Direct Submission
JOURNAL	Submitted (09-JAN-1998) Department of Biology, University of Colorado. 1200 Larimer Street, CB171, Denver, CO 80217-3364, USA

FEATURES		Location/Qualifiers					
SOL	irce	1825					
		/organism=	"Nitrosolob	us multifor	mis"		
		/strain="N	lm24C"				
		/db xref="	taxon:1231"				
ger	le	1.825					
0		/gene="amo	Δ."				
00		1 825					
000		//////////////////////////////////////	A."				
		/gene= allo	ativo mombro	ana anatain	. cimilan t	. Nitrocoonina	
		Those put	acive memor	ane procern	: Similar u	U NILLIUSUSPILA	
		SP. NPAV A	moa protein	s. encoded	by Genbank	Accession	
		Numbers 03	8250. 02064	4 and U3835	1."		
		/codon_sta	rt=1				
		/transl_ta	ble=11				
		/product="	ammonia mon	ooxygenase	subunit Amo	Α"	
		/protein i	d="AAC25057	.1"			
		/db xref="	PID: q328275	7"			
		/db xref="	GI:3282757"				
		/translati	on="MSRTDFI	TRAAKMPPEAV	KMSRMIDVIYE	PTICTILVGTYHMHE	
		MLI AGDWDEW	I DWKDROWWPV	VTPIVGITCVA	ATMYVI WVNVPI	PYGATICIVCIIVG	
		EWI TRENCEY	LILICUVDINEVE	DSTMIDCAL IM	OTVML L TONIUM	TAL TOCCARCULEY	
		DONILIDIECDT	ULDI VAECVI I	SUADVICEL VI	DTOTOEVVDL T	TALIGUGAI GLLIT	
		FUNWFIFUFI	METU NYEOVILL	SVADTIGFLIV	RIGIPETVRLI	EQUISERIFGUITIVI	
DACE CO.	17 150	AAFFSAFVSM	LMFTVWWTFGK	VICIAFFIVKG	PRGRISMKNUV	TATGEEGFPEGIK	
BASE LUL	NI 158	a 241 C	228 g	198 t			
URIGIN							
	1 atgagcagaa	ccgatgagat	tatacgggcg	gcgaaaatgc	cgcctgaagc	agtaaagatg	
6	1 tccaggatga	tagacgtgat	ttacttcccg	attctatgca	tcctgctggt	tgggacctac	
12	1 cacatgcact	tcatgctgct	ggcgggagac	tgggacttct	ggcttgactg	gaaagaccgt	
18	1 caatggtggc	ctgtcgtgac	ccccatcgta	gggatcacct	gctatgcggc	catcatgtac	
24	1 tacctgtggg	tgaactaccg	gctgccctat	ggcgccaccc	tgtgcatcgt	atacctttta	
30	1 gtaggcgaat	gactgacgcg	tttctgggga	ttttactogt	ggtcgcacta	ccccatcaac	
36	1 ttcgtcttcc	cctccaccat	gattcctoga	gcactgatca	togacaccot	catoctoctc	
42	1 acccgcaact	ggatgatcac	ggcactgatc	gaagacaaca	cattcontct	actattctac	
48	1 cctogcaact	gocccatctt	taacccaacc	cacctoccoc	taatcactaa	aggettette	
54	1 ctotcootao	conactacac	concttttta	tatatacaca	concecce	taaatacata	
60	1 cocctoated	ascasagate	actacraacc	tttaacaaaa	acageaccet	attacage	
66	1 ttottotoog	aacaayyytt	getacyaace	ttaggegyge	acaccaccyc	yailyiyia	
70	1 thetechoose	callegicie	catycicaty	LICACCULL	ggiggiacii	Lggcaaggtc	
72	1 callycally	CULUCIUCIA	cgrgaagggc	ccgcgtggac	gcatctccat	gaagaacgac	
/0	i grgacegegt	atggcgaaga	agggtttccg	gaggggatca	aataa		
//							
LOCUS	NMU89833	1487 b	p DNA	B	CT 04-	-MAR-1997	
DEFINITI	ON Nitrosol	obus multif	ormis ammoni	a monooxyge	enase operor	п сору 3:	
	ammonia	monooxygena	se subunit A	moC3 (amoC3	3) gene, par	tial cds.	
	ammonia	monooxygena	se subunit A	MoA3 (amoA)	3) gene con	mlete cds and	
	ammonia	monooxygena	se subunit 4	moR3 (amoR1) gene par	tial cde	
ACCESSIO	N 1180833	nonoong gena.	Se Suburre P	anobo (anobi	y gene. pui	ciui cus.	
NID	009000						
VEDCTON	y1000014	01.105001	4				
VERSION	069633.1	61:1858014	+				
RETWORDS	in.						
SOURCE	Nitrosol	obus multife	ormis.				
ORGANI	SM Nitrosol	obus multifo	ormis				
	Eubacter	ia: Proteoba	acteria: bet	a subdivisi	on: Ammonia	-oxidizing	
	bacteria	: Nitrosolo	ous.				
REFERENC	E 1 (base	s 1 to 1487)				
		/0/					

AUTHORS	Norton.J.M., Alzerreca.J. and Klotz.M.G.
TITLE	The ammonia monooxygenase operon in Nitrosolobus multiformis
JOURNAL	Unpublished
REFERENCE	2 (bases 1 to 1487)
AUTHORS	Klotz.M.G.
TITLE	Direct Submission
JOURNAL	Submitted (14-FEB-1997) Department of Biology, University of
	Colorado, 1200 Larimer Street, CB171, Denver, CO 80217-3364, USA
FEATURES	Location/Qualifiers
source	11487
	/organism="Nitrosolobus multiformis"
	/strain="ATCC 25196: C-71"
	/note="ammonia monooxygenase operon copy 2 has GenBank
	Accession Number U15733"
	/db xref="taxon:1231"
	/clone="NMU8C"
gene	150
	/gene="amoC3"
CDS	<150
	/gene="amoC3"
	/note="putative membrane protein: similar to Nitrosospira
	sp. NpAV ammonia monooxygenase C3 protein encoded by
	GenBank Accession Number U72981"
	/codon start=3
	/transl table=11
	/product="ammonia monooxygenase subunit AmoC3" $$
	/protein_id="AAB48532.1"
	/db_xref="PID:g1858015"
	/db_xref="GI:1858015"
	/translation="KVILNNRIVPYDKAF"
CDS	113337
	/function="putative regulator of amo gene expression"
	/note= URF2
	/codon_start=1
	/protein_id_"AAPA0522_1"
	/protein_id= AAB48533.1 /db woof="DID.c1959016"
	/db_xref="CI.1950016"
	PLI NHEVDONSDODHOCI OCHOAVEOOCND"
gene	374 1198
3010	/gene="amoA3"
CDS	374 1198
000	/gene="amoA3"
	/note="similar to Nitrosomonas europaea ammonia
	monooxygenase acetylene-binding protein encoded by GenBank
	Accession Number 108050"
	/codon start=1
	/transl table=11
	/product="ammonia monooxygenase subunit AmoA3"
	/protein id="AAB48534.1"
	/db xref="PID:q1858017"
	/db xref="GI:1858017"
	/translation="MSRTDEILKAAKMPPEAVKMSRMIDVIYEPILCILLVGAVHMHE
	MLLAGDWDFWLDWKDROWWPVVTPIVGITYCAAIMYYI WVNYRI PEGATI CIVCI I VG
	EWL TREWGEYWWSHYPMNEVEPSTMIPGALGMDTVLLL TRNWMITAL VGGGAEGU EV
	The reader of the second recent with the reader of the rea

			PGNWTIFGPTH	LLLVAEGVLLS	VADYTGFLYVR	TGTPEYVRLIE	QGSLRTFGGHTTV	
			IASEE SAEVSMI	LMFIVWWYFGK	VYCIAFYYVKG	ARGRVSMKNUV	IAFGEEGFAEGIK	
	gene		1199148/					
	000		/gene= amoi	53				
	CDS		1199>148	/				
			/gene="amol	33″				
			/note="sim"	ilar to Niti	rosomonas ei	uropaea amm	onia	
			monooxygen	ase protein	AmoB encode	ed by GenBa	nk Accession	
			Number L08	050"				
			/codon_star	rt=1				
			/transl_tal	ple=11				
			/product="a	ammonia moni	poxygenase :	subunit Amol	B3"	
			/protein_i	d="AAB48535	.1"			
			/db_xref="	PID:g185801	В"			
			/db_xref="(GI:1858018"				
			/translatio	on="MKNLFKK	SIAGVCSLAAL	GLALTLDIQPA	AAHGERSQEPFLR	MR
			TIQWYDMKWG	PETTKVNDIAT	MTGKFHLAEDWI	PRAVGKPGRAF	FNVGSPSPV"	
BASE	COUN	T 323	a 414 c	443 g	307 t			
ORIG	IN							
	1	gcaaagtcat	cctcaataac	cgcatcgtac	cgtacgacaa	ggcgttttaa	ggactgactc	
	61	gctgacacac	gcataagcag	caatagccgc	atcgcctccg	aacaggagag	cgatgcggcc	
	121	agcggtaaca	cagcogggca	gactcaagca	atgcgaagcg	gcggcacctg	gagcaaaagg	
	181	ggaagggagt	cgccggatcc	gggagcaaca	aggaagcgac	aagggattta	tacagtcatg	
	241	tagaccetta	ttgaatcacg	agottcccgg	gaattcgcgg	caacgtcatc	agggactgca	
	301	aggatggcaa	gcagtagagc	agcagggcaa	cgattgatat	gttttagtcg	cgtaacattt	
	361	gagggagggt	grgatgagca	gaacagatga	aatactgaag	gcggcgaaga	taccaccoa	
	421	agcogtaaag	atotccagga	tgatagacgt	gatttacttc	ccgattctat	gcatcctoct	
	481	agttagaacc	taccacatoc	acttcatgct	actagcagat	gactoggact	tctggcttga	
	541	ctogaaggac	coocaatoot	aacctataat	aaccccgatt	gtagggatca	cctactotoc	
	601	cocoatcato	tactacctot	qqqtqaacta	ccacctacca	tttggagcca	cactotocat	
	001	cycyaccacy	cuccuccuge	9990900000	cegeeegeeg	cooggageea	cacegogeae	
	661	catatacctt	ctootooto	aatooctoac	cratttctaa	ootttctact	antontrara	
	721	ctaccccato	aactttotat	tecentecae	catgattccc	agcacactaa	ggtggttget	
	781	catectactt	ctacacacaca	actonatoat	cacqueacto	attaacaaca	acacctttaa	
	841	tttattattc	tatectogea	actogaccat	cttcanacca	accoacctoc	tactaataac	
	901	agaaggeotto	ctactctcaa	tancchacta	cacoggett	ctotatotcc	otaccoocac	
	961	ccctgagtag	atacaactaa	tcoaacaano	atcactacac	acctttooco	otcacaccac	
	1021	cottatcocc	teettettet	ccacattcat	ctccatoctc	atottcacco	tctootoota	
	1081	ctttoncaan	atctactoca	concetteta	ctatotcaad	acacacaca	accatateaa	
	1141	catgaagaac	gecetacigea	catttoocoa	agaaggettt	ggcgcgcgcgcg	tcaaataaat	
	1201	caugaagaac	ttcaacaaca	atatageega	agaaggettt	sttaccaccc	tagaactaga	
	1261	gaugaaccet	cicadyaaya	gratageegg	ggtatgtagt	cactcaceaa	aggactggc	
	1201	gergacyctt	accatectat	agtatagest	ceacygygad	coccasasco	coagatora	
	1201	guguatgugt	accalcudgt	ggtatyacat	gadaryyyyc	anotagoood	ccadyytedd	
	1001	cyacatagee	accalyaccg	gcdddttCCd	cctggccgaa	yacuyyeege	gegeggeggg	
11	1441	caaycergga	cycyccrict	readcyragg	cageceaage	cuggigi		

LOCUS	NTU76552	887 bp	DNA	BC	T 16-	DEC-199	6
DEFINITION	Nitrosovibrio complete cds.	tenuis	ammonia	monooxygenase	subunit A	(amoA)	gene,
ACCESSION NID	U76552 g1732263						
VERSION KEYWORDS	U76552.1 GI:	1732263					
SOURCE	Nitrosovibrio	tenuis					

UK	GANIS	M NITLOSOV	norio tenui	S				
		Eubacter	ia: Proteob	acteria: be	ta subdivis	sion: Ammoni	a-oxidizing	
		bacteria	: Nitrosovi	brio.				
REFE	RENCE	1 (base	es 1 to 887)					
AU	THORS	Norton.J	.M. Alzerr	eca.J. and	Klotz.M.G.			
TI	TLE	Diversit	y of genes	encoding an	monia monoc	xvgenase in	ammonia	
		oxidizin	g bacteria				- shane / r s	
.101	IRNAL	Unpublis	hed					
REFE	DENCE	2 (baco	1 to 997)					
ALL	TUNDO	Norton 1	M and Klo	+ 7 M C				
TI	TIE	Not con. J	i.M. dilu Kiu	1CZ, M.G.				
11	ILL	NILTOSOV	ibrio cenui	S dilloA				
301	UKNAL	Unpublis	inea					
REFER	RENCE	3 (base	es 1 to 88/)					
AU	THORS	Norton.J	.M.					
TI	TLE	Direct S	ubmission					
301	URNAL	Submitte	d (25-0CT-1	996) Plants	. Soils and	Biometeoro	logy. Utah	
		State Un	iversity. L	ogan, UT 84	322. USA			
FEATU	URES		Location/0	ualifiers				
	sour	CP.	1 887					
			/organism=	"Nitrosovib	rio tonuis"			
			/strain="N	V-12"	TO CENUIS			
			/noto="ico	lated from	coil pacoiu	ad from the	Hands Hala	
			note- iso	of C Usta	Soll receiv	eu from the	woods Hole	
			Contection	OI S. Wals	on and r. V	alois		
			/db_xret=	taxon:1233				
	gene		39803					
			/gene="amo	A				
	CDS		39863					
			/gene="amo	A''				
			/note="amm	onia oxidiz	ing membran	e protein:	acetylene	
			binding pr	otein"				
			/codon_sta	rt=1				
			/transl_ta	ble=11				
			/product="	ammonia-mon	ooxygenase	subunit A"		
			/protein i	d="AAB38710	.1"			
			-					
			/db xref="	PID: q173226	4"			
			/db xref="	GI:1732264"				
			/translati	on="MSRTDEI	KAAKMPPEAV	KMSRMIDAVYE	PLICILLVGTYHN	IHF
			MI I AGDWDFWI	DWKDROWWPV	VTPIVGITYCA	ATMYYI WVNYR	PEGATICIVCU	AG
			FWI TREWGEY	JWSHYPMSEVE	PSTMIPGAL VM	DTVMLI TRNUM	ITAL VGGGAFGLI	FV
			PGNWPIEGIT	H PL VVEGVLL	SVADYTGEL VV	PTGTDEVVDNT	ENGSI DTEGOUTT	TVT
			AAFFAAFISM	METINNYEGK	VCTAFEVVKG	HDCDVTMKNDV		
RASE	COLINE	r 104	220 0	2EA a	210 +	INGRV INKNUV	AFGEEGFFEGIN	
OPICI	N	104 0	a 209 C	254 9	210 0			
URIGI	1		*****					
	-	gulaucaaga	togtagacac	atttgagggg	agggcgcgat	gagcagaaca	gatgagatac	
	61	taaaggcggc	gaagatgccg	ccggaagcag	taaagatgtc	caggatgata	gatgcggtgt	
	121	atttcccgat	tctatgcata	ctgctggttg	gaacctacca	catgcacttc	atgctgctgg	
	181	cgggagactg	ggacttctgg	ctggactgga	aagaccgtca	atggtggccg	gtggtaaccc	
	241	cgattgtggg	gatcacctat	tgtgccgcca	tcatgtacta	cctgtgggtg	aactaccggc	
	301	tgccgtttgg	ggccacactg	tgcatcgttt	gcctgctggc	gggtgaatqq	ctgacacgct	
	361	tctggggttt	ttactqqtqq	tcgcactacc	ccatgagett	cgtgtttccc	tccaccatga	
	421	taccoggtor	actagtasta	gacaccotca	toctoctcac	gcgcaactog	atgatcacco	
	481	ccctogtago	caaaaacacc	ttcoonttat	tottctaccc	togcaactog	cocattttta	
	541	acctaaccca	cctaccacta	atcataasaa	acatactect	atcaatacce	cactacacco	
	601	acttoctata	tatacataco	gacacacata	aatacotoco	greggragee	gactacacyg	
	661	toppopt	taggaggage	gycacycetg	aatacgteeg	caatategaa	Cadggctcgc	
	100	tycgcacgtt	Lggaggccac	accaccgtca	ttgccgcatt	ctttgccgcg	ttcatctcca	
	121	tgctcatgtt	caccatctqq	tggtactttg	gcaaactcta	6202262012	ttcttctacq	

781 tgaaaggcca tcgcggccgc gtcaccatga agaacgacgt taccgcattt ggcgaagaag 841 gctttccaga ggggatcaaa taaatgaacg caaagaacct gatcaaa

LOCUS DEFINITION	NBU76553 883 bp DNA BCT 16-DEC-1996 Nitrosospira briensis ammonia monooxygenase subunit A (amoA) gene.
	complete cds.
ACCESSION	U76553
NID	g1732261
VERSION	U/6553.1 GI:1/32261
SOUDCE	Niteocorriso beigneis
ODCANTEM	Nitrosospira briensis.
URGANISH	Fuhactoria: Protochactoria: hota subdivision: Ammonia.ovidizing
	hacteria: Nitrosospira
REFERENCE	1 (bases 1 to 883)
AUTHORS	Norton, J.M., Alzerreca, J. and Klotz, M.G.
TITLE	Diversity of genes encoding ammonia monooxygenase in ammonia
	oxidizing bacteria
JOURNAL	Unpublished
REFERENCE	2 (bases 1 to 883)
AUTHORS	Norton.J.M. and Klotz.M.G.
TITLE	Nitrosospira briensis amoA
JUUKNAL	2 (bases 1 to 002)
AUTHODS	J (Dases I to 883)
TITLE	Direct Submission
JOURNAL	Submitted (25-OCT-1996) Plants Soils and Biometeorology Utah
	State University, Logan, UT 84322, USA
FEATURES	Location/Qualifiers
source	1883
	/organism="Nitrosospira briensis"
	/strain="C-128"
	/note="isolated from soil received from the Woods Hole
	collection of S. Watson and F. Valois"
	/db_xret= taxon:35/99
gene	36860
	/gene="amoA"
CDS	36860
	/gene="amoA"
	<pre>/note="ammonia oxidizing membrane protein: acetylene</pre>
	binding protein"
	/codon_start=1
	/transi_table=11
	/product= ammonia-monooxygenase subunit A /protoin id="AAR20700 1"
	/db xrof="PID:01732262"
	/db_xref="GI-1732262"
	/translation="MSRTDFILKAAKMPPFAVKMSRMIDAVYEPU_CIU_VGTYHMHF
	MLLAGDWDFWLDWKDROWWPVVTPIVGITYCAAIMYYLWVNYRLPFGATLCVVCLLTG
	EWLTRYWGFYWWSHYPINFVFPSTMIPGALVMDTVMLLTRNWMITALVGGGAFGLLFY
	PGNWPIFGPTHLPLAAEGVLLSVADYTGFLYVRTGTPEYVRNIEQGSLRTFGGHTTVI
	ASFFAAFVSMLMFCLWWYFGKLYCTAFFYVKGTRGRVTMKNDVTAFGEEGFPEGIK"
BASE COUNT	180 a 270 c 232 g 201 t

1	gttttaagat	cgtaaacatt	tgaggggagg	gtgcgatgag	cagaaccgat	gaaatactga
61	aggcggccaa	gatgccgccg	gaagcagtaa	agatgtccag	gatgatagac	gcggtatatt
121	tcccgattct	atgtatcctc	ctggttggaa	cctaccacat	gcacttcatg	ctgctggcag
181	gcgactggga	cttctggctg	gactggaaag	accgccaatg	gtggccggta	gtgaccccca
241	tcgtgggcat	cacctattgc	gccgccatca	tgtactacct	gtgggtcaac	taccggctgc
301	ccttcggcgc	caccctctgc	gtcgtctgcc	tgctgaccgg	cgaatggctg	acccgctact
361	ggggcttcta	ctggtggtcg	cactacccca	tcaacttcgt	cttcccctcc	accatgatac
421	cgggcgcact	ggtcatggac	accgtcatgc	tgctcacccg	caactggatg	atcacagccc
481	tggttggcgg	aggcgcattc	ggactcctgt	tctacccggg	taactggccc	atctttggcc
541	cgacccacct	gccgctggca	gccgaaggcg	tattgttgtc	ggttgctgac	tacaccggct
601	tcctgtacgt	tcgcaccggc	acccccgagt	acgtacgcaa	catcgaacaa	ggctcactca
661	gaacctttgg	cgggcacacc	accgtcatcg	cctcattctt	tgccgccttc	gtctccatgc
721	tcatgttctg	cctctggtgg	tacttcggca	aactttactg	caccgcattc	ttctacgtca
781	agggaacccg	tggccgtgtc	accatgaaga	acgatgtcac	cgcatttggg	gaagaaggct
841	tcccggaggg	gatcaaataa	tgggaattca	acaacttatc	aag	

LOCUS AF153343 1028 bp DNA BCT 25-0CT-1999 DEFINITION Nitrosococcus sp. C-113 16S ribosomal RNA gene, partial sequence. ACCESSION AF153343 KEYWORDS SOURCE Nitrosococcus sp. C-113. ORGANISM Nitrosococcus sp. C-113 Bacteria: Proteobacteria: gamma subdivision: Nitrosococcus. REFERENCE 1 (bases 1 to 1028) AUTHORS Alzerreca.J.J.. Norton.J.M. and Klotz.M.G. TITLE The amo operon in marine, ammonia oxidizing gamma proteobacteria. autotrophic ammonia oxidizing bacteria JOURNAL FEMS Microbiology Letters 180:21-29 REFERENCE 2 (bases 1 to 1028) AUTHORS Alzerreca.J.J.. Norton.J.M. and Klotz.M.G. TITLE Direct Submission JOURNAL Submitted (21-MAY-1999) Plants, Soils and Biometeorology, Utah State University. Logan. UT 84322. USA FEATURES Location/Qualifiers source 1..1028 /organism="Nitrosococcus sp. C-113" /strain="C-113" /db xref="taxon:105559" rRNA 1...1028 /product="16S ribosomal RNA" BASE COUNT 252 a 227 c 352 g 197 t ORIGIN 1 taacacatgc aagtcgaacg gcagcagcac ttaagcttgc ttaggtggct ggcgagtggc 61 ggacgggtga gtaacgcgtg ggaatctagc ctctagaggg ggataactcg gggaaactcg 121 ggctaatacc gcataatctc taaggaggaa agcggggggac cgaaaggcct cgcgctggag 181 gatgagcctg cgtccgatta gctagttggt ggggtaaggg cctaccaagg cgatgatcgg 241 tagctggtct gagaggacga tcagccacac tgggactgag acacggccca gactcctacg 301 ggaggcagca ttggggaata ttggacaatg ggggcaaccc tgatccagca atgccgcgtg 361 ggtgaagaag gctttcgggt tgtaaagccc tttcagtagg gaagaaaagc gatgtgtgaa 421 tagcccatcg tgttgacgtt acctacagaa gaagcaccgg ctaactccgt gccagcagcc 481 gcggtaatac ggagggtgcg agcgttaatc ggaattactg ggcgtaaagg gcgcgtaggc 541 ggtttggtaa gttgggtgtg aaagccccgg gctcaacctg ggaatggcac ttgatactgc

601 ctggctagag tatggtagag ggaggcggaa tttccggtgt agcggtgaaa tgcgtagata 661 toggaaggaa caccagtggo gaaggoggoo tootggacca ctactgacgo tgaggtgoga 721 aagcgagggg agcaaacagg attagatacc ctggtagtcc acgccctaaa cgatgagaac 781 tagacgttgg gagggatagc ctttcagtgt tgcagctaac gcgttaagtt ctccgcctgg 841 ggagtacggc cgcaaggttg aaactcaaat gaattgacgg gggcccgcac aagcggtgga 901 gcatgtggtt taattcgatg caacgcgaag aaccttacct ggccttgaca tccccggaac 961 tttgctgaga ggcgaaggtg ccttcgggag ccgggagaca ggtgctgcat ggctgtcgtc 1021 agctcgta LOCUS AF153344 2929 bp DNA BCT 25-0CT-1999 DEFINITION Nitrosococcus sp. C-113 ammonia monooxygenase subunit A (amoA) and ammonia monooxygenase subunit B (amoB) genes, complete cds. ACCESSION AF153344 KEYWORDS SOURCE Nitrosococcus sp. C-113. ORGANISM Nitrosococcus sp. C-113 Bacteria: Proteobacteria: gamma subdivision: Nitrosococcus. REFERENCE 1 (bases 1 to 2929) AUTHORS Alzerreca.J.J., Norton.J.M. and Klotz.M.G. TITLE The amo operon in marine. ammonia oxidizing gamma proteobacteria. autotrophic ammonia oxidizing bacteria JOURNAL FEMS Microbiology Letters 180:21-29 2 (bases 1 to 2929) REFERENCE AUTHORS Norton, J.M., Alzerreca, J.J., Suwa, Y. and Klotz, M.G. TITLE Diversity of ammonia monooxygenase operon in autotrophic ammonia-oxidizing bacteria JOURNAL Unpublished REFERENCE 3 (bases 1 to 2929) AUTHORS Alzerreca.J.J., Norton.J.M. and Klotz.M.G. TITLE Direct Submission JOURNAL Submitted (21-MAY-1999) Plants. Soils and Biometeorology. Utah State University. Logan. UT 84322. USA FEATURES Location/Qualifiers source 1..2929 /organism="Nitrosococcus sp. C-113" /strain="C-113" /db xref="taxon:105559" gene 590..1333 /gene="amoA" 590..1333 /gene="amoA" /note="AmoA" /codon start=1 /transl table=11 /product="ammonia monooxygenase subunit A" /translation="MSALTSAVRTPEEAAKVSRTLDFLALGAFFGILLASHHVHVMLL MGDWDFWVDWKDRRFWVTVVPIVSVAYPAAA0AFFWEKFRLPFGATLVTLGLLAGEWA NRYFNFVGFTYFPINFVWPTILLPMALFLDAMLAISKSYGLTAVVGGLMYGLLMYPAN WPLLSAFHVPAEYNGVVMSLADVAGYQVVRTGTPEYIRMVEKGTLRTFGKDVVPVSAF FAGEVAMVMYEVWHEVGRWESKDYSVDOC" gene 1391..2650 /gene="amoB" 1391...2650 /gene="amoB" /note="AmoB"
			YITITGDMAD	ENKVTDLTGN ANDLVTAQDKK	TVNLETMATGT	VIGWHLFWYVLO IVLFGYKSAEE	GIAWIVWWARRP KEPVTIPLQAGLI
			VRSDDTGYPE	ELLAPEGLEMS	QDIAPGETVV	VDISATDAAWE	QRMADVIYDPD:
	COUNT	666	AGLIFFIDPEC a 610 c	777 g	857 t	19 others	
1.	IN						-
	1	gtaggtttag	gttcgttcat	gtatgctaag	acccgtattc	cttattttgc	aaagggctgg
	61	tctgtaccct	acctcatgtt	ggtgtttgga	ccctttatga	tcttcccgaa	tgtggggctg
	121	aatgaatggg	gtcacacctt	ctggtttatg	gaaaagctat	ttgtaccacc	tctgcattgg
	181	ggttttgtgt	tctttgcctg	gtttatcctt	gcggtattcg	gcgtattctt	gcaggtgcaa
	241	ggtcgcatga	aggaattgct	cggcagggag	cttcagcaga	gtgaagatta	tgcccgtagc
	301	tgagatattt	aaatttaatt	tccagctgat	ttaaagggtt	gagtaaaagg	gcggtcgcaa
	361	tctccagaat	agttaatgag	atggcgaccg	cctctttgta	taaatagatt	tattattaag
	421	gatacgctta	cctgttcagg	ttgaaaggaa	tggaagcaag	caagctaata	agtaaatagg
	481	tagcaggaag	catgccttta	gaattcatgg	atcttttgag	atcccatgaa	taaataatca
	541	taaattagtt	taaatagaac	ccttaatatt	ttttaggagg	gcaggtttaa	tgagtgcact
	601	tacgtctgcg	gttcgtacac	cggaggaagc	tgctaaagtc	tctagaacgc	tagatttttt
	661	agccttaggg	gctttctttg	gtatttatt	ggcttcccat	catgttcatg	tcatgctttt
	721	aatgggkgac	tgggatttct	gggttgattg	gaaagaccgg	cgcttttggg	tcaccgtggt
	781	tcccatcgta	tcggtagctt	atcctgctgc	cgcacaggcg	tttttctggg	agaagttccg
	841	ccttcccttt	ggcgctaccc	tggtaacgct	aggattgtta	gcgggtgagt	gggctaaccg
	901	ctactttaat	ttcgtagggt	tcacctattt	ccccattaac	ttcgtatggc	caaccatcct
	961	gctgcccatg	gcgttgttct	tggatgccat	gcttgcgatc	tccaaaagct	acggcttgac
	1021	agcggtagtg	ggtgggctga	tgtacggctt	gttgatgtac	cctgctaact	ggccgctgct
	1081	ttcagcattc	catgtgccgg	ctgagtacaa	tggagtagtc	atgtccttgg	ccgatgtcgc
	1141	ggggtatcaa	tacgtccgga	ccggcacccc	cgagtatatt	cggatggttg	araarggtac
	1201	sttgagaacg	tttggtaaag	acgtggtccc	ggtgtcagcc	tttttgcgg	gttttgttgc
	1261	tatggtcatg	tatttcgtgt	ggcactttgt	cggccgctgg	ttctccaagg	attacagtgt
	1321	cgaccaatgt	taaaatatcg	tgtgcgataa	gaggataaca	actctaaaaa	ttctaaaaca
	1381	taatagagag	atggagaaca	tgaaaggtac	ccatataaca	aatcgagcca	aaaaatggct
	1441	agccattggg	tttactgcgg	tgatagcctc	aagcgttttc	tatattccga	cagtggccgc
	1501	ccatggtgag	aaggcgcagg	cagcetteet	gcgcatgcgg	acaattcatt	ggtatgacat
	1561	ggtatggtcc	aaggatacca	ttgcggttaa	tgagacctat	accataagcg	gcaagttccg
	1621	ggtttttgag	gattggccgg	aagcagtcga	agtaccccat	gtgtcctttt	taaatgcggg
	1681	tcaacccgga	ccagtcacaa	cccggctcac	ttcttatatc	aatggtatgt	tcgtccctcg
	1741	gtcgataggc	cttgaattag	gcggcgatta	cgagtttgag	atgacgatgc	aagggcgccg
	1801	tcctggcacc	tggcatgtgc	atactctgct	aaatgtccaa	ggtgggggac	cgctcatcgg
	1861	tccaggtaaa	tacatcacca	ttactggaga	tatggcagac	tttgagaaca	aagtcacaga
	1921	tctaaccggt	aatacggtca	acctggaaac	catggccacg	ggtacggtta	ttggctggca
	1981	tctattctgg	tacgtacttg	gtatcgcctg	gatcgtgtgg	tgggcccgtc	gccccatgtt
	2041	cttgccccgc	tacatgagag	tagaggcggg	agaggctaat	gatctagtga	ccgcccaaga
	2101	caaaaaagtg	actatcggtg	ttcttgtggg	cgtcctgctc	attgttttgt	tcggctataa
	2161	gagtgctgag	gaaaaattcc	cagtcactat	tcctttgcaa	gctgggctgc	tgggcactat
	2221	tgagccgttg	ccggtagatt	ataattcgat	ggtaagcgct	aaagtgctta	aggctaacta
	2281	tcgggtgccg	gggcggacta	tcaccatgac	ggttgagctc	actaatcata	ctgatcaggt
	2341	gctttctatc	ggtgagttca	atacgggagg	catccgcttc	atgaatgcca	atgtgcggag
	2401	cgatgataca	ggttatcctg	aggagttgct	ggcgccggaa	gggctggaaa	tgagccagca
	2461	ggatatcgct	ccgggtgaaa	ctgtggttgt	tgatatttcc	gccaccgatg	ctgcttggga
	2521	agtgcagcgt	atggctgacg	ttatttacga	tccagacagc	cgctttgcgg	gattgatatt
	2581	ctttattgat	ccagagggga	atgagattcc	gatacctgtc	ggtggtccat	tagttcctac
					and the second sec	and the second se	

BASE CO ORIGIN /codon_start=1 /transl_table=11 /product="ammonia monooxygenase subunit B" /translation="MENMKGTHITNRAKKWLAIGFTAVIASSVFYIPTVAAHGEKAQA AFLRMRTIHWYDMYWSKDTIAVNETYTISGKFRVFEDWPEAVEVPHVSFLNAGQPGPV TTRLTSYINGMFVPRSIGLELGGDVFFEMTMGGRR@TWHVHTLLNVQGGGPLIGPGK YITITGDMADFENKVTDLTGNTVNLETMATGTVIGWHLFWYUGIAWIVWWARRPMFL PRYMRVEAGEANDLVTAQDKKVTIGVLVGVLLIVLFGVKSAEEKFPVTIPLQAGLLGT IEPLPVDYNSMVSAKVLKANYRVPGRTITMTVELTNHTDQVLSIGEFNTGGIRFMNAN VSSDDTGYPEELLAPEGLEMSQDDIAPGETVVDISATDAAWEVQRMADVIYDPDSRF AGI JEFIDPGREFIPIPGGPLVPTV" 2641 gtttgtctag gggcagtatt ttaaaytatc ctatattgt gkkgtgkkk wkkwkstgcw 2701 kmgatataag taggtgaat tgctogcatt gactaaaa ggctggccct tcgtcctatc 2761 gctggacgaa gggccggttg tttgttggtc gtcctttcca tttcttttt taccttgtg 2821 ctcagtcttt tcaggctcg gactgcgtt ttaatcaat cctcagggca aaaaggtatt 2881 ggcttatgaa aaaatacta cttagctgct tcctatcgtt taggatgc

11

Appendix G. AMO Amino Acid Alignments and Pair Table for the *Amo* Genes and their Deduced Peptides Alignments and pair table for the following strains (abbreviation):

Nitrosospira sp. NpAV (NAV), Nitrosospira briensis C-128 (NBR) Nitrosospira sp. 39-19 (N39), Nitrosovibrio tenuis NV-12 (NVT), Nitrosolobus multiformis ATCC 25196 (NMU), Nitrosolobus multiformis 24-C (N24), Nitrosomonas europaea ATCC 19178 (NEU), Nitrosomonas europha C-91 (NET), Nitrosomonas sp. JL21(JL21), Nitrosomonas sp. AL212 (AL212), Nitrosomonas sp. GH22 (GH22), Nitrosococcus sp. C-113 (N113), Nitrosococcus oceanus C-107 (NOC), Methylococcus capsulatus (Bath) (MCA).

Clustal W Alignment 11/98 Klotz, Norton and Alzerreca. AmoC complete peptides

NEUC1	MATTLGTS-S	ASSVSSRG-Y	DMSLWYDSKF	YKFGMITMLL	VAIFWVWYQR	YFAYSHGMDS	MEPEFDRVWM
NEUC2	MATTLGTS-S	ASSVSSRG-Y	DMSLWYDSKF	YKFGMITMLL	VAIFWVWYQR	YFAYSHGMDS	MEPEFDRVWM
NEUC3	MATSILKDKT	AQQVTDKPAY	DKSEWFDAKY	YKYGLLPILG	IAVFWVWYQR	TFAYSHGMDS	MEPDFDRIWM
NAVC2	MATTLGTSGS	HAGSSGRD-Y	DMSLWYDSRW	YKFGLITMLG	VAIFWIWFQR	TFAYSHGMDS	MEPDFEKVWM
NAVC3	MATTLGTSGS	HAGSSGRD-Y	DMSLWYDSRW	YKFGLITMLG	VAIFWIWFQR	TFAYSHGMDS	MEPDFEKVWM
NAVC4	MATTVETSGS	HAGSSGRD-Y	DMSLWYDSRW	YKFGLITMLG	VAIFWIWFQR	TFAYSHGMDS	KEPDFEKVWM
NOCC	MAAT SRAV	HQGVAEKE-T	ADFFAWRGMW	LAVAAFFA	LYICVRWYEG	VYGWKYGLDA	FLPEFQTYWM
N113C	NNNNNNNNN	NQGVAEKE-T	ADLFAWRGMW	LAVAAFFL	FYIGVRWYEG	VYGWKYGLDA	FSPEFQTYWM
MCAC1	MAATTIGG	HAA-AE	APLL DKKW	LTFALAIYTV	FYLWVRWYEG	VYGWSAGLDS	FAPEFETYWM
MCAC2	MAAT TIGG	HAA-AE	APLL DKKW	LTFALAIYTV	FYLWVRWYEG	VYGWSAGLDS	FAPEFETYWM
NEUC1	NLWRVHMAIM	PLFALVTWGW	ILKTRDTKEQ	LDNLDPKLEI	KRYFYYMMWL	GVYIFGVYWG	GSFFTEQDAS
NEUC2	NLWRVHMAIM	PLFALVTWGW	ILKTRDTKEQ	LDNLDPKLEI	KRYFYYMMWL	GVYIFGVYWG	GSFFTEQDAS
NEUC3	GLWRVQMVVI	ALAAFSIWGW	LLKTRNTAEQ	LASLTPKQEI	KRYFYFMMWL	GVYIFAVYWG	SSFFTEQDAS
NAVC2	GLWRVHMIVM	PIFALVTWGW	IWKTRNTN	LDNLDPKLEI	KRYFYWMMWL	GVYIFGVYWG	GSFFTGQDAS
NAVC3	GLWRVHMIVM	PIFALVTWGW	IWKTRNTN	LDNLDPKLEI	KRYFYWMMWL	GVYIFGVYWG	GSFFTEQDAS
NAVC4	GLWRVHMIVM	PIFALVTWGW	IWKTRNTN	LDNLDPKLEI	KRYFYWMMWL	GVYIFGVYWG	GSFFTEQDAS
NOCC	NLLYIELVVE	ALATAALVSY	LIKTRN-R-N	MEAMTPREEV	RRYCTLYMWW	VVYGVGLFWG	ASFFTEQDGA
N113C	NLLYIELVVE	ALATAALVSY	LIKTRD-R-N	MEAMTPREEL	RRYCTLYMWW	VVYGVGLFWG	ASFFTEQDGA
MCAC1	NFLYTEIVLE	IVTASILWGY	LWKTRN-R-N	LAALTPREEL	RRNCTHLVWL	VAYAWAIYWG	ASYFTEQDGT
MCAC2	NFLYTEIVLE	IVTASILWGY	LWKTRN-R-N	LAALTPREEL	RRNCTHLVWL	VAYAWAIYWG	ASYFTEQDGT
NEUC1	WHQVIIRDTS	FTPSHVVVFY	GSFPMYIVCG	VATYLYAMTR	LPLFSRGISF	PLVMAIAGPL	MILPNVGLNE
NEUC2	WHQVIIRDTS	FTPSHVVVFY	GSFPMYIVCG	VATYLYAMTR	LPLFSRGISF	PLVMAIAGPL	MILPNVGLNE
NEUC3	WHQVIIRDTS	FTPSHIPLFY	GSFPVYIIMG	IAMIIYAKTR	LPLYNKGWSF	PLIMVVAGPL	MSLPNVGLNE
NAVC2	WHQVIIRDTS	FTPSHVVVFY	GSFPMYIVCG	VATYLYAMTR	LPLYARGTSF	PLLMAIAGPL	MILPNVGLNE
NAVC3	WHQVIIRDTS	FTPSHVVVFY	GSFPMYIVCG	VATYLYAMTR	LPLYARGTSF	PLVMAIAGPL	MILPNVGLNE
NAVC4	WHQVIIRDTS	FTPSHVVVFY	GSFPMYIVCG	VATYLYAMTR	LPLYARGTSF	PLVMAIAGPL	MILPNVGLNE
NOCC	WHQTVVRDTD	FTPSHIIEFY	MSYPIYVMVG	LGSFTYAKTR	IPYFAKGWFV	PYLMLVFGPF	MIFPNVGLNE
N113C	WHQTVVRDTD	FTPSHIIEFY	MSYPIYVMVG	LGSFTYAKTR	IPYFAKGWSV	PYLMLVFGPF	MIFPNVGLNE
MCAC1	WHQTIVRDTD	FTPSHIIEFY	LSYPIYIITG	FAAFIYAKTR	LPFFAKGISL	PYLVLVVGPF	MILPNVGLNE
MCAC2	WHQTIVRDTD	FTPSHIIEFY	LSYPIYIITG	FAAFIYAKTR	LPFFAKGISL	PYLVLVVFPF	MILPNVGLNE
NEUCI	WGHAFWFMEE	LESAPI.HWGE	VVLGWAGLEO	GOVADOTITE	VSNLTDVVWN	NOSKETLNNR	TV-A-
NEUC2	WGHAFWFMEE	LESAPLHWGE	VVLGWAGLFO	GGVAAOTITR	YSNLTDVVWN	NOSKEILNNR	IV-A-
NEUC3	WGHAFWFMEE	LESAPLHWGE	VILAWAALFO	GGLAIOLITR	YSNLVDVEWN	KODRAILDDV	VTTP-
NAVC2	WGHAFWFMEE	LESAPLHWGE	VILGWAGLEA	GGIAAOTITR	YSSLTDVVWN	GODRVILNNR	TV-P-
NAVC3	WGHAFWFMEE	LESAPLHWGE	VILGWAGLEA	GGTAAOTTTR	VSNLTDVVWN	GODRVILNNR	TV-P-
NAVC4	WGHAFWFMEE	LESAPLHWGE	VILGWAGIFA	GGIAAOIITR	YSNLTDVVWN	GODRVILNNR	IV-P-
NOCC	WGHTFWFMEE	LEVAPLHWGE	VFFAWFILAV	FGVFLOVO	PRMK-ELT	GRELOOSEDY	ARS
NIISC	WGHTFWFMEK	LEVPPLHWGE	VFFAWFILAV	FGVFLOVO	GRMK-ELL	GRELOOSEDY	ARS
MCAC1	WGHTFWFMEE	LEVAPLHYGE	VIEGWLALAV	MGTLTOTF	YRFA-0-GGL	GOSLCEAVDE	GLIAK
MCAC2	WGHTFWFMEE	LEVAPLHYGE	VIEGWLALAV	MGTLTOTF	YSFA-0-GGL	GOSLCEAVDE	GLIAK
			the second se				and the second s

Clustal W Alignment 11/98 Klotz, Norton and Alzerreca. AmoA complete peptides

	1 60
N39amoA3	MSRTDEILKAAKMPPEAVKMSRMIDAVYFPILCILLIGTYHMHFMLLAGDWDFWLDWK
N39amoA2	MSRTDEILKAAKMPPEAVKMSRMIDAVYFPILCILLVGTYHMHFMLLAGDWDFWLDWK
N39amoA1	MSRMIDAVYFPILCILLVGTYHMHFMLLAGDWDFWLDWK
NBRamoA	MSRTDEILKAAKMPPEAVKMSRMIDAVYFPILCILLVGTYHMHFMLLAGDWDFWLDWK
NVTamoA	MSRTDEILKAAKMPPEAVKMSRMIDAVYFPILCILLVGTYHMHFMLLAGDWDFWLDWK
NAVamoA3	MSRTDEILKAAKMPPESVKMSRMIDAIYFPILCILLVGTYHMHFMLLAGDWDFWLDWK
NAVamoA2	MSRTDEILKAAKMPPESVKMSRMIDAIYFPILCILLVGTYHMHFMLLAGDWDFWLDWK
NAVamoA1	MSRTDEILKAAKMPPESVKMSRMIDAIYFPILCILLVGTYHMHFMLLAGDWDFWLDWK
NMUamoA1	MSRTDEILKAAKMPPEAVKMSRMIDVIYFPILCILLVGTYHMHFMLLAGDWDFWLDWK
NMUamoA2	MSRTDEILKAAKMPPEAVKMSRMIDVIYFPILCILLVGTYHMHFMLLAGDWDFWLDWK
NMUamoA3	MS. RTDEILKAAKMPPEAVKMSRMIDVIYFPILCILLVGAYHMHFMLLAGDWDFWLDWK
N24CamoA	MS PTDETTPAAKMODEAVKMSPMIDVIVEDILCILLVGTVHMHEMILAGDWDEWLDWK
NEllamobl	VSTEPTEETLKAAKMODEAVHMSPLTDAVVEDTLTTLLVGTVHMHEMLLAGDWDEWMDWK
AL212amol	VS PTDETINANYMODENUVMODVIDAVVEDILCILLVCTEUMUEMLACDUDEWLDWV
TL21amoA	VT PTDEIIAANMEPEAVNOSKIIDAVYEDIICILLVGTYUMEMILAGDWDEWLOWK
NETamol 2	VIII KIDDII KAAKUP PAVKUSKII DAVIT PIDCI BUVUI MUBAI MUBASSUST KOMA
NETamoA2	VOIFRIBEILKAAR FERVINGRIIDAVIFFILVULUGIIINIRMILAGDWDFWDWK
GUDDATE	VSIFRIEEILKAAMPPEAVMISKLIDAVIFFILVVLLVGIIMMRMLLAGDWDFWMDWK
NOCamal	VSIFRIBEILKAARMPPEAVAMSRUIDAVIFPILVVLLVGIIAMHFMLLAGDWDFWMDWK
NOCAMOA	MSAL. IS AVRIPEEAAKVFRILDFIALGAFFMILLASHHVHVMLLMGDWDFWVDWK
NIIJamoA	MSAL.TSAVRTPEEAAKVSRTLDFLALGAFFGILLASHHVHVMLLMGDWDFWVDWK
MCAPMOAL	MSAA.QSAVRSHAEAVQVSRTIDWMALFVVFFVIVGSYHIHAMLTMGDWDFWSDWK
MCApmoA2	MSAA.QSAVRSHAEAVQVSRTIDWMALFVVFFVIVGSYHIHAMLTMGDWDFWSDWK
	61 120
N39amoA3	DROWWPVVTPIVGITYCAAIMYYLWVNYRLPLGAILCIVCLLSGEWLTRYWGFYWWSHNP
N39amoA2	DROWWPVVTPIVGITYCAAIMYYLWVNYRLPFGATLCIVCLLSGEWLTRYWGFYWWSHYP
N39amoA1	DROWWPVVTPIVGITYCAAIMYYLWVNYRLPFGATLCIVCLLSGEWLTRYWGFYWWSHYP
NBRamoA	DROWWDWTPIWGTTYCAATMYYLWWWYPLDFGATLCWUCLLTGEWLTPWWGFYWWSHYD
NUTamoa	DROWWDWTDTVCITYCA A TMYYL WWWYDL DRCATL CTUCLLACEWL TO FWCFYWWCUYD
NAVamob3	DEQUAL TO THE AND THE
NAVamon 2	DECHAPTOTICITYCATTAVVI MATVEL DECATLCTVCL VCENT TE ENCEVINEUVD
NAVamoA1	DROWNDU/TPIVGITICATIMITIAVVIRIPFGATECIVCIDVGBALIKFAGTINASATP
MMUamo N1	DROWNPVVIPIVGIIICAIIMIIDWVWIRDPGAIDCIVCDJVGBWDIRPWGFIWWSRIP
MMUamo A2	DROWNPVVIFIVGIIICARIMIIDAVNIKDFGAIDCIVCDJVGENDIKFNGFINNSHIP
MMUamo N2	DROWNPVVIPIVGITICAAIMITEWVNIREPFGATECIVCEEVGEWEIRFWGFIWWSHIP
N24Camel	DROWNPYVIFIVGIIICAAIMIIDWVNIRDPGAIDCIVCDDVGEWDIRFWGFIWWSAIP
N24CalloA	DRQWWPVVIPIVGIICIAAIMIILWVNIRLPIGAILCIVCLLVGEWDIRFWGFIWWSHIP
NEUAMOAL	DRQWWPVVTPIVGITYCSAIMYYLWVNYRQPFGATLCVVCLLIGEWLTRYWGFYWWSHYP
ALZIZAMOA	DRQWWPVVIPIAGIMYCAALMIYLWVNYRLPFGATLCIVCLLVGEWLTRYWGFYWWSHYP
JL21amoA	DRQWWPVVTPIVGIMYCAALMYYLWVNYRLPFGATLCIVCLLVGEWLTRYWGFYWWSHYP
NETamoA2	DRQWWPVVTPIVGITYCSAIMYYLWVNYRQPFGATLCVVCLLIGEWLTRYWGFYWWSHYP
NETamoAl	DRQWWPVVTPIVGITYCSAIMYYLWVNYRQPFGATLCVVCLLIGEWLTRYWGFYWWSHYP
GH22amoA	DRQWWPVVTPIVGITYCSAIMYYLWVNYRQPFGATLCVVCLLIGEWLTRYWGFYWWSHYP
NOCamoA	DRRFWVTVVPIVSVAYPAAAQAFFWEKFRLPFGATLVTLGVLAGEWANRYFNFVGFTYFP
N113amoA	DRRFWVTVVPIVSVAYPAAAQAFFWEKFRLPFGATLVTLGLLAGEWANRYFNFVGFTYFP
MCApmoA1	DRRLWVTVTPIVLVTFPAAVQSYLWERYRLPWGATVCVLGLLLGEWINRYFNFWGWTYFP
MCApmoA2	DRRLWVTVTPIVLVTFPAAVQSYLWERYRLPWGATVCVLGLLLGEWINRYFNFWGWTYFP
	121 190
N39amoA3	ISTUFPSTMIPGALVMDTVMLLTRNWMITALVGGGAFGLLFYPGNWDIFGDTULDLVUPG
N39amol 2	I SPUEDSTWI DONI UMDTUMI I TENIMITAL VOCCA FOR PVOCINE I SCHUED
N2 9 amo N1	I SPVPPSTMIPGALIMDIVMLLI TALVGGGAPGIL PUCANNELFOPTALEDIVEG
NEDamol	INFUEDEMINI DEAL AND THAT THE AND
MUTamon	MEEUEDCOMT DOALLANDWALL TONINGTATAL VOCCA BOLL EVENWEITGETHLELAAEG
AOmstvi	INDEVERSITE FOR THE FOR THE TRANSMITTAL VOGGA POLL PROWPIEGLING
NAVAMOA3	INFVLFSIMIFGALIMDIVMLLTRNWMITALVGGGAFGLLFYPGNWPIFGPTHLPLVAEG
NAVamoA2	INFVLPSTMIPGALIMDTVMLLTRNWMITALVGGGAFGLLFYPGNWPIFGPTHLPLVAEG
NAVamoAl	INFVLPSTMIPGALIMDTVMLLTRNWMITALVGGGAFGLLFYPGNWPIFGPTHLPLVAEG
NMUamoA1	MNFVFPSTMIPGALVMDTVLLLTRNWMITALVGGGAFGLLFYPGNWTIFGPTHLPLVAEG
NMUamoA2	MNFVFPSTM1PGALVMDTVLLLTRNWMITALVGGGAFGLLFYPGNWTIFGPTHLPLVAEG
NMUamoA3	MNFVFPSTMIPGALGMDTVLLLTRNWMITALVGGGAFGLLFYPGNWTIFGPTHLLLVAEG
N24CamoA	INFVFPSTMIPGALIMDTVMLLTRNWMITALIGGGAFGLLFYPGNWPIFGPTHLPLVAEG
NEUamoA1	INFVTPGIMLPGALMLDFTLYLTRNWLVTALVGGGFFGLLFYPGNWPIFGPTHLPIVVEG

GH22amoA NOCamoA	LNFVTPGIMLPGALMLDFTMYLTRNWLVTALVGGGFFGLMFYPGNWPIFGPTHLPIVVEG INFVWPTILLPMALFLDAMLAISKSYGLTAVVGGLMYGLLMYPANWPLLSAFHVPAEYNG
N113amoA	INFVWPTILLPMALFLDAMLAISKSYGLTAVVGGLMYGLLMYPANWPLLSAFHVPAEYNG
MCApmoA1	INFVFPASLVPGAIILDTVLMLSGSYLFTAIVGAMGWGLIFYPGNWPIIAPLHVPVENNG
MCApmoA2	INFVFPASLVPGAIILDTVLMLSGSYLFTAIVGAMGWGLIFYPGNWPIIAPLHVPVEYNG
	181 240
N39amoA3	VILSVADYTGFLYVRTGTPEYVRNIEOGSLRTFGGHTTVIAAFFAAFISMLMFCIWWYFG
N39amoA2	VILSVADYTGELYVRTGTPEYVRNTEOGSLETEGGHTTVIAAFFAAFISMLMECIWWYFG
N39amoA1	VLLSVADYTGFLYVRTGTPEYVRNIEOGSLRTFGGHTTVIAAFFAAFISMLMFCIWWYFG
NBRamoA	VLLSVADYTGFLYVRTGTPEYVRNIEOGSLRTFGGHTTVIASFFAAFVSMLMFCLWWYFG
NVTamoA	VLLSVADYTGFLYVRTGTPEYVRNIEOGSLRTFGGHTTVIAAFFAAFISMLMFTIWWYFG
NAVamoA3	VI.I.SI.ADYTGFI.VVRTGTPEYVRI.TEOGSI.RTFGGHTTVTAAFFSAFVSMI.MFCVWWYFG
NAVamoA2	VI.I.SLADYTGFI.YVRTGTPEYVRI.LEOGSLRTFGGHTTVIAAFFSAFVSMLMFCVWWYFG
NAVamoA1	VLLSLADYTGFLYVRTGTPEYVRLIEOGSLRTFGGHTTVIAAFFSAFVSMLMFCVWWYFG
NMUamoA1	VLLSVADYTGFLYVRTGTPEYVRLIEOGSLRTFGGHTTVIASFFSAFVSMLMFTVWWYFG
NMUamoA2	VLLSVADYTGFLYVRTGTPEYVRLIEOGSLRTFGGHTTVIASFFSAFVSMLMFTVWWYFG
NMUamoA3	VLLSVADYTGFLYVRTGTPEYVRLIEOGSLRTFGGHTTVIASFFSAFVSMLMFTVWWYFG
N24CamoA	VLLSVADYTGFLYVRTGTPEYVRLIEOGSLRTFGGHTTVIAAFFSAFVSMLMFTVWWYFG
NEUamoA1	TLLSMADYMGHLYVRTGTPEYVRHIEOGSLRTFGGHTTVIAAFFSAFVSMLMFTVWWYLG
AL212amoA	VLLSVADYTGFLYVRTGTPEYVRLIEOGSLRTFGGHTTVIAAFFSAFVSMLMFCVWWYFG
JL21amoA	VLLSIADYTGFLYVRTGTPEYVRLIEQGSLRTFGGHTTVIAAFFSAFVSMLMFCVWWYFG
NETamoA2	TLLSMADYMGHLYVRTGTPEYVRHIEQGSLRTFGGHTTVIAAFFAAFVSMLMFAVWWYLG
NETamoA1	TLLSMVDYMGHLYVRTGTPEYVRHIEQDSLRTFGGHTTVIAAFFAAFVSMLMFAVWWYLG
GH22amoA	TLLSMADYMGHLYVRTGTPEYVRHIEQGSLRTFGGHTTVIAAFFAAFVSMLMFAVWWYLG
NOCamoA	VVMSLADIMGYQYVRTGTPEYIRMVEKGTLKTFGKDVVPVSAFFSGFVAMVMYFVWHFVG
N113amoA	VVMSLADVAGYQYVRTGTPEYIRMVEKGTLRTFGKDVVPVSAFFAGFVAMVMYFVWHFVG
MCApmoAl	MLMSIADIQGYNYVRTGTPEYIRMVEKGTLRTFGKDVAPVSAFFSAFMSILIYFMWHFIG
MCApmoA2	MLMSIADIQGYNYVRTGTPEYIRMVEKGTLRTFGKDVAPVSAFFSAFMSILIYFMWHFIG
	241 277
N39amoA3	KLYCTAFFYVKGHRGRVTMKNDVTAFGEEGFPEGIK.
N39amoA2	KLYCTAFFYVKGHRGRVTMKDDVTAFGEEGFPEGIK.
N39amoA1	KLYCTAFFYVKGHRGRVTMKNDVTAFGEEGFPEGIK.
NBRamoA	KLYCTAFFYVKGTRGRVTMKNDVTAFGEEGFPEGIK.
NVTamoA	KLYCTAFFYVKGHRGRVTMKNDVTAFGEEGFPEGIK.
NAVamoA3	KLYCTAFYYVKGPRGRVTMKNDVTAYGEEGFPEGIK.
NAVamoA2	KLYCTAFYYVKGPRGRVTMKNDVTAYGEEGFPEGIK.
NAVamoA1	KLYCTAFYYVKGPRGRVTMKNDVTAYGEEGFPEGIK.
NMUamoA1	KVYCTAFYYVKGARGRVSMKNDVTAFGEEGFAEGIK.
NMUamoA2	KVYCTAFYYVKGARGRVSMKNDVTAFGEEGFAEGIK.
NMUamoA3	KVYCTAFYYVKGARGRVSMKNDVTAFGEEGFAEGIK.
N24CamoA	KVYCTAFFYVKGPRGRISMKNDVTAYGEEGFPEGIK.
NEUamoAl	KVYCTAFFYVKGKRGRIVHRNDVTAFGEEGFPEGIK.
AL212amoA	KLYCTAFFYVKGERGRISMKNDVTAFGEKGFAQGIK.
JL21amoA	KLYCTAFYYVKGERGRISMKNDVTAFGEKGFAQGIK.
NETamoA2	KVYCTAFFYVKGKRGRIVQRNDVSAFGEEGFPEGIK.
NETamoAl	KVYCTAFFYVKGKRGRIVQRNDVTAFGEEGFPEGIK.
GH22amoA	KVYCTAFFYVKGKRGRIVQRNDVTAFGEEGFPEGIK.
NOCamoA	RWFSKDYHINQL
N113amoA	RWFSKDYSVDQC
MCApmoA1	RWFSNERFLQST
MCApmoA2	RWFSNERFLQST

INFVLPSTMIPGALMLDTIMLLTGDWLITALLGGAFWGLFFYPGNWPIFGPTHLPLVVEG LNFVLPSTMIPGALMMDTIMLLTGNWLVTALLGGGFFGLFFYPGNWPIFGPTHLPVVVEG LNFVTPGIMLPGAFMLDFTMYLTRNWLVTALVGGGFFGLMFYPGNWPIFGPTHLPIVVEG LNFVTPGIMLPGALMLDFTMYLTRNWLVTALVGGGFFGLMFYPGNWPIFGPTHLPIVVEG LNFVTPGIMLPGALMLDFTMYLTRNWLVTALVGGGFFGLMFYPGNWPIFGPTHLPIVVEG EYNG EYNG ENNG EYNG

AL212amoA JL21amoA

NETamoA2

NETamoA1

Clustal W Alignment 11/98 Klotz, Norton and Alzerreca. AmoB complete peptides

NTATID 1	
NAVBL	PINAKNUFKUGVIGLIGMATIALS-ILDISPAAAAGEKSGEPFEKAKIIQWIDAKWGPDIIKVND
NAVB2	MNAKNLFKLGVIGLYGMATLALS-TLDISPAAAHGERSQEPFLRMRTIQWYDMKWGPDTTKVND
NAVB3	MNAKNLFKLGVIGLYGMATLALS-TLDISPAAAHGERSQEPFLRMRTIQWYDMKWGPDTTKVND
NEUB	MGIKNLYKR-GVMGLYGV-A-YAVAALAMTVTLDVSTVAAHGERSQEPFLRMRTVQWYDIKWGPEVTKVNE
NOCB	MKGTHITNRARKWLAIG-FTAVIASSVFYIPTVAAHGEKAQAAFLRMRTIHWYDMVWS-DTIAVNE
NIISP	MENMY_CTHITNDAKKWIAICTTAVIASSUFYIDTVAAHCEKAOAAFI.DMETIHWVDMWSKDTIANNE
MCIDI	M REAL AND A DAY AND A DAY AND A DAY AND A DAY AND
MCABI	MKIIKDKIA-KWSAIGLISAVAAIA-FIAPSASARGEKSQAAFMKMKIIRWIDISWSKEKVKINE
MCAB2	MKTIKDKIA-KWSAIGLLSAVAATA-FYAPSASAHGEKSQAAFMRMRTIHWYDLSWSKEKVKINE
NAVB1	FATMTGKFHLAEDWPRAVGKPGRAFFNVGSPSPVFVRLSTKLNGEPTYISGPLEIGRDYAFEVKLKARI
NAVR2	FATMTCKFHLAFDWDRAVCKDCRAFFNVCSDSDVFVRLSTKLNCFDTYLSCDLFICEDVAFFVKLKARI
NAUDO	
INAVB5	
NEOR	NAKITGKFHLAEDWPRAAAQPDFSFFNVGSPSPVFVRLSTKINGHPWFISGPLQIGRDYEFEVNLRARI
NOCB	TYTISGKFRVFEDWPEAVEKPHVSFLNAGQPGPVTARLTSYVNGMFVPRSIGLELGGDYDFEMTMQGRR
N113B	TYTISGKFRVFEDWPEAVEVPHVSFLNAGQPGPVTTRLTSYINGMFVPRSIGLELGGDYEFEMTMQGRR
MCAB1	TVEIKGKFHVFEGWPETVDEPDVAFLNVGMPGPVFIRKESYIGGQLVPRSVRLEIGKTYDFRVVLKARR
MCAB2	TVEIKGKFHVFEGWPETVDEPDVAFLNVGMPGPVFIRKESYIGGQLVPRSVRLEIGKTYDFRVVLKARR
NAURI	
NAUDO	COMMENSATION OF A DAY A DATE OF A DETAIL OF A DAY A DETAIL OF A DETAIL
NAVB2	PGRHHMHAMVNI KDAGPIAGPAAWMNI I GSWDDF I NPVKLLI IGEI I DI EI FNFNNG I FWHLLWLGLGCF
NAVB3	PGSHHMHTMVNIKDAGPIAGPAAWMNITGSWDDFTNPVKLLTGETIDTETFNFNNGIFWHLLWLGLGCF
NEUB	PGRHHMHAMLNVKDAGPIAGPGAWMNITGSWDDFTNPLKLLTGETIDSETFNLSNGIFWHVVWMSIGIF
NOCB	PGTWHVHTLLNVQGGGPLIGPGKYITITGDMADFENKITDLTGNTVNLETMATGTVIGWHLSWYVLGIA
N113B	PGTWHVHTLLNVOGGGPLIGPGKYITITGDMADFENKVTDLTGNTVNLETMATGTVIGWHLFWYVLGIA
MCAB1	PGDWHVHTMMNVOGGGPIIGPGKWITVEGSMSEFRNPVTTLTGOTVDLENYNEGNTYFWHAFWFAIGVA
MCAB2	DODWHUNTYMMNU/OGGODIICOCKWITY/FGGMSEFPNDU/TYLTCOTYDIENY/NFGMTYFWHAFWFAIGUA
NAVB1	WIGYYVARPMFLPRSRVLLAYGDDLLLDPMDKKVAWIVLIATFGIVWGGYRYTETKHPYTVPIQAGESK
NAVB2	WIGYYVARPMFLPRSRVLLAYGDDLLLDPMDKKVAWIVLIATFGIVWGGYRYTETKHPYTVPIQAGESK
NAVB3	WIGYYVARPMFLPRSRVLLAYGDDLLLDPMDKKVAWIVLIATFGIVWGGYRYTETKHPYTVPIQAGESK
NEUB	WIGVFTARPMFLPRSRVLLAYGDDLLMDPMDKKITWVLAILTLALVWGGYRYTENKHPYTVPIOAGOSK
NOCB	WIGWWARP DMFL DRYMKIKAGKANDIL TAODKKITTGUL VGVLLITIL FOSKNAFDKFDVTTDLOAGLIG
NIIZP	WIGHNARD DAFT DEVELOPMENT AND A WITTOW WAT I THE EXPLOREMENT OF A CLARK
MODDA	
MCABI	WIGIWSRRPIFIPRLLMVDAGRADELVSATDRVVAMGFLAATILIVVMAMSSANSKIPITIPLQAGIMR
MCAB2	WIGYWSRRPIFIPRLLMVDAGRADELVSATDRKVAMGFLAATILIVVMAMSSANSKYPITIPLQAGTMR
NAVB1	VQPMPVKPNPIAIKVTHANYDVPGRALRVTMSVTNSGDTAYRIGEFTTAGVRFINKVGLKHLDRNYPK
NAVB2	VOPMPVKPNPIAIKVTHANYDVPGRALRVTMSVTNSGDTAYRIGEFTTAGVRFINKVGLKHLDRNYPK
NAVB3	VOPMPVKPNPIAIKVTHANYDVPGRALRVTMSVTNSGDTAYRIGEFTTAGVRFINKVGLKHLDRNYPK
NEUB	VAL PVAPNPVSIVITDANYDVPGRAL RVTMEVTNNGDIPVTFGEFTTAGIRFINSTGRKYLDPOYPR
NOCB	
N1122D	TIDEL NEWNOWICZ VII VANNETONE CONTAMINET INNEROAL CTOEDINGOTE DANAAND COOT AVDE
NIISB	TEPEPPVTINSWSSARVLAANTRVPGRTTIMTVELTMTDQVLSTGEFNTGGTRFMNANVRSDDT-GTPE
MCABI	GMRPLELPAPI-VSVRVEDATIRVPGRAMMALTITINGNSPIRLGEFTIASVRFLDSDVIRDTIG-TPE
MCAB2	GMKPLELPAPT-VSVKVEDATYRVPGRAMRMKLTITNHGNSPIRLGEFYTASVRFLDSDVYKDTTG-YPE
NAVB1	ELVATGLSF-DNDAPIQPGETREVKMVAKDALWEVQRLMALLGDPESRFGGLLMTWSDSGDRNINSIAG
NAVB2	ELVATGLSF-DNDALIOPGETREVKMEAKDALWEVORLMALLGDPESRFGGLLTTWSDSGDRNINSIAG
NAVB3	FLVATGLSF-DNDAPTODGETPEVKMEAKDALWEVORLMALLGDDESPEGGLIMTWSDSGDPNINSIAG
NEUR	FITAUGINE DESATOROTVEL WEAVOUWETORIMALICORESPECTINGENA CONDUTING TAC
NOCD	
NOCE	ELLAPEGLEVSQQ-DIAPGETVVVDISATDAAWEVQRMADVIYDPDSRFAGLIFFVDPEGNEIPIPIGG
N113B	ELLAPEGLEMSQQ-DIAPGETVVVDISATDAAWEVQRMADVIYDPDSRFAGLIFFIDPEGNEIPIPVGG
MCAB1	DLLAEDGLSVSDNSPLAPGETRTVDVTASDAAWEVYRLSDIIYDPDSRFAGLLFFFDATGNRQVVQIDA
MCAB2	DLLAEDGLSVSDNSPLAPGETRTVDVTASDAAWEVYRLSDIIYDPDSRFAGLLFFFDATGNRQVVQIDA
NAVB1	AVIPVFTKL
NAVB2	AVIPVFTKL
NAVES	
NEUD	
NEUB	PVIPVFTKL
NOCB	PLVPTFV
N113B	PLVPTFV
MCAB1	PLIPSFM
MCAB2	PLIPSFM

	1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	10	11	12	13	14	15	16	17	18	19	20	21	22	
1		99.0	99.2	89.5	92.1	86.5	86.3	86.4	85.9	86.1	85.7	85.5	72.5	75.8	78.4	71.8	72.0	72.5	42.1	41.5	53.6	53.6	1 N39
2	97.5		99.5	89.9	93.1	87.0	86.8	86.9	86.9	87.0	86.7	85.9	72.8	76.6	78.8	72.1	72.4	72.8	42.7	42.2	54.0	54.0	2 N39
3	98.0	98.8	***	90.1	93.1	87.2	87.0	87.1	86.3	86.5	86.1	86.3	73.4	76.4	79.7	72.7	72.9	73.4	40.3	39.8	52.0	52.0	3 N39
4	94.9	95.6	96.1		87.3	86.2	86.1	86.1	84.2	84.2	83.9	85.6	72.4	72.6	75.2	71.8	71.8	72.2	41.7	42.3	51.2	51.2	4 NBR
5	96.4	97.1	97.7	94.9	***	85.2	85.1	85.1	87.9	88.0	87.6	86.3	73.1	76.6	79.4	71.6	71.9	72.4	42.5	41.9	51.9	51.9	5 NVT
6	92.0	92.7	93.4	93.5	92.7	***	99.9	99.9	86.4	86.4	86.2	86.3	72.2	76.6	77.8	70.1	70.2	70.8	44.4	41.9	53.0	53.0	6 NAV
7	92.0	92.7	93.4	93.5	92.7	99.6	***	99.8	86.3	86.3	86.1	86.2	72.1	76.5	77.7	70.1	70.2	70.8	44.1	41.7	52.8	52.8	7 NAV
8	92.0	92.7	93.4	93.5	92.7	99.6	99.6	***	86.3	86.3	86.1	86.2	72.1	76.5	77.7	69.9	70.1	70.7	44.2	41.8	53.1	53.1	8 NAV
9	90.9	91.6	91.8	93.1	93.1	93.8	93.8	93.8		99.9	99.5	88.4	73.8	75.6	77.0	70.7	70.9	71.2	43.7	42.3	52.8	52.8	9 NMU
10	90.9	91.6	91.8	93.1	93.1	93.8	93.8	93.8	99.6	***	99.6	88.4	73.7	75.8	77.1	70.7	70.9	71.2	43.7	42.3	53.0	53.0	10 NMU
11	89.8	90.5	90.6	92.0	92.0	93.1	93.1	93.1	98.5	98.5		88.1	73.2	75.2	76.5	70.2	70.4	70.7	43.5	42.1	52.7	52.7	11 NMU
12	90.2	90.5	91.4	91.3	91.3	93.8	93.8	93.8	93.8	93.8	93.1	***	71.4	74.7	76.1	69.5	69.7	70.1	43.5	42.5	53.4	53.4	12 N240
13	82.9	83.6	84.8	84.4	83.6	83.3	83.3	83.3	83.6	83.6	82.9	82.9	***	73.1	73.7	87.8	88.2	88.1	44.1	42.7	48.8	48.8	13 NEU
14	86.5	87.3	88.3	87.3	86.5	87.6	87.6	87.6	86.9	86.9	86.2	87.6	82.2	***	85.7	72.4	72.5	72.8	43.8	41.8	47.0	47.0	14 AL21
15	86.2	86.9	88.7	86.9	86.5	88.4	88.4	88.4	87.6	87.6	86.9	87.3	83.3	94.9	***	73.2	73.2	73.6	43.7	42.3	49.6	49.6	15 JL21
16	81.8	82.5	83.6	83.3	82.5	81.5	81.5	81.5	81.1	81.1	80.4	80.7	96.0	80.7	82.5	***	99.4	99.2	42.6	42.2	47.7	47.7	16 NET
17	81.8	82.5	83.6	83.3	82.5	81.5	81.5	81.5	81.1	81.1	80.4	80.7	96.0	80.7	82.5	98.2	***	99.3	42.5	41.8	47.2	47.2	17 NET
18	82.5	83.3	84.4	84.0	83.3	82.2	82.2	82.2	81.8	81.8	81.1	81.5	96.8	81.5	83.3	98.9	98.9	***	43.4	41.7	48.3	48.3	18 GH22
19	40.3	40.7	39.1	41.5	40.7	42.3	42.3	42.3	41.9	41.9	41.5	41.5	43.1	41.9	41.1	41.1	40.7	41.5	***	88.4	55.4	55.5	19 NOC
20	41.9	42.3	40.7	43.5	42.3	42.7	42.7	42.7	42.3	42.3	41.9	41.9	43.5	42.7	41.9	42.3	41.9	42.7	94.8	***	55.2	55.4	20 N113
21	46.8	47.2	46.0	48.0	46.4	46.8	46.8	46.8	46.8	46.8	46.4	48.0	48.0	47.6	47.6	46.8	46.0	46.8	60.8	61.3	***	99.9	21 MCA
22	46.8	47.2	46.0	48.0	46.4	46.8	46.8	46.8	46.8	46.8	46.4	48.0	48.0	47.6	47.6	46.8	46.0	46.8	61.9	61.7	99.2	***	22 MCA

% AMINO ACID SIMILARITY

% NUCLEOTIDE IDENTITY

Pair table of Nucleotide Identity for amoA and amino acid similarity for AmoA (Norton, Klotz and Alzerreca 11/98)

141